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One. Letter to Shareholders  

Dear Shareholders, 

 

In 2023, the consolidated operating revenue of Associated Industries China, Inc. (known as 

“AG Neovo”) amounted to NT$510,587 thousand, which decreased by 14% compared to 

NT$594,422 thousand in the previous year. The sales volume fell by 11%, while the gross profit 

margin increased from 32% in 2022 to 39%. In 2023, the net operating loss amounted to 

NT$41,292 thousand, an increase of NT$4,922 thousand from the net operating profit of 

NT$36,370 thousand in 2022. The operating results for the year 2023 showed a net loss after tax 

of NT$56,773 thousand, of which NT$29,820 thousand is attributable to the owners of the parent 

company. The loss per share after tax is NT$0.59. 

 

We experienced the ups and downs of imbalances in global supply and demand for the past 

three years (2020 - 2022) due to COVID-19, followed by geopolitical and financial market tensions, 

including Sino-US relations, the Russian-Ukrainian war, interest rate hikes, and inflation. In the 

second half of 2023, manufacturers were faced with revenue decrease due to the rapidly reducing 

market demand, and heavy inventory pressures, resulting in a tight working capital, and even 

corporate layoffs or bankruptcy. The global economy is expected to maintain a mild slowdown in 

2024, which will be the lowest growth since the post-pandemic period. The economic growth in 

the next five years will not be fully recovered to the average level of 2016 - 2019. 

 

The main focus of the work of AG Neovo in 2023 is to uphold the toughness of stability and 

continuous optimization of operation management under uncertain conditions, and to gradually 

accelerate the progress of goals. Looking forward to the future, AG Neovo seeks to achieve its 

vision of “Being a reliable platform that creates the added value for all stakeholders in the AG 

Neovo value chain,” as well as upholding its branding philosophy that adopts three elements, 

namely “users, environment, and products/services” as the main axes, so as to develop the strategic 

planning and action plans. 

 

1.Professional Displays 

With the operational objective and user experience of the professional market as the core 

of the Company's product and technology application development, and integrate the 

layout of digital marketing, the brand positioning of AG Neovo display in the professional 

market has been laid down. The Company's displays are excellent in the application of 

real-time security monitoring and accurate information display in public venues such as 

industrial manufacturing, medical care institutions, and transportation, achieving the core 

idea of product development of real-time information, accurate presentation, and 

uninterrupted customer operations. 

Implement the ESG sustainable management concept in the value chain layout: We are 

committed to developing products that meet the needs of target customers (five major 

markets) centering on software and services; developing products with modular 

concepts in order to achieve the professionalism of meeting the target market for end 

products and the optimization of performance in the value chain. 

We work closely with key partners to implement the action plan for profit sharing. 

We launch digital information management to optimize long-term operating efficiency. 
 

2.Solution 

The focus of AG Neovo's solution is to meet the needs of application customers in different 

fields in detail through software development and technical service provision. For example, 
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in the field of business conferencing applications, the emphasis is on cross-regional video 

conferencing and the real-time presentation of various document types; in the field of 

education applications, two-way synchronous content communication is the main focus; 

in information display in public areas, not allowing machine maintenance conditions to 

affect operations is the first priority. The Company focuses on the application field and 

integrates application software and technical support services to demonstrate the unique 

value of AG Neovo Solution: 

Develop or integrate suitable application software according to the needs of users in 

different application fields, manage operational risks in user fields, while improving 

efficiency. 

Develop a display health monitoring and diagnosis system and implement an early 

warning mechanism to ensure the uninterrupted operation of displays in public areas. 

In addition to independent research and development, the Company will deepen 

cooperation with strategic partners and continue to optimize the application of "field 

solutions". 

 

3.Healthcare 

AG Neovo Healthcare has been established through its subsidiary, Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation (tBPC). 

The preventive medicine that uses various preventive measures to avoid illness is the 

vision of tBPC. Non-intrusive wearables are used to monitor physiological parameters 

anytime, anywhere, assisting medical teams in finding correlations with underlying 

diseases, which has become a strategy for Taiwan's physicians to implement preventive 

medicine. The fundamental premise of all of this is the need for precision wearables to be 

distributed throughout the home or on individuals. In this entire ecosystem, tBPC hopes to 

use the two technologies (bio-optics simulation and opto-mechanical integration) and three 

soft powers (algorithms, patent layout, and clinical experimentation) of TBPC-INSIDE as 

a platform for the pursuit of precision medicine and play the role of the "enabler" of the 

target medical materials or brand manufacturers. 

Short- and medium-term measures: 

Work with wearable (brand or solution provider) partners to develop products and 

technologies, commit to establishing long-term cooperative relations, continue to 

expand the influence of Taiwanese medicine in this ecosystem, and grow technology 

and operating revenue. 

On the application end, by working with medical and health channel partners, TtBPC 

continues to promote the home sleep reporting solution in Taiwan’s sleep market; and 

continues to introduce nighttime sleep data collection and clinical classification, with 

the hope of becoming an expert in the field of sleep care. 

 

In respect of the overall company management, all employees consistently uphold the 

governance philosophy and resolve in their actions. I would like to thank the long-term support 

that our shareholders have extended to the Company. The management team and all employees of 

AG Neovo shall continue our endeavor to facilitate the utilization of AG Neovo’s corporate culture, 

brand value and core competitiveness in creating the maximum profit, so as to protect shareholder 

interests and take on the corporate social responsibility (CSR). We hope the shareholders would 

maintain their initial faith and confidence in AG Neovo, and embark on a profitable future with 

us. Finally, we wish you good health and all the best. 

Chairman, Hua-Chung Pi 

 

General Manager, Hsin-Yuan Chao 
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Two. Company Profile 
I. Date of incorporation  

Associated Industries China, Inc. was incorporated on May 18, 1978 and mainly produces 

steel shipping containers. In 2000, the Company was transformed into a professional brand 

marketing company for LCD monitors to develop the electronic technology business. We mainly 

engage in the research and development (R&D) of LCD monitor in our own brand, AG Neovo, 

and have established an excellent brand image in the market and won many awards all over the 

world. In 2014, we established a biomedical division and a new venture division to gradually 

expand the Company's new business fields. 

II. Company history 

May 1978 Established the Company with a capital of NT$10,000 thousand. 

December 1978 Increased the capital in cash to NT$36,000 thousand. 

April 1979 Start production, increased the capital in cash to NT$50,000 thousand. 

August 1979 Increased the capital in cash to NT$60,000 thousand. 

January 1980 Increased the capital in cash to NT$80,000 thousand. 

November 1980 Increased the capital in cash to NT$100,000 thousand. 

June 1981 Increased the capital in cash to NT$140,000 thousand. 

January 1984 Increased the capital in cash to NT$200,000 thousand. 

January 1988 Conducted capitalization of capital surplus to increase the capital to 

NT$220,000 thousand. 

May 1989 Conducted capitalization of earnings to increase the capital to 

NT$280,000 thousand. 

August 1989 Increased the capital in cash to NT$400,000 thousand and publicly 

offered shares. 

September 1990 Conducted capitalization of capital surplus and earnings to increase the 

capital to NT$510,000 thousand. 

July 1991 Conducted capitalization of earnings to increase the capital to 

NT$586,500 thousand. 

July 1992 Conducted capitalization of earnings to increase the capital to 

NT$689,138 thousand. 

August 1992 The Company's stock was publicly listed on TWSE for trading as a 

category 1 stock. 

July 1993 Established a container repair workshop in Kaohsiung. 

July 1993 Approved by the Investment Commission to invest in the 

establishment of Shanghai Baowei Shipping Container Manufacturing 

Plant in mainland China. 

September 1993 Conducted capitalization of capital surplus and earnings to increase the 

capital to NT$800,000 thousand. 

July 1994 Conducted capitalization of capital surplus and earnings to increase the 

capital to NT$879,868 thousand. 

July 1995 Conducted capitalization of capital surplus and earnings to increase the 

capital to NT$906,264 thousand. 

July 1995 The Zhongli Plant passed the ISO-9002 quality certification as a 

qualified plant. 

November 1996 Increased the capital in cash to NT$1,100,000 thousand. 

March 1997 Invested in the establishment of Huanwei International Finance Co., 

Ltd. 

November 1998 Increased the capital in cash to NT$1,400,000 thousand. 

July 1999 Established an Electronics Division and put it into formal operation. 
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August 1999 Conducted capitalization of earnings and capital to increase the capital 

to NT$1,512,000 thousand. 

December 2000 Terminated the Zhongli Plant’s shipping container production line 

(retained the shipping container repair business at the Kaohsiung 

Plant), developed the electronic technology business, and carried out 

business transformation. 

August 2001 Passed ISO-14000 environmental certification. 

May 2002 The Company's subsidiary, TAG, disposed of the equity of Shanghai 

Baowei Shipping Container Manufacturing Plant it held, and the 

Company officially terminated the container sales business. 

April 2003 Adjusted the business model to gradually outsource from the 

manufacturing business and expand our global distribution sales. 

December 2004 Passed ISO-14001 environmental certification. 

January 2005 Disposed of part of the Zhongli Plant’s land in the Zhong-Gong section 

and completed the ownership transfer registration. 

March 2005 Reduced the capital to NT$884,000 thousand. 

July 2005 Terminated the shipping container repair business in Kaohsiung. 

August 2006 Reduced the capital to NT$460,874 thousand. 

September 2012   Approved by the Investment Commission to invest in the 

establishment of AG Neovo Technology (Shanghai) Corporation in 

mainland China. 

October 2012   Disposed of the Zhongli Plant’s remaining land in the Zhong-Gong 

section and completed the ownership transfer registration. 

January 2013   Purchased an office building in Nangang. 

September 2013   Conducted capitalization of earnings and employee dividends to 

increase the capital to NT$499,720 thousand. 

September 2014   Established a biomedical division and gradually put it into operation; 

conducted capitalization of earnings to increase the capital to 

NT$524,706 thousand. 

November 2014   Invested in Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation, a technology transfer 

company established by Industrial Technology Research Institute, to 

strategically cooperate in the biomedical business. 

May 2015 Invested in IRONYUN INCORPORATED, a technology transfer 

company established by the Industrial Technology Research Institute. 

The company focuses on providing high-precision smart image analysis 

solutions. 

December 2018 The Dental Division of the Biomedical Business successfully passed 

the ISO13485 "medical equipment quality management system" 

certification and entered the field of telemedicine. 

December 2019 The Display Business Department is developing towards conference 

machines, electronic digital signage boards, and total solutions. 

April 2022   Acquired de facto control of Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation and 

included it as a subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Three. Corporate Governance Report 

I. Organization 

(I) Organizational structure of Associated Industries China, Inc. 

 

Shareholders Meeting 

Board of Directors 

Chairman 

President 

Audit 

Committee 

Remuneration 

Committee 
Audit Office 

New Venture 

Center 

Sales Service 
Center 

Marketing 

Center 

Product  

Strategy  

Center 
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Management 
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Technical 

Support Center 

Management 

Service  

Center 
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 (II) Main business by each major department 

 

 

 

Department Main Businesses 

President 

Set the Company's business development direction and operational goals 

Supervise the Company's strategic plans and major business decisions 

Integrate Company products and services to develop a competitive 

business model 

New Venture 

Center 

Analyze industry trends as well as evaluate opportunities for new 

ventures 

Comprehensively manage various investment-related matters 

Management 

Service Center 

Plan and carry out various finance, accounting, and taxation tasks 

Manage funds, investments, and shareholder service 

Plan and implement human resources policies and various approaches 

Establish and manage an information system and safeguard information 

security 

Manage administrative affairs 

Sales Service 

Center 

Develop markets and promote business 

Maintain customer relationship 

Provide customer service and coordinate, communicate, and address 

customers’ relevant issues 

Establish marketing channels 

Marketing Center 

Product Strategy 

Center 

Establish an excellent image of the Company's brand and service 

Plan and promote brand and product strategies 

Analyze market trends and plan marketing channel strategies 

Plan and implement global marketing campaign strategies 

Plan and implement solution promotion strategies 

Set a new direction for product development 

Project 

Management 

Center 

Technical Support 

Center 

Evaluate new technology development and application 

Formulate engineering specifications, control costs, design and verify 

products, and put products into mass production 

Manage safety certification and R&D technical documents 

Provide pre-sales and after-sales technical support 

Formulate quality standards, manage suppliers, as well as audit and 

improve quality 

Source products and arrange for transportation and warehousing 

Provide after-sales service and perform data statistics and analysis 

Audit Office 

Check if the internal control system continues to operate effectively 

Evaluate the soundness and effectiveness of the internal control system 

and the correctness of financial and accounting information and audit 

each department’s operations and procedures to see if they are in 

compliance with the regulations 
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II. Information on directors, the President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice President, and the heads of various departments and branches: 

(I) Information on directors  
May 31, 2024 

Title 

Nationa

lity or 
place of 

registrat
ion 

Name 
Gender 

Age 

Election/appoint

ment date 

Term 
of 

office 

Date first 
elected or 

appointed 

Shareholding when elected 
Number of shares currently 

held 

Current shareholding 

of spouse or minor 
children 

Shareholding by 

nominee arrangement Major education and 

experience 
Concurrent positions at the Company or other companies 

Spouse or relatives 

within second degree 
of kinship who are 

other managers, 
directors, or 

supervisors of the 
Company 

Rema

rk 

(Note 
1) 

Number of 
shares 

Sharehold
ing 

Number of 
shares 

Shareholdi
ng 

Number 
of shares 

Sharehold
ing 

Number 
of shares 

Sharehold
ing 

Title Name 
Relati
onship 

Chairman R.O.C. Hua-Chung Pi 
Male 

61-70 years 

old 

2021/07/21 
Three 
years 

2004/02/10 3,451,541 6.25% 3,502,541 6.34% 0 0% 0 0% 

National Chiao Tung 

University 
Executive Master of 

Business Administration 

Chairman, AG Neovo 
Chairman, tBPC 

Supervisor, Huasyn Biomedical Co., Ltd. 

None None None None 

Director 

R.O.C. 

ShiueDing 

Investment 

Consultant Co., 
Ltd. 

- 2021/07/21  2021/07/21 2,000 0.00% 2,000 0.00% 0 0% 0 0% None None None None None None 

R.O.C. 
Representative: 

Yun Yu 

Male 
71 years old 

or above 

2021/07/21 
Three 
years 

1998/06/29 819,137 1.48% 1,465,356 2.65% 77 0% 0 0% 

National Cheng Kung 

University 
Department of 

Mechanical Engineering 

Director of AG Neovo 
Director of Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation 

None None None None 

Director 

R.O.C. 

ShiueDing 
Investment 

Consultant Co., 
Ltd. 

- 2021/07/21  2021/07/21 2,000 0.00% 2,000 0.00% 0 0% 0 0% None None None None None None 

R.O.C. 
Representative: 
Hsin-Yuan Chao 

Female 

51-60 years 
old 

2021/07/21 
Three 
years 

2013/06/18 517,757 0.94% 1,022,757  1.85% 0 0% 2,000 0% 
Texas Tech University 
Master of Accounting 

Director/President, AG Neovo 

Director/President, tBPC 
Chairman, ShiueDing Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. 

None None None None 

Director R.O.C. Hung-Chun Yu 

Male 

41-50 years 
old 

2021/07/21 
Three 
years 

2018/06/13 0 0% 400,000 0.72% 0 0% 0 0% 

The University of 

Queensland, Australia 
Business School 

Director of AG Neovo 
General Manager of AG Neovo Technology B.V.      

None None None None 

Independent 

Director 
R.O.C. Yang, Chyan 

Male 
71 years old 

or above 

2021/07/21 
Three 

years 
2018/06/13 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 

PhD in Computer 
Science, University of 

Washington 

Independent Director of AG Neovo 

Independent Director of Acter Group Corporation Limited 
Independent Director of Aspeed Technology Inc. 

Independent Director of Nextchip Co., Ltd. 
Director, Chia Chang Co., Ltd. 

None None None None 

Independent 
Director 

R.O.C. Sha-Wei Chang 

Female 

51-60 years 

old 

2021/07/21 
Three 
years 

2018/06/13 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 

National Taiwan 

University 
Department of 

Accounting 

Independent Director of AG Neovo 

CPA, Mingjia Accounting Firm 
Independent Director of Iron Force Industrial Co., Ltd.        

None None None None 

Independent 

Director 
R.O.C. Kuo-Hua Chen 

Male 
41-50 years 

old 

2021/07/21 
Three 

years 
2021/07/21 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 

Master of Laws (LL.M.), 

Boston University 

Independent Director of AG Neovo 
Attorney-in-charge, C & A Law Firm 

Independent Director, SunMax Biotechnology Co. Ltd. 
Independent Director of Hotel Royal Chihpen Group 

Director, United Medical Foundation Taiwan 
Director, Chia Nan University of Pharmacy and Science 

Director, Chia Yi Investment Co., Ltd. 

None None None None 

Note 1: Where the Chairman and the President or person in an equivalent position (top-level manager) are the same person, spouses, or relatives within the first degree of kinship, the reason for, reasonableness, necessity thereof, and countermeasures shall be disclosed: N/A. 
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 (II) Major shareholders of institutional shareholders 
April 22, 2024 

Names of institutional shareholders Principal shareholders of institutional shareholders 

Investment account of Tri-Tech Holding Inc in custody of 

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. 
INTERNET PLANNER LTD. (100%) 

ShiueDing Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. Hsin-Yuan Chao (100%) 

 

 

(III) Disclosure of information on directors’ professional qualifications and the independence of independent directors: 
May 31, 2024 

  Criteria 

Name 

Professional qualifications and experience Independence (Note 1) 

Number of other public 
companies where the 

individual serves as an 
independent director 

concurrently 

Hua-Chung 

Pi 

1. Chairman of AG Neovo 

2. Supervisor of Huasyn Biomedical Co., Ltd. 

3. Chairman of Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation 

4. Has experience in the computer and peripheral equipment industries. 

5. Is not under any of the circumstances under the subparagraphs of 

Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10), 

and (11) 
0 

Representati

ve of 

ShiueDing 

Investment 

Consultant 

Co., Ltd.: 

Yun Yu 

1. Director of AG Neovo 

2. Director of Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation 

3. Has experience in the computer and peripheral equipment industries. 

4. Is not under any of the circumstances under the subparagraphs of 

Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10), 

and (11) 
0 
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  Criteria 

Name 

Professional qualifications and experience Independence (Note 1) 

Number of other public 
companies where the 

individual serves as an 
independent director 

concurrently 

Representati

ve of 

ShiueDing 

Investment 

Consultant 

Co., Ltd.: 

Hsin-Yuan 

Chao 

1. General Manager of AG Neovo 

2. Director/President of tBPC 

3. Chairman of ShiueDing Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. 

4. Has experience in the computer and peripheral equipment industries. 

5. Is not under any of the circumstances under the subparagraphs of 

Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10), 

and (11) 
0 

Hung-Chun 

Yu 

1. General Manager of AG Neovo Technology B.V. 

2. Has experience in the computer and peripheral equipment industries. 

3. Is not under any of the circumstances under the subparagraphs of 

Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), 

(10), and (11) 
0 

Yang, Chyan 

1. Professor and Director, Institute of Business and Management, 

National Chiao Tung University 

2. Is a college lecturer in business and has a professional business 

background and practical experience. 

3. Is not under any of the circumstances under the subparagraphs of 

Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8), 

(9), (10), and (11) 
3 

Sha-Wei 

Chang 

1. CPA, Mingjia Accounting Firm 

2. Senior auditor, KPMG 

3. Possess a CPA license, a professional accounting background, and 

practical experience. 

4. Is not under any of the circumstances under the subparagraphs of 

Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8), 

(9), (10), and (11) 
1 
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  Criteria 

Name 

Professional qualifications and experience Independence (Note 1) 

Number of other public 
companies where the 

individual serves as an 
independent director 

concurrently 

Kuo-Hua 

Chen 

1. Attorney-in-charge, C & A Law Firm 

2. Partner of Chien Yeh Law Offices 

3. Arbitrator of Chinese Arbitration Association, Taipei 

4. Patent Attorney of R.O.C. 

5. Possess an attorney license, a professional legal background, and 

practical experience. 

6. Is not under any of the circumstances under the subparagraphs of 

Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8), 

(9), (10), and (11) 
2 

 
Note 1: Any director under any of the circumstances below during the two years before being elected and during the term of office shall be disclosed in the table above: 

(1) Not an employee of the Company or its affiliate. 

(2) Not a director or a supervisor of the Company or its affiliates (except for an independent director engaged concurrently by the Company, its parent company, and its subsidiary, or a subsidiary 

under the same parent company according to the Act or local laws and regulations). 

(3) Not a director, spouse, minor child, or other natural person shareholders who hold more than 1% of the Company's total issued shares by nominee arrangement or with top ten ownership. 

(4) Not the manager listed in (1) or the spouse, relatives within the second degree of kinship, or direct blood relatives within the third degree of kinship of the person listed in (2) and (3). 

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of an institutional shareholder who directly holds more than 5% of the Company's total issued shares, who are among the top five shareholders, or who 

designate its representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the Company according to Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act (except for an independent director engaged 

concurrently by the Company, its parent company, and its subsidiary or a subsidiary under the same parent company according to the Act or local laws and regulations). 

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company where a majority of the Company's director seats or voting shares and those of another company are controlled by the same person 

(except for an independent director engaged concurrently by the Company, its parent company, and its subsidiary or a subsidiary under the same parent company according to the Act or local 

laws and regulations). 

(7) Not a director (managing director), supervisor, or employee of another company or institution where the Chairman, the President, or person holding an equivalent position at the Company and a 

person in an equivalent position at another company or institution are the same person or are spouses (except for an independent director engaged concurrently by the Company, its parent 

company, and its subsidiary or a subsidiary under the same parent company according to the Act or local laws and regulations). 

(8) Not a director (managing director), supervisor, manager, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares of a specific company or institution which has a financial or business relationship with 

the Company (except for a specific company or institution holding more than 20% and no more than 50% of the total issued shares of the Company and for an independent director engaged 

concurrently by the Company, its parent company, and its subsidiary or a subsidiary under the same parent company according to the Act or local laws and regulations). 

(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director (managing director), supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that provides auditing 

services to the Company or any affiliate of the Company, or that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related services to the Company or any affiliate of the Company for 

which the provider in the past two years has received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof. provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of the 

remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises powers pursuant to the Security and Exchanges 

Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or relevant laws or regulations. 

(10) Not a spouse or relative within any other director's second degree of kinship. 

(11) Not the government, juridical person, or representative thereof elected as per Article 27 of the Companies Act. 
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(IV) Board diversity and independence: 
1. Board diversity 

The Company has formulated the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” to require that the composition of the Board of 
Directors shall be based on the diversity principle. The number of directors as the Company’s managers concurrently shall not exceed one-
third of all directors. We have formulated an appropriate diversity policy based on its operation, operating model, and development needs, 
including but not limited to the two criteria below: 
I.Basic criteria and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture. Particularly, female directors should account for one-third of all directors. 
II.Professional knowledge and skills: Professional backgrounds (such as law, accounting, industry, finance, marketing, or technology), 
professional skills, and industry experience. 

 
We should focus on gender equality on the board, and board members should possess the knowledge, skills, and qualities needed to 
perform their duties. To achieve the Company’s ideal goals of corporate governance, the Board of Directors as a whole should possess the 
capabilities and skills below: 
I. Business judgment. 
II. Accounting and financial analysis. 
III. Business management. 
IV. Crisis management. 
V. Industry knowledge. 
VI. International market perspective. 
VII. Leadership. 
VIII. Decision-making. 

 
The implementation of the diversity policy is as follows: 
All the Company’s directors have expertise in different fields, which are of great help to our development and operations. The current term 
of the Board of Directors consists of seven directors with a term of three years. At present, female directors account for 29% of all directors 
(one of whom is an independent director), which has reached the target set by the Company, while male directors account for 71%. No 
director is a spouse or relative within the second degree of kinship of another. The term of office of one independent director is fewer than 
three years, while the other are three to six years. 

 
Management objectives Achieved or not 

Adequately diverse professional knowledge and skills and 
professional backgrounds 

Achieved 

Female directors account for 14% or more of all directors Achieved 
No more than two directors are spouses or relatives within the 
second degree of kinship of other directors. 

Achieved 

The term of independent directors is advised not to exceed 
three consecutive terms. 

Achieved 
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Diversity of individual directors (basic criteria and values, professional backgrounds, as well as professional knowledge and skills): 
Core diversity  

element 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of director 

Basic criteria and values 

Professional 

background 

Professional knowledge and skills 

Gender 

Age Nationality 

Term of 

indepen

dent 

director 

Serving 

as an 

employ

ee 

concurr

ently 

Business 

judgmen

t 

Account

ing and 

finance 

Business 

manage

ment 

Crisis 

manage

ment 

Industry 

knowled

ge 

Internati

onal 

market 
perspecti

ve 

Leaders

hip 

Decision

-making 

Hua-Chung Pi Male 
61-70 

years old 
R.O.C.  V 

Business 

administration 
V  V V V V V V 

Yu Yun Male 

71 years 

old or 
above 

R.O.C.   
Mechanical 
engineering 

V  V V V V V V 

Hsin-Yuan Chao Female 
51-60 

years old 
R.O.C.  V 

Accounting 
and finance 

V V V V V V V V 

Hung-Chun Yu Male 
41-50 

years old 
R.O.C.  V 

Business 
studies 

V  V V V V V V 

Yang Chien Male 

71 years 

old or 

above 

R.O.C. 
3–6 

years 
 

Computer 

science 
V  V V V V V V 

Sha-Wei Chang Female 
51-60 

years old 
R.O.C. 

3–6 

years 
 

Accounting 

and finance 
V V V V  V  V 

Kuo-Hua Chen Male 
41-50 

years old 
R.O.C. 

less than 

3 years 
 Law V  V V  V  V 

 
2. Independence of the Board of Directors 

The Company has a total of seven directors on the board, of whom three are independent directors (43%), and we checked their qualifications 
and statements they issued at the time of an election. No director is a spouse or relative within the second degree of kinship of any other director 
(as specified in Article 26-3, paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Securities and Exchange Act). Our directors are highly disciplined. They should recuse 
themselves from the discussion and voting on proposals on the agenda, in which their personal interest or the interest of the juridical persons 
they represent are involved and may cause damage to the Company's interest, at board of meetings. They may also not exercise their voting 
rights on behalf of other directors (please refer to director's recusal from proposals in the annual report). 
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(V) Information on directors, the President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice President, and the heads of various departments and branches 

                                                                                                     May 31, 2024 

Title Nationality Name Gender Date elected 

Shareholdings 

Shareholding of 

spouse or minor 

children 

Shareholding by 

nominee 

arrangement 
Major education and 

experience 

Concurrent positions at other 

companies 

Spouse or relative 

within second 

degree of kinship 

who are managers 

of the Company 

Rem

ark 

(Note 

1) Number of 

shares 

Shareholdin

g 

Numbe

r of 

shares 

Shareholdin

g 

Numbe

r of 

shares 

Sharehold

ing 

President R.O.C. 
Hsin-Yuan 

Chao 
Female 2009/07/10 1,022,757 1.85% 0 0% 2,000 0% 

Master of Accounting, 

Texas Tech University 

Director of Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation 

Chairman of ShiueDing Investment 

Consultant Co., Ltd. 

None None None None 

Assistant Vice 

President 
R.O.C. 

Chu, Pao-

Jung 
Male 2017/05/16 150,102 0.27% 0 0% 0 0% 

Department of Electronic 

Engineering, Vanung 

University 

None None None None None 

Assistant Vice 

President 
R.O.C. 

Lin, Han-

Lin 
Male 2017/05/16 249,102 0.45% 0 0% 0 0% 

Department of Electronic 

Engineering, China 

University of Science 

and Technology 

None None None None None 

Assistant Vice 

President 
R.O.C. 

Shih, Ju-

Ling 
Female 2022/03/31 285,102 0.52% 26,000 0.05% 0 0% 

Department of Business 

Management, National 

Taipei University of 

Technology 

None None None None None 

Assistant Vice 

President 
R.O.C. 

Chen Chia-

Hsin 
Male 2022/03/31 200,000 0.36% 0 0% 0 0% 

Executive Master of 

Business Administration, 

National Chiao Tung 

University 

None None None None None 

Vice General 

Manager (Note 2) 

Chief Financial 

Officer 

Chief Accounting 

Officer 

Corporate 

Governance 

Officer 

R.O.C. 
Wan-Wei 

Lu 
Female 2009/07/10 311,654 0.56% 0 0% 0 0% 

Department of 

Accounting, Fu Jen 

Catholic University 

None None None None None 

Note 1: Where the Chairman and the President or person in an equivalent position (top-level manager) are the same person, spouses, or relatives within the first degree of kinship, the reason for, 

reasonableness, necessity thereof, and countermeasures shall be disclosed: N/A. 
Note 2: On March 11, 2024, the Board of Directors approved the promotion of Wan-Wei Lu to Vice General Manager. 
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III. Remuneration paid to directors (including independent directors), supervisors, the President, and Vice Presidents in the most recent year 

(I) Remuneration to general directors and independent directors (individuals’ names and remuneration are disclosed) 
  December 31, 2023; Unit: NTD Thousand 

Job title Name 

Remuneration to directors Sum of A, B, C, and D 

and the sum as a % of the 

net income after tax 

(Note 10) 

Remuneration received for serving as an employee concurrently Sum of A, B, C, D, E, F, and 

G and the sum as a % of the 

net income after tax (Note 

10) 

Remunerati

on 

received 

from the 

invested 

companies 

other than 

the 

subsidiarie

s and the 

parent 

company 

(Note 11) 

Remuneration (A) 

(Note 2) 

Severance and 

pension (B) 

Remuneration to 
directors (C) (Note 

3) 

Business allowance 

(D) (Note 4) 

Remuneration, bonus, 
and allowance (E) (Note 

5) 

Severance and pension (F) Remuneration to employees (G) (Note 6) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 7) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 7) 

The 

Company 

All 

compani

es in the 

financial 

stateme

nts 

(Note 7) 

The 

Compan

y 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 7) 

The 

Company 

All companies 

in the financial 

statements 

(Note 7) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies in 

the financial 

statements 

(Note 7) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 7) 

The Company 

All companies in the 

financial statements 

(Note 7) 

The 

Company 

All companies 

in the financial 

statements 

(Note 7) 

Cash 

amoun

t 

Stock 

amoun

t 

Cash 

amoun

t 

Stock 

amoun

t 

Chairman 

Hua-

Chung 
Pi 

0 0 0 0 0 0 40 40 
   40 

-0.13% 

   40 

-0.13% 
3,696 3,696 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 3,736 

-12.53% 

  3,736 

-12.53% 
None 

Director 

Represent

ative of 
ShiueDing 

Investmen

t 

Consultant 
Co., Ltd.: 

Yun Yu 

120 120 0 0 0 0 40 40 
   160 

-0.54% 

    160 

-0.54% 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

   160 

-0.54% 

   160 

-0.54% 
None 

Director 

Represent
ative of 

ShiueDing 
Investmen

t 
Consultant 

Co., Ltd.: 

Hsin-

Yuan 
Chao 

0 0 0 0 0 0 40 40 
   40 

-0.13% 

   40 

-0.13% 
3,042 3,042 144 144 0 0 0 0 

  3,226 

-10.82% 

   3,226 

-10.82% 
None 

Director 
Hung-

Chun Yu 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 40 
   40 

-0.13% 

   40 

-0.13% 
0 7,247 0 452 0 0 0 0 

   40 

-0.13% 

 7,739 

-25.95% 
None 

Independe
nt 

Director 

Yang, 

Chyan 360 360 0 0 0 0 96 96 
  456 

-1.53% 

  456 

-1.53% 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

   456 

-1.53% 

   456 

-1.53% 
None 

Independe

nt 
Director 

Kuo-Hua 
Chen 360 360 0 0 0 0 88 88 

   448 

-1.50% 

448 

-1.50% 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

   448 

-1.50% 

    448 

-1.50% 
None 

Independe
nt 

Director 

Sha-Wei 

Chang 360 360 0 0 0 0 96 96 
  456 

-1.53% 

  456 

-1.53% 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

   456 

-1.53% 

    456 

-1.53% 
None 

1. Please specify the policy, system, standard, and structure of remuneration to directors, and the association between the amount of remuneration and the responsibilities and risks assumed, time spent, and other factors: 

The Company’s independent directors are all members of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. They are entitled to a fixed amount of director remuneration according to their level of participation in 

the operation of the Company and the value of their contributions and with reference to the standards of the industry. 

Independent directors are paid a fixed amount of business execution fee for each meeting, and they do not participate in the distribution of the Company's earnings. 

The Company considers the global economy, international financial environment and changes in the industrial economy, and estimates the Company's future operational development, profitability, and operational risks, 

to review the remuneration system to independent directors in a timely manner. 
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2. Except as disclosed in the above table, the remuneration received by the Company’s directors for providing services to all companies in the financial statements (such as serving as a consultant in a non-employee capacity) in 

the most recent year: None. 

Remuneration range table 

Ranges of remuneration paid to each director 
of the Company 

Name of director 

Sum of A+B+C+D Sum of A+B+C+D+E+F+G 

The Company (Note 8) 
All companies in the financial 

statements (Note 9) H 
The Company (Note 8) 

All companies in the financial 
statements (Note 9) I 

Below NT$1,000,000 

Yu Yun; Pi Hua-Chung; Chao 
Hsin-Yuan; Yu Hung-Chun; Yang 
Chien; Chen Kuo-Hua; Chang Sha-

Wei 

Yu Yun; Pi Hua-Chung; Chao 
Hsin-Yuan; Yu Hung-Chun; Yang 
Chien; Chen Kuo-Hua; Chang Sha-

Wei 

Yu Yun; Yu Hung-Chun; Yang 
Chien; Chen Kuo-Hua; Chang 

Sha-Wei 

Yu Yun; Yang Chien; Chen Kuo-
Hua; Chang Sha-Wei 

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) None None Hsin-Yuan Chao Hsin-Yuan Chao 

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive)–NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) None None Hua-Chung Pi  Hua-Chung Pi 

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) None None None Hung-Chun Yu 

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) None None None None 

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$100,000,000 
(exclusive) 

None None None None 

NT$100,000,000 or more None None None None 

Total 7 7 7 7 

Note 1: The names of directors shall be listed separately (the names of institutional shareholders and their representatives shall be listed separately), and general directors and independent directors shall be listed separately, with various payment amounts disclosed in an aggregate manner. If a director 

concurrently serving as the President or the Vice President shall be entered in this table or table (3-1), or tables (3-2-1) and (3-2-2) below. 

Note 2: Refers to the directors’ remuneration in the most recent year (including director salary, executive differential pay, severance pay, various bonuses, and incentives). 

Note 3: Refers to the amount of directors’ remuneration approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors in the most recent year. 

Note 4: Refers to the relevant business execution expenses of the directors in the most recent year (including honoraria, special allowance, various allowances, dormitory rooms, and company cars). When houses, cars, and other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses are provided, the 

nature and costs of the assets provided and the actual cost or fair market value of rents, fuels, and other payments shall be disclosed. In addition, when a chauffeur is provided, please indicate the relevant payments made by the Company to the chauffeur, but such payments are not included in 

the remuneration. 

Note 5: Refers to the salary, executive differential pay, severance pay, various bonuses, incentives, honoraria, special allowance, various allowances, dormitory rooms, and company cars received by directors who serve as employees concurrently (including the President, Vice Presidents, other 

managers, and employees). When houses, cars, and other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses are provided, the nature and costs of the assets provided and the actual cost or fair market value of rents, fuels, and other payments shall be disclosed. In addition, when a chauffeur 

is provided, please indicate the relevant payments made by the Company to the chauffeur, but such payments are not included in the remuneration. Salary and wages recognized in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments”, including employee stock warrants and restricted stock awards 

acquired and shares for capital increased subscribed for, shall also be included in the remuneration. 

Note 6: Refers to directors who have received employee remuneration (including stock and cash) in the most recent year for serving as employees concurrently (including the President, Vice Presidents, other managers, and employees). The amount of employee remuneration approved by the Board of 

Directors in the most recent year shall be disclosed. If it is impossible to estimate the amount, the percentage adopted for the amount paid out last year shall be adopted to calculate the proposed amount for this year, while table 1-3 shall be filled out additionally. 

Note 7: The total amount of remuneration paid to the directors of the Company by all companies (including the Company) in the consolidated financial statements shall be disclosed. 

Note 8: The names of the directors shall be disclosed in the applicable ranges based on the total amount of remuneration paid by the Company to each director. 

Note 9: The total amount of remuneration paid to each director of the Company by all companies (including the Company) in the consolidated financial statements shall be disclosed, with the name of each director disclosed in their applicable range. 

Note 10: Net profit after tax refers to the net loss after tax Parent Company Only Financial Report for the most recent year. 

Note 11: a. This column shall clearly indicate the amount of remuneration received by the directors of the Company from investees other than subsidiaries or from the parent company (if there is none, please fill in "None"). 

b. If a director of the Company receives remuneration from investees other than subsidiaries or from the parent company, the remuneration received by the director from investees other than subsidiaries or from the parent company shall be included in column I of the remuneration range table 
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with said column renamed "Parent company and all investees”. 

c. Remuneration refers to the compensation, remuneration (including employee, director, and supervisor remuneration), and business execution expenses received by the directors of the Company for serving as directors, supervisors, or managers of investees other than subsidiaries or the parent 

company. 

*The content of remuneration disclosed in this table is different from the concept of income under the Income Tax Act, so this table is for disclosure purposes rather than for taxation purposes. 

 
 
 

(II) Remuneration to the President manager and Vice Presidents (individuals’ names and remuneration are disclosed) 
                                                                                             December 31, 2023; unit: NTD thousand 

Job title Name 

Salary (A) (Note 2) 
Severance and 

pension (B) 

Bonus and allowance 

(C) (Note 3) 
Employee remuneration (D) (Note 4) 

Sum of A, B, C, and D and 

the sum as a % of the net 

income after tax (Note 8) 

Remuneration 

received from 

the invested 

companies 

other than the 

subsidiaries 

and the parent 

company 

(Note 9) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 

The Company 

All companies in 

the financial 

statements (Note 

5) The Company 

All companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 
Cash 

amount 

Stock 

amount 

Cash 

amount 

Stock 

amount 

President 

Hsin-

Yuan 

Chao 

3,042 3,042 144 144 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 3,186 

-10.68% 

 3,186 

-10.68% 
None 

*Those whose positions are equivalent to the President or the Vice President (such the president, chief executive officer, or director) shall be disclosed regardless of the title. 

Remuneration range table 

Ranges of remuneration to the President manager and Vice 

Presidents of the Company 

Names of the President and Vice Presidents   

The Company (Note 6)  All companies in the financial statements (Note 7) E  

Below NT$1,000,000 None None 

NT$1,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$2,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$2,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$3,500,000 (exclusive) Hsin-Yuan Chao Hsin-Yuan Chao 

NT$3,500,000 (inclusive)–NT$5,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$10,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$15,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$30,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$50,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive)–NT$100,000,000 (exclusive) None None 

NT$100,000,000 or more None None 

Total 1 1 
 

Note 1: The names of the President and Vice Presidents shall be listed separately, with the amounts of various payments disclosed in an aggregate manner. If a director concurrently serving as the President or the Vice President 

shall be entered in this table and table (1-1) above, or tables (1-2-1) and (1-2-2). 

Note 2: Refers to the President’s and Vice Presidents’ salary, executive differential pay, and severance pay. 

Note 3: Refers to the President’s and Vice Presidents’ various bonuses, incentives, honoraria, special allowance, various allowances, dormitory rooms, company cars, and other remuneration in the most recent year. When 
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houses, cars, and other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses are provided, the nature and costs of the assets provided and the actual cost or fair market value of rents, fuels, and other payments shall be 

disclosed. In addition, when a chauffeur is provided, please indicate the relevant payments made by the Company to the chauffeur, but such payments are not included in the remuneration. Salary and wages recognized in 

accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments”, including employee stock warrants and restricted stock awards acquired and shares for capital increased subscribed for, shall also be included in the remuneration. 

Note 4: Refers to the amount of employee remuneration (including stock and cash) paid out by the Board of Directors to the President and Vice Presidents in the most recent year. If it is impossible to estimate the amount, the 

percentage adopted for the amount paid out last year shall be adopted to calculate the proposed amount for this year, while table 1-3 shall be filled out additionally. 

Note 5: The total amount of remuneration paid to the President and Vice Presidents of the Company by all companies (including the Company) in the consolidated financial statements shall be disclosed. 

Note 6: The names of the President and Vice Presidents shall be disclosed in the applicable ranges based on the total amount of remuneration paid by the Company to each President and Vice President. 

Note 7: The total amount of remuneration paid to each President and Vice President of the Company by all companies (including the Company) in the consolidated financial statements shall be disclosed, with the name of each 

President and Vice President disclosed in their applicable range. 

Note 8: Net income after tax refers to the net income after tax of the standalone or individual financial statement for the most recent year. 

Note 9: a. This column shall clearly indicate the amount of remuneration received by the President and Vice Presidents of the Company from investees other than subsidiaries or from the parent company (if there is none, please 

fill in "None"). 

b. If the President or a Vice President of the Company receives remuneration from investees other than subsidiaries or from the parent company, the remuneration received by the President or the Vice President from 

investees other than subsidiaries or from the parent company shall be included in column E of the remuneration range table with said column renamed "Parent company and all investees”. 

c. Remuneration refers to the compensation, remuneration (including employee, director, and supervisor remuneration), and business execution expenses received by the President or a Vice President of the Company for 

serving as directors, supervisors, or managers of investees other than subsidiaries or the parent company. 

*The content of remuneration disclosed in this table is different from the concept of income under the Income Tax Act, so this table is for disclosure purposes rather than for taxation purposes. 
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(III) The top 5 managers’ remuneration (individuals’ names and remuneration are disclosed) (Note 1)                              
December 31, 2023; unit: NTD thousand 

Job title Name 

Salary (A) (Note 2) 
Severance and 

pension (B) 

Bonus and allowance 

(C) (Note 3) 
Employee remuneration (D) (Note 4) 

Sum of A, B, C, and D and 

the sum as a % of the net 

income after tax (Note 6) 

Remuneration 

received from 

the invested 

companies 

other than the 

subsidiaries 

and the parent 

company 

(Note 7) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 

The 

Company 

All 

companies 

in the 

financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 

The Company 

All companies in 

the financial 

statements (Note 

5) The Company 

All 

companies in 

the financial 

statements 

(Note 5) 
Cash 

amount 

Stock 

amount 

Cash 

amount 

Stock 

amount 

The Chairman 

who is 

concurrently 

serving as the 

Chief 

Operating 

Officer of the 

New Venture 

Center 

Hua-

Chung 
Pi 

3,736 3,736 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 3,736 

-12.53% 

 3,736 

-12.53% 
None 

President 
Hsin-

Yuan 
Chao 

3,082 3,082 144 144 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 3,226 

-10.82% 

 3,226 

-10.82% 
None 

Assistant 

Vice 

President 

Lin, 

Han-

Lin 

1,586 1,586 121 121 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1,707 

-5.72% 

1,707 

-5.72% 
None 

Assistant 
Vice 

President 

Shih, 
Ju-

Ling 

1,426 1,426 106 106 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1,532 

-5.14% 

1,532 

-5.14% 
None 

Assistant 

Vice 
President 

Wan-

Wei 
Lu 

1,367 1,367 106 106 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1,473 

-4.94% 

 1,473 

 -4.94% 
None 

Note 1: The term "top five managers’ remuneration" refers to the Company's managers. The criteria for the identification of managers shall be handled in accordance with the definition of "managers" specified in the letter by 

the Securities and Futures Commission, Ministry of Finance, Tai-Cai-Zheng-III No. 0920001301 dated March 27, 2003. The principle for determining the top five managers’ remuneration is based on the salaries, 

severance and pension, bonuses, and special allowances received by the Company's managers from all companies in the consolidated financial report, as well as the sum of employee remuneration (that is, A +B+C+D) 

and their remuneration is sorted to have the top five managers’ remuneration. If a director concurrently serves as said manager, this form and the above form (1-1) shall be filled out. 

Note 2: Refer to the top five managers’ salary, executive differential pay, and severance pay in the most recent year. 

Note 3: Refers to the top five managers’ various bonuses, incentives, honoraria, special allowance, various allowances, dormitory rooms, company cars, and other remuneration in the most recent year. When houses, cars, and 

other means of transportation or exclusive personal expenses are provided, the nature and costs of the assets provided and the actual cost or fair market value of rents, fuels, and other payments shall be disclosed. In 

addition, when a chauffeur is provided, please indicate the relevant payments made by the Company to the chauffeur, but such payments are not included in the remuneration. Salary and wages recognized in accordance 

with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments”, including employee stock warrants and restricted stock awards acquired and shares for capital increased subscribed for, shall also be included in the remuneration. 

Note 4: Refers to the amount of employee remuneration (including stock and cash) paid out by the Board of Directors to the top five managers in the most recent year. If it is impossible to estimate the amount, the percentage 

adopted for the amount paid out last year shall be adopted to calculate the proposed amount for this year, while table 1-3 shall be filled out additionally. 

Note 5: The total amount of remuneration paid to the Company’s top five managers by all companies (including the Company) in the consolidated financial statements shall be disclosed. 

Note 6: Net income after tax refers to the net income after tax of the standalone or individual financial statement for the most recent year. 

Note 7: a. This column shall clearly indicate the amount of remuneration received by the Company’s top five managers from investees other than subsidiaries or from the parent company (if there is none, please fill in 

"None"). 

b. Remuneration refers to the compensation, remuneration (including employee, director, and supervisor remuneration), and business execution expenses received by the Company’s top five managers for serving as 
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directors, supervisors, or managers of investees other than subsidiaries or the parent company. 

Note 8: Mr. Hua-Chung Pi took over as the Chief Operating Officer of the New Venture Center on July 21, 2021, and Mr. Yun Yu was dismissed. 

*The content of remuneration disclosed in this table is different from the concept of income under the Income Tax Act, so this table is for disclosure purposes rather than for taxation purposes. 

 

(IV) Name of the manager who receives employee remuneration and distribution: None. 

  

(V) An analysis of the total remuneration paid to the Company's directors, supervisors, the President, and Vice Presidents as a percentage of 

the net income after tax in the standalone or individual financial report for the most recent two years, and a description of the remuneration 

policy, standard, and package, the procedure for determining the remuneration, and the association between business performance and 

future risks.  
 The total remuneration paid to the Company's directors, supervisors, the President, and Vice Presidents by the Company and all companies in the consolidated financial 

statements amounted to NT$17,274 thousand and NT$16,221 thousand for 2022 and 2023, respectively, which accounted for -126% and -54% of the net income (loss) 

specified in the standalone financial reports, respectively. 

 Remuneration policy, standard, and package, the procedure for determining the remuneration, and the association between business performance and future risks: 

1. The policies, standards, and combinations of payment remuneration: 

(1) The Company's director remuneration policy is implemented according to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, personnel management regulations, and 

Article 21 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation. The remuneration for directors to perform their duties is authorized by the board of directors according to 

their participation in the Company's operations, the value of their contributions, and the industry standards. If a director or director representative is an employee 

of the Group company and receives employee compensation, no additional payment shall be made. Article 19-1 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation 

stipulated that no more than 2% of the annual profit shall be allocated for directors' remuneration, and independent directors shall not participate in the surplus 

distribution. The Company regularly reviews the director performance evaluation and remuneration policies, systems, standards, and structures according to the 

Remuneration Committee's organizational regulations and the Rules of the Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors. The goal is to enable the 

Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors to properly evaluate the directors’ remuneration. 

(2) The remuneration of the Company's managers is based on the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the personnel management regulations, and according to 

Article 19-1 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, which stipulated that the Company shall allocate no less than 10% of the employee's remuneration 

according to the profit status of the year. The remuneration to the Company’s President and Vice Presidents shall be approved according to the salary and 

remuneration policy and giving reference to their contribution to the Company. The remuneration package includes base salary, executive differential pay, 

professional allowance, meal allowance, and transportation subsidy. The bonuses are paid out based on the achievement rate of the Company's overall operating 

performance and the individual performance evaluation results. The Company's remuneration adjustment is regularly revised based on the Company's annual 

operating results. Work performance appraisal and salary adjustment are implemented once every 6 months. 

(3) The composition of the Company's remuneration, including cash remuneration, stock options, dividends, retirement benefits or severance payments, various 

allowances, and other substantial incentive measures, shall be determined according to the organizational regulations of the Remuneration Committee. The scope 

comply with the director and manager remuneration referred to in the annual report of the Company. 

2. Remuneration establishment procedure: 

(1) The remuneration of directors and managers is regularly evaluated according to the Company's Rules of the Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors, 

the organizational regulations of the Remuneration Committee, and the Company's salary and compensation policy evaluation results applicable to managers and 

employees. The managers’ salaries are determined by considering Taiwan's human resource market, the peer industry of the same nature, and the Company's 

salary and welfare policies. After the chairman and the Board of Directors approve it, it is submitted to the Remuneration Committee for review and 

implementation. The Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors adjust the directors’ remuneration based on the Company's operating conditions and 

the value of the Directors' participation and contribution to the Company's operations. The Remuneration Committee shall consider the Board of Directors' overall 
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performance, the Company's operating performance, the Company's future operations, and its risk appetite to prepare a distribution proposal to allocate the 

directors' remuneration. After the Board of Directors resolution and the shareholders meeting report, the distribution shall be made according to the degree of 

participation and contribution value by individual directors in the Company's operations. 

(2) In 2023, the self-evaluation results of the Board of Directors, directors, and members of each functional committee met the standards, and the Board of Directors' 

report was submitted. 

(3) Every year, the Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors evaluate and review the performance appraisal and remuneration rationality of the Company's 

directors and managers. Consideration factors include individual performance, company operating performance, and future risks, which conform with the 

Company's risk appetite. The Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors have approved the Remuneration Policy review for directors and managers in 

2023. 

3.Correlation between operating performance and future risks: 

(1) The main considerations for the Company's remuneration policy, payment standard, and system review are based on the Company's overall operating status, and 

the remuneration standard is approved based on the performance achievement rate and contribution. The goal is to improve the overall organizational team 

performance of the Board of Directors and management departments. We also refer to the industry salary standard to ensure the Company's management salary 

is competitive and can retain excellent management talents. 

(2) The performance goals of the Company's directors and managers are combined with "risk control" to ensure that potential risks within the scope of duties can be 

managed and prevented. The ratings are given based on actual performance outcomes linked to all relevant human resources and salary remuneration policies. 

The important decisions of the Company's management level are made after considering various risk factors on an equal basis. The performance of relevant 

decisions is reflected in the Company's profit status, and the management level’s remuneration is related to the risk control performance. 

(3) The remuneration paid by the Company to the managers includes long-term rewards in the form of new shares with restricted employee rights, instead of payment 

in full based on the earnings of the current year. The actual value is related to the future stock price, that is, future operating risks are shared with the Company. 
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IV. Implementation of corporate governance 

(I) Information on the operations of the Board of Directors: 
The Board of Directors held five [A] meetings during the most recent year (2023), and directors’ 

attendance is as follows: 

Job title Name 
Attendance in 

person [B] 

Attendance 

by proxy 

Attendance (%) 

[B/A] (Note 2) 
Remarks  

Chairman Hua-Chung Pi 5 0 100%  

Corporate 

director 

Representative 

Representative of 

ShiueDing 

Investment 

Consultant Co., 

Ltd.: 

Yu Yun 

5 0 100%  

Corporate 

director 

Representative 

Representative of 

ShiueDing 

Investment 

Consultant Co., 

Ltd.: Hsin-Yuan 

Chao 

5 0 100%  

Director Hung-Chun Yu 5 0 100%  

Independent 

Director 
Kuo-Hua Chen 

5 
0 100%  

Independent 

Director 

Yang, Chyan 5 
0 100%  

Independent 

Director 

Sha-Wei Chang 5 
0 100%  

 
Additional information: 
I. If the operations of the Board of Directors is under any of the circumstances below, the date of the board meeting, 

the session, the content of the proposal, all independent directors’ opinions, and the Company's response to 

said opinions shall be specified: 

(I) Matters under Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: 
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Date of the board 

meeting (session) 
Content of proposal 

All independent directors’ 

opinions and the 

Company's response to said 

opinions 

1st meeting in 2023 

March 15, 2023 

Passed the 2022 director and employee remuneration distribution 

proposal 

Passed by all 

independent directors 
Passed a proposal on the general principles of the Company's pre-

approved non-assurance service policy. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 
Passed a proposal to update the 2022 restricted employee stock 

allotment and set the capital increase issuance base date 

Passed by all 

independent directors 
Passed a proposal regarding the maturity of the secured 

convertible corporate bonds issued by Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic) on April 11, 2022 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed a proposal for the Company to increase investment in the 

subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

2nd meeting in 2023 

April 14, 2023 

Passed the proposal on measures for the Company to subscribe to 

the secured convertible corporate bonds issued by Taiwan 

Biophotonic and convert the bonds into common stocks on the 

maturity date. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed a proposal for the Company’s President served as the 

president of the subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 
Passed a proposal to remove the non-compete clause for the 

Company's managers 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

4th meeting in 2023 

August 9, 2023 

Approved the establishment of the company's "Regulations on 

Financial and Business Operations Among Related Parties." 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Approved the proposal for changes in the Company’s internal 

auditing officer 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the proposal for the Company's regular assessment of the 

independence and suitability of the CPAs appointed 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

5th meeting in 2023 

November 9, 2023 

Passed the proposal for review of the 2023 CPA’s audit fees 
Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed a proposal on the general principles of the Company's pre-

approved non-assurance service policy. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the proposal to implement the capital increase of AG 

Neovo Technology (Shanghai) Corporation through the 

subsidiary AG NEOVO INTERNATIONAL LTD. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the regular review of the Company's salary and 

remuneration policy 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Approved the company's audit plan for the year 2024. 
Passed by all 

independent directors 

1st meeting in 2024 

March 11, 2024 

Passed the 2023 director's remuneration and employee 

remuneration distribution proposal 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Approved the lifting of non-compete restrictions for the 

company's newly appointed directors. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the 1st and 2nd repurchase of shares for transfer to 

employees in 2019 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the proposal for the next term of directors’ remuneration 
Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the proposal for changes in CPAs for the financial reports 
Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the proposal regarding the application for conversion of 

the subscribed secured convertible corporate bonds issued by the 

subsidiary, Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (Taiwan 

Biophotonic), in 2023 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed a proposal for the Company to increase investment in the 

subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the proposal for change in the fair value model for the 

subsequent evaluation of the investment property 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the amendments to the “Audit Committee Charter” 
Passed by all 

independent directors 

Passed the proposal to amend the “Rules of the Procedure for 

Board of Directors Meetings.” 

Passed by all 

independent directors 
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Approved the assessment of the effectiveness of the internal 

control system and the issuance of the internal control system 

statement for the year 2023. 

Passed by all 

independent directors 

(II) Except for the above matters, other matters resolved by the Board of Directors with objection or reservation 

made by any independent directors, with records or a written statement: None. 

II. In the event of directors' recusal from proposals, the name of director, the content of proposal, the reasons for 

recusal, and the participation in voting shall be specified: 

1. On March 15, 2023, the board of directors discussed the proposal for the 2022 restricted employee stock 

allotment and set the capital increase issuance base date. Director Hung-Chun Yu recuse himself as he was 

an interested party. 

2. On March 15, 2023, regarding the proposal to subscribe to the secured convertible corporate bonds issued 

by Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic) on April 11, 2022 at the board meeting, as 

directors Hua-Chung Pi, Hsin-Yuan Chao, and Yun Yu were representatives of Taiwan Biophotonic and 

therefore were stakeholders, they themselves from voting on this proposal. 

3. On March 15, 2023, regarding the proposal to increase investment in subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic) at the board meeting, as directors Hua-Chung Pi, Hsin-Yuan Chao, and 

Yun Yu were representatives of Taiwan Biophotonic and therefore were stakeholders, they themselves from 

voting on this proposal. 

4. On April 14, 2023, regarding the proposal on measures for the Company to subscribe for the secured 

convertible corporate bonds issued by Taiwan Biophotonic, and convert the bonds into common stocks on 

the maturity date at the board meeting, as directors Hua-Chung Pi, Hsin-Yuan Chao, and Yun Yu were 

representatives of Taiwan Biophotonic and therefore were stakeholders, they themselves from voting on 

this proposal. 

5. On April 14, 2023, regarding the 2022 proposal for the Company’s president to serve as the president of 

the subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic at the board meeting, as directors Pi Hua-Chung and Chao Hsin-Yuan 

had her personal interest involved in this proposal, she was recused from voting on this proposal. 

6. On April 14, 2023, regarding the proposal to remove the non-compete clause for new directors at the board 

meeting, as director Hsin-Yuan Chao had her interest involved in this proposal, she recused herself from 

voting on this proposal. 

7. Regarding the proposal for  the 1st and 2nd repurchase of shares for transfer to employees in 2019 at the 

board meeting on March 11, 2024, as directors and Hsin-Yuan Chao and Hung-Chun Yu had their interests 

involved in this proposal, they were recused from voting. 

8. On March 11, 2024, regarding the proposal to apply for conversion of the subscribed secured convertible 

corporate bonds issued by the subsidiary, Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic), in 2023 

at the board meeting, as directors Hua-Chung Pi, Hsin-Yuan Chao, and Yun Yu were representatives of 

Taiwan Biophotonic and therefore were stakeholders, they themselves from voting on this proposal. 

9. On March 11, 2024, regarding the proposal to increase investment in subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic) at the board meeting, as directors Hua-Chung Pi, Hsin-Yuan Chao, and 

Yun Yu were representatives of Taiwan Biophotonic and therefore were stakeholders, they themselves from 

voting on this proposal. 

III. Information on the cycle, period, scope, method, and content of the Board of Directors' self-evaluation and the 

implementation of the evaluation: 

   As per Article 37 of the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 

Companies, the Company has formulated the Rules of and Procedures for the Performance Evaluation of 

the Board of Directors, which was approved by the board meeting on November 6, 2019. We evaluate the 

performance of the Board of Directors, its functional committees, and individual directors regularly every 

year. Please refer to the Market Observation Post System (MOPS) or the Company's website for the Rules 

of the Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors. The implementation of the 2023 board 

performance evaluation is as follows: 
Cycle Period Scope Method Content 

Once a year 2023/01/01~ 

2023/12/31 

Board of Directors Board performance self-

evaluation 

 

1. Board performance evaluation:  

(1) Degree of involvement in the 

Company's operations. 

(2) Improvement to the quality of the 

Board of Directors' decision-making. 

(3) Composition and structure of the 

Board of Directors. 

(4) Election of directors and their 

continuing education. 

(5) Internal control. 

Individual board 

members 

Board members’ self-

evaluation 

2. Board members’ performance 

evaluation:  

(1) Alignment with the Company’s 

goals and mission. 

(2) Awareness of responsibilities as a 

director. 

(3) Degree of involvement in the 

Company's operations. 
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(4) Management and communication 

of internal relations. 

(5) Directors’ professional and 

continuing education. 

(6) Internal control. 

Audit Committee Audit Committee’s self-
evaluation 

3. Functional committees’ 
performance evaluation: 

(1) Degree of involvement in the 

Company's operations. 

(2) Awareness of responsibilities as a 

functional committee member. 

(3) Improvement to the quality of the 

functional committee’s decision-

making. 

(4) Composition and selection of 

members of the functional 

committees. 

(5) Internal control. 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Remuneration 

Committee’s self-

evaluation 

(1) Degree of involvement in the 

Company's operations. 

(2) Awareness of responsibilities as a 

functional committee member. 

(3) Improvement to the quality of the 

functional committee’s decision-

making. 

(4) Composition and selection of 

members of the functional committees. 

(5) Internal control. 

The 2023 board performance evaluation results have been reported to the Board of Directors on March 11, 

2024. 

As per the 2023 board performance evaluation results, the operations of the Board of Directors are in 

alignment with the Company’s requirements. It can effectively facilitate the Company's sustainable 

development, fulfilling of our social responsibility, risk management, and long-term strategic development in 

alignment with the spirit of corporate governance. There were 42 evaluation indicators in the board 

performance evaluation, and the board reached the standards for all indicators, and the total score of the board 

performance evaluation was 91 points, exceeding the standard. 

Performance evaluation scores are as follows: 

A. The board performance self-evaluation score was 46 points (out of 50 points). 

B. The board members’ performance self-evaluation average score was 45 points (out of 50 points). 

The Audit Committee’s performance evaluation indicators are divided into five dimensions: A. Degree of 

involvement in the Company's operations; B. Awareness of responsibilities as an Audit Committee member; 

C. Improvement to the quality of the Audit Committee’s decision-making; D. Composition and selection of 

members of the Audit Committee. E. Internal control. There are 21 evaluation indicators, and the Audit 

Committee’s performance evaluation results at this time have all met the standards. 

The Remuneration Committee’s performance evaluation indicators are divided into five dimensions: A. 

Degree of involvement in the Company's operations; B. Awareness of responsibilities as a Remuneration 

Committee member; C. Improvement to the quality of the Remuneration Committee’s decision-making; D. 

Composition and selection of members of the Remuneration Committee. E. Internal control. There are 18 

evaluation indicators, and the Remuneration Committee’s performance evaluation results at this time have all 

met the standards. 

 

IV. The objectives of reinforcement of the competency of the Board of Directors (such as establishing an audit 

committee or improving information transparency) in the current year and the most recent year and evaluation 

of the implementation: 

1. We elected three independent directors to form the Audit Committee on June 13, 2018. Please refer to (II) 

The operations of the Audit Committee in this chapter. 
2. Active establishment of stakeholder engagement: The Company has a spokesperson and an acting 

spokesperson, through which stakeholders can communicate with us. We accept shareholder proposals as per 

the timeline of the annual shareholders’ meeting. Shareholders with the right to make proposals may submit 

applications to the Company during the acceptance period, and we convene the Board of Directors to review 

such proposals in accordance with relevant regulations. 

3. Improvement to the Board of Directors’ operational efficiency and decision-making skills: 

A. The Company has formulated the “Rules of the Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings” to reinforce 
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the competency of the Board of Directors and facilitate the positive development of the board's 

participation in the decision-making process.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

B. The Company has formulated the “Rules Governing the Scope of Powers of Independent Directors” to 

reinforce the control mechanism of the Board of Directors. 

C. The Company has formulated the “Rules of the Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors” to 

implement corporate governance and enhance the functions and operational efficiency of the Company’s 

Board of Directors. 

4. Enhanced professional knowledge: The Company motivates relevant members on the board to participate in 

various professional courses to continue to acquire new knowledge, thereby maintaining their professional 

advantages and abilities and raises their awareness of applicable laws to ensure compliance. 

 

Note 1: If a director is a juridical person, the name of the institutional shareholder and its representative shall 

be disclosed. 

Note 2: (1) If a director resigns before the end of the year, the date of resignation shall be indicated in the 

remarks column, and the attendance (%) shall be calculated with the number of board meetings 

attended by the director divided by the number of board meetings held during their term of office. 

(2) Before the end of the year, if there is an election of directors, the new and old directors and 

supervisors shall be entered, and the old, new, or re-elected status and the election date of each 

director shall be indicated in the remarks column. The attendance (%) shall be calculated with the 

number of board meetings attended by a director divided by the number of board meetings held 

during their term of office. 
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(II) The operations of the Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee held five [A] meetings during the most recent year (2023), and 

independent directors’ attendance is as follows: 

Job title Name 
Attendance in 

person [B] 

Attendance by 

proxy 

Attendance (%) [B/A] 

(Note1, Note 2) 
Remarks 

Independent 

Director 
Chang, Sha-Wei 5 0 100%  

Independent 

Director 
Yang, Chyan 5 0  100%  

Independent 

Director 
Chen, Kuo-Hua 4 1 80%  

 

The Audit Committee’s tasks include: 
Reviewed financial reports. 

Established or amended the internal control system. 

Assessed the effectiveness of the internal control system. 

Formulated or amended the Procedures for Asset Acquisition and Disposal, the Procedures for 

Derivatives Trading, the Procedures for Loans to Others, and the Procedures for Eendorsments/Guarantees 

to Others. 

Reviewed matters involving directors' interest. 

Reviewed major asset transactions or derivatives trading. 

Reviewed major loans to others or endorsements/guarantees to others. 

Reviewed the offering, issuance, or private placement of equity securities. 

Reviewed the appointment, dismissal, or remuneration of CPAs. 
Reviewed annual financial reports. 
The 2023 financial statements have been ratified by the Audit Committee, approved by the Board of Directors by 

resolution, and audited by Samuel Au and Daisy Kuo, CPAs of KPMG Taiwan, to which they have issued an 
independent auditor's report. In addition, the Board of Directors submitted the 2023 business report and a 

statement of deficit compensation, which the Audit Committee reviewed without any inconsistency discovered. 

 Assessed the effectiveness of the internal control system. 
The Audit Committee evaluated the policies and procedures for the Company's internal control system and 

reviewed regular reports from the Audit Department, CPAs, and our management team. The Audit Committee is 

convinced that the Company's internal control system is effective, and that we have adopted necessary control 
mechanisms to monitor the system. 

 

Additional information: 
I. If the operations of the Audit Committee fall under any of the circumstances below, the date of the Audit 

Committee meeting, the session, the content of the proposal, any objection, reservation, or major 

suggestion made by independent directors, the results of resolutions by the Audit Committee, and the 

Company’s response to the committee’s opinions shall be specified. 

(I) The matters under Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act. 
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Date of the Audit 

Committee 

meeting (session) 

Content of proposal 

Objection, reservation, or 

major suggestion made by 

independent directors 

All Audit Committee 

members’ opinions and the 

Company’s response to 

said opinions 

1st meeting in 2023 

March 15, 2023 

Passed the Company's 2022 internal control system 

effectiveness assessment and statement of the internal 

control system 

None 
Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal on the general principles of the 

Company's pre-approved non-assurance service policy. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal to update the 2022 restricted employee 

stock allotment and set the capital increase issuance base 

date 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal regarding the maturity of the secured 

convertible corporate bonds issued by Taiwan 

Biophotonic Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic) on April 

11, 2022 

None 
Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal for the Company to increase 

investment in the subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

2nd meeting in 

2023 

April 14, 2023 

Passed the proposal on measures for the Company to 

subscribe to the secured convertible corporate bonds 

issued by Taiwan Biophotonic and convert the bonds into 

common stocks on the maturity date. 

None 
Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal for the Company’s President served as 

the president of the subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal to remove the non-compete clause for 

the Company's managers 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

4th meeting in 2023 

August 9, 2023 

Passed the proposal for establishment of the Company's 

"Regulations Governing Finance and Business Relations 

between Related Parties” 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Approved the proposal for changes in the Company’s 

internal auditing officer 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Approved the periodic assessment of the independence 

and suitability of the company's appointed auditors. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

5th meeting in 2023 

November 9, 2023 

Passed the proposal for review of the 2023 CPA’s audit 

fees 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal on the general principles of the 

Company's pre-approved non-assurance service policy. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the proposal to implement the capital increase of 

AG Neovo Technology (Shanghai) Corporation through 

the subsidiary AG NEOVO INTERNATIONAL LTD. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Approved the periodic review of the company's 

compensation policy. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the Company's 2023 audit plan None 
Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

1st meeting in 2024 

March 11, 2024 

Approved the allocation of director remuneration and 

employee compensation for the year 2023 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the proposal to remove the non-compete clause for 

new directors 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the 1st and 2nd repurchase of shares for transfer 

to employees in 2019 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Approved the proposal for the remuneration of the 

company's directors for the next term. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the proposal for changes in CPAs for the financial 

reports 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the proposal regarding the application for 

conversion of the subscribed secured convertible 

corporate bonds issued by the subsidiary, Taiwan 

Biophotonic Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic), in 2023 

None 
Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed a proposal for the Company to increase 

investment in the subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the proposal for change in the fair value model for 

the subsequent evaluation of the investment property 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Approved the amendment of the "Audit Committee 

Organizational Regulations" for the company. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Approved the amendment of the "Board of Directors 

Meeting Regulations" for the company. 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

Passed the Company's 2023 “internal control system 

effectiveness assessment” and “statement of the internal 

control system” proposal 
None 

Passed by all Audit 

Committee members 

(II) Except for the above matters, matters that have not been approved by the Audit Committee but have 

been approved by more than two-thirds of all directors: None. 

I. Independent directors' recusal from proposals, in which their personal interest is involved: None. 

II. Communication between independent directors and the chief internal auditor/CPAs (including material 
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financial and business matters communicated and communication methods and results). 

(I) Communication between independent directors and the chief internal auditor: 

1. Independent directors review monthly internal audit operations and quarterly audit the follow-up 

reports. 

2. The chief internal auditor attended each Audit Committee meeting and board meeting in a non-

voting capacity, put forth audit reports, communicated the implementation and effectiveness of the 

audit business with independent directors, as well as responded to independent directors’ 

questions. 

3. The communication between the Audit committee and the chief internal auditor is effective. 

 

Date Major issues 
Communication 

results 

March 15, 2023 

Audit reports for November through December 2022 and for January through 

February 2023 

2022 Internal Control System Statement 

No comment 

May 9, 2023 Audit report for March 2023 No comment 

August 9, 

2023

  

Audit report for April through June 2023 No comment 

November 9, 

2023

  

Audit report for July through September 2023 

2024 audit plan 
No comment 

March 11, 

2024

  

Audit reports for October through December 2023 and for January through 

February 2024 

2023 Internal Control System Statement 

No comment 

May 8, 2024 Audit report for March 2024 No comment 

 

(II) Communication between independent directors and CPAs: 

CPAs reported the independent directors separately on the Company’s financial position, the 

financial position and operations of our subsidiaries at home and abroad, and the internal control 

audits at least once a year and compiled the key audit matters, whether there were any major 

adjustments to the accounting entries, or whether the amendments to laws and regulations affect the 

accounting and communicated such issues thoroughly with the Audit Committee in writing or face to 

face. A meeting might be held at any time in the event of a major unusual incident. 

Date Major issues 
Communication 

results 

March 15, 2023 

Independence, auditors’ responsibilities for auditing financial statements, the 

type of audit opinion issued, the scope of the audit, the audit findings, other 

precautionary items, important accounting standards or interpretation letters, 

and updates of securities laws and tax laws. 

The CPAs explained the questions raised and communicated and made 

decisions with the participants. 

No comment 

November 9, 2023 

Independence, reviewer's responsibility for reviewing the interim financial 

statements, type of review conclusion, review scope, review findings, impact 

of the intended amendment to TWSA600 Special Considerations—Audits of 

Group Financial Statements on the Company, and important legal updates. 

The CPAs explained the questions raised and communicated and made 

decisions with the participants. 

No comment 

March 11, 2024 

Independence, reviewer's responsibility for reviewing financial statements, 

type of review conclusion, review scope, review findings the competent 

authority's recent inspection of the major internal control deficiencies of the 

TPEx listed and emerging stock companies and reminders, the firm's quality 

management system and communication on case resources, summary of 

recent updates to TWSA, important accounting standards or letters of 

interpretation, updates of securities and taxation laws and regulations. 

The CPAs explained the questions raised and communicated and made 

decisions with the participants. 

No comment 

 

Note 1: If an independent director resigns before the end of the year, the date of resignation shall be 

indicated in the remarks column, and the attendance (%) shall be calculated with the number 

of board meetings attended by the director divided by the number of Audit Committee meetings 

held during their term of office. 

Note 2: Before the end of the year, if there is an election of independent directors, the new and old 

directors and supervisors shall be entered, and the old, new, or re-elected status and the election 

date of each independent director shall be indicated in the remarks column. The attendance (%) 

shall be calculated with the number of board meetings attended by a director divided by the 

number of Audit Committee meetings held during their term of office. 
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(III) The operations of corporate governance and the deviation from the Corporate Governance 

Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor. 

Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

I. Has the company formulated and 

disclosed the Corporate Governance 

Best Practice Principles in accordance 

with the “Corporate Governance Best 

Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies”? 

V  

 

The Company has formulated the “Corporate 

Governance Best Practice Principles” and proceeds 

accordingly. 

Regarding the disclosure of the “Corporate 

Governance Best Practice Principles”, we have 

adopted the methods below: 

1. Internally: We have disclosed the “Corporate 

Governance Best Practice Principles” on the 

intranet for all employees to follow. 

2. Externally: We have set up an “Investors section” 

and disclosed the information on the Company's 

finance and corporate governance on the official 

website, while setting up a “Corporate 

Governance section”, for us to disclose the 

“Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” 

and other relevant organizational charters on the 

website as a reference for shareholders and 

stakeholders. We have personnel dedicated to 

maintaining and updating such information in 

real-time. The company website: 

www.agneovo.com 

No major 

difference 

II. The Company's shareholding structure 

and shareholders' equity 

(I) Has the company formulated internal 

operating procedures for handling 

shareholders' suggestions or questions 

or disputes and litigation with them and 

complied with the procedures? 

 

 

V 

 

 

 

(I) We have a spokesperson and an acting 

spokesperson in place to express our opinions to 

the public on behalf of the Company and instruct 

the shareholder service agency to assist in 

handling disputes. 

 

No major 

difference 

 

 

(II) Does the company have a list of the 

major shareholders with ultimate 

control over the company and a list of 

the ultimate controllers of the major 

shareholders? 

V  (II) The Company has personnel dedicated to keeping 

abreast of directors, managers, and major 

shareholders holding more than 10% of our 

shares, and we file a report on major shareholders’ 

shareholdings regularly, while the “Registrar 

Agency Department, Capital Securities 

Corporation”, assists in handling relevant matters 

so that we effectively keep abreast of the list of 

major shareholders. 

No major 

difference 

 

 

 

(III) Has the company established and 

implemented a risk control and a 

firewall mechanisms between itself and 

affiliates? 

V  (III) We have formulated such mechanisms in the 

Company's internal control system, and our 

auditors monitor the implementation regularly. 

No major 

difference 

(IV) Has the company formulated internal 

regulations to prohibit insiders from 

using information undisclosed in the 

market to buy and sell securities? 

V  (IV) The Company has formulated the “Procedures for 

Handling Material Inside Information” to prohibit 

insiders from using unpublished information on 

the market to trade securities, while raising 

insiders’ awareness at least once a year. 

No major 

difference 



 

- 30 - 

Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

III. Composition and responsibilities of the 

Board of Directors 

(I) Has the board of directors formulated a 

diversity policy and specific 

management objectives and 

implemented them accordingly? 

 

 

 

V 

  

(I) We have formulated the “Corporate Governance 

Best Practice Principles” and adopted a board 

diversity policy for the board structure. We also 

consider basic criteria (gender, age, nationality, 

and culture), diversity of professional 

backgrounds, skills, and industry experience 

based on the Company’s operations, business 

model, and development needs. Board members 

as a whole should possess the knowledge, skills, 

and qualities needed to perform their duties. 

To achieve the Company’s ideal goals of 

corporate governance, the Board of Directors as a 

whole should possess the capabilities and skills 

below: I. Business judgment. II. Accounting and 

financial analysis. III. Business management. IV. 

Crisis management. V. Industry knowledge. VI. 

International market perspective. VII. Leadership. 

VIII. Decision-making; we have adopted a board 

diversity policy based on the Company’s 

operations, business model, and development 

needs. 

(II) We have disclosed our Corporate Governance 

Best Practice Principles on the company website. 

(III) The implementation for the management 

objectives of board diversity is as follows: 

Management objectives: Board members should 

have adequately diverse professional knowledge 

and skills and professional backgrounds; female 

directors account for 14% or more of all directors; 

no more than two directors are spouses or relatives 

within the second degree of kinship of other 

directors; the term of independent directors is 

advised not to exceed three consecutive terms. 

Implementation status: All the Company’s 

directors have expertise in different fields, which 

greatly helps our development and operations. The 

Company’s Board of Directors is currently 

composed of 7 directors with a term of 3 years. 

 

No major 

difference 
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Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

   Female directors account for 29% of all directors 

(one of whom is an independent director), which 

has reached the target set by the Company, while 

male directors account for 71%. No director is a 

spouse or relative within the second degree of 

kinship of another. The term of office of one 

independent director is fewer than three years, 

while the others are three to six years. 

(Please refer to (IV) Board diversity and 

independence under II. Information on directors, 

supervisors, the President, Vice Presidents, 

Assistant Vice President, and the heads of various 

departments and branches in Chapter Three of this 

annual report. 

 

(II) Has the company voluntarily 

established other functional 

committees in addition to the 

remuneration and the audit committees 

established in accordance with the law? 

 

 V (II) We have established the “Remuneration 

Committee” and the “Audit Committee” and 

formulated the “Remuneration Committee 

Charter” and the “Audit Committee Charter”, and 

term of office of such committees’ members is the 

same as that of the Board of Directors. We also 

have the Welfare Committee in place and will 

evaluate the need for establishing other functional 

committees in the future.  

No major 

difference  

 

(III) Has the company formulated Rules of 

the Performance Evaluation of the 

Board of Directors and evaluation 

methods, conducted performance 

evaluations annually and regularly, 

reported the results of performance 

evaluations to the board of directors, 

and adopted such results as a reference 

for deciding the remuneration of and 

nominating candidates for individual 

directors? 

 

 

 

V  (III) The Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 

amendments to the “Rules of the Performance 

Evaluation of the Board of Directors” on 

November 6, 2019. It provided that the Board of 

Directors must conduct at least one performance 

evaluation for the Board of Directors, individual 

director members, and functional committees 

every year. Please visit the MOPS or the 

Company's website for details. 

The implementation during 2023 is as follows: 

1.The Remuneration Committee determined and 

regularly reviewed the board performance 

evaluation indicators based on the Company's 

operations. The Company regularly evaluates 

board performance every year, and the 

evaluation results shall be completed before 

the end of February of the following year and 

shall be reviewed by the Board of Directors for 

improvements. 

   The Board of Directors may also adopt 

individual directors’ performance evaluation 

results as a reference for an election or 

nomination of candidates for directors. 

2. The 2023 performance evaluation results were 

submitted to the latest Board of Directors 

meeting on March 11, 2024. (Please refer to 

No major 

difference  
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Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

Chapter Three, IV. Implementation of 

Corporate Governance; (I) Information on the 

Operations of the Board of Directors-

Additional Information; III. Information on the 

cycle, period, scope, method, and content of 

the Board of Directors' self-evaluation and the 

implementation of the evaluation). 

3. The board performance for 2023 was evaluated 

based on the overall performance, and 

directors’ remuneration was determined as per 

Article 21 of the Articles of Incorporation. 

(IV) Does the company regularly assess the 

independence of the CPAs? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

V  (IV) Our company conducts an internal assessment at 

least once a year in accordance with Article 47 

of the CPA Act and Bulletin No. 10 of the 

Code of Professional Ethics for CPAs. This 

assessment evaluates the independence and 

suitability of the certifying CPA, examining 

whether they serve as a director, shareholder, or 

employee of our company to ensure they are 

not stakeholders. In addition to requiring the 

CPA to provide the "CPA Independence and 

Suitability Assessment Form," the 

"Independence Statement," and "Audit Quality 

Indicators (AQIs)," we also evaluate them 

based on the CPA Independence and Suitability 

Evaluation Standards (Note 1) and the thirteen 

indicators under the five dimensions of AQIs 

(Note 2). 

 

It is confirmed that the certifying CPA has no 

financial interests or joint investments with the 

company other than certification and tax-related 

fees, and that the CPA's family members do not 

violate independence requirements. The CPA 

meets our company's independence and 

suitability evaluation standards, qualifying them 

to serve as our certifying CPA. This procedure 

also applies in the event of internal rotation 

within the CPA firm. As of the most recent 

certification process, there have been no 

instances of not changing the CPA for seven 

years. The latest annual assessment results were 

reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee 

on August 9, 2023, and subsequently approved 

by the Board of Directors on August 9, 2023, 

regarding the assessment of the certifying CPA's 

independence and suitability. 

No major 

difference 

 

IV. Has the company has appointed an V  To protect shareholders’ rights and interest and 

reinforce the Board of Directors’ powers, we 

No major 

difference 
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Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

appropriate number of competent 

corporate governance personnel and 

designated a corporate governance 

officer to be responsible for corporate 

governance affairs (including but not 

limited to providing directors and 

supervisors with the materials 

required for performance of their 

duties, assisting directors and 

supervisors with compliance, handling 

matters related to board meetings and 

the shareholders' meetings, and 

preparing minutes of board meetings 

and shareholders' meetings)? 

approved the appointment of the Chief Financial 

Officer to serve as the Corporate Governance Officer 

concurrently by the resolution of the Board of 

Directors on November 6, 2019. The officer has more 

than three years of experience in charge of financial 

affairs and shareholder service at a publicly listed 

company and has received professional training as 

required by law. 

The Chief Corporate Governance Officer is 

responsible for convening the Board of Directors and 

Shareholders' Meetings and arranging the meeting 

procedures, preparing the meeting minutes and 

disclosing information, providing the directors with 

the information required for the execution of duties, 

assisting the directors in complying with the laws and 

regulations, assisting the directors in taking office 

and continuing education, and reporting to the Board 

of Directors on their progress. The Chief Corporate 

Governance Office also oversees whether the review 

results of independent directors' qualifications are in 

compliance with relevant laws and regulations at the 

time of nomination, election, and during the term of 

office, and handles matters related to directors' 

change and other matters stipulated in the Articles of 

Incorporation or contracts of the company .  

The tasks carried out during 2023 are as follows: 

1. Handled matters related to the convening of the 

Board of Directors and shareholders' meetings in 

accordance with the law. 

2. Took, sent, and disclosed minutes of the board 

meetings and shareholders' meetings during the 

year in accordance with the law. 

3. Reviewed if the resolutions by the Board of 

Directors should be disclosed in the form of material 

information. 

4. Provided directors with information on training, 

corporate governance, and laws to assist them in 

complying with laws and regulations. Matters 

related to directors’ continuing education (their 

continuing education courses taken have been 

disclosed on the MOPS). 

5. Reviewed whether the Company met the 

requirements of the corporate governance 

evaluation indicators. 

6. Arranged for the chief internal auditor and CPAs to 

communicate with the independent directors at the 

Audit Committee meetings. 

7. Completed the registration of changes in business 
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Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

in accordance with the law and properly managed 

the registration to ensure the validity of the business 

registration documents. 

Corporate Governance Officer’s training 

Date of 

training 

Training 

institutio

n 

Course title 

Traini

ng 

Hours 

2023/06/0

9 

Securities 

and Futures 

Institute 

2023 Insider Trading 

Prevention Briefing 
3 

2023/09/1

9 

Taiwan 

Corporate 

Governance 

Association 

Corporate Carbon 

Right and Carbon 

Assets Management 

in Response to the 

Operation of the 

Global Carbon 

Trading Mechanism  

3 

2023/09/2

0 

Accounting 

Research 

and 

Developme

nt 

Foundation 

Common 

Deficiencies of 

"Financial Report 

Review" and 

Practical Analysis of 

Important Internal 

Control Regulations 

6 

 

V. Has the company has established 

communication channels with 

stakeholders (including but not limited 

to shareholders, employees, clients, 

and suppliers) and set up a section 

dedicated to stakeholders on the 

company's website to properly 

respond to stakeholders’ major CSR 

issues of concern? 

V  We have a spokesperson and an acting spokesperson in 

place to express our opinions to the public on behalf of 

the Company and instruct the shareholder service 

agency to assist in handling disputes. We have set up a 

section dedicated to stakeholders (including but not 

limited to shareholders, employees, customers and 

suppliers) on the company website and designated 

personnel to respond to stakeholders’ issues of 

concern. 

No major 

difference 

 

VI. Does the company appoint a 

professional stock affairs agency to 

handle the affairs related to 

shareholders' meetings? 

V  We have appointed the professional shareholder 

service institution, “Registrar Agency Department, 

Capital Securities Corporation”, to handle matters 

related to shareholders' meetings and shareholder 

service. 

 

No major 

difference 

 

VII. Information disclosures     



 

- 35 - 

Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(I) Has the company set up a website to 

disclose information on financial 

business and corporate governance? 

 

 

(II) Does the company adopt other methods 

to disclose information (such as setting 

up an English website, designating 

personnel to collect and disclose 

company information, implementing a 

spokesperson system, or placing the 

proceeding of investor conferences on 

the company website)? 

(III) Does the company announce and 

submit an annual financial report to the 

competent authority within two months 

after the end of each fiscal year and 

announce and submit the financial 

reports for the first, second, and third 

quarters and the operations of each 

month to the competent authority 

before a specified deadline? 

V 

 

 

 

V 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 V 

 

(I) We have set up an Investors section on the official 

website and disclosed the information on the 

Company's finance and corporate governance, 

and investors may visit the MOPS to check the 

relevant information disclosed. 

(II) The Company has set up a website in both 

English and Chinese and designated personnel to 

collect and disclose information, while 

implementing a spokesperson system, with the 

spokesperson and the acting spokesperson 

responsible for communicating with the public; 

the process of the investor conferences is also 

placed on the company website. 

 

(III) The company complies with the regulations of 

Article 36 of the Securities and Exchange Act to 

disclose financial reports and monthly operating 

conditions.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

No major 

difference 

 

 

 

No major 

difference 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We did not 

disclose the 

annual 

financial 

report 

before the 

end of 

February of 

the 

following 

year. 

VIII. Does the Company have other 

important information that facilitates 

the understanding of the operations of 

corporate governance (including but 

not limited to employee rights, 

employee care, investor relations, 

supplier relations, stakeholders’ rights, 

directors’ and supervisors’ continuing 

education, the implementation of risk 

management policies and risk 

measurement standards, the 

implementation of client policies, and 

the company’s purchase of directors 

and supervisors liability insurance)? 

V  (I) Employee rights and interest and care: We continue 

to offer on-the-job training to employees to hone 

their professional abilities. The Employee Welfare 

Committee organizes employee travel activities 

and subsidizes employee club activities every year 

and has established positive relations on the basis 

of mutual trust with employees. 

(II) Investor relations: We have set up a contact point 

for investor relations on the company website to 

respond to investors’ questions. 

(III) Supplier relations: We have maintained a long-

term and stable partnership with our suppliers. 

(IV) Stakeholders’ rights: Stakeholders may 

communicate with and make suggestions to the 

Company to safeguard their legitimate rights and 

interest. 

(V) Directors’ continuing education: We notify 

directors of professional courses related to their 

duties from time to time in accordance with the 

Directions for the Implementation of “Continuing 

Education for Directors and Supervisors of TWSE 

Listed and TPEx Listed Companies” and disclose 

their training situation on the MOPS. (For the 

No major 

difference 

 

http://www.selaw.com.tw/Scripts/newsdetail.asp?no=G0100293
http://www.selaw.com.tw/Scripts/newsdetail.asp?no=G0100293
http://www.selaw.com.tw/Scripts/newsdetail.asp?no=G0100293
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Item 

Operations Deviation 

from the 

Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies 

and the 

reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

continuing education of the directors of the 

current term, please refer to (VIII) Other 

important information that may facilitate the 

understanding of the operation of corporate 

governance may be disclosed together under IV. 

Implementation of corporate governance in 

Chapter Three.) 

(VI) Implementation of risk management policies and 

risk assessment standards: The relevant 

management units are responsible for managing 

various operational risks of the Company as per 

the their business, and the Audit Department 

reviews the existing or potential risks of each 

operation and formulates and implements a risk-

oriented annual audit plan accordingly. 

(VII) Implementation of customer policy: In addition 

to the spokesperson system,we have maintained 

stable and harmonious relations with customers to 

create profits. 

(VIII) We purchase directors and managers liability 

insurance every year and report on the insured 

amount, coverage, and contribution rate to the 

Board of Directors and disclose them on the 

MOPS. 

IX. Please specify any improvements made as per the results of the corporate governance evaluation announced by the 

Corporate Governance Center, Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, in the most recent year and put forth prioritized 

measures to improve those that have not yet improved. 

    The ranking range in the 10th Corporate Governance Evaluation (for 2023): 51%~65% 

    The improvements to the indicators that the Company failed to obtain scores are specified below: 

No. Evaluation indicator Improvement made 

1.3 Do more than half of the directors and the 

convener of the Audit Committee attend the 

shareholders' meeting in person? Is the list of 

attendees disclosed in the meeting minutes? 

The Company has reminded all directors and the 

convener of the Audit Committee to attend the 

shareholders' meeting in person. 

3.20 Is the company invited (voluntarily) to hold at 

least two investor conferences with links to the 

complete video and audio records of the at least 

two meetings disclosed? Is there an interval of at 

least three months between the first and the last 

investor conferences? 

The Company plans to convene two investor 

conference. 

 

Note: Either “Yes” or “No” checked, the operation shall be specified in the brief description column. 
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Note 1: 

The evaluation based on Article 47 of the CPA Act and Bulletin No. 10 of the Code of Professional Ethics for CPAs regarding "integrity, impartiality, 

objectivity, and independence" is as follows: 

Item 
Evaluation 

result 

Meets independence 

or not 

1. As of the most recent certification process, there have been no instances of not changing the CPA for seven 

years. 
Yes Yes 

2. There are no significant financial interests with the client. Yes Yes 

3. Avoid any inappropriate relationships with the client. Yes Yes 

4. The CPA should ensure that their assistants adhere to principles of honesty, impartiality, and independence. Yes Yes 

5. The CPA is prohibited from auditing and certifying the financial statements of an organization they served 

within the past two years. 
Yes Yes 

6. The CPA's name cannot be used by others. Yes Yes 

7. Do not hold shares in the company or its related enterprises. Yes Yes 

8. No financial borrowing or lending with the company or its related enterprises. Yes Yes 

9. No shared investments or shared interests with the company or related enterprises. Yes Yes 

10. Not concurrently employed in regular positions with the company or related enterprises, and not receiving 

fixed salaries. 
Yes Yes 

11. Not involved in managerial functions related to decision-making for the company or related enterprises. Yes Yes 

12. Not engaged in any other business activities that could compromise their independence. Yes Yes 

13. There is no relationship of spouse, direct blood relatives, direct relatives by marriage, or second-degree 

relatives with management personnel of the company. 
Yes Yes 

14. No commissions received related to the business. Yes Yes 

15. As of now, there have been no penalties or incidents compromising independence principles. Yes Yes 

 

Note 2: Competency evaluation of the CPA’s Audit Quality Indicators (AQIs) Competency Evaluation 

Professionalism Quality Control Independence Supervision Innovative Capability 

1. Audit experience 

2. Training hour 

3. Turnover rate 

4. Professional support 

1. Accountant workload 

2. Audit commitment 

3. Review (EQCR) 

4.Quality support 

capability 

1. Non-audit service fee 

2. Customer familiarity 

1. Deficiency and 

punishment of external 

audit 

2. Issuance letter of 

improvement from 

competent authority. 

1. Innovative plan or 

initiative 
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(IV) If the company has established a remuneration committee, the composition, responsibilities, 

and operations of the committee shall be disclosed: 
1. Information on members of the Remuneration Committee 

Title 

Criteria 

  

 Name 

Professional 

qualifications and experience 
Independence 

Number of other 
public companies 
where the individual 
serves as a member of 
the remuneration 
committee 
concurrently 

Remark

s 

Independent 

Director 
Yang, Chyan Note 1 Note 1 3 

Conve

ner 

Independent 

Director 
Sha-Wei Chang Note 1 Note 1 1  

Independent 

Director 
Kuo-Hua Chen Note 1 Note 1 1   

Note 1: Please refer to (III) Disclosure of information on directors’ professional qualifications and the independence of 

independent directors under II. Information on directors, supervisors, the President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice 

President, and the heads of various departments and branches, Three. Corporate Governance Report of this annual 

report for the details of independent directors’ professional qualifications and experience and independence. 
 

2. Responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee’s self-evaluation 
With the duty of care as a good manager, the committee should faithfully perform the tasks below 

and submit its suggestions to the Board of Directors for discussion: 
(1) Formulate and regularly review the policies, systems, standards, and structures for directors’ and managers’ 

performance evaluation and remuneration. 

(2) Regularly evaluate and determine directors’ and managers’ remuneration. 

 
3. The operations of the Remuneration Committee 

(1) There are three members of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. 

(2) The term of office of the current term of committee members: From July 21, 2021 through July 20, 2024. 

The Remuneration Committee held two [A] meetings during the most recent year (2023), and 

committee members’ attendance is as follows: 

Job title Name 

Actual 

attendance 

[B] 

Attendance 

by proxy 

Attendance (%) 

[B/A] 
Remarks 

Convener Yang, Chyan 2 0 100%  

Member Sha-Wei Chang 2 0 100%  

Member Kuo-Hua Chen 2 0 100%  

Additional information: 

I. If the Board of Directors did not adopt or amend the Remuneration Committee’s suggestions, the date of the 

board meeting, the session, the content of the proposal, the results of the resolutions by the Board of 

Directors, and the Company's response to said opinions shall be specified (if the remuneration approved 

by the Board of Directors is better than the Remuneration Committee’s suggestions, the difference and 

the reasons therefor shall be specified): None. 

II. For proposals resolved by the Remuneration Committee, if any members expressed objection or reservation 

with a record or written statement, the date of the Remuneration Committee meeting, the session, the 

content of the proposal, all members’ opinions, and the response to the members’ opinions shall be 

specified: None. 

III. Discussions and resolutions by the Remuneration Committee in the most recent year and up to the 

publication date of this annual report, and the Company's response to the members' opinions: 

Date of the 

Remuneration 

Committee 

meeting (session) 

Content of proposal 

All Remuneration Committee 

members’ opinions and the 

Company’s response to said opinions 

March 15, 2023 

4th meeting of 

the 5th term 

1. Passed the 2022 director's remuneration and 

employee remuneration distribution proposal 

2. Passed the 2022 restricted employee stock 

Passed by all Remuneration 

Committee members 

Submitted to the Board of Directors 
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allocation update proposal and approved by all directors present 

November 9, 

2023 

5th meeting of 

the 5th term 

1. Passed the regular review of the Company's salary 

and remuneration policy 

Passed by all Remuneration 

Committee members 

Submitted to the Board of Directors 

and approved by all directors present 

March 11, 2024 

6th meeting of 

the 5th term 

1. Passed the 2023 director's remuneration and 

employee remuneration distribution proposal 

2. Approved the amendments to the Company's 

"Implementation Rules of the Regulations 

Governing the Repurchase of Shares for Transfer 

to Employees" 

3. Passed the 1st and 2nd repurchase of shares for 

transfer to managers in 2019 

Passed by all Remuneration 

Committee members 

Submitted to the Board of Directors 

and approved by all directors present 
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(V) The promotion of sustainable development and the deviation from the Sustainable 

Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons 
 

Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

I. Has the company established a governance 

structure to promote sustainable 

development and set up a dedicated 

(concurrent) unit to promote sustainable 

development, governed by the senior 

management as authorized by the board of 

directors, which supervises the 

implementation? 

V 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(I). On November 11, 2015, the 

Company's Board of Directors 

authorized and approved the 

formulation of the "Code of 

Practice for Sustainable 

Development” (formerly: Code of 

Practice for Corporate Social 

Responsibility). The president's 

office is a part-time unit to 

promote sustainable development. 

The department's senior manager 

is responsible for the proposal and 

implementation of sustainable 

development policies and 

promotion plans and reports the 

operation and implementation 

status to the Board of Directors 

annually. 

No major 

difference 
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(II) The latest reporting to the Board of 

Directors was on November 9, 

2023, and the matter reported is as 

follows: 

Since AG Neovo Healthcare 

(biomedical division) was 

established, it has been committed 

to promoting mobile oral health 

care. In addition to setting up 

mobile dental diagnosis and 

treatment equipment, it actively 

participates in free clinics 

launched by academic institutions 

and non-governmental medical 

organizations. 

We uphold the belief of the right 

to health and fulfill our corporate 

social responsibilities by 

promoting mobile medical care 

for a long time, with the aim of 

gradually filling the gap of 

medical resources in remote areas 

and vulnerable groups. To 

practically support the free clinic 

activities, our employees brought 

the portable dental treatment 

device, PDE-181, to strongly 

support the free clinic team of the 

dentists in the front line. 

Period: 

2022/12/24~2023/01/07 

Location: 

A total of 29 service locations 

throughout Taiwan, serving 828 

cases. 

Organizer: 

Chinese Christian Relief 

Association 

Service recipient: 

Families in distress and 

disadvantaged families 

Purpose: 

Oral health education services, 

teeth cleanings, and health 

consultation. 

Services: The Company's 

biomedicine department sent 15 

people to participate. They 

brought two portable dental 

treatment devices (PDE-181) to 

assist the free clinic team of 

dentists for front-line applications, 

enabling love to spread across 

Taiwan. 

(III) The Company's Board of Directors 

regularly reviews the reports of the 

management team every year and 

provides supervision and 

suggestions on implementing the 

report contents. 

II. Does the company conduct risk assessments of V  This disclosure information covers No major 
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environmental, social, and corporate 

governance issues related to company 

operations as per the principle of 

materiality? Has the company formulated 

relevant risk management policies or 

strategies? 

 the Company's sustainable development 

performance on its main bases from 

January 2023 to December 2023. The risk 

assessment boundary is mainly based on 

the Taiwan headquarters. 

The Company conducts risk 

assessment on important issues according 

to the principle of materiality for 

sustainable development. Reduce the 

various risks faced by the Company's 

operations to an acceptable and 

controllable range through activities such 

as identification, assessment, control, 

supervision, and communication of 

potential risks to provide a reference for 

formulating business strategies and 

reasonably ensure the achievement of the 

Company's strategic goals. The "Risk 

Management Policy" was approved by the 

Board of Directors on November 04, 

2020. The relevant risk management 

policies or strategies are as follows: 

Major issues I: Environmental 

Risk assessment: impact and management 

Risk management strategies:  

As a citizen on the earth, the Company 

has recognized the importance of 

environmental sustainability, so we 

have also established an employee 

portal, along with salary management, 

attendance management, 

announcements, and performance 

evaluation functions. We have also 

digitalized the internal sign-off process 

to reduce paper consumption. 

As the Company is not a 

manufacturing company and does not 

manufacture products, we do not 

consume a large amount of raw 

materials and water resources, and the 

energy consumption is mainly from the 

power consumption of office 

computers and equipment in the data 

center. Thus, we put an emphasis on 

conservation of electricity and 

purchase of energy-efficient 

equipment in our daily operations. 

 

Major issues 2: Social 

Risk assessment: Occupational safety 

Risk management strategies: 

Fire drills are held every year and the 

Occupational Safety and Health Act is 

advocated on the Company's internal 

bulletin board to enhance emergency 

response and self-safety management 

capabilities among the employees. 

The Company has held 2 occupational 

and workplace safety seminars in 

2023, with a total duration of 15 hours 

and a total of 30 participants (70% of 

the total number of employees). 

Establish occupational safety and 

health personnel and first-aid 

difference 
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personnel according to laws. 

 

Risk assessment: Product safety 

Risk management strategies: 

1. The products sold by the Company 

to clients are in compliance with 

applicable regulations and 

international standards, including CE, 

CCC, the EU REACH regulation, the 

RoHS Directive, and WEEE. 

2. The Company has purchased 

product liability insurance to transfer 

commodity liability risks, reduce 

property losses, and improve product 

safety. 

 

Risk assessment: Labor-management 

relations 

Risk management strategies: 

The Company has planned and 

implemented various systems and 

benefits in accordance with applicable 

laws and regulations and in alignment 

with our business philosophy of 

sharing profits with employees, while 

providing smooth grievance channels 

to facilitate labor-management 

harmony and offering complete 

employee training as well as 

development and appropriate incentive 

programs to enhance their 

competitiveness. 

 

Major issues 3: Corporate governance 

Risk assessment: Socioeconomic and 

legal compliance 

Risk management strategies: 

1. The Company has established an 

ethical management implementation 

team, and the General Manager’s 

Office is responsible for implementing 

ethical management. We regularly 

report on the implementation of ethical 

management for the prior year to the 

Board of Directors and assist the Board 

of Directors in auditing and evaluating 

whether the preventive measures for 

the implementation of ethical 

management are effective. The 

Company has formulated the Ethical 

Corporate Management Best Practice 

Principles, ethical code of conduct, the 

Codes of Ethical Conduct, the 

Employee Code of Conduct, and an 

internal control system. We assess the 

internal control operations in 

cooperation with the internal audit, 

provide channels for reporting 

violations of professional ethics, and 

implement anti-corruption measures. 

2. The products and services 

developed by the Company are in 

accordance with the applicable laws 

and regulations on intellectual 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

property rights, and we apply to obtain 

licenses or authorizations. 

 

Risk assessment: Strengthen the 

Directors’ Functions 

Risk management strategies: 

1. Provided directors with information 

on training, corporate governance, and 

laws to assist them in complying with 

laws and regulations. 

2. Purchase liability insurance for 

directors to protect them from lawsuits 

or claims. 

 

Risk assessment: Communication with 

stakeholder 

Risk management strategies: 

Establish various communication 

channels, to actively communicate and 

reduce confrontation or 

misunderstanding. The spokesperson 

is in charge of responding to investor 

mailboxes that have been established. 

 

 

III. Environmental issues     

(I) Has the company set up an appropriate 

environmental management system as per its 

industrial characteristics? 

V  (I) All our suppliers have obtained 

ISO14001 environmental 

management system certification to 

honor their commitment to 

environmental policies. 

No major 

difference 

(II) Is the company committed to improving 

energy efficiency and adopting recycled 

materials with low environmental impact? 

V  (II) We have adopted measures, such as 

recycling of printer paper. 

The design and manufacturing 

process for products facilitates the 

disassembly and recycling of 

electronic devices. Product designs 

aim to make it easier to reuse and 

recycle products except for 

environmental and safety factors. 

The current average product 

recycling rate is 90%; the average 

reuse/recycling rate is 82%, both of 

which are much higher than EU 

standards. 

No major 

difference 

(III) Has the company assessed its current and 

future potential risks and opportunities of 

climate change and taken countermeasures 

against climate-related issues? 

V 

 

 

 (III) We are committed to implementing 

energy conservation and carbon 

reduction measures, such as 

electronic forms or documents, 

development of energy-efficient and 

eco-friendly products, and energy 

conservation. 

No major 

difference 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(IV) Has the company counted the greenhouse 

gas emissions, water consumption, and total 

weight of waste over the past two years and 

formulated policies on energy conservation 

and carbon reduction, greenhouse gas 

reduction, water consumption reduction, or 

other waste management? 

 V (IV) The Company is not a manufacturing 

company and dose not engage in the 

assembly and production of products; 

however, we continue to implement 

various energy conservation and 

carbon reduction strategies inside the 

organization. The details are as 

follows: 

1. Resource recycling. 

2. Appointment of a professional 

cleaning company to regularly 

disinfect the offices and clean air-

conditioners to maintain a clean 

environment. 

3. The Company is located in 

Nangang Software Park. The 

relevant data on greenhouse gas 

emissions and water consumption 

over the past two years was all 

managed and controlled by the 

Building Management Committee 

of Nangang Software Park. We 

have been awarded the Taipei City 

Commercial Building Energy 

Label. 

No major 

difference 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

IV. Social issues 

(I) Does the company formulate relevant 

management policies and procedures in 

accordance with applicable laws and the 

International Bill of Human Rights? 

 

 

 

 

V 

  

(I) The Company abides by the applicable 

labor laws and international human 

rights conventions and put emphasis 

on gender equality, protection of the 

right to work, and prohibition of 

employment discrimination, and 

safeguards the human dignity and 

employees’ basic human rights. 

We strive to ensure the equality and 

fairness of employment, employment 

conditions, remuneration, benefits, 

training, evaluation, and promotion 

opportunities and have established 

appropriate management approaches 

and procedures, such as the 

“employee work rules”, to provide 

competitive salaries, bonuses, and 

employee remuneration, and a 

benefits system. We also purchase 

group insurance for employees and 

implement a leave and attendance 

system and a performance 

management system while 

contributing to the labor pension 

accounts as per law. 

 

In the year 2023, a total of 24 

individuals received human rights 

policy-related education and training, 

with a total duration of 12 hours. In 

the future, we will continue to focus 

on human rights protection issues, 

promote relevant education and 

training, and enhance awareness of 

human rights protection to reduce the 

likelihood of related risks occurring 

 

No major 

difference 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(II) Has the company formulated and 

implemented reasonable employee benefit 

measures (including remuneration, leave, 

and other benefits) and reflected business 

performance or achievements in employee 

remuneration appropriately? 

V  (II) We have formulated a reasonable 

salary and remuneration policy and 

an employee performance evaluation 

system to share the Company's 

operating profits with employees 

based on their performance, so that 

their salaries will grow with the 

Company's operations. 

As per Article 19-1 of the Articles of 

Incorporation, the Company shall 

allocate not less than 10% of the 

year’s profit for employee 

remuneration. 

The Company's remuneration is 

determined based on each employee's 

personal abilities and contribution to 

the Company, and their remuneration 

is linked to business performance 

through performance evaluation. 

No major 

difference 

   We have also established an 

Employee Welfare Committee to 

handle various matters related to 

benefits. 

The goal is to ensure workplace 

diversification and equality, realize 

equal pay for men and women and 

equal promotion opportunities, and 

maintain over 20% of female 

executive positions. In 2023, the 

average proportion of female 

employees was 49%, and the average 

proportion of female managers 

reached 43%. 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(III) Does the company provide employees with 

a safe and healthy work environment and 

offer safety and health education to 

employees regularly? 

V  (III) In order to prevent occupational 

disasters and maintain a safe and 

healthy work environment for 

employees, the Company regularly 

provides employees with medical 

and health assistance, publicizes the 

Occupational Safety and Health Act 

on the internal bulletin board , and 

implements work safety and health 

education for employees. 

The Company has held 2 

occupational and workplace safety 

seminars in 2023, with a total 

duration of 15 hours and a total of 30 

participants (70% of the total number 

of employees). 

Establish occupational safety and 

health personnel and first-aid 

personnel according to laws. 

We purchase labor insurance, health 

insurance, and group insurance for 

employees. 

We regularly organize employee 

health checkups to maintain 

employees’ health. 

In 2023, there were 0 occupational 

accidents and 0 employee injuries 

(accounting for 0% of the total 

number of employees at the end of 

2023). We also held regular 

education, training, and publicity to 

maintain a zero occupational accident 

environment. 

In 2023, there were no fire incidents 

and no casualties (0% of the total 

employee count). Regular education 

and training sessions were conducted, 

including a fire evacuation drill on 

May 25, 2023. The total duration of 

the drill was 19 hours, with 19 

participants. The training covered 

topics such as AG Neovo's 

evacuation route map, fire evacuation 

drills, professional explanations and 

operations by the Nangang Fire 

Brigade, and the company's self-

defense fire organization and task 

overview. 

No major 

difference 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(IV) Has the company established an effective 

career development training program for 

employees? 

 

V  (IV) The Company provides relevant 

internal and external professional 

education and training to enhance 

employees' skill sets. We also 

encourage them to evaluate their own 

interests, skills, values, and goals and 

regularly communicate with 

managers about their personal career 

plans to set out or adjust their future 

career paths. 

No major 

difference 

(V) Does the company comply with applicable 

laws and international standards regarding 

issues, such as customer health and safety, 

customer privacy, as well as marketing and 

labelling of products and services? Has it 

formulated relevant policies and complaint 

procedures to protect consumers’ or 

customers’ rights and interests? 

V  (V) The products sold by the Company to 

clients are in compliance with 

applicable regulations and 

international standards, including 

CE, CCC, the EU REACH 

regulation, the RoHS Directive, and 

WEEE. 
To protect consumers’ rights and 

interest, we provide a variety of 

services and information and 

personal customer services through 

complete and standardized customer 

complaint processing procedures, 

while the responsible unit formulates 

the processing standards and 

timelines and regularly monitors the 

implementation effectiveness, 

thereby improving our products and 

strengthening our services process. 

During marketing, we clearly label 

the contents of each product or 

service on the website, thereby 

keeping users informed and 

protecting their rights and interest. 

We protect customers’ (consumers’) 

rights and interests in accordance 

with the GDPR, our country's 

personal data protection law, and our 

privacy policy. 

We have a Stakeholders section on 

the Company's official website as a 

customer (consumer) complaint 

channel. 

No major 

difference 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(VI) Has the company formulated a supplier 

management policy, required suppliers to 

follow applicable regulations on issues, such 

as environmental protection, occupational 

safety and health, or labor rights? The 

implementation thereof? 

V  (VI) The Company designs products in 

the spirit of respecting the earth and 

regards suppliers as our long-term 

partners to jointly establish a 

sustainable value chain. To ensure 

the best quality of our products and 

continuous optimization of the 

process, we review suppliers' 

capabilities based on six evaluation 

indicators through a supplier 

selection evaluation process namely 

customer support, R&D 

management, sourcing skills, 

production management, financial 

position, and price advantages. In the 

case of any unusual situation, we also 

provide guidance timely to assist 

them in implementing improvement 

plans. 

Implementation: We require 

suppliers to comply with applicable 

laws and regulations as specified in 

the contracts signed. Based on 

“collaboration and a win-win 

outcome”, both parties should 

establish a mutually supportive and 

mutually beneficial business 

partnership. We encourage suppliers 

to jointly establish and fulfill 

“corporate social responsibility” and 

put into practice the business 

philosophy of “sustainable 

development”. If a supplier is in 

breach of the contract or has a 

negative impact on the society or the 

environment, we will promptly 

request it to put forth an improvement 

plan; if it cannot improve the issue or 

it will cause a significant negative 

impact on society, we will terminate 

or cancel the contract. 

No major 

difference 

V. Has the company referred to the 

internationally accepted reporting standards 

or guidelines to prepare reports, such as 

ESG reports that discloses the company’s 

non-financial information? Has a third-party 

verification entity provided assurance or 

assurance opinion for said report? 

 V The company has not yet compiled a 

sustainability report. It will be prepared 

and submitted in accordance with 

regulations in the year 2025. 

We have not yet 

prepared such a 

repot. 

VI. If the Company has the sustainable development best practice principles formulated according to the “Sustainable 

Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies,” 

    Please describe the differences between its operation and the principles. 

We have formulated the “Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles” and we adhere to the spirit of 

sustainable development in daily operations. 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

VII. Other important information that facilitates the understanding of the promotion of sustainable development: 
1. Environmental protection: In response to the RoHS Directive, we require suppliers to comply with the RoHS Directive starting 

from May 1, 2006. The Company’s parts are in compliance with the RoHS Directive, we apply the concept of energy 

efficiency in daily operations to save water and electricity, thereby reducing the impact on the environment. 
 

2. Community engagement, social contribution, social service, and social charity: 

We uphold the belief of the right to health and fulfill our corporate social responsibilities by promoting mobile medical 

care for a long time, with the aim of gradually filling the gap of medical resources in remote areas and vulnerable 
groups. To practically support the free clinic activities and join the 1919 Happiness Bus Service to strongly support the 

free clinic dentist team in the front line. 

Date Location Organizer Service recipient Details of service 

2022/04/02~2022/04/03 

Hsinchu 

County 

Wufeng 

Township 

Taiwan 

Medical 

Association 

Remote mountain areas and 

local residents 

Advocate betel nut health 
hazard prevention, provide 

health education lectures, 

and offer tooth cleaning and 

oral medical and diagnostic 
services. 

2022/12/24~2023/01/07 

A total of 29 

service 

locations 

throughout 
Taiwan 

Chinese 

Christian 

Relief 

Association 

Tribes in remote villages and 
towns in Taiwan, 

disadvantaged families, 

families in need, elderly 

people over 55 years old, and 
no gender restrictions. 

Oral health education and 

publicity (gum 

strengthening exercises for 

the mouth), teeth cleaning, 
and oral health care. 

December 23, 25 - 26, 

30 - 31, 2023 and 

January 1 - 5, 2024 (10 

days) 

A total of 20 

service 

locations 

throughout 
Taiwan 

Chinese 

Christian 

Relief 

Association 

Tribes in remote villages and 
towns in Taiwan, 

disadvantaged families, 

families in need, elderly 

people over 55 years old, and 
no gender restrictions. 

Oral health education and 

publicity (gum 

strengthening exercises for 

the mouth), teeth cleaning, 
and oral health care. 
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Item 

Operations Deviation from 

the Sustainable 

Development 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies and 

the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. To protect consumers rights’ and interest: 

3.1 The Company has set up a service line (02-26558080 ext. 307) to serve consumers. 

3.2 We purchase product liability insurance for our products. 

3.3 To enable investors to access information in a timely manner, we release material information, hold material 

information press conference, as well as disclose information on revenue and financial reports on the Company's 

website in accordance with laws and regulations, so that investors can understand the situation of our corporate 

governance in different methods and communicate with the Company by email or phone at any time. 

4. Human rights: We disclose information on the “respect for labor rights” and have the “Stakeholders section” on 

the Company's official website. 

5. Safety and health: To maintain employees’ safety in the work environment, we purchase public liability insurance 

in cooperation with the office building’s policy, hold fire exercises, and have first aid kits in the 

office. 

6. Other sustainable development activities: In addition to various disclosures on the company website, we have 

launched a CEO column, to share the Company's business philosophy and brand 

development experience with investors, creditors, and other stakeholders, and serve as a 

reference for businesses who intend to develop their own brands to facilitate corporate 

sustainable development. 
 

Note 1: If "Yes" is checked for Operations, please specify the important policies, strategies, and measures adopted and the implementation 
situation; if "No" is checked, please specify the circumstances and reasons for the differences as well as plans to adopt relevant 

policies, strategies, and measures in the future in the column of “Deviation from the Sustainable Development Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons.” 

Note 2: The principle of materiality refers to those who have a significant impact on the Company's investors and other stakeholders in 
respect of environmental, social, and corporate governance issues. 

Note 3: Please refer to the examples of best practice principles on the website of the Corporate Governance Center of the Taiwan Stock 

Exchange for disclosure methods. 
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(VI) Climate-related implementation status 

1 Implementation of Climate-Related Information 

Item Implementation status 

1. Describe the supervision and 

governance of climate-related risks 

and opportunities by the board of 

directors and management. 

Our company has approved the "Greenhouse Gas 

Inventory and Verification Schedule Planning" in the 

board of directors meeting held in 2022. We have 

established a dedicated task force to implement this plan. 

The execution status will be reported to the board of 

directors quarterly for oversight. 

2. Describe how identified climate 

risks and opportunities affect the 

business, strategy, and finances of 

the enterprise (short-term, medium-

term, long-term). 

Our company approved the "Greenhouse Gas Inventory 

and Verification Schedule Planning" in 2022 and 

established a dedicated task force for its implementation. 

The short- and medium-term goals are to review the 

greenhouse gas inventories of each subsidiary and 

gradually develop emission reduction plans for various 

categories. The long-term goal is to achieve net zero 

emissions by 2050. 

3. Describe the financial impact of 

extreme weather events and 

transformational actions. 

Extreme climate events such as typhoons, floods, or 

extreme heat may cause damage to the company's 

physical assets, including operational sites, supply chain 

logistics, and inventory. Such losses could lead to 

increased insurance claims and facility repair costs, 

thereby impacting the company's operational 

performance. This necessitates more precise financial 

management and operations. As extreme climate events 

become more prevalent, it is imperative to adjust our 

operations and strategies. We must enhance our efforts to 

introduce green products and transition to a low-carbon 

economy, and develop more environmentally friendly 

products. 

Therefore, our company is currently assessing the 

potential financial impact of extreme climate events and 

transition actions. We are formulating response strategies 

to ensure that the company can adapt to these changes 

while maintaining financial stability throughout the 

transition process. 

4. Describe how the identification, 

assessment, and management 

process of climate risks are 

integrated into the overall risk 

management system. 

Our company is currently planning to establish a 

systematic assessment process and mechanism for 

climate risk management within our risk management 

framework. Firstly, we will identify risks that may be 

influenced by climate change and assess their likelihood 

of occurrence. Secondly, we will develop corresponding 

management strategies, including risk transfer, 

mitigation, and acceptance. Finally, we will integrate 

climate risk management into our overall risk 

management system and continuously assess and update 

the effectiveness of strategies to ensure the sustainable 

development of the company's operations. 

5. If conducting a scenario analysis to 

assess resilience to climate change 

risks, the context, parameters, 

assumptions, analysis factors, and 

key financial impacts should be 

The Company does not currently use scenario analysis to 

assess resilience to climate change risks. 
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Item Implementation status 

explained. 

6. If there is a transformation plan to 

manage climate-related risks, 

specify the content of the plan and 

the indicators and goals used to 

identify and manage physical risks 

and transformation risks. 

The Company does not currently have a transformation 

plan for managing climate-related risks.  

7. If internal carbon pricing is used as 

a planning tool, the basis for price 

setting should be explained. 

The Company does not currently use internal carbon 

pricing 

 

8. If there are climate-related goals 

set, explain the activities covered, 

scope of greenhouse gas emissions, 

planning timeline, progress 

achieved each year, etc. If carbon 

offsets or renewable energy 

certificates (RECs) are used to 

meet these goals, explain the 

sources and quantities of carbon 

offsets exchanged or the number of 

RECs obtained. 

As of the date of publication of the annual report, the 

Company has not yet set climate-related goals. 

 

9. Greenhouse gas inventory and 

assurance situation, reduction 

goals, strategies, and specific 

action plans (filled in separately in 

1-1 and 1-2). 

Our company will follow the schedule outlined in the 

"Sustainable Development Roadmap for Listed 

Companies" issued by the Financial Supervisory 

Commission. We plan to complete the inventory process 

in 2026 and 2027, and the verification process in 2028 

and 2029. 

 

1-1 Greenhouse Gas inventory and assurance in the last 2 years 

1-1-1 Greenhouse Gas Inventory Information 

Describe the recent two years' emissions of greenhouse gases (in metric tons CO2e), intensity (in 

metric tons CO2e per million dollars), and the scope of data coverage. 

There is currently no relevant statistics on the Company's greenhouse gas emissions. 

 

1-1-2 Greenhouse Gas Assurance Information 

Describe the status of assurance in the last 2 years up to the date of publication of the annual report, 

including the scope of assurance, institutions of assurance, criteria of assurance, and opinions of 

assurance. 

There is currently no relevant statistics on the Company's greenhouse gas emissions. 

 

1-2 Reduction Targets, Strategies and Concrete Action Plans 

Describe the greenhouse gas reduction base year and data, reduction goals, strategies, and concrete 
action plans and achievement status of the reduction goals. 

The Company has not yet set greenhouse gas reduction targets and strategies. 
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(VII)The Company's implementation of ethical management and any deviation from the Corporate 

Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and reasons therefor: 

Item 

Operations 
Deviation from the 

Corporate 

Governance Best 

Practice Principles 

for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 

and the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

I. Formulation of ethical management policies 

and plans 

    

(I) Has the company formulated an ethical 

management policy approved by the board 

of directors and disclosed the policy and 

practice of ethical management in its 

regulations and public documents? Are the 

board of directors and the senior 

management committed to actively 

implementing the policy? 

V 

 

 (I) The Company has formulated the 

“Ethical Corporate Management Best 

Practice Principles” and the “Codes of 

Ethical Conduct”, which has been 

approved by the Board of Directors, to 

specify the policy of ethical 

management, prevent unethical 

conduct, and honor the Board of 

Directors and senior management’s 

commitment to actively implement the 

ethical management policy. 

The Company's “work rules” clearly 

stipulate that if the Company's 

employees “who wheel and deal and 

conceal the fact that they deceive 

people to obtain illegitimate benefits” 

or “whose negligence results in 

damage to the Company”, which have 

been proven to be true with specific 

evidence, they will be severely 

punished. 

The Company's “business philosophy” 

is integrity, professionalism, and 

sharing. 

No major difference 

(II) Has the company established an assessment 

mechanism for the risk of unethical conduct 

to regularly analyze and evaluate the 

business activities with high risk of 

unethical conduct within the business scope 

and formulated a prevention plan 

accordingly, at least covering the prevention 

measures for the acts under each 

subparagraph under Article 7, paragraph 2 

of the “Corporate Governance Best Practice 

Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 

Companies”? 

V 

 

 (II) To ensure the implementation of ethical 

management, the Company has 

established an effective accounting 

system and an internal control system, 

and internal auditors will regularly 

check the compliance with said 

systems. We explicitly and strictly 

prohibit bribery. 

No major difference 

(III) Has the company clearly specified operating 

procedures, guidelines for conduct, and a 

violation punishment and complaint system 

in the unethical conduct prevention plan and 

duly implemented them? Does the company 

regularly review and revise said plan? 

V 

 

 (III) We offer education and training to 

employees and raise their awareness 

from time to time, so that they can fully 

understand the Company's 

determination to operate business in 

good faith and our ethical management 

policies, prevention plans, and 

regulations. 

The Company's “Code of Conduct and 

Ethics” specifies the standard conduct 

that the our personnel should 

demonstrate and regulates relevant 

operating procedures and a reward and 

punishment system to prevent any 

violation and ensure ethical conduct in 

the operations.                                                                                                                   

No major difference 
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Item 

Operations 
Deviation from the 

Corporate 

Governance Best 

Practice Principles 

for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 

and the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

II. Implementation of ethical management     

(I) Does the company evaluate each 

counterparty’s records for ethics? Has the 

company specified the terms of ethical 

conduct in each contract signed with each 

counterparty? 

V  (I) In the procurement contract signed 

between the Company and each 

supplier, there is a term that “the 

supplier shall guarantee that no direct, 

indirect, or any other improper method 

is adopted explicitly or implicitly, and 

transactions with related parties are 

prohibited” to obtain the most 

reasonable quote and the best quality 

and service. 

No major difference 

(II) Has the company established a dedicated 

(concurrent) unit under the board of 

directors to conduct ethical corporate 

management, regularly (at least once a year) 

report to the board of directors on its ethical 

management policies and prevention plans 

for unethical conduct, and supervise the 

implementation? 

V  (II) The General Manager’s Office is the 

unit dedicated to corporate ethical 

management. It supervises all 

departments to implement corporate 

ethical management as per their duties 

and business scope, and the Audit 

Department reports any unusual 

incident to the Board of Directors. 

The latest report to the Board of 

Directors was on November 9, 2023. 

The reporting situation is as follows: 

The Company has designated the 

General Manager’s Office as the unit 

in charge and has formulated and 

disclosed the “Ethical Corporate 

Management Best Practice Principles” 

and the “Codes of Ethical Conduct” in 

the human resources management 

system and on the company website for 

all employees to refer to. 

No major difference 

(III) Has the company formulated policies to 

prevent conflicts of interest, provided 

appropriate methods for stating one’s 

conflicts of interest, and implemented them 

appropriately? 

 

 

V  (III) The Company's “work rules” clearly 

stipulate that if any employees “who 

wheel and deal and conceal the fact 

that they deceive people to obtain 

illegitimate benefits” or “whose 

negligence results in damage to the 

Company”, which have been proven to 

be true with specific evidence, they 

will be severely punished. 

No major difference 

(IV) Has the company has established an 

effective accounting system and an internal 

control system for the implementation of 

ethical management and assigned the 

internal audit unit to formulate relevant 

audit plans based on the assessment results 

of the risk of unethical conduct and audit the 

compliance with the unethical conduct 

prevention plan accordingly or 

commissioned a CPA to perform such 

audits? 

V  (IV) To ensure the implementation of 

ethical management, the Company has 

established an effective accounting 

system and an internal control system, 

and internal auditors will regularly 

check the compliance with said 

systems. 

No major difference 
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Item 

Operations 
Deviation from the 

Corporate 

Governance Best 

Practice Principles 

for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 

and the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(V) Does the company regularly hold internal and 

external education and training on ethical 

management? 

V  (V) The company has established an 

"Integrity Code of Conduct" operating 

procedure, wherein management 

periodically advocates and fosters a 

unified belief among all employees 

during company meetings or 

educational training sessions. This is in 

accordance with relevant laws and 

regulations to ensure honest and 

ethical business practices. In the year  

2023, the educational training course 

theme was "Integrity Operation 

Education and Training – Explanation 

of Integrity Operation Guidelines and 

Case Analysis," with a total of 15 

participants (accounting for 38% of the 

total staff at the Taipei headquarters), 

with a total duration of 10 hours. 

We raise directors’, managers’, and 

employees’ awareness of applicable 

laws and regulations by email at least 

once per year. 

No major difference 

III. Implementation of the Company’s 

whistleblowing system 

   
 

(I) Has the company formulated a specific 

whistleblowing and reward system, 

established a convenient whistleblowing 

method, and assigned appropriate personnel 

to handle the party accused? 

V  (I) The Company has established the 

“Illegal Conduct or and Violation 

Professional Ethics or Violation of 

Integrity Report Response 

Regulations”. We have appointed a 

unit responsible for accepting reports 

in the case of any violations of relevant 

regulations on ethical management and 

formulated reporting channels and 

response procedures. The responsible 

unit will jointly review each report and 

impose punishment measures in 

accordance with the Company's human 

resources regulations if the report is 

proven to be true. 

No major difference 

(II) Has the company formulated standard 

operating procedures for investigation of 

reported cases, the follow-up measures to be 

taken after the investigation is completed, 

and a confidentiality mechanism? 

 

 

V  (II) When we discover or receive a report of 

unethical conduct of our personnel, if 

the violation of applicable laws and 

regulations or the Company's ethical 

management policy and regulations is 

proven to be true, we will immediately 

request the perpetrator to stop the 

unethical conduct and handle it 

appropriately. We, if necessary, will 

seek damages through legal procedures 

to safeguard the Company's reputation 

and rights. All personnel involved in 

this process should honor an obligation 

to keep the entire process confidential 

in accordance with the operating 

procedures. 

No major difference 
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Item 

Operations 
Deviation from the 

Corporate 

Governance Best 

Practice Principles 

for TWSE/TPEx 

Listed Companies 

and the reasons 

therefor 

Yes No Brief description 

(III) Does the company take measures to protect 

whistleblowers from being mistreated due to 

their whistleblowing behavior? 

V  (III) We are responsible for protecting and 

keeping whistleblowers’ identity 

confidential and ensure that they will 

not be improperly treated due to the 

whistleblowing. 

No major difference 

IV. Enhanced information disclosure     

Has the company disclosed the content of its 

Ethical Corporate Management Best 

Practice Principles and the effectiveness of 

the implementation of the principles on its 

website and the MOPS? 

V  We have disclosed the contents of the 

Ethical Corporate Management Best 

Practice Principles on the company website 

and the MOPS and the implementation 

situation in the annual reports and the CSR 

reports. 

No major difference 

V. If the company has formulated its own Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles as per the “Corporate 

Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”, please specify the difference between its 

operation and the principles: The Company has formulated the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles and 

implemented it in accordance with the content of the principles: Without any major difference. 

VI. Other important information that facilitates the understanding of the company's ethical management (e.g., reviewing and 

amending the company's Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles): 

1. We operate the business in an ethical manner and take “integrity” as the top priority of our corporate culture. We 

require all members of the Company to uphold the spirit of integrity and honesty during daily operations. We strive 

to make business operations transparent and be responsible to our shareholders. In addition, we have purchased 

fidelity insurance for our employees to reduce the risk of jeopardizing our shareholders’ rights and interests. 

2. We comply with the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act, the regulations on listing on Taiwan Stock 

Exchange and Taipei Exchange, or other laws and regulations on business conduct, as the basis for implementing 

ethical management. 

3. The Company's “Rules of the Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings” has specified a mechanism for directors to 

recuse themselves from discussion and voting on proposals in board meetings, in which their person interest is 

involved and may jeopardize the Company’s interest. while they may state their opinions and answer questions and 

shall not exercise their voting rights on behalf of other directors. 

4. We have formulated the “Procedures for Handling Material Inside Information”, which clearly requires directors, 

managers, and employees not to disclose material internal information they learn about to others and not to ask others 

or collect information from persons who are aware of the Company’s material internal information, while personnel 

shall not disclose to others any undisclosed internal material information they learn about not during performing duties 

in the Company. 

(VIII) If the company has formulated the corporate governance best practice principles or relevant 

regulations, it shall disclose where to access it: 
To implement the corporate governance system, we have formulated (amended) relevant regulations on corporate 

governance, which ae disclosed in “Relevant rules and regulations on corporate governance” under “Corporate 

Governance Procedures and Regulations”, “Investors”, “The Company”, “Homepage” on the company website 

(https://www.agneovo.com) and the MOPS (https://mops.twse.com.tw/) for reference. 

(IX) Other important information that may facilitate the understanding of the operation of 

corporate governance may be disclosed together:  
1. The Company’s important information is disclosed on the MOPS in accordance with competent 

authorities’ regulations. 

http://tw.agneovo.com/tw/index.asp
https://www.agneovo.com/
https://mops.twse.com.tw/
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2. The current term of directors’ continuing education 

Job title Name 
Date 
elected 

Date of 
training 

Organizer Course title 

Hou

rs of 
train

ing 

Chairman 

Hua-

Chung 

Pi 

2021 

/07 

/21 

2021/09/01 Financial Supervisory Commission 
The 13th Taipei Corporate Governance 

Forum 
3 

2021/09/16 Securities and Futures Institute 
Intellectual Property Management from the 

Perspective of the Board Of Directors 
3 

2022/10/21 Securities and Futures Institute 
2022 Insider Trading Prevention Advocacy 

Meeting 
3 

2022/11/15 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Management Right Contest and Prevention 

Strategy Analysis 
3 

2022/10/21 Securities and Futures Institute 
2022 Insider Trading Prevention Advocacy 

Meeting 
3 

2022/11/15 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Management Right Contest and Prevention 

Strategy Analysis 
3 

2023/07/21 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

How to Plan Equities and Design the 

Organizational Structure for a Start-up 

Company 

3 

2023/09/08 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Initiation of a Succession Plan - Employee 

Remuneration Planning and Inheritance of 

Equities 

3 

2024/01/19 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Design of Senior Manager Remuneration 

and ESG Performance Systems 
3 

Director 

Represe

ntative 
of 

ShiueDi

ng 

Investm
ent 

Consult

ant Co., 

Ltd.: 
Yun Yu 

2021 

/07 
/21 

2021/06/08 
Accounting Research and Development 

Foundation 

Corporate Strategy Capability Improvement 

by Means of ESG 
3 

2021/09/01 Financial Supervisory Commission 
The 13th Taipei Corporate Governance 

Forum 
3 

2022/11/15 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Management Right Contest and Prevention 

Strategy Analysis 
3 

2022/11/22 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Corporate Social Responsibility - Corporate 

Governance from the Human Rights Policy 
Perspective 

3 

2023/08/15 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association Patent Deployment and Litigation Practices 3 

2023/08/22 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Sustainability and Digital Dual-Axis 

Transformation 
3 

2024/04/19 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Director Responsibilities in Ownership 

Disputes—Focus on Safeguarding 
Shareholder Rights 

3 

Director 

Represe
ntative 

of 

ShiueDi

ng 
Investm

ent 

Consult

ant Co., 
Ltd.: 

Hsin-

Yuan 
Chao 

2021 

/07 

/21 

2021/06/08 
Accounting Research and Development 

Foundation 
Corporate Strategy Capability Improvement 
by Means of ESG 

3 

2021/08/31 Digital Governance Association 
The International Trend of Net-Zero 
Emissions and Taiwan's Actions for Net-

Zero Emissions 

3 

2021/09/01 Financial Supervisory Commission 
The 13th Taipei Corporate Governance 

Forum 
3 

2022/03/09 Taiwan Institute of Directors 
Leaders Academy Forum: Digital New 

Taiwan Under the New Reality 
3 

2022/05/12 Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation International Twin Summit Online 2 

2022/10/28 Securities and Futures Institute 
2022 Insider Trading Prevention Advocacy 
Meeting 

3 

2023/07/18 
Accounting Research and Development 

Foundation 
2023 Transition Finance and Sustainability 
Disclosure 

3 

2023/11/10 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Corporate Governance in the U.S.A.: 
Historical Evolution and the Latest 

Development 

3 

2023/12/12 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Corporate Governance Summit XIX- 

Creating New Sphere of Governance for the 

Elevating Value of Enterprises 

3 

2024/04/10 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Navigating the Journey of Corporate 

Wisdom: Guiding Forward through 
Corporate Governance 

3 

Director 
Hung-

Chun 

Yu 

2021 
/07 

/21 

2021/05/18 
Accounting Research and Development 
Foundation 

Investigation into the Flows of Funds in the 

Financial Reporting Fraud Cases and Case 

Study of Applicable Legal Liabilities 

3 

2021/05/25 
Accounting Research and Development 

Foundation 

Common Corporate Governance Defects 

and Analysis of Applicable Laws and 

Regulations 

3 
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2022/03/08 
Accounting Research and Development 

Foundation 

Corporate Strategy Capability Improvement 

by Means of ESG 
3 

2022/03/09 
Accounting Research and Development 

Foundation 

Financial Reporting Applicable Regulations 

and Common Defects 
3 

2023/01/09 
Accounting Research and Development 

Foundation 

Amendments to Internal Control 

Guidelines, Information Security Law 

Compliance, and Fraud Prevention 
Practices 

6 

2024/01/12 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Corporate Carbon Management Mindset 
after the Adoption of the Climate Change 

Response Act 

3 

2024/01/19 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Designing Executive Compensation and 

ESG Performance System 
3 

Independe

nt 

Director 

Yang, 

Chyan 

2021 

/07 

/21 

2021/02/26 Securities and Futures Institute 
Early Warning and Analysis of the Type of 

Corporate Financial Crisis 
3 

2021/08/18 Securities and Futures Institute 
Discussion on Human Resources and M&A 

Issues During the Process of Business M&A 
3 

2022/05/12 Securities and Futures Institute 
2022 ESG/CSR and Sustainable 

Governance Trends 
3 

2022/06/17 Securities and Futures Institute 
Financial information most easily 

overlooked by directors 
3 

2022/08/11 Securities and Futures Institute 

Company management right dispute and 

introduction to Commercial Case 

Adjudication Act 

3 

2023/03/10 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Shareholders' Meeting, Management Right 

and Equity Strategies 
3 

2023/04/14 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Legal Risks and Countermeasures of 

Corporate Investment and Financing - From 

the Perspective of Corporate Directors' 
Responsibilities 

3 

2023/04/27 Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation 
Sustainable Development Action Plan 
Promotion Conference for TWSE/TPEx-

listed Companies 

3 

2023/04/28 Securities and Futures Institute 
Early Warning and Analysis of the Type of 

Corporate Financial Crisis 
3 

Independ

ent 

Director 

Sha-

Wei 

Chang 

2021 

/07 

/21 

2021/09/16 Securities and Futures Institute 
Intellectual Property Management from the 

Perspective of the Board Of Directors 
3 

2021/09/30 Taiwan Investor Relations Institute 
Digital Transformation in the Post-

pandemic Era 
3 

2022/11/15 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Management Right Contest and Prevention 

Strategy Analysis 
3 

2022/11/22 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Corporate Social Responsibility - Corporate 

Governance from the Human Rights Policy 

Perspective 

3 

2023/10/27 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association Family Charter and Family Office 3 

2023/12/22 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Linking to Carbon: Carbon Fees, Carbon 

Taxes, Carbon Rights and Carbon Trading 
3 

Independ

ent 

Director 

Kuo-

Hua 

Chen 

2021 

/07 

/21 

2021/10/26 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructor of Taiwan Corporate Governance 

Association (Obligations and 

Responsibilities of Companies and 

Directors and Supervisors under the 
Securities and Exchange Act - 3 hours) 

1 

2021/11/05 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructor of Taiwan Corporate Governance 
Association (Corporate Governance and the 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Person in 

Charge of a Company - 3 hours) 

1 

2021/11/05 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructor of Taiwan Corporate Governance 

Association (Insider Trading Prevention and 
Response - 3 hours) 

1 

2021/11/08 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructor of Taiwan Corporate Governance 
Association (Disclosures of Material 

Information and Responsibilities of 

Directors and Supervisors - 3 hours) 

1 

2021/11/09 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructor of Taiwan Corporate Governance 

Association (Directors’ Fiduciary Duty and 

Business Judgment Principles - 3 hours) 

1 

2021/11/12 Securities and Futures Institute 2021 Insider Trading Prevention Briefing 3 

2022/10/19 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association M&A Practice and Case Analysis 1 

2022/11/10 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Responsibilities of Directors and 

Supervisors for False Financial Reports 
1 



 

- 61 - 

2022/11/15 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 
Management Right Contest and Prevention 

Strategy Analysis 
3 

2022/12/06 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Major Company Information Disclosure & 

Responsibilities of Directors and 

Supervisors 

1 

2023/02/21 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructor of Taiwan Corporate Governance 

Association (Disclosures of Material 
Information and Responsibilities of 

Directors and Supervisors) 

1 

2023/10/31 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Case Study of Voting of Foreign Investors 

from the Perspective of Managerial Rights 

and Shareholder Activism - International 

Thinking on the Responsibilities of 
Directors and Supervisors 

3 

2023/11/10 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructors of Taiwan Corporate 
Governance Association (insider 

Shareholding Management and Legal Share 

Trading Issues) 

1 

2023/11/13 Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Instructors of Taiwan Corporate 

Governance Association (Practical Issues 

on Unconventional Trading among 
Directors and Supervisors) 

1 
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3. Training on corporate governance in which managers participated: 

Job title Manager Course 
Date of 

training 

Training 

Hours 

President 

Hsin-

Yuan 

Chao 

Accounting Research and Development Foundation 

2023 Transition Finance and Sustainability Disclosure 
 

2023/07/18  

9 

Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Corporate Governance in the U.S.A.: Historical Evolution and the Latest 

Development 

 

2023/11/10 

Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Corporate Governance Summit XIX- Creating New Sphere of 

Governance for the Elevating Value of Enterprises 

 

2023/12/12 

Chief 

Financial 

Officer 

Chief 

Accounting 

Officer 

Wan-Wei 

Lu 

Accounting Research and Development Foundation 

Continuing Training Course for Accounting Officers from Publicly Listed 

Securities Firms and Stock Exchanges 

2023/08/24 

2023/08/25 
12 

Corporate 

Governance 

Officer 

Wan-Wei 

Lu 

Securities and Futures Institute 

2023 Insider Trading Prevention Briefing 

 

2023/06/09 

12 

Taiwan Corporate Governance Association 

Corporate Carbon Right and Carbon Assets Management in Response to 

the Operation of the Global Carbon Trading Mechanism 

 

2023/09/19 

Accounting Research and Development Foundation 

Common Deficiencies of "Financial Report Review" and Practical 

Analysis of Important Internal Control Regulations 

 

2023/09/20 

Chief auditor 
Yi-Hsiu 

Lin 

The Institute of Internal Auditors 

Relationship between Salary Cycle and Compliance with Labor Laws and 

Regulations 

 

2023/08/15 

12 
The Institute of Internal Auditors 

Discussion on "Insider Trading" and "False Financial Statements" and 

the Countermeasures 

 

2023/09/07 
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(X) Implementation of the internal control system 

1. Statement of Internal Control 

Associated Industries China, Inc. 

Statement of the Internal Control System 

Date: March 11, 2024 

The Company's internal control system for 2023 as per the results of our self-assessment is hereby declared as 

follows: 

I. The Company is clearly aware that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of an internal control 

system is the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and managers, and the Company has 

established such a system. It aims to provide reasonable assurance for the achievement of the objectives, 

namely the effectiveness and efficiency of operations (including profitability, performance, and asset security 

protection), the reliability, timeliness, and transparency of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable 

laws and regulations. 

II. Some limitations are inherent in all internal control systems. No matter how perfect the design is, an effective 

internal control system can only provide a reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the above three 

intended objectives; moreover, due to changes in the environment and circumstances, the effectiveness of the 

internal control system may change accordingly. However, the Company's internal control system is equipped 

with a self-monitoring mechanism. Once a defect is identified, the Company will take action to rectify it. 

III. The Company judges whether the design and implementation of the internal control system is effective based 

on the criteria for judging the effectiveness of the internal control system set out in the “Regulations Governing 

Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies” (hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations"). 

Said criteria under the “Regulations” are divided into five constituent elements as per the management and 

control process: 1. control environment, 2. risk assessment, 3. control activities, 4. information and 

communication, and 5. monitoring activities. Each constituent element includes several items. For said items, 

please refer to the “Regulations”. 

IV. The Company has adopted the aforesaid judgment criteria for the internal control system to determine whether 

the design and implementation of the internal control system are effective. 

V. Based on the results of the assessment in the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that, as of December 

31, 2023, the internal control system (including the supervision and management of its subsidiaries), including 

the understanding of the effectiveness of operations and the extent to which efficiency targets are achieved, 

reliable, timely, and transparent reporting, and compliance with applicable rules and applicable laws and 

regulations, is effective and can reasonably assure the achievement of the preceding objectives. 

VI. This statement will form the main content of the Company's annual report and prospectus and will be made 

public. If the disclosed content above is false or there is material information concealed deliberately or 

otherwise, the Company will be legally liable pursuant to Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act. 

VII. The Company's Board approved this Director's statement on March 11 2024 Among the 7 directors present, 

none of them expressed objections. All the others agreed with the content of this statement. Therefore, this 

statement is hereby declared.  

 

Associated Industries China, Inc. 

Chairman:  Hua-Chung Pi         Signature/Seal 

President:  Hsin-Yuan Chao       Signature/Seal 
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2. For those who appointed a CPA to review the internal control system, the CPA’s review 

report shall be disclosed: None. 

(XI) Any legal penalty against the company and its internal personnel, any disciplinary penalty 

by the company against its internal personnel for violation of the internal control system, 

the main defects, and the improvement made during the most recent year and up to the 

publication date of this annual report: None. 

(XII) Important resolutions by the shareholders' meeting and the Board of Directors in the most 

recent year and up to the publication date of the annual report: 

1. Important resolutions by the 2023 general shareholders' meeting 
Date of 

shareholders' 

meeting 

Important resolutions and implementation 

2023/06/20 
1. Ratified the 2022 business report and financial statements 

2. Ratified the 2022 deficit compensation proposal 

2. The resolutions adopted by the 2023 shareholders meeting have been implemented 

thoroughly. 

3. Important resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors during 2023 and up to the 

publication date of this annual report. 
Date of 

board 

meeting 

                                 Proposal 

2023/03/15 

1. Passed the 2022 Business Report and financial statements 

2. Passed the 2022 director's remuneration and employee remuneration distribution proposal 

3. Passed the 2022 deficit compensation proposal 

4. Passed the record date for capital reduction by taking back and cancelling restricted stock awards 

5. Passed the proposal for matters related to the convening of the 2023 general shareholders meeting 

6. Passed the amendments to the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” 

7. Passed the amendments to the “Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles” 

8. Passed the proposal to apply to financial institutions for the renewal of financing facilities 

9. Passed the Company's 2022 “internal control system effectiveness assessment” and “statement of the 

internal control system” proposal 

10. Passed the Company's greenhouse gas inventory and verification schedule proposal. 

11. Passed a proposal on the general principles of the Company's pre-approved non-assurance service policy. 

12. Passed a proposal to update the 2022 restricted employee stock allotment and set the capital increase 

issuance base date 

13. Passed a proposal regarding the maturity of the secured convertible corporate bonds issued by Taiwan 

Biophotonic Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic) on April 11, 2022 

14. Passed a proposal for the Company to increase investment in the subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 

2023/04/14 

1. Passed the proposal on measures for the Company to subscribe for the secured convertible corporate bonds 

issued by Taiwan Biophotonic, and convert the bonds into common stocks on the maturity date. 

2. Passed a proposal for the Company’s President served as the president of the subsidiary Taiwan 

Biophotonic. 

3. Passed a proposal to remove the non-compete clause for the Company's managers 

2023/05/09 

1. Passed the 1st quarter financial statements for 2023 

2. Passed the amendments to the Company’s “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” 

3. Passed the amendments to the Company’s "Procedures for Handling Cases of Illegal and Unethical or 

Dishonest Conduct". 

4. Passed the Company's greenhouse gas inventory and verification schedule proposal. 

2023/08/09 

1. Passed the 2nd quarter financial statements for 2023 

2. Passed the proposal for establishment of the Company's "Regulations Governing Finance and Business 

Relations between Related Parties” 

3. Approved the proposal for changes in the Company’s internal auditing officer 

4. Passed the proposal for the Company's regular assessment of the independence and suitability of the CPAs 

appointed 

2023/11/09 

1. Passed the 3rd quarter financial statements for 2023 

2. Passed the Company's 2024 business plan 

3.Passed the proposal for review of the 2023 

4. Passed a proposal on the general principles of the Company's pre-approved non-assurance service policy. 

5. Passed the proposal to implement the capital increase of AG Neovo Technology (Shanghai) Corporation 

through the subsidiary AG NEOVO INTERNATIONAL LTD. 
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6. Passed proposal for amendment to the Company's "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice 

Principles" 

7. Passed the proposal for amendment to the Company’s "Procedures for Handling Cases of Illegal and 

Unethical or Dishonest Conduct". 

8. Passed the proposal for amendment to the Company’s "Risk Management Policy" and the change of the 

name to "Risk Management Policy and Procedure" 

9.Passed the regular review of the Company's salary and remuneration policy 

10. Passed the Company's 2024 audit plan 

2024/03/11 

1. Passed the 2023 Business Report and financial statements 

2. Passed the 2023 director's remuneration and employee remuneration distribution proposal 

3. Passed the 2023 deficit compensation proposal 

4. Passed the election of all directors 

5. Passed the proposal for matters related to the convening of the 2024 general shareholders meeting 

6. Passed the nomination for and resolution on the list of director candidates 

7. Passed the proposal to remove the non-compete clause for new directors 

8. Approved the amendments to the Company's "Implementation Rules of the Regulations Governing the 

Repurchase of Shares for Transfer to Employees" 

9. Passed the matters regarding the 1st and 2nd repurchase of shares for transfer to employees in 2019 

10. Passed the 1st and 2nd repurchase of shares for transfer to employees in 2019 

11. Passed the proposal for the next term of directors’ remuneration 

12. Passed the proposal for promotion of managers and adjustment of managers’ salary and remuneration 

13. Passed the proposal for changes in CPAs for the financial reports 

14. Passed the proposal regarding the application for conversion of the subscribed secured convertible 

corporate bonds issued by the subsidiary, Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (Taiwan Biophotonic), in 

2023 

15. Passed a proposal for the Company to increase investment in the subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic. 

16. Passed the proposal for change in the fair value model for the subsequent evaluation of the investment 

property 

17. Passed the amendments to the “Audit Committee Charter” 

18. Passed the amendments to the “Rules of the Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings” 

19. Passed the proposal to apply to financial institutions for the renewal of financing facilities 

20. Passed the Company's 2023 “internal control system effectiveness assessment” and “statement of the 

internal control system” proposal 

2024/05/08 

1. Passed the 1st quarter financial statements for 2024 

2. Approved the establishment of the criterion for restricting the redemption and cancellation of new shares 

granted to employees. 

3. Approved the company's proposal to apply for the renewal of financing facilities from financial 

institutions. 

(XIII) During the most recent year and up to the date publication of this annual report, if the 

directors or supervisors had different opinions on important resolutions approved by the 

Board of Directors with records or written statements, the main content of the opinions: 

None. 

(XIV) During the most recent year and up to the date publication of this annual report, a summary 

of the resignation and dismissal of the Company’s Chairman, President, chief accounting 

officer, chief financial officer, chief internal auditor, corporate governance officer, or 

R&D officer: 

Job title Name 
Date of taking 

office 

Date of 

dismissal 

Reasons for 

resignation or 

dismissal 

Chief internal 
auditor 

An-Mei Chen 2009/07/10 2023/08/09 Job adjustment 
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V. Information on the Company’s audit fees 
(I) CPAs’ audit fees 

Unit: NTD thousand 

Name 

of 

accoun

ting 

firm 

CPA's 

name 
Audit period Audit fees Non-audit fees Total Remarks 

KPMG 

Chu, Yao-

Chun 
2023/01/01～2023/12/31 

2,330 520 2,850 

Non-audit fees: Tax 

certification services, 

salary review for non-

managers 

Kuo, 

Kuan-

Ying 
2023/01/01～2023/12/31 

                                                                   

(II) If the CPA firm is replaced and the audit fees paid during the year the replacement occurs 

are less than those paid in the prior year, the amount for the decrease in the audit fees and 

the reason thereof shall be disclosed: N/A. 

(III) When the audit fees paid for the current year are lower than those paid for the prior year by 

10% or more, the amount and percentage of the decrease and thereof shall be disclosed: N/A. 
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VI. Replacement of CPAs: None. 

(I) Information on former CPAs:  

Date of Change Passed by the board of directors on March 11, 2024. 

 
Reasons and Explanation of Changes 

Due to internal adjustments at KPMG Taiwan, our original visa accountants were 

Accountants Au, Yiu Kwan and Kuo, Kuan Ying. Starting from the first quarter 

of 113, the visa accountants have been adjusted and changed to Accountants Au, 

Yiu Kwan and Huang, Geng Jia. 

State Whether the Appointment is 
Terminated or Rejected by the 
Consignor or CPAs 

Counterparty 

Situation 
Certified Public 

Accountant 
Consignor 

Appointment terminated automatically None None 

Appointment rejected (discontinued) None None 

The Opinions Other than 

Unmodified Opinion Issued in the 

Last Two Years and the Reasons for 

the Said Opinions 

None 

Is There Any Disagreement in 

Opinion with 

the Issuer 

 
 
 
 

 

Yes 
 
 
 
 

 

有 

 
 
 
 

 

有 

 
 
 
 

 

有 

 
 
 
 

 

有 

 Accounting principle or practice 

 Disclosure of financial statements 

 Auditing scope or procedures 

 Others 

 
 

None  

Explanation: None 

Supplementary Disclosure None 

(II) Information on new CPAs: 

Accounting Firm KPMG Taiwan 

Name of independent auditor Au, Yiu Kwan and Huang, Geng Jia. 

Date of Engagement Passed by the board of directors on March 11, 2024. 

Accounting treatment methods or accounting principles 

for specific transactions, and advisory matters and results 

that may be issued for financial reporting prior to 

appointment 

None 

Written opinions of the successor CPAs on matters of 

disagreement with the predecessor CPAs 
None 

(III) Reply from the former CPAs: N/A. 

VII. The Chairman, President, Chief Financial Officer, or Accounting Manager, who the CPA firm or 

its affiliates have employed in the most recent year: None. 
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VIII. The changes in the transfer or pledge of equity shares by directors, supervisors, managers, or 

shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares issued by the Company in the most recent 

year and up to the publication date of this annual report: 

(I) Movements in shareholdings of directors, supervisors, managers, and major shareholders 
Unit: Share 

Title Name 

2023 2024 up to April 22 

I n c r e a s e 

(decrease) in 

the number of 

s h a r e s  h e l d 

I n c r e a s e 

(decrease) in 

the number of 

shares pledged 

I n c r e a s e 

(decrease)  in 

the number of 

s h a r e s  h e l d 

I n c r e a s e 

(decrease) in 

the number of 

shares pledged 

Chairman Pi, Hua-Chung 0 0 0 0 

Director 

ShiueDing 

Investment 

Consultant Co., Ltd. 

0 0 0 0 

Representative: Yun 

Yu 
0 0 0 0 

Director 

ShiueDing 

Investment 

Consultant Co., Ltd. 

0 0 0 0 

Representative: 

Hsin-Yuan Chao 
0 0 400,000 0 

Director Hung-Chun Yu 0 0 400,000 0 

Independent 

Director 
Chen, Kuo-Hua  0 0 0 0 

Independent 

Director 
Yang, Chyan 0 0 0 0 

Independent 

Director 
Chang, Sha-Wei 0 0 0 0 

President Chao, Hsin-Yuan 0 0 0 0 

Assistant Vice 

President 
Lin, Han-Lin 0 0 170,000 0 

Assistant Vice 

President 
Chu, Pao-Jung 0 0 25,000 0 

Assistant Vice 

President 
Shih, Ju-Ling 0 0 200,000 0 

Assistant Vice 

President 
Chen, Chia-Hsin 0 0 200,000 0 

Major 

shareholder 

Investment account 

of Tri-Tech Holding 

Inc in custody of 

CTBC Bank Co., 

Ltd. 

(75,000) 0 0 0 

Vice General 

Manager, Chief 

Financial 

Officer, Chief 

Accounting 

Officer, and 

Corporate 

Governance 

Officer 

Lu, Wan-Wei 0 0 200,000 0 

Description 1: Shareholders holding more than 10% of the Company's total issued shares shall be marked as major 
shareholders and listed separately. 

Description 2: If the counterparty to which the equity is transferred or for whom equity is pledged is a related party, the 
table below shall also be filled out. 

(II) Equity transfer information (relations between the transaction counterparty and the 

Company/directors/supervisors/managers/ shareholders holding more than 10% of the 

shares): N/A. 

(III) Information on equity pledged (relations between the transaction counterparty and the 

Company/directors/supervisors/managers/ shareholders holding more than 10% of the 

shares): N/A. 
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IX. Information on the relationship among the top 10 shareholders if anyone is a related party, a 

spouse, or a relative within the second degree of kinship of another: 

                                                              Unit: Shares; % 

Name (Note) 

Shareholding of the 

individual 

Shareholding 

Shareholding 

of spouse or 

minor 

children 

Total 

shareholding 

by nominee 

arrangement 

Information on the relations 

among the top 10 

shareholders if anyone is a 
related party, a spouse, or a 

relative within second degree 

of kinship of another and 

their names. 
Re

ma

rks 

Number 

of shares 

Sharehol

ding 

Num

ber 

of 

share

s 

Share

holdi

ng 

Num

ber 

of 

share

s 

Share

holdi

ng 

Title 

(or name) 

Relat

ions 

Investment account 

of Tri-Tech Holding 

Inc in custody of 

CTBC Bank Co., 

Ltd. 

8,011,294 14.51% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Pi, Hua-Chung 3,502,541 6.34% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Employee stock 

ownership trust of 

Associated 

Industries China, 

Inc. in custody of 

First Commercial 

Bank 

1,835,816 3.33% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Trust account of 

restricted stock with 

voting rights and 

right to receive 

dividends for 

employees of 

Associated 

Industries China, 

Inc. in custody of 

First Commercial 

Bank 

1,804,000 3.27% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Hsiao, Hsin-Chuan 1,774,132 3.21% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Yu, Yun 1,465,356 2.65% 77 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Yang, Kun-Hsi 1,290,000 2.34% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Wen, Shun-Mei 1,265,512 2.29% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Chao, Hsin-Yuan 1,022,757 1.85% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Li, Han-Jung 945,000 1.71% 0 0% 0 0% None None 
No

ne 

Note; The book closure date is April 22, 2024. 
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X. The total number of shares held and the consolidated shareholdings in any single investee by the 

Company, its directors, supervisors, managers, or any companies controlled directly or indirectly 

by the Company.                           

December 31, 2023  unit; % 

Note: It is an investment made by the Company using the equity method. 

Reinvestment Business (note) 

Investment by the 

Company 

Investment by directors, 

supervisors, managers, or 

any companies controlled 

either directly or 

indirectly by the 

Company 

Combined investment  

Number of 

Shares 

Shareholdi

ng 

Number of 

Shares 
Shareholding 

Number of 

Shares 

Shareholdi

ng 

AG Neovo Technology B.V. 4,800 100% 0   0% 4,800 100% 

AG Neovo International Ltd. 800 100% 0   0% 800 100% 

AG Neovo Technology Corp. 0   0% 702,000 100% 702,000 100% 

AG Neovo Investment Co., Ltd. 500 100% 0   0% 500 100% 

AG Neovo Technology (Shanghai) 

Corporation 
0   0%   0 100%   0 100% 

Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation 198,734,180  57% 0   0% 198,734,180  57% 
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Four. Capital and Shares 
I. Capital and shares 

(I) Source of share capital  
1. The formation of share capital                                                                                       April 22, 2024 Unit: share/NTD 

Year/Month 
Issue 
price 

Authorized capital Paid-up share capital Remarks 

Number of 
Shares 

Amount 
Number of 

Shares 
Amount Source of Equity 

Capital increased by assets 
other than cash 

Others 

1978.05 10 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 Initial capital of NT$10,000,000 None Jian-I No. 100113 

1978.12 10 3,600,000 36,000,000 3,600,000 36,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$26,000,000 None 
Jing-(1978)-Shang No. 41751 dated 

1978.12.29 

1979.04 10 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$14,000,000 None 
Jing-(1979)-Shang No. 11047 dated 

1979.04.12 

1979.08 10 6,000,000 60,000,000 6,000,000 60,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$10,000,000 None 
Jing-(1979)-Shang No. 27536 dated 

1979.08.28 

1980.01 10 8,000,000 80,000,000 8,000,000 80,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$20,000,000 None 
Jing-(1980)-Shang No. 01504 dated 

1980.01.15 

1980.11 10 10,000,000 100,000,000 10,000,000 100,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$20,000,000 None 
Jing-(1980)-Shang No. 40231 dated 

1980.11.20 

1981.06 10 14,000,000 140,000,000 14,000,000 140,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$40,000,000 None 
Jing-(1981)-Shang No. 22526 dated 

1981.06.08 

1984.01 10 20,000,000 200,000,000 20,000,000 200,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$60,000,000 None Jing-Zi-Xin No. 0140 dated 1984.01.19 

1988.01 10 22,000,000 220,000,000 22,000,000 220,000,000 
Capitalization of capital surplus to increase 
the capital by NT$20,000,000. 

None 
Jing-Tou-Shen-(1988)-Gong-Shang No. 
1200 

1989.05 10 28,000,000 280,000,0000 28,000,000 280,000,000 

Capitalization of capital surplus to increase 
the capital by NT$20,000,000. 
Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$40,000,00 

None 
Jing-Tou-Shen-(1989)-Gong-Shang No. 

2862 

1989.08 10 40,000,000 400,000,000 40,000,000 400,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$120,000,000 None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 24749 dated 

1989.08.04 

1990.09 10 51,000,000 510,000,000 51,000,000 510,000,000 

Capitalization of capital surplus to increase 
the capital by NT$40,000,000 
Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$70,000,000 

None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 01704 dated 
1990.07.26 

1991.07 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 58,650,000 586,500,000 
Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$76,500,000 

None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 01265 dated 

1991.06.21 

1992.07 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 68,913,750 689,137,500 
Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$102,637,500 

None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 01330 dated 

1992.06.20 

1993.09 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 80,000,000 800,000,000 

Capitalization of capital surplus to increase 

the capital by NT$44,705,300 

Capitalization of earnings to increase the 

capital by NT$66,157,200 

None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 01440 dated 

1993.06.17 

1994.07 10 110,000,000 1,100,000,000 87,986,800 879,868,000 
Capitalization of capital surplus to increase 
the capital by NT$47,868,000 

None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 25211 dated 

1994.06.07 
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Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$32,000,000 

1995.07 10 110,000,000 1,100,000,000 90,626,404 906,264,040 

Capitalization of capital surplus to increase 
the capital by NT$10,558,416 
Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$15,837,624 

None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 32877 dated 

1995.06.06 

1996.11 10 110,000,000 1,100,000,000 110,000,000 1,100,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$193,735,960 None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 59594 dated 

1996.10.21 

1998.11 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 140,000,000 1,400,000,000 Cash capital increase by NT$300,000,000 None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 85208 dated 

1998.10.14 

1999.08 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 151,200,000 1,512,000,000 

Capitalization of capital surplus to increase 
the capital by NT$84,000,000 
Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$28,000,000 

None 
Tai-Cai-Zeng-(I) No. 62291 dated 

1999.07.07 

2005.03 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 88,400,000 884,000,000 Capital reduction of NT$628,000,000 None 
Jin-Guan-Zheng-I No. 0940103714 dated 
2005.02.04 

2006.08 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 46,087,361 460,873,610 Capital reduction of NT$423,126,390 None 
Jin-Guan-Zheng-I No. 0950128285 dated 
2006.08.04 

2013.09 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 49,971,971 499,719,710 

Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$23,043,680 
Capitalization of employee bonus to increase 
the capital by NT$15,802,420 

None 
Jin-Guan-Zheng-I No. 1020028153 dated 
2013.07.25 

2014.09 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 52,470,569 524,705,690 
Capitalization of earnings to increase the 
capital by NT$24,985,980 None 

Jin-Guan-Zheng-I No. 1030027392 dated 
2014.07.17 

2014.11 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 53,840,569 538,405,690 
Issuance of restricted stock awards to increase 
the capital by NT$13,700,000 None 

Jin-Guan-Zheng-I No. 1030038905 dated 
2014.09.30 

2015.09 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 53,966,569 539,665,690 
Issuance of restricted stock awards to increase 
the capital by NT$1,260,000 None 

Jin-Guan-Zheng-I No. 1030038905 dated 
2014.09.30 

2015.11 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 53,512,569 535,125,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$4,540,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 10401251160 dated 
2015.11.25 

2016.11 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 53,162,569 531,625,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$3,500,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 10501270630 dated 
2016.11.23 

2017.11 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 52,804,769 528,047,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$3,578,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 10601158110 dated 
2017.11.21 

2018.11 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 52,478,969 524,789,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$3,258,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 10701145010 dated 
2018.11.22 

2019.01 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 54,358,969 543,589,690 
Issuance of restricted stock awards to increase 
the capital by NT$18,800,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 10801013830 dated 
2019.01.31 

2019.11 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 54,350,569 543,505,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$84,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 10801166080 dated 
2019.11.15 

2020.04 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 53,806,569 538,065,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$5,440,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 10901051280 dated 
2020.04.07 

2021.01 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 55,006,569 550,065,690 
Issuance of restricted stock awards to increase 
the capital by NT$12,000,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 11001014140 dated 
2021.01.29 

2021.04 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 54,624,569 546,245,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$3,820,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 11001055140 dated 
2021.04.06 

2022.04 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 54,532,569 545,325,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduced 
the capital by NT$920,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 11101053780 dated 
2022.04.11 
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112/04 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 53,918,569 539,185,690 
Cancelled restricted stock awards to reduce 
the capital by NT$6,140,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 11230051750 dated 
2023.04.07 

112/05 10 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 55,218,569 552,185,690 
Issuance of restricted stock awards to increase 
the capital by NT$13,000,000 None 

Jing-Shou-Shang No. 11230075030 dated 
2023.05.01 
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2. Share type                                                    April 22, 2024; Unit: Shares 

Share type 

Authorized capital 

Remarks Number of 

shares issued 
Unissued shares Total 

Regular Shares 55,218,569 144,781,431 200,000,000 55,218,569 issued shares 

3. Information on shelf registration: N/A. 

(II) Shareholder structure 
                                                      April 22, 2024 (Unit: person/share) 

    Shareholder 

structure 

Number 

Government 

agencies 

Financial 

institutions 

Other 

juridical 

persons 

Individuals 

Foreign 

institutions 

and 

individuals 

Total 

No. of People  0 0 247 45,067 42 45,356 

Number of shares held 0 0 4,277,849 42,325,345 8,615,375 55,218,569 

Shareholding  0.00% 0.00% 7.75% 76.65% 15.60% 100.00% 

 (III) Equity dispersion 
1. Common stock 

              April 22, 2024 

Classification of shareholdings 
Number of 

shareholders 
Number of shares held Shareholding ratio 

     1 ～ 999  41,298 1,684,239  3.05%  

  1,000 ～ 5,000  3,203 6,209,445  11.25%  

  5,001 ～ 10,000  409 3,073,065  5.57%  

 10,001 ～ 15,000  148 1,828,094  3.31%  

 15,001 ～ 20,000  59 1,041,925 1.89%  

 20,001 ～ 30,000  80 2,034,410  3.68%  

 30,001 ～ 40,000  27 955,909 1.73%  

40,001 ～ 50,000  25 1,183,420 2.14%  

 50,001 ～ 100,000  57 4,112,543 7.45%  

100,001 ～ 200,000  21 2,721,061 4.93%  

200,001 ～ 400,000  12 3,092,008 5.60%  

400,001 ～ 600,000  4 2,135,257 3.86%  

600,001 ～ 800,000  2 1,325,785 2.40%  

800,001 ～ 1,000,000  2 1,850,000 3.35%  

1,000,001  Above   9 21,971,408 39.79%  

Total 45,356 55,218,569 100.00%  

      
2. Preference shares: N/A. 
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(IV) List of major shareholders (names of shareholders whose shareholding exceeds 5% or 

shareholders whose shareholdings rank in the top ten, number of shares held, and 

shareholding (%))                                                          April 22, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Shares 

Name of major shareholder 
Shareholdings Shareholding ratio 

Investment account of Tri-Tech Holding Inc in custody 

of CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. 
8,011,294 14.51% 

Pi, Hua-Chung 3,502,541 6.34% 

Employee stock ownership trust of Associated 

Industries China, Inc. in custody of First Commercial 

Bank 

1,835,816 3.33% 

Trust account of restricted stock with voting rights and 

right to receive dividends for employees of Associated 

Industries China, Inc. in custody of First Commercial 

Bank 

1,804,000 3.27% 

Hsiao, Hsin-Chuan 1,774,132 3.21% 

Yu, Yun 1,465,356 2.65% 

Yang, Kun-Hsi 1,290,000 2.34% 

Wen, Shun-Mei 1,265,512 2.29% 

Chao, Hsin-Yuan 1,022,757 1.85% 

Li, Han-Jung 945,000 1.71% 
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(V) Market price per share, earnings, dividends, and relevant information in the most recent two 

years 
Unit: Share/NT$ 

Year 

    Items 
2022 2023 

Current year up to 

2024.3.31 (Note 8) 

Market price 

per share 

(Note 1) 

Highest 15.20  12.85  14.10  

Lowest 8.48  9.04  10.70  

Average 9.92  10.25  12.32  

Book value 

per share 

(Note 2) 

Before distribution 8.10  7.66  8.76  

After distribution 8.10  Note 9  N/A  

Earnings  

per share 

Weighted average number of 

shares 
50,489,112  50,654,569  50,654,569  

Earnings per share (Note 3) (0.27)  (0.59)  (0.34)  

Earnings  

Dividend per 

share 

Cash dividend None  None  N/A  

Stock 

grants 

from 

earnings 

Dividend from 

earnings 
None    None    N/A  

Stock 

dividend 

Dividend from 

capital surplus 
None    None    N/A  

Cumulative unpaid dividends 

(Note 4) 
None  None  N/A  

Analysis of  

return on 

investment 

Price to earnings ratio (Note 5) -  -  N/A  

Price to dividend ratio (Note 

6) 
None  None  

N/A  

Cash dividend yield (Note 7) None  None  N/A  

*In the case of capitalization of earnings or capital surplus for dividends, the information on the market price 

and cash dividends retrospectively adjusted depending on the number of issued shares shall be disclosed. 

Note 1: The highest and lowest market prices of ordinary shares in each year shall be listed, and the average 

market price for each year calculated as per the transaction value and volume for each year. 

Note 2: The number of issued shares at the end of each year shall prevail, and fill out the table as per the 

resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors or the shareholders' meeting in the following year. 

Note 3: If retrospective adjustment is required due to stock dividends paid out, the earnings per share before 

and after the adjustment shall be listed. 

Note 4: If the undistributed dividends for a year may be accumulated and not be distributed until a year with 

earnings available as stipulated in the equity securities regulations, the cumulative unpaid dividends 

up to the current year shall be disclosed separately. 

Note 5: Price to earnings ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/earnings per share. (Symbol "-" 

means negative for a value.) 

Note 6: Price to dividend ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/cash dividend per share. 

Note 7: Cash dividend yield = Case dividend per share/average closing price per share for the year. 

Note 8: The book value per share and earnings per share audited (reviewed) by the CPAs up to the most recent 

quarter prior to the publication date of this annual report shall be entered; the information for other 

fields up to the year, in which this annual report is published, shall be entered. 

Note 9: It will be finalized by the resolution of the shareholders' meeting. 

(VI) Dividend policy and implementation 

1. The dividend policy stipulated in the Articles of Incorporation. 

Earnings concluded in a year are first subject to taxation and offsetting of 
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accumulated deficit, followed by a 10% provision for legal reserve. However, no further 

provision of legal reserve is required if the Company has accumulated legal reserve to 

an amount equal to paid-up capital. In addition, the legal reserve shall be allocated or 

reversed in accordance with laws and regulations or regulations provided by the 

competent authority. For any remaining amount, along with the accumulated 

undistributed earnings, the Board of Directors shall make the dividend distribution 

proposal and submit to the Shareholders’ Meeting for approval by resolution. 

The Company shall adopt the residual dividend policy, whereby the distribution of 

dividend for the year shall take into consideration the operational development scale and 

cash flow needs in the future, whilst maintaining an appropriate amount of accumulated 

distributable earning that is not lower than 50% of the distributed dividend. Furthermore, 

at least 10% of the dividend distributed shall be in the form of cash dividend. 

2. The distribution of dividends proposed at the shareholders' meeting. When major 

changes in the dividend policy are expected, an explanation shall be provided: 

No dividend was paid out for 2023. 

(VII) The influence of the stock dividend proposed at the shareholders' meeting on the 

Company's operating performance and earnings per share: N/A. 

(VIII) Employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration: 
1. The percentage of the profit for or scope of employee remuneration and directors’ 

remuneration as stated in the Company's Articles of Incorporation: 
Depending on the profitability of the year, the Company shall appropriate not lower 

than 10% of the profit as employee compensation and not more than 2% as Director 
remuneration. However, profits must first be used to offset accumulated deficit. 

The distribution of the aforementioned employee compensation, whether in the 
form of stocks or cash, shall be determined by the Board of Directors by resolution. The 
recipients of the employee compensation include eligible employees of the entities 
controlled by the Company or subordinate companies which have fulfilled certain criteria, 
as formulated by the Board of Directors.  

The distribution of employee compensation and director remuneration shall be 
authorized by the Board meetings that are attended by two-thirds of directors, and 
approved by resolution by a majority of director present. 

2. Basis for estimation of employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration in this period, 
basis for the calculation of the number of shares for stock dividends to employees, and 
accounting treatment if the amount paid out is different from the estimated amount: 
 The employee remuneration and directors’ remuneration in this period is estimated 

based on the Company's pre-tax net income for this period before employee 
remuneration and directors’ remuneration are deducted, multiplied by the percentage 
of the profit for or scope of employee remuneration and directors’ as stipulated in the 
Company's Articles of Incorporation. 

 Where employee remuneration is distributed in stock, it is calculated with the closing 
price of ordinary shares on the day before the resolution by of the Board of Directors 
to distribute employee remuneration. 

 Where there is a difference between the actual amount paid out and the estimated 
amount, it will be treated as a change in accounting estimates, and the difference will 
be recognized in profit or loss in the following year. 

3. The distribution remuneration approved by the Board of Directors: 
3.1 The amount of employee remuneration and directors' remuneration distributed in cash 

or stock. Where there is a difference with the estimated amount for the year in which 
the expenses are recognized, the amount of difference, reason, and accounting 
treatment shall be disclosed: It is not estimated as the Company’s had a net loss before 
tax in 2023. 

3.2 The amount of employee remuneration in stock as a percentage of the sum of net 
income after tax as in the standalone or individual financial statement for this period 
and the total employee dividends for this period: It is not estimated as the 
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Company’s had a net loss before tax in 2023. 
4. The report on the distribution of remuneration to the shareholders' meeting and the 

result: There was no distribution as the Company’s had a net loss before tax in 2023. 
5. Where there is a difference between the employee remuneration and directors’ and 

supervisors’ remuneration for the prior year (including the number of shares distributed, 
amount, and stock price), the amount of the difference, reason, and accounting 
treatment shall also be specified: The Company's had a net loss before tax in 2022. So 
there was no estimation. 



 

- 79 - 

(IX) The repurchase of the Company's shares (repurchase completed): 
Session of repurchase  First Second 

Purpose of repurchase To transfer shares to employees To transfer shares to employees 

Repurchase period 2019.05.09–2019.07.08 2019.08.08–2019.10.07 

Range of repurchase price NT$6.26 –NT$13.63 per share NT$5.85–NT$13.39 per share 

Type and quantity of shares repurchased 

(share) 
1,500,000 ordinary shares 1,260,000 ordinary shares 

Amount of shares repurchased NT$13,633,854 NT$11,196,842 

The number of the shares repurchased as a 

percentage of the number scheduled to be 

repurchased (%) 

100% 84% 

Number of shares cancelled and 

transferred (share) 
1,500,000 shares 1,260,000 shares 

Cumulative number of the Company’s 

shares held (shares) 
0 shares 0 shares 

Cumulative number of the Company’s 

shares held as a percentage of the 

Company’s total issued shares (%) 

0.00% 0.00% 

The date of transfer 2024/04 2024/04 

The price of transfer NTD 9.09 per share. NTD 8.89 per share 

(Note) The cumulative number of the Company’s shares held as a percentage of the Company’s total 

issued shares is calculated based on the total issued shares of 55,218,569 shares. 

II. Issuance of corporate bonds: None. 

III. Issuance of preference shares: None. 

IV. Issuance of depository receipts: None. 

V. Issuance of employee stock warrants: None.
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VI. Issuance of restricted stock awards: 
(I) Regarding the restricted stock awards that have been fully vested, the vesting situation and the 

impact on shareholders' rights and interest as of the publication date of this annual report shall be 
disclosed 

May 31, 2024; Unit: Share 

Type of restricted stock 

award 
2020 restricted stock award 2022 restricted stock award 

Filing effective date and 

total number of shares 
2020.10.13 / 1,200,000 shares 2022.10.13 / 1,350,000 shares 

Date of issue 2021.01.11 112.04.20 

Number of restricted 

stock award issued 

(share) 

1,200,000 shares 1,300,000 shares 

Quantity of new 

restricted shares that can 

be issued for subscription 

by employees 

0 shares 50,000 shares 

Issue price NT$0 (free issue) NT$0 (free issue) 

Restricted stock award 

issued as a percentage of 

total issued shares 

2.17% 2.35% 

Vesting conditions for 

restricted stock awards 

Vesting conditions: 

1. The Company shall adopt the operating 

revenue and after-tax net income as in the 

financial statement for the most recent 

year after the vesting date as performance 

indicators: 

(1) One-year lapse: The operating 

revenue grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

(2) Two-year lapse: The operating 

revenue grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

(3) Three-year lapse: The after-tax net 

profit grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

(4) Four-year lapse: The after-tax net 

profit grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

2. When the Company's performance targets 

in the preceding paragraph are achieved, 

the employees should still be employed 

when such targets are achieved after being 

granted the restricted stock awards, while 

reaching their personal annual 

performance targets. The Company's 

performance evaluation grades are 

divided into five levels: superior, 

excellent, A, B, and C as per the 

performance evaluation and scoring 

standards. General employees who have 

been granted the restricted stock awards 

should be rated A or higher in each year's 

performance evaluation. Strategic key 

employees should be rated excellent or 

higher. The maximum percentage of 

shares that can be vested in each year is as 

follows: 

Vesting conditions: 

1. The Company shall adopt the operating 

revenue and after-tax net profit of the 

audited financial statement for the most 

recent year after the vesting date as 

performance indicators: 

(1) One-year lapse: The operating 

revenue grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

(2) Two-year lapse: The operating 

revenue grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

(3) Three-year lapse: The after-tax net 

profit grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

(4) Four-year lapse: The after-tax net 

profit grows by more than 10% 

(inclusive) as compared to the preceding 

year. 

(2) In the context of meeting the preceding 

performance indicators and in the event 

that the employee remains employed after 

the restricted stock award received are 

vested, one year prior to the following 

periods, the employee is deemed to have 

met the vesting conditions if the 

individual performance appraisal and 

work results meet the individual 

performance standard established by the 

Company; employees who do not meet 

the individual performance standard are 

deemed not have met the vesting 

conditions. The Company's performance 

evaluation grades are divided into five 

levels: superior, excellent, A, B, and C as 

per the performance evaluation and 

scoring standards. General employees 

who have been granted the restricted stock 



 

- 81 - 

Type of restricted stock 

award 
2020 restricted stock award 2022 restricted stock award 

One-year lapse: 20%; two-year lapse: 

20% 

Three-year lapse: 30%; four-year lapse: 

30% 

awards should be rated A or higher in each 

year's performance evaluation. Strategic 

key employees should be rated excellent 

or higher. 

The maximum percentage of shares that 

can be vested in each year is as follows: 

One-year lapse: 20%; two-year lapse: 

20%; three-year lapse: 30%; four-year 

lapse: 30%. 

Restricted rights of 

restricted stock awards 

1. Following distribution of new shares and until vesting conditions are met, except for 

inheritance, the restricted employee shares shall not be sold, pledged, transferred, gifted to 

others, configured as a guarantee or disposed via other means. Following the employee 

meeting vesting conditions, as per the custodial trust agreement, the shares shall be 

entrusted from the trust account to the individual employee depository account. 

2. Apart from the aforementioned restricted rights, in accordance with these Procedures, 

following distribution of new shares and until vesting conditions are met, other rights and 

obligations (including participation of bonus shares and dividend, voting and election rights 

at Shareholders’ Meeting, etc.) are identical with common stocks issued by the Company. 

3. The attendance, proposal making, speech, voting and election rights, and other shareholder 

rights shall be executed by trust custodian as per the custodial trust agreement. 

4. Following distribution of new shares and until vesting conditions are met, the employee 

may participate in distribution of bonus shares and dividend. However, the bonus shares 

and dividend shall be delivered to the trust custodian. Until vesting conditions are met, the 

cash dividend, bonus shares and cash surplus (shares), etc. distributed, the Company may 

redeem the cash distributed and cancel the shares without compensation in accordance with 

the relevant regulations. Following the employee meeting vesting conditions, as per the 

custodial trust agreement, the bonus shares or dividend shall be entrusted from the trust 

account to the individual employee depository account (cash dividend shall be disbursed to 

the individual bank account of the employee). 

Restricted stock awards 

in custody 
Restricted stock awards are kept in trust 

Method of handling the 

restricted stock awards 

not vested after 

employees are granted or 

subscribed for such 

awards 

For employees who are not deemed to have met the vesting conditions, the Company is 

entitled to redeem and cancel restricted stock award without compensation. 

The number of restricted 

stock awards withdrawn 

or repurchased during 

2020 

 

 

The number of restricted 

stock awards withdrawn 

or repurchased during 

2021 

 

 

The number of restricted 

stock awards withdrawn 

or repurchased during 

2022 

50,000 shares (withdrawn) 

 

The number of restricted 

stock awards withdrawn 

or repurchased during 

2023 

224,000 shares (withdrawn) 

 

Number of restricted 

stock awards that have 

been vested 

422,000 shares 0 shares 

Number of restricted 

stock awards that have 

not yet been vested 

504,000 shares 1,300,000 shares 

Restricted stock award 3.27% 
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Type of restricted stock 

award 
2020 restricted stock award 2022 restricted stock award 

that have not yet been 

vested as a percentage of 

total issued shares (%) 

Impact on shareholders' 

equity 

When calculated on the basis of the vesting conditions and the number of the issued 

shares, the dilution of the earnings per share is roughly NT$0.138; thus, there is no 

significant impact on shareholders' equity. 
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(II) The names of managers and the top ten employees who have acquired the restricted stock 

awards up to the publication date of this annual report and the situation of their acquisition: 
      May 31, 2024; Unit: Share 

 Job title Name 

Number of 

restricted 

stock 

awards 

acquired 

Number of 

restricted 

stock awards 

acquired as a 

percentage 

of total 

issued shares 

(Note) 

Vested Unvested 

Number 

of 

restricted 

stock 

awards 

vested 

 

Issue 

price 

Amo

unt 

issue

d 

Number of 

restricted 

stock 

awards 

vested as a 

percentage 

of total 

issued 

shares 

(Note) 

Numbe

r of 

restricte

d stock 

awards 

unveste

d 

Issue 

price 

Amoun

t 

issued 

Number 

of 

restricte

d stock 

awards 

unvested 

as a 

percenta

ge of 

total 

issued 

shares 

(Note) 

M

an

ag

er 

The Chairman who 

is concurrently 

serving as the 

Chief Operating 

Officer of the New 

Venture Center 

Hua-
Chung 

Pi 

650,000 1.18% 220,000 0 0 0.40% 430,000 0 0 0.78% 

President Hsin-
Yuan 

Chao 

Assistant Vice 

President 

Lin, 

Han-Lin 

Assistant Vice 

President 

Chu, 

Pao-

Jung 

Assistant Vice 

President 

Shih, 

Ju-Ling 

Assistant Vice 

President 

Chen 

Chia-

Hsin 

Vice President 

Corporate 
Governance 

Officer 

Finance/Accounti

ng Officer 

Wan-

Wei Lu 

E

m

pl

oy

ee 

Top 10 employees  

*Note 3 
470,000 0.85% 0 0 0 0 470,000 0 0 0.85% 

Note: It was calculated based on the share capita registered with the Ministry of Economic Affairs on May 1, 2023 

Note 1: Including managers and employees (those who have resigned or been deceased shall be indicated); their individual names and 
titles shall be disclosed, but the restricted stock awards they are granted or subscribed for may be disclosed in an aggregate manner. 

Note 2: The number of fields is adjusted depending on the number of issuances. 

Note 3: Based on the salary confidentiality principle, the Company will not disclose individual names and job titles publicly. 

 

VII. Issuance of new shares due to M&A or transfer of shares of another company: None. 

VIII. Fund application plan execution: None.  
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Five. Overview of Operations 
I. Information on business 

(I) Scope of business 

1. Details of main business 

The Company's main business is the R&D and sales of liquid crystal displays (LCD), 

sales of medical devices, lease of real property, and the R&D, manufacturing, and 

medical equipment and health care products. 

2. Proportion of each business to revenue 

LCD and related components account for 98.36%, medical devices 0.24%, real 

property leases 1.02%, and other: 0.38%. 

3. The Company's existing products and services 

Design, R&D, and sales of LCD and the components thereof in our self-owned 

brand, AG Neovo, as well as after-sales service. AG Neovo is a global leading brand in 

the professional and consumer markets for video displays, satisfying the niche demand 

for security surveillance, commercial digital signage, touch screens, professional visual 

images, educational research, transportation, and medical displays. 

We also provide total solution product lines and consulting services on a project 

basis for AG Neovo Solutions. AG Neovo provides value-added display solutions on 

the basis of displays as well as consultation services for customers in a form of projects. 

We incorporate systems and software as required by clients into displays to provide 

value-added displays that integrate software and hardware in alignment with specific 

purposes of business,security, or digital signage, and provide system products in 

connection with other systems and consultation services. 

We have begun to develop our own software, MeetCloud, and upgraded our 

existing digital signage cloud solution, and adopted artificial intelligence (AI) software 

and hardware since 2021 for the functions of Web 3.0. 

4. Products (services) planned to be developed 

4.1 LCD products (services) 

(1)Multi-touch LCDs 

(2)High-definition security/dental displays 

(3)4K ultra HD displays 

(4)Ultra narrow bezel LED-backlit, energy-efficient video walls 

(5)4K mini LED-backlit displays 

(6)Ultra-thin double-sided displays 

(7)Medical displays 

(8)PIDS/TIDS/FIDS passenger information display 

(9)PSD platform door display 

(10)AFC automatic ticket display 

(11)Car monitors 

(12)Marine monitors 

(13)Digital signage players 

4.2  Solutions                                                              

(1) Value-added AIO display, into which operating systems are integrated, such as 

Android or relevant software and over IP signal extender for connection with 

professional video systems. 

(2) Testing control software that enables remote testing and control of AG Neovo 

displays.    

(3) Content management platform for remote design, release, and management of 

contents on the digital signage displays and digital signages displays/players 

through the cloud or local area network. 

(4) Professional video conferencing devices that can be used with interactive 

monitors for video conference or teaching. 
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(5) A cloud whiteboard platform, MeetCloud, can be used with interactive monitors 

for cloud-based interactive meetings or teaching on different devices or platforms. 

(6) AI digital signage solutions that can be used with interactive monitors and AIO 

digital signages. 

 

(II) Overview of the industry 

1. Current status and development of the industry: 

In 2023, the global consumer electronics products experienced a tough season with 

a declined shipment of display panels. Due to the global economic environment and 

adjustment of the supply chain, the price of the display panels fluctuated and products 

were upgraded rapidly. According to the research conducted by TrendForce, the global 

monitor shipments in 2023 dropped by 7.3% year-on-year to only 125 million units, 

lower than the pre-pandemic level in 2019. Statistics show that monitor shipments 

peaked in 2021 and then declined year by year. 

 

According to Sigmaintell, a research institution, based on the current inform

ation, the growth of panel demand in 2024 is pessimistic, but the price fluctuat

ion will be moderate, The prospect of consumer demand is not good and the r

ecovery of commercial demand is unclear. The overall confidence of the supply

 chain is insufficient and the growth of the panel shipments is limited. As esti

mated, the Global shipments of the LCD display (Monitor) panels will be 149 

million units in 2024, a slight increase of 0.8% from 2023. From 2025 to 202

6, with the arrival of the next round of machine replacement cycle, the market 

is expected to grow synchronously. 

 

 
Global monitor shipments from 2019 to 2024 (unit: million units) 

Monitor shipment 

Annual growth rate 

As for the digital signage market, the shipment volume in 2023 declined c

ompared to that in 2022. However, video walls and strip display boards have s

hown a steady increase trend, with each estimated to be 1.62 million units and 

740 thousand units. Among them, long billboards will be 5 times the 150 thou

sand units in 2020. 

 

Meanwhile, the digital signage market is expected to reach US$26.1 billion in 2028 

with a compound annual growth rate of 6.9%. The use of digital signage has gradually 
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become the norm, even though the retail industry is still the main business. However, 

there are some display manufacturers working with different industries to expand the 

application scope of digital signages. 

 

In 2024, AG Neovo will continue to communicate the professional brand image of 

high stability and safety of products to stabilize the existing in the commercial display 

market channels. We will actively develop more high-margin products such as 

professional application fields, including more complete medical and monitoring 

displays. 

 

In addition to actively evaluating the adoption of new display technologies (e.g. the 

development of hardware such as LED displays and long billboards) and cooperating 

with different providers of cloud content management software. We also hope to provide 

more convenient and better user experiences and expand the digital electronic signage 

market share by upgrading the cloud content management software 

 

2. The relations between the up-, mid-, and downstream industries: 

After Taiwan successfully mass-produced large-sized TFT LCD panels, it has 

indirectly facilitated the R&D and production of various relevant materials, and the 

supply of relevant key components to the LCD industry is ensured. With the continuous 

expansion of the application of products, such as laptops and LCD monitors, 

professional OEMs are constantly innovating their display technologies. With various 

touch panel technologies applied to applications of all sizes in a more well-developed 

manner, this industry is focused on the development of products to make it easier for 

product system designers to effectively integrate sales distributors’ needs, while 

diversifying the applications. The relations between the up-, mid-, and downstream 

industries are shown below: 

 
    Upstream - Parts Suppliers Midstream- 

Manufacturing/Sale 
Downstream-  
Channel Customers 

Metal and 
plastic 

components 

Plastic casing, iron parts, molds, and 
connectors 

    

Packaging 

components 

Styrofoam, cottons with pack PE 

foam, and plastic bags 

   

LCD panels LCD panel modules and touch 

modules 

 OEM System 

integrators 

Electronic 

components 

Power supplies, switches, wires, 

printed circuit boards, application 

ICs, central processing units and 

random access memory, transistors, 
optical sensing ICs, resistors, 

capacitors, and inductors 

 Integrates 

distributors’ 

needs 

Distributors 

Sellers Agents 

  

Glass Coating and glass   

Software Drivers, basic Input/output system, 

and apps 

  

 

3. Development trends and competition of products: 

(1) LED-backlit technology, curved display panels, and ultra HD (UHD) 4K displays 

have become mainstream in the market of main size panels. In response to this trend, 

AIC has incorporated the above technologies into our existing models over the past 

two years and has given priority to such technologies when developing new models. 

(2) Surveillance market: HD CCTV have been the most hotly discussed over the past 

two years. The application of HD-SDI technology ensures high-quality during long-

distance transmission. Meanwhile, the current common coaxial cables can be 

adopted as the transmission medium, which has given many owners who have 
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installed wires an advantage. It is estimated that this trend will bring a new vitality 

to into the market in addition to the IP monitoring trend. 

(3) Touch market: Types of touch technologies vary by size and application scenario. 

In the field of large-sized products, AIC has launched multi-touch models using 

optical touch technology. As for the small- and medium-sized products, a focus is 

placed on the release of TX-series products with open frame projected capacitive 

touch. 

(4) Digital signage market: This is a highly competitive market with a big gap in prices. 

In addition to product specifications and prices, the intense competition is related to 

other business and non-business factors. The market trend is moving toward models 

with ultra narrow bezel, different brightness levels, and system integration. We 

strive to expand our product lines to make our models more complete, including 46-

inch to 98-inch ones with the standard brightness level and those with ultra-narrow 

bezel and high brightness, and have launched the ultra-thin double-sided display, 

which is the thinnest on the market. We also focus on developing a layout of total 

solutions that integrate the digital signage player and customized software 

applications. 

(5) Professional dental/medical display market: Following the launch of the industry's 

first dental display, AG Neovo has developed a series of professional medical 

displays since 2022, thereby enhancing the deployment in this professional market. 

(6) Corporate/Home display market: The pandemic has reshaped the way people live 

and work around the world and greatly accelerated the development of remote work, 

remote learning, and online entertainment. In response to the needs in the new digital 

era, AG Neovo has developed a series of professional monitors for business and 

creators to meet the needs of clients and the market. 

At the same time, as the penetration of OLED in the mobile phone market gradually 

expands, IT will be the next battlefield with respect to the development of OLED. 

In response to this trend, AG Neovo will continue to develop OLED displays. 

(7) Transportation display market: AG Neovo provides monitors of various sizes to 

meet the limited installation space in cabins and control rooms. In addition, we also 

provide monitors to show train/flight information, entertainment, or advertising clips. 

(8) Solution market:  

  Stepping into solution has been a trend for hardware providers in recent years. 

Different from major brand owners that provide diverse and differentiated solution 

services, AG Neovo mainly provides value-added display solutions with displays at 

the center and provide clients with consultation services in the form of projects. We 

integrate the traditional display into flexible operating systems and third-party 

software services, and use software and hardware integration solutions to meet the 

needs of users in different application fields of enterprises and electronic signages. 

Moreover, we continue to provide consultation services regarding connection with 

other systems as well as customized services to certain extent. If clients have a need 

for a total solution, AG Neovo can provide professional services, including overall 
system planning and product selection advice in addition to displays. 

  Regarding the solution market, AG Neovo has launched a cloud-based digital 

signage management system as well as its exclusive control hardware, plus an 

Android system and a value-added display and media player, to realize cloud 

management and application of the IoT. This has enhanced the weaknesses of the 

lack of human-computer interaction and intelligent automation in the solutions, 

while meeting the needs of different advanced applications in the fields of business, 

retail, transportation, security, and digital signage. In addition to IoT functions, we 

have begun to integrate AI into the existing cloud-based digital signage management 

platform, Neovo Signage Cloud CMS, since 2022 to realize the Web 3.0 digital 
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signage solution that integrates AI technology. To adopt AI edge computing 

technology, AG Neovo is in the stage of R&D of the next generation of value-added 

displays with powerful AI computing capabilities to expand the scope of application 

scenarios. 

  After several years of continuous research on user behavior and software and 

hardware requirements for video conference applications, we have also added 

education software and functions for the new generation of AIO-Meetboard, a video 

conference application, to be launched, which can replace the traditional meeting 

room, classroom projector, and whiteboard functions, while simplifying the meeting 

room and classroom equipment and greatly enhancing the efficiency of meetings 

and classes. Meanwhile, the human-computer interaction has also been greatly 

improved. Since 2021, we have begun to develop MeetCloud, an online whiteboard 

platform, to meet the needs for cloud-based meeting/teaching. In the future, users 

can engage in remote meetings or teaching through AIO-Meetboard or AG Neovo's 

MeetCloud with any device that can open a web browser to participate in cloud-

based meetings or teaching with any device without being constrained by time and 

space. 

  Regarding the connection with other systems, the test and control software, PID 

Command Tool, which can remotely test and control AG Neovo displays, has been 

able to support Windows, iOS, and Android operating systems. This has enhanced 

its competitive advantage in the solution market. We are also actively developing an 

upgraded version of the software to add more functions, including control over video 

walls and content scheduling. 

(III) Technology and R&D 

1. The R&D expenses spent in the most recent year and the current year as of the 

publication date of this annual report: 

(1) The R&D expenses spent on displays in 2023 were NT$14.05 million. 

(2) The R&D expenses spent on displays up to the first quarter of 2024 were NT$4.49 

million. 

The Company's R&D work is mainly focused on strategic collaboration with 

suppliers. That is, we are switching from the OEM to the ODM model. The 

Company is responsible for collecting information from the distribution market in 

the front line and confirming end users’ needs and works with external professional 

design companies to turn concepts into product and them collaborates with suppliers 

to design products and manufacture samples. Such professional division of labor not 

only ensures the effectiveness of product quality and functions and efficient product 

launch but greatly reduces the R&D cost. Through this collaboration model with 

external strategic partners, we do not need to invest a great deal of resources in R&D 

equipment and personnel, such as tooling and verification, during the R&D process 

and can reallocate resources to the need confirmation in the initial stage, to reduce 

investment and chance of ineffective development. 

2. Technologies or products successfully developed in the most recent year and the current 
year as of the publication date of this annual report: 

(1) The security monitor equipped with anti-burn-in software (obtained an invention 

patent in China on November 16, 2011) 

(2) The display with protective optical glass adopted for professional applications, for 

which we have applied for the NeoVTM trademark 

(3) 22"–27" LED-Backlit energy-efficient display / anti-blue light display 

(4) 15"–42" Projected capacitive/Optical touch display 

(5) 28"–98" 4K2K high-definition display 

(6) 32"–65" multimedia LED-backlit energy-efficient digital signage 

(7) 46"–55" high-brightness/standard-brightness ultra-narrow bezel LED-backlit 
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energy-efficient digital signage 

(8) 55" ultra-thin double-sided displays 

(9) 55" single-sided/double-sided freestanding digital display 

(10) 24"–55" 4K2K new-generation security monitor with optical glass and anti-burn-

in software program adopted 

(11) 24" ~ 34” professional displays for commercial work/creators 

(12)  Digital signage players 

(13) 43"–86" value-added 4K2K high-definition AIO display for digital signage with 

an Android operating system and relevant software adopted 

(14) 65"–86" value-added 4K2K high-definition AIO display for video conferencing 

with an Android operating system and relevant software adopted 

(15) A cloud-based digital signage content and display management platform that 

supports the above value-added 4K2K high-definition AIO display with an 

Android operating system and relevant software adopted. 

(16) The test and control software, PID Command Tool, which can remotely test and 

control AG Neovo displays, has been able to support Windows, iOS, and Android 

operating systems. This has enhanced its competitive advantage in the solution 

market. 

(17) 1080P and 4K2K Over IP signal extender that supports video wall and POE 

functions 

 

(IV) Long-term and short-term business development plans: 

The business model of Weilian Technology has shifted from the consumer market to 

the development of professional niche fields. With the unique NeoV™ optical filter 

technology, anti-burn-in software technology, product designs, and strategic collaboration 

with professional suppliers or distributors, we aim to connect the last and the first miles, 

the two ends of the value chain together, and establish an excellent reputation in the 

professional markets of multiple countries in Europe and the U.S. 

We have long established a cooperation partnership with professional OEMs. In 

addition to ensuring stable supply quality, we have retained the core values of our R&D 

and design capabilities and, thus, can facilitate our development in niche areas. 

AG Neovo's overseas operations focus on cultivating and deepening professional 

channels in various target markets and optimizing the post-sales service system operations 

to improve the customer satisfaction. We have gradually strengthened the channel benefits 

through professional channels such as professional system integrators and value-added 

resellers, and the strategic partners in the value chain are more efficiently connected to 

meet the needs of end users in the decision-making process. Digital marketing focuses on 

delivering products and services to target customer groups more accurately and effectively 

to highlight the brand value of AG Neovo. 

In addition to being a strategic command center, AG Neovo's headquarters is an 

operational logistics support center. The goal is to provide brand-related marketing 

management, product development and digital marketing management, operations 
management, and technique support services. It provides relevant resources in response to 

business needs in various regional markets. 

Short-term business development priorities 

1. Market strategy: 

In light of the political, economic, and competitive conditions in various regions, 

we will combine products flexibly in order to increase sales momentum in the 

region while strengthening channel efficiency and brand value on an ongoing basis. 

2. Market segmentation: 

We will focus on security surveillance, industrial applications, transportation, video 
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or audio equipment, commercial digital signage, and medical care/medical health 

care in various regions and countries. 

3. Distribution: 

We operate, deepen and expand the existing channels, and continue to develop and 

deploy online channels. 

Long-term business development priorities 

1. Develop product and service strategies based on the target market and customer needs. 

2. Construct AG Neovo's overall solution centered on the user/environment. 

3. Strengthen and expand AG Neovo's brand value. 

(V) Conclusions 

AG Neovo aims at the global market while being based in Taiwan and has built the 

supply and value chains step by step for years. 

Since 2000, the Company has been focusing on the business model of developing our 

self-owned brands, and we have upheld the philosophy of our brand values along the way. 

Looking ahead, AG Neovo aims to play the role of a brand owner in the traditional supply 

chain trading model and create the maximum premium in the supply chain. We will strive 

toward specialized products and services in the future and aim to create a new business 

model, featuring co-creation, profit sharing, and shared information platforms. 

In the future, AG Neovo, with the strong support of all our shareholders, will become 

a respected international brand, while all shareholders will surely receive appropriate 

dividends. 
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II. Overview of the market and production and sales 

(I) Market analysis 

Regions where the Company's main products (services) are sold (provided): 

Region/Year 2022 2023 

The Americas 14% 16% 

Europe (including the Middle 

East and Africa) 
81% 81% 

Asia and others 5% 3% 

The Company still focuses on the European and American markets. In the European 

market, AG Neovo enjoys a certain degree of brand awareness. AG Neovo is even among 

the top three local display brands in the professional security surveillance market in 

Germany and the Benelux region. 

Market share: 

The business strategy prioritizes quality optimization and profit assurance in niche 

markets such as surveillance, industry, transportation, medical care, and electronic 

signage. About 60,000 to 80,000 high-end screens are shipped yearly, accounting for less 

than 1% of the global market of professional displays. 

Supply and demand and growth potential of the market in the future: 

The professional market on which AG Neovo is currently focusing is more stable 

than the consumer market, which is impacted by changes in the global economy. 

Although the economy will impact the monitoring, medical, electronic signage, and 

commercial display markets, they will continue to grow. After years of establishing a 

layout and adjusting our supply chain, we have laid a solid foundation for supply and 

panel acquisition. In addition, monitors of non-main sizes have gradually become a niche 

market. We have worked with suppliers to maintain the stable supply and have become 

one of the few suppliers in the market that can provide such products. 

Competitive niche: 

In terms of display brands, AG Neovo focuses on channel management and system 

integration, and most of them are bid projects in nature rather than focusing on low prices. 

We have striven toward high-value products and development in vertical markets, to 

create better operating performance with less resources and costs and project 

management capabilities. We will continue to enhance this business strategy in the future. 

The favorable and unfavorable factors for future development are as follows: 

Favorable factors 

1. In the three years, there is still potential for the professional markets to grow, and the 

demand for public displays will increase significantly. 

2. AG Neovo's distribution channels have been gradually stabilized, and its brand 

awareness has gradually increased. With differentiated product and service strategies 

and software and hardware integration solutions, it has established a firm foothold in 

specific markets step by step. 

3. The characteristics of AG Neovo products create additional added value, which is 

conducive to maintaining gross profits. 

Unfavorable factors 

1. Due to political and economic factors, manufacturers began developing their own brands 

to enter the terminal market. The competition increased, and low market prices became 

the norm. 

2. The mainstream product market is competitive, and it will become increasingly difficult 

for high-end products to maintain a high gross profit. As consumer marketing becomes 

increasingly difficult, many players have turned to high-margin niche markets because 
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competition based solely on hardware specifications has become too intense. 

3.Due to various political and economic uncertainties for Europe and the United States, 

the company's main markets, the demand for high-end products has not yet increased 

significantly. 

Countermeasures 

1. Focus on a business model of establishing strategic partnerships with value chain 

suppliers and distributors, continue to enhance the monitoring of changes in the demand 

in the end-user market and their feedback, and coordinate and effectively manage 

inventory and price fluctuations. 

2. Propose product portfolios and software services for different usage environments to 

meet users' needs in different regions and markets and then achieve the goal of market 

differentiation and segmentation. 

3. Accelerate in-depth operations in professional markets, such as digital signage and 

conference machines, through digital marketing activities. 

4. Continue to develop the display applications in the professional market and expand 

product lines of large-sized displays and outdoor professional displays with high 

brightness to meet customers' needs for displays of various sizes and the demand in 

various application scenarios. In the future, the Company will meet the demands of end 

users in different usage environments through quality improvement, software and 

hardware integration, in-depth services, and cooperation with channel partners to 

maintain profit growth. 
(II) Important functions and production processes of main products 

The LCD monitors are used for personal desktop computers as one of the main 

devices of computers. LCD monitors can also be combined with other equipment and 

systems for professional purposes, such as digital signage systems, educational research, 

video or audio equipment, security surveillance systems, industrial process control, semi-

outdoor surveillance signage, and other professional niche products. AIC will continue to 

work in more professional application fields, such as transportation and broadcasting. 

(III) Supply of main raw materials 

The main material of LCDs are panels, which are mainly supplied by INX, AUO, 

LG, BOE, and CSOT, and the most important control ICs of LCDs are from MediaTek, 

Morningstar, Inc., and Realtek Semiconductor Corp. at home or abroad; other electronic 

materials, plastics, and iron parts are all purchased under strict quality control. With the 

supply of high-quality panels and the first-class OEM products, our products surely enjoy 

the best reputation. 

(IV) The names of clients with purchases (sales) accounting for at least 10% of the total in any 

of the last two years, the amount and percentage of the purchases (sales), and reason for 

increase/decrease: 

1. Clients who have accounted for over 10% of net sales in the most recent 2 years 
Unit: NTD thousand 

Name of client 

2022 2023 
Current year as of March 31, 

2024 

A

m

o

u

n

t 

As a 

percentage 

of total net 

sales 

Relati

ons 

with 

the 

Comp

any 

A

m

o

u

n

t 

As a 

percentage of 

total net sales 

Relati

ons 

with 

the 

Comp

any 

A

m

o

u

n

t 

As a percentage of 

total net sales 

during the current 

year up to March 

31, 2024 

Relati

ons 

with 

the 

Comp

any 

Company A 72,979 12% None 57,971 11% None 16,220 13% None 

Others 521,443 88% None 452,616 89% None 104,827 87% None 

Net sales 594,422 100%  510,587 100%  121,047 100%  

Reason for increase/decrease: Clients adjusted their needs due to changes in product specifications. 
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2. Suppliers accounting for at least 10% of net purchases in any of the last 2 years 
Unit: NTD thousand 

2022 2023 The current year as of March 31, 2024 

Name of 

supplier 
Amount 

As a 

percenta

ge of 

total net 

purchas

es 

Relati

ons 

with 

the 

Comp

any 

Name of 

supplier 
Amount 

As a 

percenta

ge of 

total net 

purchas

es 

Relati

ons 

with 

the 

Comp

any 

Name of 

supplier 

Amou

nt 

As a 

percentage of 

total net 

purchases 

during the 

current year up 

to March 31, 

2024 

Relat

ions 

with 

the 

Com

pany 

Supplier 

#100321 
123,859 42% None 

Supplier 

#100321 
116,183 46% None 

Supplier 

#100321 
37,680 46% None 

Supplier 

#100491 
33,615 11% None 

Supplier 

#100597 
46,244 18% None 

Supplier 

#100487 
11,678 14% None 

Supplier 

#100549 
29,470 10% None - - - - 

Supplier 

#100456 
10,661 13% None 

- - - - - - - - 
Supplier 

#100491 
7,934 10% None 

Others 110,827 37% None Others 89,854 36% None Others 13,763 17% None 

Net 

purchase 
297,771 100%  

Net 

purchase 
252,281 100%  

Net 

purchase 
81,716 100%  

Reason for increase/decrease: It was for cooperation with the development of and adjustment to new products 

and due to the excellent partnerships with the suppliers. 

(V) Production volume and value in the most recent two years 

We have outsourced all processes of LCDs, so production capacity, volume, and value do 

not apply.
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(VI) Sales volume and value in the most recent 2 years 

  Volume: Unit/value: NTD thousand 

Year 2022 2023 

Volume/Value Domestic sales Exports Domestic sales Exports 

Main product Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value 

LCDs 402 6,585 52,410 573,788 506 8,726 46,025 486,310 

Medical devices 9 75 450 3,895 0 0 335 1,207 

Others 0 6,220 0 3,859 0 5,689 0 8,654 

Total 411 12,880 52,860 581,542 506 14,415 46,360 496,172 

III. Employees 

Year 2022 2023 

Current year up to the 

publication date of this 

annual report 

Employee 

Number of 

people 

Employee 67 72 73 

Total 67 72 73 

Average age 42.6 41.3 41.8 

Average years of service 9.34 8.77 8.66 

Education 

distribution 

(%) 

Ph.D. 0 0 0 

Master 44% 45% 38% 

Colleges 

and 

Universities 

53% 53% 60% 

Medium     

High 
3% 2% 2% 
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IV. Information on environmental protection expenditure 

1. The total amount of losses incurred and penalties received due to environmental pollution in 

the most recent year and as of the publication date of this annual report: None. 

2. To ensure that all our products meet environmental protection requirements, we have 

formulated the environmental protection policies below: 

(1) We design and develop new products under the philosophy of respect for the earth. 

Therefore, “energy-efficiency of products," "extending service lives of products," and 

"reducing the use of consumables" are the indicators for the design and development 

new AG Neovo products. 

(2) We actively require all supply chain partners of AG Neovo to comply with the 

requirements of international conventions and different countries’ regulations in the 

stages of design, development, procurement, production, sales, use, recycling, and reuse, 

including the Registration, Evaluation, Authorization, and Restriction of Chemicals 

(REACH), the Waste from Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Directive, and 

the Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS) Directive. 

(3) All our suppliers have obtained ISO14001 environmental management system 

certification to honor their commitment to environmental policies. 

(4) We regularly audit suppliers’ performance and procedures of their environmental 

protection management systems to ensure that their management and policies comply 

with applicable environmental protection regulations. 

 
V. Labor-management relations 

1. Benefit measures 

(1) In addition to purchasing health insurance and making contributions to pension accounts 

according to the law, employee benefits provided include cash gifts on major holidays, 

birthday cash gifts, meal allowances, wedding and funeral allowances, training subsidy, 

employee stock ownership trust incentives, health checkups, birthday party, year-

end/spring party, domestic/overseas travel, business management 

magazines/newspapers, as well as group insurance for each employee, including term 

life insurance, occupational accident insurance, accident insurance, injury insurance, 

travel insurance, and hospitalization insurance, in case that accidents occur to employees 

in any time. 

(2) The Company established an Employee Welfare Committee on January 19, 1982, and 

it contributes to the welfare funds in accordance with regulations to handle relevant 

employee benefits. 

(3) Salary adjustment and job promotion are handled as per the Company's business targets 

and individuals’ performance in the principle of fairness. 

2. Employee training: 

(1) The Company sets out an annual education and training plan for employees based on 

the departmental tasks and work objectives per year, lists the needs for internal and 

external training projects and budgets, and submits them to the human resources unit to 

compile and submit it to the General Manager for approval before implementation. The 

records and outcome related to training are retained. 

(2) Each departments offers training and prepares a budget based on the annual training 
plan and launches independent training project for subsidies for training for special 

business attributes or job promotion purposes. 

(3) The Company's education and training costs are as follows: 
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Item Number of 

courses 

Number 

of trainees 

Total 

hours 

Total 

costs 

Internal training 8 138 400.5 

121,482 Professional competency training 32 45 277.5 

Senior management training 9 9 33 

(4) Project-based expatriate projects: 

    In addition to internal job rotation, we send employees to be expatriates as the best way 

for them to learn and grow. We have short-, medium-, and long-term expatriate projects 

in place (ranging from one month to two years) to train managers and employees with 

great potential to be equipped with global vision and practical experience, thereby 

enhancing professional talents' learning ability and adaptability to different cultures, 

knowledge of business administration in multinational companies, and global business 

management capabilities. Through task assignment, employees can achieve their 

personal goals and organizational business targets, and the collaboration and interaction 

between the head office in Taiwan and overseas subsidiaries can be enhanced, thereby 

creating a win-win-win outcome for employees, the head office, and subsidiaries. 

3. Employee Code of Ethical Conduct: 

To enable the directors and managers (including the President or those holding 

equivalent positions, Vice Presidents or those holding equivalent positions, Assistant Vice 

Presidents or those holding equivalent positions, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief 

Accounting Officer, and others who are responsible for the management of the Company’s 

affairs and have the right to sign on behalf of the Company) to act in compliance with the 

ethical standards and the Company's stakeholders to be more aware of our ethical standards, 

and we have formulated the Employee Code of Ethical Conduct. The main contents are as 

follows: 

(1) Conflicts of interest prevention: The best interests of the Company shall prevail, and 

personal improper interest shall be eliminated. 

(2) Avoidance of opportunities for personal gains: Directors or managers are responsible 

for increasing the legitimate interest that the Company can gain. 

(3) Obligation to confidentiality: All information, unless authorized or required to be 

disclosed by law, shall be kept confidential. 

(4) Fair trade: Do not misuse information learned about through the job position to gain 

improper benefits. 

(5) Protection and proper use of the Company's assets: Ensure that the Company's assets 

can be used effectively and legally during operations. 

(6) Compliance with laws and regulations: Enhance the understanding of the Securities and 

Exchange Act, the Company Act, and other applicable laws and regulations, and 

comply with them accordingly. 

(7) Motivation of reporting of any illegal or violations of the Codes of Ethical Conduct: 

Report any violations of the Codes of Ethical Conduct immediately to the Audit 

Committee, managers, or the chief internal auditor. The Company shall be responsible 

for protecting whistleblowers. 

(8) Disciplinary measures: Directors or managers who violate the Code of Ethical Conduct 

shall be punished by the Company in accordance with the Company's work rules 

depending on the seriousness of the circumstances. 

4. Protection measures for the work environment and employees’ personal safety 

To consider the potential hazards and risks in the workplace, promote labor-management 

harmony, and reduce occupational losses, we have instructed each department to implement 

safety and health measures, take the initiative to check and maintain employees’ safety and 

health, offer safety and health education and training, and eliminate environmental hazards, 

while urging relevant departments to complete the public hazard prevention and control work 

and a loss control management mechanism. 
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(1) Environment and safety policy 

． Comply with applicable environment, safety, and health laws and regulations and 

other requirements. 

． Offer education and training on environment, safety, and health management to 

allow employees to be aware of their personal responsibilities, thereby enhancing 

their awareness in this regard and facilitating their participation in the 

implementation of such systems. 

． Pay attention to the control of pollution sources and improve safety and health 

facilities to prevent pollution and reduce risks. 

． Establish excellent communication channels to communicate our environment and 

safety policy and relevant requirements and objectives to our employees, suppliers, 

the public, and government agencies. 

(2) How to carry out tasks 

． Access control: We have a strict access control monitoring system 24/7 in place, to 

maintain the security of the Company's access control. 

．  Equipment maintenance and inspection: The Company reports to competent 

authorities on the inspection results of the public safety equipment and fire-fighting 

equipment in the buildings as per laws and regulations. We regularly maintain and 

inspect air-conditioners, fire-fighting equipment, and other equipment. 

．  Physiological/Psychological health: Smoking is prohibited in the Company's 

workplace as per government laws and policies, and we put up no-smoking slogans 

to remind employees not to smoke in the workplace to maintain the quality of the 

work environment. Meanwhile, we arrange for regular employee health checkups to 

maintain their physical and psychological health. 

．  Insurance: We purchase labor insurance (including occupational accident 

insurance), health insurance, and additional group insurance in accordance with the 

law to enhance the protection of employees' rights and interest. We also purchase 

public liability insurance for the Company's workplace to protect clients’ rights and 

interest. 

5. Retirement system and implementation 

The Company settled and paid all employees the annual pension under the old system 

on December 31, 2005. Since January 1, 2006, a contribution rate of no less than 6% of 

monthly wages has been appropriated to the employee's personal account in accordance with 

the defined contribution regulations under the new system. 

In addition, the Company has foreign employees. Currently, 2% of their salaries is 

appropriated to the labor pension reserve account under the old system. We have set up a 

labor pension reserve supervision committee to take the responsibility for deliberation, 

checking and supervision matters. 

 

Retirement conditions: 

Retirement is divided into voluntary retirement and compulsory retirement. The 

standards are as follows: 

(1) Conditions of voluntary retirement: 

Those who have worked for more than 15 years and attains the age of 55, those who 

have worked for more than 25 years, and those who have worked for more than 10 years 

ans attains the age of 60. 

(2) Standards for compulsory retirement: 

Those who attains the age of 65 and those who is unable to perform his/ her duties due 

to disability. 

Those who are at least 65 years old according to the mandatory retirement standard may 

report to the central competent authority for adjustment if they perform work that is 
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dangerous or physically demanding. provided, however, that the age shall not be reduced 

below 55. 

 

Retirement procedure: 

The employee who plans to retire voluntarily shall fill out the Employee Retirement 

Application Form. This shall be reviewed by the direct supervisor and the HR 

department, and then presented to the President and Chairman for approval. Before 

resignation, retired employees shall have their resignation countersigned in accordance 

with the resignation procedure and shall carry out all handover procedures. 

 

6. The labor-management agreements and various employee rights protection measures: 

(1)  We keep the communication channels with employees open at all times, and we do our 

best to respond to their opinions reasonably and legally. 

(2)  Our managers meet on a weekly basis to compile and respond to employees’ opinions. 

(3)  Regarding important decisions concerning employees' rights and interest to be made, 

we carry out a necessary survey in advance for employees to express their opinions 

individually as a reference for our decision-making process; we regularly review the 

outcome and improvement measures afterwards. 

(4)  The head of each unit communicate with employees at any time to address their 

difficulties and submit their opinions. 

7. Losses suffered due to labor disputes in the most recent years and up to the publication date 

of this annual report, the estimated potential amount at present and in the future, and 

countermeasures: 

We have harmonious labor-management relations and have never suffered any losses 

due to labor disputes, and we predict that there will be no such losses in the future. 

 

VI. Cyber security management 

(I) Cyber security risk management framework, policy, specific management plans, and 

resources put in cyber security management 

(1) Cyber security risk management framework: 

The Company's General Manager or the Chief Operating Officer is responsible for 

convening the management service center to implement the cyber security management 

measures, and the Audit Department formulates an annual audit plan each year, to check 

and evaluate the implementation of various control measures and provide improvement 

suggestions in a timely manner, thereby ensuring the continuous effective 

implementation of the cyber security policy. 

(2) Cyber security policy: 

The risk management policy formulated by the Company covers cyber security. Through 

identification, assessment, control, supervision, and communication of potential 

information security risks, we control our cyber security risks during operations within 

an acceptable and controllable scope. 

(3) Specific management plans: 

1. Regularly offer information security education and training to employees to enhance 
their awareness of email protection. 

2. Install anti-virus software on the user end to block the access right to install software 

by themselves. 

3. Install a firewall to control network traffic and applications and develop a security 

surveillance management mechanism for intranet protection and database access. 

4. Centralized management of servers, enhance the control of the data center, regularly 

carry out data backup, and conduct disaster recovery exercises every year. 

5. Conduct regular vulnerability scanning and penetration testing. 
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6. Upgrade email filtering equipment. 

7. Store data offsite. 

(4) Resources put in cyber security management: 

1. The Company has a total of two people in the information security team. 

2. Review information security loopholes on a weekly basis and review and improve 

them on a monthly basis. 

3. Successfully intercept endpoint threats through anti-virus endpoint protection and 

behavior analysis models. 

4. Successfully block spam and threatening emails through spam protection and threat 

protection modules. 

5. Offer cyber security education and training and hold seminars or briefings from time 

to time. 

6. Block external threats through firewalls. 

7. Store data offsite to improve data security. 

8. In 2023, there was a total of 13 participants in one information security-related 

education and training session, with a total duration of 6.5 hours. 

(II) Specify the losses incurred due to major cyber security incidents, potential impacts, and 

countermeasures in the most recent year and up to the publication date of this annual report. 

If the amount cannot be reasonably estimated, please specify the fact that it cannot be 

reasonably estimated: The Company did not suffer financial losses due to major cyber 

security incidents in the most recent year and up to the publication date of this annual report. 

VII. Important contracts: 

Nature of 

contracts 

Parties involved Start date Main contents Restrictive 

covenants 

Credit contract Chilin Branch, Chang 

Hwa Commercial Bank 
2023.06.30~2024.06.30 

The total credit line is 

NT$370 million 
None 

Lease agreement UTW Technology Co., 

Ltd. (lessee) 
2024.01.01~2026.12.31 

5F.-2, No. 3-1, 

Yuanqu St., Nangang 

Dist., Taipei City 
None 
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Six. Overview of Financial Information 
I. Condensed balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income as well as names and audit 

opinions of the CPAs in the most recent five years 

(I) Condensed balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income as per the International 

Financial Reporting Standards 
1. Condensed consolidated balance sheet 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

                Year 

Item 

2019 

(Note 1) 

2020 

(Note 1) 

2021 

(Note 1) 

2022 

(Note 1) 

2023 

(Note 1) 

Financial data for 

the current year up 

to March 31, 2024 

(Note 2) 

Current assets 422,325 360,049 441,796 426,643 400,578 409,926 

Property, plant and 

equipment 
120,609 118,568 117,440 131,950 123,023 122,356 

Right-of-use assets 23,480 15,931 14,237 15,328 6,206 25,373 

Intangible assets 3,040 1,619 850 29,338 25,185 23,489 

Other assets 203,031 195,226 189,759 167,694 165,531 239,247 

Total assets 772,485 691,393 764,082 770,953 720,523 820,391 

Current 

liabilities 

Before 

distribution 
310,129 260,527 334,589 332,239 308,373 326,293 

After 

distribution 
310,129 260,527 334,589 332,239 Note 3 N/A 

Non-current liabilities 16,035 11,291 8,908 7,533 3,551 22,208 

Total liabilities 

Before 

distribution 
326,164 271,818 343,497 339,772 311,924 348,501 

After 

distribution 
326,164 271,818 343,497 339,772 Note 3 N/A 

Equity attributable to 

owners of parent company 
446,321 419,575 420,585 419,439 401,718 459,437 

Share capital 543,506 538,066 546,246 545,326 552,186 552,186 

Capital surplus 25,330 29,322 29,249 29,328 30,302 27,790 

Retained 

earnings 

Before 

distribution 
19,405 (18,828) (587) (14,346) (44,166) 10,692 

After 

distribution 
19,405 (18,828) (587) (14,346) Note 3 N/A 

Other equity (117,089) (104,154) (129,492) (116,038) (111,773) (106,400) 

Treasury shares (24,831) (24,831) (24,831) (24,831) (24,831) (24,831) 

Non-controlling interests - - - 11,742 6,881 12,453 

Total equity 

Before 

distribution 
446,321 419,575 420,585 431,181 408,599 471,890 

After 

distribution 
446,321 419,575 420,585 431,181 Note 3 N/A 

Note 1: Has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: Has been reviewed by CPAs. 

Note 3: The 2023 Deficit Compensation Proposal has only been approved by the Board of Directors and is pending a 

resolution by the shareholders’ meetings. 

 

2. Condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Year 

Item 

2019 

(Note 1) 

2020 

(Note 1) 

2021 

(Note 1) 

2022 

(Note 1) 

2023 

(Note 1) 

Financial data for 

the current year up 

to March 31, 2024 

(Note 2) 

Operating revenue 597,565 538,991 632,260 594,422 510,587 121,047 

Gross profit 199,682 182,143 215,586 188,983 198,477 51,299 

Net operating income (loss) (21,370) (14,673) 13,907 (36,370) (41,292) (19,908) 

Non-operating income and 

expenses 
(89,505) (23,417) 12,129 5,921 (14,605) (1,122) 

Net income before tax (110,875) (38,090) 26,036 (30,449) (55,897) (21,030) 
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Net income of continuing 

operations in this period 
(112,809) (38,233) 18,241 (30,933) (56,773) (21,125) 

Loss on discontinued operations - - - - - - 

Net income (loss) for this period (112,809) (38,233) 18,241 (30,933) (56,773) (21,125) 

Other comprehensive income for 

this period (net of tax) 
(9,677) 7,923 (22,115) 9,259 7,726 4,321 

Total comprehensive income for 

this period 
(122,486) (30,310) (3,874) (21,674) (49,047) (16,804) 

Net income attributable to owners 

of parent company 
(112,809) (38,233) 18,241 (13,759) (29,820) (17,032) 

Net income attributable to non-

controlling interests 
- - - (17,174) (26,953) (4,093) 

Total comprehensive income 

attributable to owners of parent 

company 

(122,486) (30,310) (3,874) (4,500) (22,094) (12,711) 

Total comprehensive income 

attributable to non-controlling 

interests 

- - - (17,174) (26,953) (4,093) 

Earnings per share (NT$) (Note 3) (2.20) (0.77) 0.37 (0.27) (0.59) (0.34) 

Note 1: Has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: Has been reviewed by CPAs. 

Note 3: The calculation was based on the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares and the number of 

ordinary shares issued, which was retrospectively adjusted due to capitalization of earnings. 

 
3. Condensed standalone balance sheet 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Year 

Item 

2019 

(Note 1) 

2020 

(Note 1) 

2021 

(Note 1) 

2022 

(Note 1) 

2023 

(Note 1) 

Current assets 284,652 191,613 289,303 249,608 229,082 

Property, plant and equipment 119,703 117,830 116,942 116,902 115,757 

Intangible assets 3,040 1,619 850 195 873 

Other assets 411,007 405,482 392,555 439,593 448,409 

Total assets 818,402 716,544 799,650 806,298 794,121 

Current 

liabilities 

Before distribution 371,190 296,078 378,174 385,968 391,512 

After distribution 371,190 296,078 378,174 385,968 Note 2 

Non-current liabilities 891 891 891 891 891 

Total 

liabilities 

Before distribution 372,081 296,969 379,065 386,859 392,403 

After distribution 372,081 296,969 379,065 386,859 Note 2 

Equity attributable to owners of 

parent company 
446,321 419,575 420,585 419,439 401,718 

Share capital 543,506 538,066 546,246 545,326 552,186 

Capital surplus 25,330 29,322 29,249 29,328 30,302 

Retained 

earnings 

Before distribution 19,405 (18,828) (587) (14,346) (44,166) 

After distribution 19,405 (18,828) (587) (14,346) Note 2 

Other equity (117,089) (104,154) (129,492) (116,038) (111,773) 

Treasury shares (24,831) (24,831) (24,831) (24,831) (24,831) 

Non-controlling interests - - - - - 

Total equity 
Before distribution 446,321 419,575 420,585 419,439 401,718 

After distribution 446,321 419,575 420,585 419,439 Note 2 

Note 1: Has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: The 2023 Deficit Compensation Proposal has only been approved by the Board of Directors and is pending a 

resolution by the shareholders’ meetings. 

 

4. Condensed standalone statement of comprehensive income 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Year 

Item 

2019 

(Note 1) 

2020 

(Note 1) 

2021 

(Note 1) 

2022 

(Note 1) 

2023 

(Note 1) 

Operating revenue 348,045 299,070 340,680 351,455 301,722 

Gross profit 69,584 58,846 82,689 67,453 75,421 

Operating income or loss (4,276) (6,717) 9,517 (5,845) 1,804 
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Non-operating income and 

expenses 
(108,533) (31,516) 8,724 (7,914) (31,624) 

Net income (loss) before tax (112,809) (38,233) 18,241 (13,759) (29,820) 

Net income of continuing 

operations in this period 
(112,809) (38,233) 18,241 (13,759) (29,820) 

Loss on discontinued operations - -  - - 

Net income (loss) for this period (112,809) (38,233) 18,241 (13,759) (29,820) 

Other comprehensive income for 

this period (net of tax) 
(9,677) 7,923 (22,115) 9,259 7,726 

Total comprehensive income for 

this period 
(122,486) (30,310) (3,874) (4,500) (22,094) 

Net income attributable to owners 

of parent company 
(112,809) (38,233) 18,241 (13,759) (29,820) 

Net income attributable to non-

controlling interests 
- - - - - 

Total comprehensive income 

attributable to owners of parent 

company 

(122,486) (30,310) (3,874) (4,500) (22,094) 

Total comprehensive income 

attributable to non-controlling 

interests 

- - - - - 

Earnings per share (NT$) (Note 2) (2.20) (0.77) 0.37 (0.27) (0.59) 

Note 1: Has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: The calculation was based on the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares and the number of 

ordinary shares issued, which was retrospectively adjusted due to capitalization of earnings. 

 

 

    

 

(II) Names and audit opinions of the CPAs in the most recent five years: 

Year CPA firm Name of CPA Audit opinion 

2019 KPMG Au, Yiu Kwan and Kuo, Kuan-Ying 
Unqualified opinion plus “Other 

matters” paragraph 

2020 KPMG Au, Yiu Kwan and Kuo, Kuan-Ying 
Unqualified opinion plus “Other 

matters” paragraph 

2021 KPMG Au, Yiu Kwan and Kuo, Kuan-Ying 
Unqualified opinion plus “Other 

matters” paragraph 

2022 KPMG Au, Yiu Kwan and Kuo, Kuan-Ying 
Unqualified opinion plus “Other 

matters” paragraph 

2023 KPMG Au, Yiu Kwan and Kuo, Kuan-Ying 
Unqualified opinion plus “Other 

matters” paragraph 

 

II. Financial analysis for the most recent five years 

(I) Analysis of consolidated financial ratios as per the International Accounting Standards 

Year 

Item (Note 4) 

2019 

(Note 1) 

2020 

(Note 1) 

2021 

(Note 1) 

2022 

(Note 1) 

2023 

(Note 1) 

Current year 

up to March 

31, 2024 

 (Note 2) 

Financial 

structure (%) 

Debt ratio 42.22 39.31 44.96 44.07 43.29 42.48 

Ratio of long-term capital to property, 

plant and equipment 
383.35 363.39 365.71 332.49 335.02 403.82 

Solvency 

(%) 

Current ratio 136.18 138.20 132.04 128.41 129.90 125.63 

Quick ratio 44.88 65.80 47.09 49.31 51.20 43.71 

Interest earned ratio Note 3 Note 3 9.40 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 

Operating 

performance 

Accounts receivable turnover (times) 7.46 9.23 10.66 9.69 9.96 10.56 

Average collection period (days) 48.92 39.54 34.24 37.66 36.64 34.56 

Inventory turnover (times) 1.59 1.53 1.85 1.57 1.25 1.08 
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Accounts payable turnover (times) 7.04 6.06 6.81 9.04 7.95 4.52 

Average days in sales 229.55 238.56 197.29 232.48 292.00 337.96 

Property, plant and equipment turnover 

(times) 
4.91 4.51 5.36 4.77 4.01 3.95 

Total assets turnover (times) 0.75 0.74 0.87 0.77 0.68 0.60 

Profitability 

Return on total assets (%) (13.88) (4.85) 2.85 (1.16) (3.22) (7.87) 

Return on equity (%) (21.87) (8.83) 4.34 (3.23) (7.10) (14.31) 

Pre-tax income to paid-in capital (%) (20.40) (7.08) 4.77 (5.58) (10.12) (15.23) 

Profit margin (%) (18.88) (7.09) 2.89 (2.31) (5.84) (14.07) 

Earnings per share (NT$) (2.20) (0.77) 0.37 (0.27) (0.59) (0.34) 

Cash flow 

Cash flow ratio (%) Note 3 30.42 Note 3 Note 3 22.12 Note 3 

Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) Note 3 119.05 8.51 Note 3 26.16 Note 3 

Cash reinvestment ratio (%) Note 3 16.67 Note 3 Note 3 14.10 Note 3 

Leverage 
Operating leverage Note 3 Note 3 18.74 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3 

Financial leverage 0.87 0.81 1.29 0.86 0.85 0.93 

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent two years (unless increase or decrease is less than 20%)  

1. The decrease in inventory turnover and the increase in average days in sales was mainly due to the decrease in 

sales amount resulting in a decrease in sales cost. 

2. The decrease in the return on assets, the return on equity, pre-tax income to paid-in capital, profit margin, and 

earnings per share was due to the increase in pre-tax and post-tax net loss in 2023 from 2022. 

3. The increase in cash flow ratio, the cash flow adequacy ratio, and the cash reinvestment ratio was due to the 

increase in net cash flow from operating activities. 

Note 1: Has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: Has been reviewed by CPAs. 

Note 3: This value is a negative figure, so it is not listed. 

Note 4: The calculation formulas for financial analysis: 

1. Financial structure 

(1) Debt ratio = Total liabilities/Total assets. 

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (Total equity + Non-current liabilities)/Net 

property, plant, and equipment. 

2. Solvency 

(1) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities. 

(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventory - Prepaid expenses)/Current liabilities. 

(3) Interest earned ratio = Net income before tax and interest /Interest expenses in this period. 

3. Operating performance 

(1) Accounts receivable turnover (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from operating activities) 

= Net sales/Balance of average accounts receivable in each period (including accounts receivable and notes 

receivable from operating activities). 

(2) Average collection period (days) = 365/Accounts receivable turnover. 

(3) Inventory turnover = Cost of sales/Average inventory. 

(4) Payables turnover (including accounts payable and notes payable from operating activities) = Cost of 

sales/Balance of average accounts payable in each period (including accounts payable and notes payable 

from operating activities). 

(5) Average days in sales = 365/Inventory turnover. 

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover = Net sales/Average net property, plant, and equipment. 

(7) Total asset turnover = Net sales/Average total assets. 

4. Profitability 

(1) Return on assets = [Profit or loss after tax + Interest expenses × (1 - Tax rate)]/Average total assets. 

(2) Return on equity = Profit or loss after tax/Average total equity. 

(3) Profit margin = Profit or loss after tax/Net sales. 

(4) Earnings per share = (Income or loss attributable to owners of parent company - Preference shares 

dividends)/Weighted average number of shares issued. (Note 5) 

5. Cash flow 

(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flows from operating activities/Current liabilities. 

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities for the most recent five years/(Capital 

expenditures + Inventory increment + Cash dividends) for the most recent five years. 

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - Cash dividends)/ (Gross property, plant 

and equipment + Long-term investment + Other non-current assets + Working capital). (Note 6) 

6. Leverage: 

(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating revenue - Variable operating costs and expenses)/Operating income 
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(Note 7). 

(2) Financial leverage = Operating income/(Operating income - Interest expenses). 

Note 5: The following matters shall be noted for the calculation formula for earnings per share: 

1. The weighted average number of ordinary shares shall prevail rather than the number of outstanding shares 

at the end of the year. 

2. Where there is a cash capital increase or trading of treasury shares, the weighted average number of shares 

in the outstanding period shall be calculated. 

3. In the event of capitalization of earnings or capital surplus, when the annual or semi-annual earnings per 

share for the past years are calculated, retrospective adjustments shall be made as per the capital increase 

percentage, regardless of the issuance period for the capital increase. 

4. If the preference shares are non-convertible cumulative preference shares, the dividends for the year (whether 

issued or not) should be deducted from the net income after tax or added to the net loss after tax. If the 

preference shares are non-cumulative in nature, in the case of net income after tax, the preference shares 

dividend shall be deducted from the net income after tax, while in the case of a loss, adjustment is not 

required. 

Note 6: The following matters shall be noted for cash flow analysis: 

1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in statement of 

cash flows. 

2. Capital expenditures refer to the annual cash outflow from capital investments. 

3. The increase in inventories is only included when the ending balance is greater than the opening balance. If 

the inventories decrease at the end of the year, it will be regarded as zero. 

4. Cash dividends include cash dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares. 

5. Gross property, plant and equipment refers to the total average property, plant and equipment before 

accumulated depreciation is deducted. 

Note 7: The issuer shall divide various operating costs and operating expenses into fixed and variable depending 

on their characteristics. If there are estimates or subjective judgments involved, it shall pay attention to the 

reasonableness and maintain consistency. 

Note 8: If the Company’s stock is no-par-value stock or the par value per share is not NT$10, the equity attributable 

to the owners of parent company in the balance sheet shall be adopted to calculate the ratio related to the 

paid-in capital above. 
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(II) Analysis of standalone financial ratios as per the International Accounting Standards 
Year 

Item (Note 4) 

2019 

(Note 1) 

2020 

(Note 1) 

2021 

(Note 1) 

2022 

(Note 1) 

2023 

(Note 1) 

Financial 

structure (%) 

Debt ratio 45.46 41.44 47.40 47.98 49.41 

Ratio of long-term capital to 

property, plant and equipment 
373.60 356.84 360.41 359.56 347.81 

Solvency 

(%) 

Current ratio 76.69 64.72 76.50 64.67 58.51 

Quick ratio 18.44 15.73 18.85 16.82 9.76 

Interest earned ratio Note 2 Note 2 9.15 Note 2 Note 2 

Operating 

performance 

Accounts receivable turnover 

(times) 
31.43 31.47 206.10 194.77 97.71 

Average collection period (days) 11.61 11.59 1.77 1.87 3.73 

Inventory turnover (times) 1.34 1.24 1.35 1.36 1.16 

Accounts payable turnover 

(times) 
6.59 4.92 4.99 7.34 6.56 

Average days in sales 272.38 294.35 270.37 268.38 314.65 

Property, plant and equipment 

turnover (times) 
2.88 2.52 2.90 3.01 2.59 

Total assets turnover (times) 0.41 0.39 0.45 0.44 0.38 

Profitability 

Return on total assets (%) (13.14) (4.69) 2.64 (1.37) (3.24) 

Return on equity (%) (21.87) (8.83) 4.34 (3.28) (7.26) 

Pre-tax income to paid-in capital 

(%) 
(20.76) (7.11) 3.34 (2.52) (5.40) 

Profit margin (%) (32.41) (12.78) 5.35 (3.91) (9.88) 

Earnings per share (NT$) (2.20) (0.77) 0.37 (0.27) (0.59) 

Cash flow 
Cash flow ratio (%) Note 2 11.80 7.27 Note 2 7.25 

Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 36.10 93.89 59.61 11.87 28.26 

Cash reinvestment ratio (%) Note 2 7.98 6.24 Note 2 6.68 

Leverage Operating leverage Note 2 Note 2 13.73 Note 2 63.60 

Financial leverage 0.67 0.71 1.31 0.63 Note 2 

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent two years (unless increase or decrease is less than 20%)  

1. The decrease in quick ratio was mainly due to the decrease in case and increase in accounts payable to 

suppliers. 

2. The decrease in accounts receivable turnover and the increase in average collection period (days) were 

mainly due to the decrease in the 2023 operating revenue. 

3. The decrease in the return on assets, the return on equity, pre-tax income to paid-in capital, profit margin, 

and earnings per share was mainly due to the increase in pre-tax and post-tax net loss in 2023. 

4. The increase in cash flow ratio, the cash flow adequacy ratio, and the cash reinvestment ratio was mainly 

due to the increase in net cash flow from operating activities. 

5. The increase in operating leverage and the decrease in financial leverage were mainly due to the 

conversion of 2023 operating profit/loss from operating loss to operating profit. 

Note 1: Has been audited by CPAs. 

Note 2: This value is a negative figure, so it is not listed. 

Note 3: No interest expense was incurred, so it is not listed. 

Note 4: Please refer to Note 4 to Analysis of consolidated financial ratios as per the International Accounting 

Standards for the formulas for calculating financial ratios. 
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III. Audit Committee’s review report on the financial report for the most recent year 

 

Associated Industries China, Inc. 

Audit Committee’s Review Report 

 

 

    The Company’s 2023 financial statements have been ratified by Audit Committee, 

approved by the Board of Directors by resolution and audited by Chu Yao-Chun and Kuo Kuan-

Ying, CPAs of KPMG Taiwan, to which they have issued an independent auditor's report. 

Furthermore, we have reviewed the Business Report for 2023 and Deficit Appropriation 

Proposal prepared by the Board of Directors, to which we have found no misstatement and 

hereby issues its report as presented above in accordance with Article 14-4, the Securities and 

Exchange Act and Article 219, the Company Act. 

 

 
 

                                     

To 

 

2024 Annual General Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

Associated Industries China, Inc. 

 

 

Audit Committee convener:Sha-Wei Chang 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M a r c h  1 1 ,  2 0 2 4 
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IV. The financial report for the most recent year, including the CPA's audit report, a two-year balance 

sheets, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, statements of cash 

flows, and notes to the financial report or tables (Please insert the “Representation Letter” 

paragraph to page 66 of the consolidated financial statements) 

Representation Letter 

 

 

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Associated Industries China, 

Inc. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation 

Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the 

same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International Financial 

Reporting Standards No. 10 by the Financial Supervisory Commission, "Consolidated Financial Statements." In 

addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the 

consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Associated Industries China, Inc. and Subsidiaries do not prepare 

a separate set of combined financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Company name: Associated Industries China, Inc. 

Chairman: Hua Chung Pi  

Date: March 11, 2024 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

 

To the Board of Directors of Associated Industries China, Inc.:                                                                                   

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated Industries China, Inc. and its subsidiaries 

(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the 

consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies. 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), the 

accompanying consolidated  financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated  

financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated  financial performance 

and its consolidated  cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial Reporting Standards 

(“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Interpretations developed by the International 

Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee 

(“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and Attestation 

Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with The 

Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Based on our audits and the reports of other 

auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of 

our opinion. 

Other Matter 

We did not audit the financial statements of Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (tBPC), a subsidiary of the Group.   

Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar 

as it relates to the amounts included for tBPC, is based solely on the report of other auditors. The financial 

statements of tBPC reflect the total assets, constituting 8.31% and 11.89% of the consolidated total assets as of 

December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively; the total operating revenues for the periods from January 1 to 

December 31, 2023 and from April 1 to December 31, 2022, constituting 0.44% and 1.22% of the consolidated 

total operating revenues, for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively; and the related shares of 

profit of associates and joint ventures, accounted for using the equity method, constituted 11.68% of the 
consolidated total loss before tax for the year ended December 31, 2022.  

Associated Industries China, Inc. has additionally prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and 

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, on which we have issued unmodified opinions with other matters 
paragraph. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 

the consolidated  financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the consolidated  financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 

matters to be communicated in our report as follows: 

Inventory valuation 

Please refer to Note 4(h) Inventories and Note 5 of the consolidated financial statements for inventory valuation 

and uncertainties of inventory valuation, respectively. Detailed information regarding the inventory is presented 

in Note 6(d) of the consolidated financial statements. 

Description of key audit matters: 

As inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The major business activities of the Group 

are the research, development and sale of LCD monitors, medical equipment and related components. The 

inventories are exposed to the risk of valuate loss and obsolescence due to the market vulnerability. Therefore, the 
inventory valuation is one of the important assessment items to perform our audits. 

Audit Procedures: 

Our principal audit procedures include: examining whether the inventory valuation policy and accounting policy 

applied by the Group are reasonable and  in compliance with the accounting standards; inspecting the inventory 

aging report; analyzing the changes of inventory aging for each period; and testing the relevant amount of 
calculation for the lower of cost or net realizable value. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 

Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated  financial statements in 

accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the 

IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic 

of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated  financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has 

no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s 

financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise professional 
judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated  financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Group’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

consolidated  financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated  financial statements, including 

the disclosures and whether the consolidated  financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 

activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated  financial statements. We are responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 

opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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>From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the consolidated  financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Au, Yiu-Kwan and Kuo, 

Kuan-Ying. 

 

KPMG 

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China) 
March 11, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Notes to Readers 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial performance 

and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any 

other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and 
applied in the Republic of China. 

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese 

version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English 

and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail. 
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ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

  Assets Amount % Amount % 

  Current assets:     

1100   Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(a)) $ 112,673   16   101,579   13  

1170   Notes and accounts receivable, net (note 6(c))  43,204   6   59,034   8  

1200   Other receivables   442   -   377   -  

1300   Inventories, net (note 6(d))  211,461   30   229,022   30  

1410   Prepayments   31,226   4   33,780   4  

1470   Other current assets   1,572   -   2,851   -  

     400,578   56   426,643   55  

  Non-current assets:             

1600   Property, plant and equipment (notes 6(h) and 8)  123,023   17   131,950   17  

1755   Right-of-use assets (note 6(i))  6,206   1   15,328   2  

1760   Investment property, net (notes 6(j) and 8)  158,918   22   160,101   21  

1780   Intangible assets (notes 6(k) and 8)  25,185   3   29,338   4  

1900   Other non-current assets (note 8)  6,613   1   7,593   1  

   319,945   44   344,310   45  

  Total assets $ 720,523   100   770,953   100  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

  Liabilities Amount % Amount % 

  Current liabilities:     

2100   Short-term borrowings (notes 6(l) and 7) $ 191,685   27   241,358   32  

2120   Current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (note 6(b))  -   -   2,842   -  

2130   Current contract liabilities (note 6(v))  4,391   1   3,281   -  

2170   Notes and accounts payable   63,656   9   14,856   2  

2200   Other payables (Note 7)  34,481   5   33,941   4  

2250   Current provisions (note 6(m))  3,787   -   3,380   -  

2280   Current lease liabilities (note 6(n))  4,025   -   9,549   1  

2300   Other current liabilities   6,348   1   5,933   1  

2530   Bonds payable, current portion (note 6(o))  -   -   17,099   2  

     308,373   43   332,239   42  

  Non-current liabilities:              

2580   Non-current lease liabilities (note 6(n))  2,645   -   6,642   1   

2600   Other non-current liabilities   906   -   891   -   

     3,551   -   7,533   1   

    Total liabilities  311,924   43   339,772   43   

  Equity attributable to owners of parent: (note 6(s))      

3110   Common stock   552,186   77   545,326   71   

3200   Capital surplus   30,302   4   29,328   4   

   Retained earnings:      

3310   Legal reserve   52,704   7   52,704   7   

3320   Special reserve   79,510   11   79,510   10   

3350   Accumulated deficits   (176,380)   (24)   (146,560)   (19)   

     (44,166)   (6)   (14,346)   (2)   

3400   Other equity interest   (111,773)   (16)   (116,038)   (15)   

3500   Treasury shares   (24,831)   (3)   (24,831)   (3)   

   Total equity attributable to owners of parent:  401,718   56   419,439   55   

3600   Non-controlling interests   6,881   1   11,742   2  

     Total equity  408,599   57   431,181   57  

  Total liabilities and equity $ 720,523   100   770,953   100  
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese.) 

ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share) 

 

 

  2023 2022 

  Amount % Amount % 

4000  Operating revenues, net (note 6(v)):     

4110  Sales revenue  $ 505,377   99   589,219   99  

4310  Rental income (note 6(p))  5,210   1   5,203   1  

    510,587   100   594,422   100  

5000  Operating costs (notes 6(d), 6(q) and 12)  312,110   61   405,439   68  

5950  Gross profit from operations  198,477   39   188,983   32  

  Operating expenses (notes 6(q) and 12):     

6100  Selling expenses (note 6(n))  126,699   25   125,028   21  

6200  Administrative expenses (notes 6(n) and 6(t))  76,087   15   74,097   12  

6300  Research and development expenses   36,901   7   26,207   4  

6450  Expected credit losses (Note 6(c))  82   -   21   -  

    239,769   47   225,353   37  

  Net operating loss  (41,292)   (8)   (36,370)   (5)  

  Non-operating income and expenses:     

7100  Interest income   697   -   593   -  

7190  Other income   464   -   461   -  

7225  Gains on disposals of investments (note 6(e))  -   -   3,687   1  

7230  Foreign exchange gains, net (note 6(x))  2,738   -   3,692   1  

7235  (Losses) gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   (1,890)   -   7,117   1  

7510  Interest expense (notes 6(n) and 7)  (7,215)   (1)   (6,072)   (1)  

7590  Other losses  (2,546)   (1)   -   -  

7610  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   (14)   -   -   -  

7670  Impairment loss (notes 6(h) and 6(k))  (6,839)   (1)   -   -  

7770  Share of losses of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method (Note 6(e))  -   -   (3,557)   (1)  

    (14,605)   (3)   5,921   1  

7900  Loss before tax  (55,897)   (11)   (30,449)   (4)  

7950  Less: Income tax expenses (note 6(r))  876   -   484   -  

  Net loss  (56,773)   (11)   (30,933)   (4)  

8300  Other comprehensive income:      

8360  Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:     

8361  Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements  7,726   2   9,259   2  

8300  Other comprehensive income, net  7,726   2   9,259   2  

8500  Total comprehensive loss $ (49,047)   (9)   (21,674)   (2)  

 Total net income, attributable to:     

8610  Loss, attributable to owners of parent $ (29,820)   (6)   (13,759)   (1)  

8620  Loss, attributable to non-controlling interests (note 6(g))  (26,953)   (5)   (17,174)   (3)  

   $ (56,773)   (11)   (30,933)   (4)  

 Comprehensive loss attributable to:     

8710  Comprehensive loss, attributable to owners of parent $ (22,094)   (4)   (4,500)   -  

8720  Comprehensive loss, attributable to non-controlling interests (note 6(g))   (26,953)   (5)   (17,174)   (2)  

   $ (49,047)   (9)   (21,674)   (2)  

 Earnings per share (note 6(u))   

9750  Basic earnings (losses) per share (NT dollars) $ (0.59)   (0.27)  

9850  Diluted earnings (losses) per share (NT dollars) $ (0.59)   (0.27)  



 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese.) 

ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

 

      Other equity interest     
 

  Retained earnings 

Exchange 

differences on 

translation of  

Unrealized  

losses from 

financial assets 

measured at  

fair value  

through other Unearned Total other  

Total equity 

attributable Non-  
 Common  

stock 

Capital  

surplus 

Legal  

reserve 

Special  

reserve 

Accumulated 

deficits 

foreign financial 

statements 

 comprehensive 

income 

 employee 

benefits 

 equity 

interest 

Treasury 

shares 

  to owners 

of parent 

controlling 

interests Total equity 
Balance at January 1, 2022  $ 546,246   29,249   52,704   79,510   (132,801)   (88,885)   (33,710)   (6,897)   (129,492)   (24,831)   420,585   -   420,585  

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2022  -   -   -   -   (13,759)   -   -   -   -   -   (13,759)   (17,174)   (30,933)  

Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022  -   -   -   -   -   9,259   -   -   9,259   -   9,259   -   9,259  

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2022  -   -   -   -   (13,759)   9,259   -   -   9,259   -   (4,500)   (17,174)   (21,674)  

Other changes in capital surplus:                                         

    Share-based payment transactions   (920)   79   -   -   -   -   -   4,195   4,195   -   3,354   -   3,354  

Changes in non-controlling interests  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   28,916   28,916  

Balance at December 31, 2022  545,326   29,328   52,704   79,510   (146,560)   (79,626)   (33,710)   (2,702)   (116,038)   (24,831)   419,439   11,742   431,181  

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2023  -   -   -   -   (29,820)   -   -   -   -   -   (29,820)   (26,953)   (56,773)  

Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2023  -   -   -   -   -   7,726   -   -   7,726   -   7,726   -   7,726  

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2023  -   -   -   -   (29,820)   7,726   -   -   7,726   -   (22,094)   (26,953)   (49,047)  

Other changes in capital surplus:                                         

Difference between consideration and carrying amount of subsidiaries 
acquired or disposed 

 
   -    

 
   372    

 
   -    

 
   -    

 
   -    

 
   -    

 
   -    

 
   -    

 
   -    

 
   -    

 
   372    

 
   -    

 
   372    

Share-based payment transactions   6,860   602   -   -   -   -   -   (3,461)   (3,461)   -   4,001   -   4,001  

Changes in non-controlling interests  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   22,092   22,092  

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 552,186   30,302   52,704   79,510   (176,380)   (71,900)   (33,710)   (6,163)   (111,773)   (24,831)   401,718   6,881   408,599  
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese.) 

ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

 

 2023 2022 

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:       

Loss before tax $ (55,897)   (30,449)  

Adjustments:       

Adjustments to reconcile loss:       

Depreciation expense  14,440   13,165  

Amortization expense  7,231   5,284  

Expected credit loss  82   21  

Losses on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  1,890   -  

Interest expense  7,215   6,072  

Interest income  (697)   (593)  

Share-based payments transactions cost  4,001   3,354  

Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method  -   3,557  

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  14   -  

Gain on disposal of investments  -   (3,687)  

Impairment loss on non-financial assets  6,839   -  

Others  2,905   -  

Total adjustments to reconcile loss  43,920   27,173  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       

Decrease in current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  262   2,842  

Decrease in notes and accounts receivable  15,748   4,426  

(Increase) decrease in other receivables  (237)   96  

Decrease in inventories  17,561   30,266  

Decrease in prepayments  1,884   3,252  

Decrease in other current assets  1,279   3,721  

Dncrease (increase) in other operating assets  777   (282)  

Increase in contract liabilities  1,110   3,021  

Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable  48,800   (59,976)  

Increase (decrease) in other payables  1,091   (9,474)  

Increase in provisions  407   356  

Increase in other current liabilities  415   1,021  

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities  89,097   (20,731)  

Total adjustments  133,017   6,442  

Cash inflows (outflows) generated from operations  77,120   (24,007)  

Interest received  697   1,062  

Interest paid  (7,095)   (6,050)  

Income taxes paid  (2,516)   (4,676)  

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities  68,206   (33,671)  

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:       

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (916)   (6,034)  

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits  262   (3,119)  

Acquisition of intangible assets  (3,995)   (2,923)  

(Increase) decrease in prepayments for equipment  (752)   4,000  

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (5,401)   (8,076)  

Cash flows (used in) from financing activities:       

(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings  (49,673)   34,227  

Increase in bonds payable  -   17,099  

Increase in guarantee deposits received  15   -  

Payment of lease liabilities  (9,746)   (8,471)  

Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities  (59,404)   42,855  

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  7,693   9,105  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  11,094   10,213  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  101,579   91,366  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 112,673   101,579  
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(English Tra nslation of C onsolidated Financial State ments Originally Issued in C hinese.)  

A S S O CI A T E D I N D U S T RI E S C HI N A, IN C. A N D S U B SI DI A RIE S  

Notes to the Co nsolidated Fi na ncial State me nts  

For the years e nde d Dece m be r 31, 2023 a nd 2022  

(Expressed in T ho usa nds of Ne w Tai wa n Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified) 

 

 

(1) Company history 

Associat ed Industries China, Inc. (the “C o mp any” )  was incorporat ed in Ma y 18, 1978 as a co mpan y 

limited b y shares, and registered under the M inistry of Econo mic Affairs, in the Republic of China. The 

major business act ivities of the C o mpany and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “G roup” )  are (1) 

research, develop ment and sale of LC D monitors, and related co mp onents, (2)sale of medical equip ment,  

(3)real estate rental business and (4)research and develop ment, manufacture and sale of med ical equip ment 

and health care products.  

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements   

These consolidat ed financial state ments were authorized for issuance b y the Board of Directors on March 

11, 2024.  

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:   

(a) The impact of the International Financial Rep orting Standards (“ IF R Ss” )  endorsed by the  Financial 

Supervisory C o m mission, R.O. C. which have already been adopted.  

The Group has initially adopted the  follo wing ne w a mend ments, which do not have a significant impact  

on its cons olidated financial state ments, fro m January 1, 2023:  

●  A m end ments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising fro m a  Single 

Transact ion”  

The Group has initially adopted the following ne w a mend ment , which do not  have a s ignificant impact  

on its consolidated financial state ments, fro m M a y 23, 2023:  

●  A m end ments to IAS 12 “ Int ernat ional Tax R efor m — Pillar T wo M odel Rules”  

(b) The impact of IF RS endorsed by the FS C but not yet effective  

The Group assesses  that the adoption of the following ne w a mend m ents, effect ive for annual period 

beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a s ignificant impact on its consolidat ed financial  

state ments:  

●  A m end ments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non -current”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with C ovenants”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 7 and IF R S 7 “S upplier Finance Arrange ments”  

●  A m end ments to IF R S 16 “Lease Liability in  a Sale and Leaseback”  
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(c) The impact of IF RS issued by IAS B but not yet endorsed b y the FS C  

The Group does not expect the  follo wing other ne w and a mended standards, which have  yet to be 

endorsed by the FS C, to have a significant im pact on its consolidated financial statements:  

 ●  A m end ments to IF R S 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribut ion of Assets Bet ween an Investor and 

Its Associat e or Joint Venture”  

 ●  IF RS 17 “  Insurance C ontracts”  and a me nd ments to IFR S 17 “  Insurance Contracts”  

 ●  A m end ments to IAS21 “Lack of Exchangeabilit y”  

  

(4) Summary of material accounting policies   

The material accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial state ments are su m marized as  

follo ws. Except for those specifically indicat ed, the follo wing accounting policies were applied consistent ly 

throughout the presented periods in the consolidat ed financial state ments.  

(a)  State ment of co mpliance    

These consolidated  financial state ments  have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations 

G overning the Preparat ion of Financial Repor ts by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to  as “ t he 

R egulations ” )  and the Int ernat ional Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting 

Standards, IF RIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the 

Financial Supervisory Co m mission, R.O.C..  

(b) Basis of preparation    

(i)  Basis of measure ment  

Ex cept for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is mea sured at fair value, the 

consolidated financial statements have been p repared on the historical cost basis.  

(ii)  Funct ional and presentation currency  

The funct ional currency of each Group entities  is det er mined based on the primar y economic 

environ ment in which the entities operate. The consolidat ed financial statements are presen ted 

in Ne w Taiwa n Dollar, which is the Co mpany’ s  functional currency. All financial infor ma tion 

presented in Ne w Tai wa n Dollar has  been rounded to the nearest thousand.  

(c)  Basis of consolidation    

(i)  Principles of preparat ion of the consolidated financial statements  

The consolidat ed financial statements co mprise the Co mpany and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries  

are entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘ controls’  an entit y whe n it is exposed to, 

or has rights to, variable returns fro m its involve ment with the entit y and has the abilit y to affect  

those returns through its po wer over the entit y.  
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The financial state ments  of the subsidiaries  are included in the consolidat ed financial state m ents 

fro m the date on which control co m m ences until the dat e on which control ceases .  Intragroup 

balances and transact ions, and any unrealized inco me and expenses arising fro m intragroup 

transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial state ments. The Group 

attributes the profit or loss and each co mp onent of other co mprehensive inco me to the o wners of 

the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non -controlling interests 

having a deficit balance.  

Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been adjusted to ensure consistency with the policies  

adopted by the Group.  

C hanges in the Group's o wnership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of con trol 

are accounted for as equity transact ions. Any difference bet ween the a mount by which the 

non-controlling int erests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideratio n paid or received will 

be recognized directly in equity, and the Group will attribute it to the o wners of the parent.  

W h en the Group loses  control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes  the assets (including any 

good will) and liabilities of the subsidiary, an d any relat ed non-controlling int erests and other  

co mp onents of equity. Any interest retained in the for mer subsidiary is measured at fair value 

when control is lost, with the resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. The Group  

recognizes  as gain or loss in profit or loss the difference bet ween (i) the fair value of  the 

consideration received as well as any invest ment retained in the for mer subsidiary at its fair value 

at the date when control is lost ;and (ii) the assets (including any goo d will), liabilities of the 

subsidiary as well as any relat ed non -controlling interests at their carrying a mounts at the dat e 

when control is lost, as gain or loss in profit or loss. When the Group loses control of its 

subsidiary, it accounts for all a mount s previously recognized in other co mprehensive incom e in 

relation to that subsidiary on the sa me basis as would be required if it had directly disposed of 

the related assets or liabilities.  

(ii)  List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements  

    List of subsidiaries in the consolidat ed financial state ments:  

    Shareholding  

 Name of 

investor Name of subsidiary 

Principal 

activity 

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 Note 

 The Company  AG Neovo International Ltd. (AG 

Neovo International) 

Investment   100%   100%   

 The Company  AG Neovo Technology B.V. (AG 

Neovo B.V) 

Sale of LCD 

monitors

  

 100%   100%   

 The Company  AG Neovo Investment Co., Ltd.  

(AG Neovo Investment) 

Investment   100%   100%   

 The Company  Taiwan Biophotonic Co. (tBPC) Research and 

development, 

manufacture and 

sale of medical 
equipment and 

health care 

products

  

 56.98%   34.72%  (Notes 1, 2) 
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 AG Neovo 

Investment

  

AG Neovo Technology (Shanghai) 

Co., Ltd. (AG Neovo Shanghai) 

Sale of LCD 

monitors

  

 100%   100%   

 AG Neovo 
International

  

AG Neovo Technology Corp. (AG 
Neovo USA) 

Sale of LCD 
monitors and 

medical 

equipment

  

 100%   100%   

       

N ote 1: In April 2022, the Co mp an y increased its investment in the secured convertible bonds of tBP C. A fter  

considering the co mprehensive shareholding ratio  of potentially ordinar y shares, and the fact that the  

Co mp an y si multaneous do minate tBP C’ s  operating and financial activities, the Co mp an y assessed that 

it has substantial control over tBP C, and therefore, tBP C was included in subsudiaries in the consolida ted  

financial state ments since the date of acquisition of substantial control.  

N ote 2:  In April, June, July and October of 2023, the Co mp an y exercised its right to convert the convertible 

bonds issued b y tBP C, respectively,  and obtained a total of 188,640 thousand shares, and as of Dece mb er 

31, 2023, the Co mp an y’ s   shareholding ratio wa s 56.98 %.  

(d) Foreign currencies     

(i)  Foreign currency t ransactions  

Transact ions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of 

Group entities  at the exchange rates  at the dat es of the transactions. At  the end of each subsequent  

report ing p eriod, monetary items deno minated in foreign currencies  are translated into the 

functional currencies  using the exchange rat e at that date. Non - monetary items deno minated in  

foreign currencies  that are measured at fair value are translated into the funct io nal currencies 

using the exchange rate at the dat e that the fair value was deter mined. Non monetary ite ms  

deno minated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated using 

the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  

Ex change differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences 

relating to the follo wing, which are recognized in other co mprehensive inco me:  

●  an invest ment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other co mprehensive 

inco me;  

●  a financial liabilit y designated as a hedge of the net invest ment in a foreign operation to the 

ext ent that the hedge is effective; or  

●  qualifying cash flo w hedges to the extent that the hedges are effect ive.  

(ii)  Foreign operat ions  

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including good will and fair value adjust ments 

aris ing on acquisition, are translated into the presentation currency at the exchange rates at  the 

report ing date. The inco me and expenses of foreign operatio ns are translated into the presentat ion 

currency at the average exchange rate. Ex change differences are recognized in other 

co mprehensive inco m e.  
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W h en a foreign operat ion is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint con trol 

is lost, the cu mulative a mount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is 

reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of 

only part of its int erest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while reta ining con trol, 

the relevant proportion of the cu mulative a mount is reattributed to noncontrolling interests. W hen 

the Group disposes of only part of its invest m ent in an associate or joint venture that includes a 

foreign operation while retaining significa nt influence or joint control, the relevant proport ion of 

the cu mulative a mount is reclassified to profit or loss.  

W h en the settle ment of a monetary receivable fro m or payable to a foreign operation is neither  

planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable  future, Exchange differences arising fro m such a 

m onetary ite m that are considered to for m part  of the net invest ment in the foreign operation are 

recognized in other co mprehensive inco me.  

(e)  Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilit ies   

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified 

as non-current.  

(i)  It expects to realize the asset, or intends to s ell or consu me it, in its nor mal operating cycle;  

(ii)  It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;  

(iii)  It expects to realize the asset within t welve m onths after the reporting period; or  

(iv)  The asset is cash and cash equivalent (as def ined in IAS 7) unless the asset is restricted fro m 

being exchanged or used to s ettle a liabilit y for at least t welve months after the report ing period.  

A liability is classified as current under one  of the follo wing criteria, and all other liabi lities are 

classified as noncurrent.  

An entit y shall classify a liabilit y as current when :  

(i)  It expects to settle the liability in its nor mal operating cycle;  

(ii)  It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;  

(iii)  The liability is due to be settled within t welve m onths after the report ing period; or  

(iv)  The Group does not have an uncondit ional right to defer settlement of the liabilit y for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. Ter ms of a liabilit y that could, at the option of  the 

counterparty, result in its settle ment by the issue of equity instru ments do not a ffec t its 

classification.  
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(f)  Cash and cash equivalents   

Cash co mprises cash on hand and de ma nd deposits. Cash equivalents are short ter m, highly liquid 

invest ments that are readily convert ible to kno wn a mounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant  

risk of changes in value. Time deposits which  meet the above definition and are held for the purpose 

of meeting short  ter m cash co m mit ments ra ther than for invest ment  or other purposes should be 

recognized as  cash equivalents.  

(g) Financial instruments   

Trade receivables and debt s ecurities issued are initially recognized when they are originat ed. All other  

financial assets and financia l liabilities are initially recognized when the Group beco m es a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instru ment. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a 

significant financing co mponent) or financial liabilit y is initially measure d at fair value plus , for an 

item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVT P L), transaction costs that are directly attributable to  

its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a s ignificant financing co mp onent  is initially 

m easured at the transaction price.  

(i)  Financial assets  

All regular wa y purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade 

dat e basis.  

O n initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as  measured at: a mortized cost; Fair value 

through other co mprehensive inco m e (F V O C I) – debt invest ment; F V O C I – equity invest ment; 

or F VT P L. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless  the 

Group changes its business model for mana ging financial assets, in which case a ll affected 

financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first report ing period follo wing the change 

in the business model.  

1) Financial assets measured at a mortized cost  

A financial asset is measured at a mortized cos t if it meets both of the  follo wing condit ions  

and is not designated as at F VT P L:  

‧  it is held within a business model whose objec tive is to hold assets to collect contractual 

cash flows; and  

‧  its contractual ter ms give rise on specified dates  to cash flo ws that are solely pa yments  

of principal and interest (SP PI) 4on the principal a mount outstanding.  

These assets are subsequent ly measured at am ortized cost, which is the a mount at which 

the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/ minus, the cu mulative 

a mort ization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allo wa nce. Int erest  

inco me, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impair ment, are recognized in profit  

or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognit ion is recognized in profit or loss.  
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2) Fair value through other co mprehensive incom e (F VO CI )  

O n initial recognition of an equity invest ment  that is not held for trading, the Group ma y 

irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the invest ment ’s  fair value in other  

co mprehensive inco m e. This elect ion is ma de on an instrument -by-instrument basis.  

Eq uity invest ments at F VO CI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 

recognized as inco me in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recover y of  

part of the cost of the invest ment. Other ne t gains and losses  are recognized in other 

co mprehensive inco m e and are never reclassified to profit or loss.  

Dividend inco m e is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group ’s  right to  

receive pa y ment  is established(the Ex -dividend dat e).  

3) Fair value through profit or loss (F VT P L)  

All financial assets  not classified as  a mort ized cost or F V O CI described as  above (e.g. 

financial assets held for trading and those that are ma naged and whose perfor ma nce is  

evaluated on a fair value basis) are measured at F VT P L, including derivat ive financial 

assets. On initial recognition, the Group ma y irrevocably designate a financial asset, which 

m eets the require ments to be measured at am ortized cost or at F VO CI, as at F VT P L if 

doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mis match that would other wise 

aris e.  

These assets are subsequent ly measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including an y 

interest or dividend inco me, are recognized in profit o r loss.  

4) Impair ment of financial assets  

The Group recognizes  loss  allo wa nces for expected credit  losses (EC L) on financial assets  

m easured at a mort ized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, a mortized costs,  notes  

and trade receivables, other receiv able, guarantee deposit paid and other financial assets), 

debt invest ments measured at F V O CI and con tract assets.  

The Group measures  loss allo wa nces at an am ount  equal to lifet ime EC L, except for the 

follo wing which are measured as 12 - month EC L:  

‧  debt securities that are det er mined to have low credit risk at the report ing date; and  

‧  other debt s ecurities  and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default  

occurring over the expected life of the financial instru ment) has not increased 

significantly since initial recognition.  

Loss allo wance for trade receivables and contract assets are alwa ys measured at an a mount  

equal to lifetime EC L.  
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W h en deter mining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significant ly 

since initial recognition and when estimating EC L, the Group considers reasonable and 

supportable infor mation that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 

includes both quant itative and qualitative infor mation and analysis based on the Group’ s  

historical experience and infor med credit  assess ment as well as for ward -looking 

infor mation.  

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it 

is more than 30 da ys past due.  

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more than 

180 da ys past due or the debtor  is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in 

full.  

The Group considers a time deposit to have  a lo w credit risk when trading partner is 

equivalent to globally understood  definition of ‘ invest ment grade’ .  

Lifetime EC Ls are the EC Ls that result fro m all possible default events over the expected 

life of a financial instru ment.  

12- month EC Ls are the portion of EC Ls that  result fro m default event s that are possible 

within the 12 month after the reporting dat e (or a shorter period if the expected life of the 

instru ment is less than 12 months).  

The maximu m period considered when estimating EC Ls is the maxi mu m contractual 

period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.  

EC Ls are a probabilit y- weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as  

the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference bet ween the cash flo ws due to the 

Group in accordance with the contract and the  cash flo ws that the Group expects to receive). 

EC Ls are discounted at the effect ive int erest rate of the financial asset.  

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at a mortized 

cost and debt securities at F VO C I are credit -impaired. A financial asset is  

‘ credit-impaired ’  when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial 

assets is credit-impaired includes the follo wing obs ervable data:  

‧  significant financial difficulty of the borro wer  or issuer;  

‧  a breach of contract such as a default or being m ore than 180 da ys past due;  

‧  the lender of the borrower, for econo mic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's  

financial difficulty, having granted to the bor ro wer a concession that the lender would 

not other wise consider;  

‧  it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; 

or  

‧  the disappearance of an act ive market for a s ecurity because of financial difficulties .  
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Loss allowances for financial assets measured at a mort ized cost are deducted from the gross  

carrying a mount of the assets. For debt s ecurities at F V O CI, the loss allowance is charge 

to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive inco me instead of reducing the 

carrying a mount of the asset.  

The gross carrying a mount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no 

reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety o r a portion thereof. 

For corporat e custo mers, the Group individua lly makes an assess ment with respect to the 

timing and a mount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of  

recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery fro m the a mount written off. Ho wever, 

financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforce ment activities in order 

to co mply with the Group’ s  procedures for recovery of a mounts due.  

5) Derecognit ion of financial assets  

The Group derecognizes  a financial asset when  the contractual rights to the cash flo ws fro m 

the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in 

a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and re wards of ownership of the financial  

asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers  nor retains  substantially all of 

the risks  and re wards of ownership and it does  not retain control of the financial asset.  

The Group enters into transact ions whereb y it transfers assets recogn ized in its balance 

sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks  and re wards of the transferred 

assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.  

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity instruments  

1) Classification of debt or equity 

Debt and equity instru ments issued by the G roup are classified as financial liabilities or 

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrange ments and the definitions  

of a financial liabilit y and an equity instru men t.  

2) Eq uity instrument  

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual int erest in the assets of an 

entit y after deduct ing all of its liabilities. Equ ity instru ments issued are recognized as the 

a mount of considerat ion received, less the direct cost of  issuing. 

3) Treasury shares  

W h en shares  recognized as equity are repurchased, the a mount of the considerat ion paid, 

which includes direct ly attributable costs, is recognized as  a deduct ion fro m equity. 

R epurchased shares are classified as treasury shares.  When treasury shares are sold or 

reissued subsequently, the a mount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the 

resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recognized in capital surplus or retained 

earnings (if the capital suplus is not  sufficient to be written do wn).  
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4) Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at a mort ized cost or F VT P L. A financial 

liabilit y is classified as at F VTP L if it is classified as held -for-trading, it is a deriva tive or 

it is designated as such on initial recognit ion. Financial liabilities at F VT P L are measured 

at fair value and net  gains  and losses, including any int erest expense, are recognized in  

profit or loss.  

Other financial liabilities are subsequently meas ured at a mortized cost using the effective 

interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in 

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognit ion is also recognized in profit or loss.  

5) Derecognit ion of financial liabilities  

The Group derecognizes  a financial liabilit y when its contractual obligations are discharged 

or cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes  a financial liability when its ter ms are 

m odified and the cash flo ws of the modified liabilit y are subs tant ially different, in which 

case a ne w financial liabilit y based on the mo dified ter ms is recognized at fair value.  

O n derecognition of a financial liabilit y, the difference bet ween the carrying a mount of a 

financial liabilit y ext inguished and the consi derat ion paid (including any non -cash assets 

transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.  

6) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net a mount presented in the 

state ment  of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group current ly has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the a mounts and it intends either to s ettle the m on a net basis or 

to realize the asset and settle the liability simu ltaneously.  

(iii)  C onvertible bond  

C o mp ound financial instru ments(Conver tible bond) issued by the consolidated 

subsidiaries -tBP C are based on substance of the contractual agree ments and the definition of  

financial liabilities and equity instru ments. Their co mponents are s eparately cl assified as 

financial liabilities  and equity upon initial recognition.  

At  the time of original recognition, the fair value of the liabilit y co mponent is estimated using 

the current market  interest rate for a similar non -convertible instru ment and is measured at 

a mort ized cost using the effect ive interest m ethod unt il the conversion or maturit y da te is  

exercised. Liabilit y co mponents that are e mbedded in non -equity derivatives are measured at  fair  

value. 
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The conversion right classified as equity is equal to the re maining a mount of the fair value of the 

co mp osite instru ment as a whole less the fair value of the s eparately deter mined liability 

co mp onents, which is recognized as equity after deduct ing the inco me tax effect  and is  not 

subsequent ly measured. When the conversion  right is exercised, its related liability co mponent  

and the a mount in equity will be transferred to  share capital and capital surplus  - issue pre miu m. 

If the conversion right of convertible corporat e bonds has not bee n exercised on the maturit y date, 

the a mount recognized in equity will be transferred to capital surplus - issue pre miu m.  

The transaction costs relat ed to the issuance of convertible corporat e bonds are allocated to the 

liabilities  (included in the carryin g a mount of liabilities) and the equity co mp onents (included in 

equity) of the instru ment according to the proportion of the total allocat ed price.  

The part of the conversion right contained  in the convertible corporate bonds issued  by 

C onsolidat ed subsidiaries-tBP C is not a conversion right delivered b y exchanging a fixed a mo unt 

of cash or other financial assets for a fixed numb er of tBP C's o wn equity instru ments. Therefore, 

it is classified as a derivative financial liability.  

At  the time of original reco gnition, the derivat ive financial liabilities part of convert ible corpo rate 

bonds is measured at fair value, and the original carrying a mount of the non -derivat ive financial 

liabilities  part is  the balance after separating the e mb edded derivat ives . In subs equent  periods, 

non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at a mortized cost using the effective interest 

m ethod, and derivat ive financial liabilities are measured at fair  value, and changes in fair value 

are recognized in profit or loss. The transa ction costs relat ed to the issuance of convert ible 

corporat e bonds are allocated to the non -derivative financial liabilities part of the instru m ent 

(included in the carrying a mount  of liabilities) and the derivative financial liabilities  part 

(included in profit and loss) in proportion to the relat ive fair value.  

(iv)  Derivative financial instru ments  

The Group holds derivative financial instrum ents to hedge its foreign currency and int erest  rate 

exposures . E mb edded derivatives are s eparated fro m the host co ntract and accounted  for 

separately if the host contract is not a financia l asset and certain criteria are met.  

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognit ion, derivat ives  are 

m easured at fair value, and changes therein  are generally recognized in profit or loss.  

The Group designates certain hedging instru ments ( which include derivat ives , embedded 

derivatives  and non-derivatives  in respect of foreign currency risk) as either fair value hedges, 

cash flo w hedges, or hedges  of net invest ments  in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign excha nge 

risk on fir m co m mit ments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.  

If the derivative is e mbedded in the asset ownership contract according to IF RS 9 "financial 

instru ments", the overall contract will be used det er mine the classificat ion of financial assets. 

Other wise, the embedded derivative should meet the definition of the derivative, wherein its risk 

and charact eristics are not closely relat ed to those of the main contract. Consequent ly, when the 

hybrid contract is measured by using the fair value through the profit or loss, the deriva tive 

depart ment is dee med to be a s eparat e derivat ive.  
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(h) Inventories    

Inventories include ra w materials, work in progress, finished goo ds and merchandise, which are 

m easured at the lower of cost and net realizab le value. The cost of inventories is calculat ed using the 

weighted average method, and includes those expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, 

production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing the m to their present location and 

condit ion.  

Net  realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 

costs of co mplet ion and selling expenses.  

(i)  Invest ment in associates   

Associat es are those ent ities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint  

control, over their financial and operating policies.  

Invest ments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at cost. 

The cost of the invest ment includes transaction costs. The carrying a mount of the investment in 

associat es includes good will aris ing from the acquisition less any accu m ulated impair ment losses.  

The consolidated financial statements include the Group ’ s  share of the profit or loss and other 

co mprehensive inco me of those associates , after adjust ments to align their accounting policies with 

those of the Group, fro m the date on which s ignificant influence co m m ences unt il the date on which  

significant influence ceases. The Group recognizes  any changes of its proportionate share in the 

invest ee within capital surplus, when an associat e’s  equity changes due to reasons other than profit 

and loss or co mprehensive inco me, which did not result in  changes in actual s ignificant influence.  

Gains and losses resulting fro m transactions bet ween the Group and an associate are recogn ized only 

to the extent of unrelated Group’s  int erests in the associat e.  

W h en the Group’ s  share of losses of an associate eq uals or exceeds its interests in an associat e, it  

dis continues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero, 

additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Group h as 

incurred legal or constructive obligat ions or m ade paym ents on behalf of the associat e.   

W h en the Group subscribes to addit ional shares in an associat e at a percentage differen t fro m its 

existing o wnership percentage, the resulting carrying a mount of t he invest ment will differ from the 

a mount of the Group’s  proportionate interest in the net assets of the associat e. The Group records 

such a difference as an adjust ment to invest ments, with the corresponding a mount charged or credited 

to capital surplus. T he aforesaid adjust ment should first be adjusted under capital surplus . If the capital 

surplus resulting fro m changes in o wnership  interest is not sufficient, the re maining difference is  

debited to retained earnings. If the Group ’ s ownership interest is reduced due to the additiona l 

subscription to the shares  of the associate b y other investors, the proport ionate a mount  of the gains  or 

losses previously recognized in other co mprehensive inco me in relat ion to that associate will b e 

reclassified to profit or loss on the sa me basis as would be required if the associat e had direct ly disposed 

of the relat ed assets or liabilities.  
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(j)  Invest ment property   

Invest ment property is property held either to earn rental inco me or for capital appreciati on or for both, 

but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the product ion or supply of goods or services, 

or for ad ministrative purposes. Invest ment p roperty is measured at cost on initial recogn ition, and 

subsequent ly at cost, less accu mu lated depreciation and accu m ulated impair ment losses. Depreciation 

expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful life, and residual value which are the 

sa me as those adopted for property, plant and equip ment.  

An y gain or loss on disposal o f an invest men t property (calculated as the difference bet ween the net  

proceeds fro m disposal and the carrying a mount) is recognized in profit or loss.  

R ental inco me fro m invest ment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight -line basis over 

the ter m of the lease. Lease incent ives  granted are recognized as  an int egral part of the total rental 

inco me, over the ter m of the lease.  

(k) Property, plant and equip ment   

(i)  R ecognition and measure ment  

Ite ms of property, plant and equip ment are measured a t cost, which includes capitalized 

borro wing costs, less accu m ulated depreciation and any accu m ulated impair ment  losses.  

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equip ment have different useful lives , they 

are accounted for as s eparate ite ms ( major comp onents) of property, plant and equip ment.  

An y gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equip ment is recognized in profit 

or loss.  

(ii)  Subsequent expenditure  

Subsequent  expenditure is capitalized only if  it is probable that th e future econo mic benefits 

associat ed with the expenditure will f lo w to the Group.  

(iii)  Depreciation  

Depreciation is calculat ed on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit 

or loss on a straight line basis over the estima ted useful lives  of each co mp onent of an item of 

property, plant and equip ment.  

La nd is not depreciated.  

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equip ment for current and co mparat ive periods 

are as follo ws:  

1) B uildings  50 years  

2) B uilding improve ment  10 years  

3) M a chinery and R & D equip ment  6 years  
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4) M olding equip ment  2 years  

5) Other equip ment  2~10 years  

6) Testing equip ment  3 years  

Depreciation methods, useful lives  and residual values are revie wed at each report ing date  and 

adjusted if appropriate.  

(iv)  R eclassification to invest ment property  

A property is reclassified to invest ment property at its carrying a mount when the use of the 

property changes fro m o wneroccupied to investment property.  

(l)  Lease  

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 

or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an ident ified asset for a period 

of time in exchange for consideration.  

(i)  As a leasee  

The Group recognizes  a right -of-use asset and a lease liabilit y at the lease co m mence ment date. 

The right -of-use asset is initially measured a t cost, which co mprises the initial a mount  of the 

lease liabilit y adjusted for any lease payment s made at or befor e the co m mence ment  date, plus  

any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dis mantle and remove the underlying 

asset or to restore the underlying asset or the s ite on which it is located, less any lease incent ives  

received.  

The right-of-use asset is subsequent ly depreciated using the straight -line method fro m  the 

co m m ence ment  dat e to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right -of-use asset or the end 

of the lease ter m. In addition, the right -of-use asset is periodically reduced b y impair ment losses, 

if any, and adjusted for certain re measure ment s of the lease liability.  

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease pa yments that are not  

paid at the co m m ence ment  date, discounted using the int erest rate  implicit in the lease or, if  that 

rate cannot be reliably deter mined, the Group ’ s  incre mental borro wing rate. Generally,  the 

Group uses its incre mental borro wing rate as the discount rate.  

Lease paym ents included in the measure ment of the lease liabilit y co mprise the follo wing:  

(1) fixed payments, including in-substance fixed paym ents;  

(2) variable lease paym ents that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 

index or rate as at the co m m ence ment  date;  

(3) a mounts expected to be pa yable und er a residual value guarantee; and  

(4) paym ents for purchase or ter minat ion options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.  
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The lease liabilit y is measured at a mort ized cost using the effective interest method. It is  

re measured when:  

(1) there is a change in future lease paym ents aris ing fro m the change in an index or rate; or  

(2) there is a change in the Group’ s  estimate of the a mount expected to be pa yable under a 

residual value guarantee; or  

(3) there is a change in the lease ter m resulting fro m a change of its assess ment of whether it 

will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset, or  

(4) there is  a change of its assess ment  on whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 

ter minat ion option; or  

(5) there is any lease modifications.  

W h en the lease liabilit y is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a correspond ing 

adjust ment is made to the carrying a mount of the right -of-use asset, or in profit and loss if  the 

carrying a mount of the right -of-use asset has been red uced to zero.  

W h en the lease liabilit y is re measured to reflect the partial or full ter mination of the lease for 

lease modificat ions that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the 

re measure ment of the lease liabilit y by decreasing the car rying a mount of the right -of-use asset 

to reflect the partial or full ter minat ion of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or 

loss relating to the partial or full ter mination of the lease.  

The Group presents right -of-use assets that do not meet the definition of invest ment and lease 

liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the state ment of financial position.  

The Group has elect ed not to recognize right -of-use assets and lease liabilities for short -ter m 

leases and leases of lo w-value assets. The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with 

these leases as an expense on a straight -line basis over the lease ter m.  

(ii)  As a lessor  

W h en the Group acts as a lessor, it deter mines at lease co m m ence ment  whether each lease is a 

finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Group ma kes an overall assessm ent  

of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and re wards of ownership 

incidental to o wnership of the underlying asset . If this is the  case, then the lease is a finance lease; 

if not, then the lease is  an operating lease. As part of this  assess ment, the Group considers cer tain 

indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the econo mic life of the asset.  

( m)  Intangible assets   

(i)  R ecognition and measure ment  

G ood will arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less accu mulated 

impair ment losses.  

Expenditure on research act ivities  is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.  
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Develop ment expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the 

product or process is technically and co m m ercially feasible, future econo mic benefits  are 

probable and the Group intends to, and has sufficient  resources to, co mplete develop ment and to  

use or sell the asset. Other wise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, develop ment expenditure is measured at cost, less accu m ulated a mortization and 

any accu mulat ed impair ment losses.  

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives  are measured 

at cost less accu mulated a mortizat ion and any accu mulated impair ment losses.  

(ii)  Subsequent expenditure  

Subsequent  expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the fu ture econo mic benefits 

e mbodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure 

on internally generat ed good will and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.  

(iii)  A m ortization  

A m ortization is calculat ed over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized in 

profit or loss on a straight -line basis over the  estimated useful lives  of intangible assets, other 

than good will, from the dat e that they are avai lable for use.  

The estimated useful lives  for current and comp arative periods are as follows:  

1) C o mp uter soft ware  1~5 years  

2) Product develop ment expenses  1 year  

3) Pat ent  10 years  

4) Other intangible assets  2 years  

A m ortization methods, useful lives and residual values are revie wed at each reporting date and 

adjusted if appropriate.  

(n) Impair ment –  non-derivative financial assets   

At  each reporting dat e, the Group revie ws the carrying a mounts of its non -financial assets (other than 

inventories and deferred tax assets) to det er mine whe ther there is any indication of impair m ent. If an y 

such indicat ion exists, then the asset’s  recoverable a mount is estimated.  

For impair ment testing, assets are grouped together into the s mallest group of assets  that generates cas h 

inflo ws fro m continuing use that are largely independent  of the cash inflows of other assets  or C G Us. 

G ood will arising fro m a business  co mbinat ion is allocated to C G Us or groups of C G U s that are 

expected to benefit fro m the synergies of the co mbinat ion.  

The recoverable a mount of a n asset or C G U is the great er of its value in use and its fair value less costs  

to s ell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flo ws, discounted to their present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assess ments of t he time value of money and the risks  

specific to the asset or C G U.  
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An impair ment  loss is recognized if the carrying a mount of an asset or C G U exceeds its recoverable 

a mount.  

Impair ment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are all ocated first to reduce the carrying 

a mount of any good will allocated to the C G U, and then to reduce the carrying a mounts of the other 

assets in the C G U on a pro rata basis.  

(o) Provis ions   

A provis ion is  recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Gro up has a present obligation that can b e 

estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflo w of econo mic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation. Provis ions are deter mined by discounting the expected future cash flo ws at  a pre -tax rate 

that reflects the current market assess ments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

liabilit y. The un winding of the discount  is recognized as finance cost.  

A provis ion for warrant ies is recognized when the underlying products or services are sol d, based on 

historical warranty data and a weight ing of all possible outco mes against their associated probabilities.  

(p) R evenue  

(i)  R evenue fro m contracts with custo mers  

R evenue is measured based on the considerat ion to which the Group expects to be ent itled in 

exchange for transferring goods or services to  a custo mer. The Group recognizes  revenue when 

it satisfies a perfor ma nce obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a custom er. 

The accounting policies for the Group’ s  main types of revenue are explained belo w.   

1) Sale of goods  

The Group recognizes  revenue when control of the products has  been transferred, when the 

products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discret ion over the channel  

and price to sell the products, and there is no  unfulfilled obligation that could affect the 

custo mer’ s  acceptance of the products. Del ivery occurs when the products have been 

shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to  

the custo mer, and either the custo mer has accepted the products  in accordance with the 

sales contract, the acceptance provis ions have lapsed, or the Group has object ive evidence 

that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.  

The Group’s  obligat ion to provide a refund  for faulty electronic co mponents under the 

standard warranty ter ms is recognized as a provision for warranty; please refer to note 6( m).  

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the 

Group has a right to an a mount of consideration that is unconditional.  
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2) C o m missioned technical s ervice  

The Group provides co m missioned technical services. Revenue from providing services is  

recognized in the accounting period in which the services  ar e rendered. For fixed-price 

contracts, revenue is recognized based on the actual service provided to the end of the 

report ing period as a proportion of the total services  to be provided. The proport ion of 

services  provided is deter mined based on the costs incurred to dat e as a proportion of the 

total estimated costs of the transaction. The custo mer pays the fixed a mount based on a 

paym ent s chedule. If the s ervices rendered by the Group exceed the paym ent, a contract  

asset is recognized. If the pa yments exce ed the services  rendered, a contract liability is  

recognized.  

3) Authorized  

The royalties collected are recognized as licensing inco me when the soft ware is installed 

on the product sold to the custo mer, and the licensing inco me is recognized in installment s  

according to the schedule stipulat ed in the con tract.  

4) Financing co mponents  

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period bet ween the t ransfer of 

the promised goods or s ervices  to the custo me r and paym ent  by the custo mer exceeds one 

year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transact ion prices for the tim e 

value of money.  

(q) E mployee benefits   

(i)  Defined contribut ion plans  

Ob ligations for contribut ions to the defined contribution plans are expensed as the relat ed  service 

is provided.  

(ii)  Short -ter m e mployee benefits  

Short -ter m e mployee benefit obligations are expensed as the relat ed service is provided . A 

liabilit y is recognized for the a mount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or 

constructive obligat ion to pa y this a mount as a result of past service provided b y the e mployee, 

and the obligation can be estimated reliably.  

(r)  Share-based pa yment   

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based pa yment  arrange ments granted to e m ployees is  

generally recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period 

of the a wards. The a mount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the nu mber of awards for 

which the relat ed service and non- market perfor ma nce condit ions are expected to be met , such that the 

a mount ultimately recognized is based on the nu mber of a wards that meet  the relat ed service and 

non- market perfor mance condit ions at the vesting date.  

For share-based pa yment  a wards with non -vesting condit ions, the grant-dat e fair value of the 

share-based pa yment  is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true -up for differences  

bet ween expected and actual outco mes.  
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The fair value of the a mount pa yable to e mployees in respect of s hare appreciat ion rights, which are 

settled in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period 

during which the e mployees beco me uncondit ionally entitled to pa yment. The liability is rem easured 

at each report ing dat e and at s ettle ment date based on the fair value of the share appreciation rights. 

An y changes in the liabilit y are recognized in profit or loss.  

Grant dat e of a short -based pa yment  a ward is the date which the board of directors approves the capita l 

increase base date.  

(s)  Inco me taxes   

Inco me taxes co mprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to  business 

co mbinations or recognized directly in equity or other co mprehensive inco me, all current and deferred 

taxes are recognized in profit or loss.  

The Group has deter mined that the global mini mu m top -up tax – which it is required to pay under  

Pillar T wo legis lation – is an inco m e tax in the scope of IAS 12. The Group has applied a te mporary 

ma ndatory relief from deferred tax ac counting for the impacts of the top -up tax and accounts for it as  

a current tax when it is incurred.  

C urrent taxes co mprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for the 

year and any adjust ment to the tax pa yable or recei vable in respect of previous years. The am ount of 

current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax a mount expected to be paid or 

received that reflects uncertainty related to inco me taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted 

or substantively enacted at the reporting dat e.  

Deferred taxes arise due to te mp orary differences bet ween the carrying a mounts of assets and  liabilities  

at the reporting dat e and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are recognized except for the 

follo wing:  

(i)  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities  in a transaction that is  not 

a business co mbination and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable 

profits (losses) and does not give ris e to equal taxable and deduct ible temporary differenses;  

(ii)  temporary differences relat ed to invest ments in subsidiaries, associates  and joint arrange m ents 

to the extent that  the Group is  able to control the timing of the reversal of the te mporary 

differences  and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and  

(iii)  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of good will.  

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry for ward of unused tax losses, unused tax cred its, and 

deduct ible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 

available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are revie wed at each reporting date  

and are reduced to the ext ent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized;  

such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.  

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences whe n  

they reserve, using tax rates  enact ed or substantively enacted at the report ing date.  
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the follo wing criteria are met:  

(i)  the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current ta x assets against current tax liabilities; 

and 

(ii)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to inco me taxes levied by the sa m e 

taxation authority on either:  

1) the sa me taxable ent it y; or  

2) different taxable entities which int end to sett le current tax assets and liabilities  on a net 

basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities sim ultaneously, in each future period in which 

significant a mounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expec ted to be settled or 

recovered.  

(t) Earnings (losses) per share   

The Group discloses  the Co mpany’ s  basic and dilut ed earnings (losses) per share attributable to 

ordinary shareholders of the C o mpany. Basic earnings (losses) per share is  calculated as the  earnings  

(losses) attributable to ordinary shareholders  of the Co mpany divided b y the weighted average nu mber 

of ordinary shares outstanding. Dilut ed earnings (losses) per share is calculat ed as the losses  

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the C o mpa ny divided b y the weighted average nu mb er of 

ordinary shares  outstanding after adjust ment  for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, 

such as employee co mpensation and ne w restricted stocks for e mployees.  

(u) Op erating seg ments   

An operating seg ment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it 

ma y incur revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with 

other co mp onents of the Group). Operat ing results of the operatin g seg ment are regularly revie wed b y 

the Group’s  chief operating decision maker to make decis ions about resources to be alloca ted to the 

seg ment and assess its perfor mance. Each  operat ing seg ment consists of stand alone  financial 

infor mation.  

(5) Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparat ion of the consolidated financial s tatements in confor mity with the IF RSs endorsed by the FS C 

requires ma nage ment  to ma ke judg ments, estimates, and assu mptions that affect the application of the 

accounting policies  and the report ed a mount of assets, liabilities, inco me, and expenses. Actual results ma y 

differ fro m these estimates.  

The ma nage ment  cont inues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The m a nage ment  

recognizes  any changes in accounting estim ates during the period and the impact of those changes in 

accounting estimates in the next period.  
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The accounting policies involved significant judg ments and the infor mation that have s i gnificant effect on  

the a mounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as follo ws:  

(a)  Judg ment  of whether the Group has substantive control over its invest ees  

In April 2022, the Group increased its investm ent in the secured convertible bonds of tBP C. After 

considering the co mprehensive shareholding ratio of potent ially ordinary shares and the intent ion t o 

do minate tBP C’ s  operating and financial act ivities, the C o mpany assessed to have substant ial control 

over tBP C and therefore tBP C was included in the consolidated financial state ments s ince the date of 

acquisition of substantial control.  

Infor mation about assu mptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in 

a material adjust ment within the next financial year is as follo ws:  

(b) Valuation of inventories  

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost  or net realizable value, the net realizable value of the 

inventory is mainly deter mined based on assumptions as to future sales  price. Due to the industry and 

market  transfor mation, there ma y be changes in the net  realizable value of inventories. Please refer to 

note 6(d) for further description of the valuation of inventories.  

(6) Explanation of significant accounts    

(a) Cash and cash equivalents   

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 
 Petty cash, checking accounts and de mand deposits  $  101,773    98,679   

 Ti me deposits   10,900    2,900   

 Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidat ed state ments of  

cash flows  $ 112,673   101,579  

    

Please refer to note 6(x) for the exchange rate risk, the interest rate risk and the sensitivity analysis of 

the financial assets and liabilities of the Group .  

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss -current   

  
 December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 
    
 Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or 

loss-current:       

 C o mp onent of convertible bonds  $ -   2,842  
    
tBP C had redee med 108 units of its matured secured convertible bonds in June 2022, with the book 

values of $10,800.  
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tBP C, a subsidiary of the Group, issued convertible bonds including the main contract debt instru ment 

and the conversion right derivatives . As of Dece mb er 31, 2022, the fair value of the conversion right  

a mounting to $2,842 was recognized as financ ial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.  

Since April 2022, the Co mpany has acquired substantial control over tBP C, who included in 

consolidated financial statement, wherein the secured convert ible bonds, which was held b y t he 

C o mpany, have been eliminated in consolidation as of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, respect ively.  

(c)  Notes and accounts receivable   

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Notes receivable fro m operating activities  $  1,021    -  

 Accounts receivable- measured at a mortized cost   42,346    59,115   

   43,367    59,115   

 Less: Loss allo wa nce   (163)   (81)  

  $ 43,204   59,034  
    
The Group applies the simp lified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of 

lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, accounts  

receivable have been grouped based on shared credit r isk charact eristics and the days past due, as wel l 

as incorporated for ward looking infor mation. The loss allo wa nce was deter mined as follo ws :  

  December 31, 2023 

  Gross carrying 

amount 

Weighted-avera

ge loss rate Loss allowance 

 C urrent  $  30,179   0 %   -  

 Less  than 30 days past due   10,327   0.26 %   27   

 31 to 90 days past due   2,543   1.61 %   41   

 91 to 180 da ys past due   318   29.87 %   95   

  $ 43,367    163  
     

  December 31, 2022 

  Gross carrying 

amount 

Weighted-avera

ge loss rate Loss allowance 

 C urrent  $  44,559   0 %   -  

 Less  than 30 days past due   12,829   0.20 %   26   

 31 to 90 days past due   1,718   3.03 %   52   

 91 to 180 da ys past due   9   33.33 %   3   

  $ 59,115    81  
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The move m ent in the allo wa nce for notes and accounts receivable was as follows:  

  2023 2022 

 Balance at January 1  $  81    60   

 Impair ment losses recognized   82    21   

 Balance at Dece mb er 31  $ 163    81   

    

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group did not provide any of the afore mentioned  notes and 

accounts receivable as collaterals for its loans.  

(d) Inventories   

 
  

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Finished goods  $  1,141    2,286   

 Wor k in progress   991    1,442   

 Ra w materials   528    4,755   

 M erchandise inventories   208,801    220,539   

  $ 211,461   229,022  

    

The details of cost of sales for the years ended  Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follo ws:  

   
 2023 2022 

 C ost of goods sold and expenses  $  299,927    400,562   

 Inventory valuation loss and obsolescence   10,582    3,272   

  $ 310,509   403,834  
    

For the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the write -do wn of inventories to net realizable value 

a mounted to $10,582 and $3,272, respect ively. 

As of Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group did not provide any inventories as collaterals for its  

loans.  

(e)  Invest ments accounted for using the equity m ethod   

The co mp onents of invest ments accounted for using the equity method at the report ing date were as  

follo ws: 

 

 

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Associat es  $ -   -  

    

(i)  Associat es  
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The details of the material associat es are as follo ws:  

 

  

Main operating 

location/  

Proportion of shareholding 

and voting rights 

 

Name  of Associate Nature of the relationship with the Group 

Registered 

Country of the 

Company 

December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

  tBPC  Shareholder with significant influence  Taiwan  Note Note 

      

Note: Subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements since April 2022. 

The follo wing aggregated financial infor mation of the significant associates has been adjusted 

according to individually prepared IFR S consolidation financial statements to reflect the fair  

value adjust ments made at the time of acquisit ion.  

1) Su m marized financial infor mation of tBP C  

 
  For the three 

months ended 

March 31, 

2022 

 Op erating revenue  $ 743  

 Loss fro m continuing operations (equal to comprehensive loss)  $ (10,245)  

 Total consolidated loss attributable to o wners of the associate  $ (10,245)  
   

 
  December 

31, 2022 

 Share of net assets  of the associat e as of January 1  $  18,936   

 C o mprehensive loss attributable to the Group   (3,557)  

 Written off by co mbination   (15,379)   

 Share of net assets of the associat e as of Decemb er 31  $ -  

   

(ii)  The C o mpany has acquired substantial control over tBP C since April 2022, tBP C becam e a 

subsidiary and is included in the consolidated financial statements. The equity invest men t by 

using the equity method should be regarded as disposal at fair value with IF RS, and a disposal 

gain of $3,687 wa s recognized, please refer to  note 6(f).  

(f)  Acquisition of subsidiary   

(i)  Acquisition of subsidiary  

In April 2022, the Co mpany increased invest m ent in the s ecured convertible bonds of tBP C, after 

considering the co mprehensive shareholding ratio of poten tially ordinary shares and the inten tion 

to do minate tBP C’s  operating and financial activities. The C o mpany's int erest in tBP C re m ains 

at 34.72 %. The main business of tBP C is the research and develop ment, ma nufacture and sale of 

m edical equip ment and healt h care products.  
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1) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assum ed  

The follo wing table su m marizes the recognized a mounts of assets acquired and liabilities  

assu med at the aquisition dat e:  

 Cash and cash equivalents  $  4,000   

 Inventories   10,210   

 Accounts receivable and other receivables   5   

 Prepa yment   5,055   

 Other current assets   4,788   

 Property, plant and equip ment (note 6(h))   11,893   

 Right -of-use assets (note 6(i))   8,903   

 Intangible assets (note 6(k))   30,849   

 Other non-current assets   1,766   

 Other short-ter m borro wings   (6,100)  

 Other payables   (5,142)  

 Other current liabilities   (14,366)   

 Non-current liabilities   (7,567)  

 Others   278   

 The fair value of net ident ifable assets acquired  $ 44,572  
   
There was no s ignificant difference bet ween  the carrying a mount of the equity method 

invest ments of the Group and the fair value of the net ident ifiable assets on April 1, 2022.  

The Group will continue to revie w the above i tems during the measure ment  p eriod. If ne w 

infor mation beco m es available within one yea r of the dat e of acquisition of control relating 

to facts and circu mstances existing at the date of acquisition of control that would identify 

an adjust ment to the provisional a mount described above  or any additional provis ion for 

liabilities  existing at the date of acquisition, the accounting for the acquisition of control 

will be modified.  

The fair value of tBP C's net ident ifiable assets on April 1, 2022, was based on the appraisal 

report that issued b y Professional Actuary Ma nage ment  Consulting C o., Ltd.  

(g) M aterial non-controlling interests of subsidiaries   

The C o mpany exercised its rights to convert the 2nd of three, 1st of four, 2nd of four and 3 rd of four 

bat ches of matured convert ible bonds issued by tBP C in April, June, July and October of 2023, with 

the convertible prices  of $0.3 Ne w Taiwan dollars, $0.2 Ne w Tai wa n dollars, $0.2 Ne w Tai wan dollars  

and $0.1 Ne w Tai wa n dollars per share, at  the book values of $8,640 (including interest recei vable 

of $640), $12,528 (including  int erest receivable of $928), $6,480 (including int erest rece ivable of 

$480) and $6,480 (including int erest receivable of $480), resulting in the acquisition of 28,800  

thousand, 62,640 thousand, 32,400 thousand and 64,80 0 thousand shares, respect ively, totaling 

188,640 thousand shares. As of Dece mber 31, 2023, the C o mpany‘ s  shareholding rat io was  56.98 %.  
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The difference in book value due to the conversion of tBP C convertible bonds into co m m on stock 

(including other bond holder) resulted in the C o mpany’ s   capital surplus to increase by $372 in 2023.  

The material non-controlling int erests of subsidiaries were as follo ws:  

   

Percentage of 

non-controlling interests 
 

Subsidiaries Main operation place 

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Taiwan Biophotonic Co. (tBP C)  Taiwan   43.02 %    65.28 %   

     

The following infor mation of the afore mentioned subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with 

the R egulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.  Included in 

these infor mation are the fair value adjust men t made during the acquisition and relevant difference in 

accounting principles bet ween the Group as at  the acquisition dat e.  Intragroup transactions  were not 

eliminated in this  infor mation.  

(i)  tBP C collective financial infor mation  

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 C urrent assets  $  22,300    38,489   

 Non-current assets   37,550    53,161   

 C urrent liabilities   (41,195)    (68,454)   

 Non-current liabilities   (2,660)    (5,210)   

 Net assets  $ 15,995   17,986  

 Non-controlling int erests  $ 6,881   11,742  

    

  

For the  

year ended 

December 

31, 2023 

 For the  

period April 

to December  

31, 2022 

 Sales revenue  $ 2,269   7,240  

 Net loss (as sa me as co mprehensive loss)  $ (58,583)   (26,308)  

 Loss, attributable to non-controlling int erests  $ (26,953)   (17,174)  

 Total co mprehensive loss, attributable to non -controlling 

interests  $ (26,953)   (17,174)  
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 For the  

year ended 

December  

31, 2023 

For the  

period April 

to December  

31, 2022 

 Net cash flows used in operating act ivities  $  (24,103)    (20,946)   

 Net cash flows used in investing activities   (2,760)   (4,964)  

 Net cash flows fro m financing activities   21,215    38,960   

 Net decrease (increase) in cash and cash equivalents  $ (5,648)   13,050  
    

(h) Property, plant and equip ment   

The move ments of cost and depreciation of the property, plant and equip ment of the Group for the 

years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022 , were as follo ws:  

  

Land 

Buildings and 

building 

improvement 

Machinery 

and R&D 

equipment 

Molding 

equipment 

and other 

equipment 

Transportation 

equipment 

Equipment to 

be  accepted Total 

 Cost:                      

   Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 95,104   29,484   6,810   23,910   502   6,653   162,463  

  Additions for the period  -   -   282   634   -   -   916  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (651)   -   -   (651)  

 
 Effect of movements in exchange 

rates  -   -   -   198   -   -   198  

  Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 95,104   29,484   7,092   24,091   502   6,653   162,926  

  Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 95,104   29,484   4,942   14,681   -   -   144,211  

 
 Acquisition through a business 

combination (note 6(f))  -   -   265   8,344   -   3,284   11,893  

  Additions for the period  -   -   1,252   837   488   2,925   5,502  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (172)   -   -   (172)  

  Transferred in  -   -   88   -   -   444   532  

  Effect of movements in exchange 

rates 

 -   -   263   220   14   -   497  

  Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 95,104   29,484   6,810   23,910   502   6,653   162,463  

 Depreciation:                      

  Balance on January 1, 2023 $ -   9,307   5,275   15,876   55   -   30,513  

  Depreciation for the period  -   847   361   2,543   170   -   3,921  

  Impairment loss  -   -   -   183   -   5,739   5,922  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (637)   -   -   (637)  

  Effect of movements in exchange 

rates 

 -   -   (1)   187   (2)   -   184  

  Balance on December 31, 2023 $ -   10,154   5,635   18,152   223   5,739   39,903  

  Balance on January 1, 2022 $ -   8,292   4,756   13,723   -   -   26,771  

  Depreciation for the period  -   1,015   259   2,120   54   -   3,448  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (172)   -   -   (172)  

  Effect of movements in exchange 

rates 

 -   -   260   205   1   -   466  

  Balance on December 31, 2022 $ -   9,307   5,275   15,876   55   -   30,513  

 Book value:                      

  Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 95,104   19,330   1,457   5,939   279   914   123,023  

  Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 95,104   21,192   186   958   -   -   117,440  

  Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 95,104   20,177   1,535   8,034   447   6,653   131,950  

         

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the property, plant and equip ment have been pledged as  collateral 

for short-ter m borro wings and credits. Please refer to note 8.  
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The Group assessed that so me of equip ment had no future de ma nd for use in 2023, and an imp air ment  

loss of  $5,922 was recognized.  

(i)  Right -of-use assets  

The Group  leases many assets including buildings and transportation. The move m ents of cost and 

depreciation of those assets were as belo w:  

  Buildings Transportation Total 

 Cost:          

  B alance on Januar y 1, 2023  $  34,798    15,354    50,152   

  E ffect of move ments in foreign exchange rates   577    571    1,148   

`  B alance on Dece mb er 31, 2023  $ 35,375   15,925   51,300  

  B alance on Januar y 1, 2022  $  24,028    14,667    38,695   

 

 A cq uisition through a business co mbination  

(note 6(f))   8,903    -   8,903   

  A d ditions for the period   170    -   170   

  E ffect of move ments in foreign exchange rates   1,697    687    2,384   

  B alance on Dece mb er 31, 2022  $ 34,798   15,354   50,152  

 Depreciation:          

  B alance on Januar y 1, 2023  $  23,244    11,580    34,824   

  D epreciation for the period   7,173    2,163    9,336   

  E ffect of move ments in foreign exchange rates   493    441    934   

  B alance on Dece mb er 31, 2023  $ 30,910   14,184   45,094  

  B alance on Januar y 1, 2022  $  15,619    8,839    24,458   

  D epreciation for the period   6,316    2,218    8,534   

  E ffect of move ments in foreign exchange rates   1,309    523    1,832   

  B alance on Dece mb er 31, 2022  $ 23,244   11,580   34,824  

 Carrying amounts:          

  B alance on Dece mb er 31, 2023  $ 4,465   1,741   6,206  

  B alance on Januar y 1, 2022  $ 8,409   5,828   14,237  

  B alance on Dece mb er 31, 2022  $ 11,554   3,774   15,328  
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(j)  Invest ment property   

Details of the invest ment property were as follo ws:  

  

Land 

Buildings and 

construction Total 

 Cost          

 

 B alance on January 1, 2023  

 ( Sa m e balance on Dece mber 31, 2023)  $ 111,400   59,151   170,551  

 

 B alance on January 1, 2022  

 ( Sa m e balance on Dece mber 31, 2022)  $ 111,400   59,151   170,551  

 Depreciation:          

  B alance on January 1, 2023  $  -   10,450    10,450   

  D epreciation of the period   -   1,183    1,183   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ -   11,633   11,633  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $  -   9,267    9,267   

  D epreciation of the period   -   1,183    1,183   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ -   10,450   10,450  

 Book value:          

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 111,400   47,518   158,918  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $ 111,400   49,884   161,284  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 111,400   48,701   160,101  

 Fair value:    

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023    $ 233,000  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022    $ 225,000  

     

Invest ment property co mprises of co m m ercial property that is leased to third parties . Each of the leases  

contains an initial non-cancellable lease period. Subsequent rene wals  are negot iated with the lessee. 

No cont ingent rents are charged. Please refer to note 6 (p) for relevant infor mation (including rental 

inco me and direct operating expenses incurred). The fair value of invest ment propert ies  wa s based on 

a valuat ion by a qualified independent appraiser who has recent valuation experience in the location 

and categor y of the invest ment property being valued. The inputs  of levels of fair value hierarchy in 

det er mining the fair value is classifie d to Leve l 3. 

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the invest ment propoerty has been pledged as collateral for  

short-ter m borro wings and credits. Please refer to note 8.  
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(k) Intangible assets   

The cost and a mortizat ion of intangible assets  of the Group were as follo ws:  

  Patent 

Computer 

software 

and others Total 

 Cost:          

  B alance on January 1, 2023  $  31,467    15,092    46,559   

  A ddit ion for the period   3,371    624    3,995   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 34,838   15,716   50,554  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $  -   12,801    12,801   

 
 A cquisition through a business co mbinat ion  

(note 6(f))   30,766    83    30,849   

  A ddit ion for the period   701    2,222    2,923   

  Disposals   -   (14)   (14)  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 31,467   15,092   46,559  

 Amortization and impairment loss:          

  B alance on January 1, 2023  $  4,343    12,878    17,221   

  A m ortization for the period   5,959    1,272    7,231   

  I mpair ment loss   -   917    917   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 10,302   15,067   25,369  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $  -   11,951    11,951   

  A m ortization for the period   4,343    941    5,284   

  Disposals   -   (14)   (14)  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 4,343   12,878   17,221  

 Book value:          

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 24,536   649   25,185  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $ -   850   850  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 27,124   2,214   29,338  

     

As of Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, the intangible assets have been pledged as collateral for 

convertible bonds. Please refer to note 8.  

The Group assessed that  some of the intangible assets had no de ma nd for use in the future in 2023, and 

an impair ment loss of  $917 was recognized.  
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(l)  Short -ter m borro wings   

The details of short -ter m borro wings were as follows:  

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 
 Unsecured bank loans  $  61,685    79,044   

 Secured bank loans   130,000    156,000   

 Other short-ter m borro wings   -   6,314   

 Total $ 191,685   241,358  

 Unused credit lines for short -ter m borro wings  $ 269,462   236,922  

 Ra nge of interest rates   2.06%~6.91%   1.53%~6.51%  

    

Please refer to note 6(x) for the interest risk, foreign currency exchange rate risk, and liquidity risk 

infor mation of the Group.  

The condition of the Group borrowed with related parties, please refer to note 7.  

The Group provided property, plant and equipm ent  and invest ment property as collaterals for its bank 

loans.  Please refer to note 8.  

( m)  Provisions — warranties   

  2023 2022 

 Balance on January 1  $  3,380    2,986   

 Provisions ma de during the period   2,708    3,378   

 Provisions used during the period   (2,301)   (3,022)  

 Effect of move ments in exchange rates   -   38   

 Balance on Dece mber 31  $ 3,787   3,380  

    
Provisions related to sale of products are asses sed based on historical infor mation.  

(n) Lease liabilities  

The details of lease liabilities were as follo ws:  

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 C urrent  $ 4,025   9,549  

 Non-current  $ 2,645   6,642  

    

For the maturity analysis,  please refer to note 6(x).  
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The a mounts recognized in profit or loss were  as follo ws:  

  2023 2022 

 Int erest on lease liabilities  $ 285   394  

 Variable lease payments not included in the m easure ment of lease 

liabilities  $ 5,688   5,786  

 Expenses relating to short -ter m leases  $ 1,422   1,067  

    

The a mounts recognized in the consolidated state ments of cash flo ws for the Group were as follo ws:  

  2023 2022 

 Total cash outflo w fro m leases  $ 17,141   15,718  
    

(i)  R eal estate lease  

The Group leases buildings for its office space. The leases of office space typically run for three 

to seven years.  

(ii)  Other leases  

The Group leases  vehicle, with lease ter ms of two to five years.  

The Group also leases office equip ment with contract ter m s of less than one year. These leases  

are short-ter m leases or low-value items. The Group has elect ed not to recognize right -of-use 

assets and lease liabilities for these leases.  

(o) B onds pa yable   

The Group's bonds payable was det er mined as  follows:  

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Do mestic secured convertible bonds payable  $  30,000    52,400   

 C o mp onents of the conversion option   -   (9,281)  

 Eliminat ion through consolidat ion   (30,000)    (26,020)  

 Balance on Dece mber 31  $ -   17,099  

 
   

Please refer to note 6 (b) for the co mponents of the conversion opt ion issued in 2023 and 2022.  

The consolidated subsidiary, tBP C, converted its secured convert ible bonds into ordinary shares, fully 

wherein parts of which matured in April, June, July and O ctober 2023. M oreover, the Co mpan y 

subscribed the 170 units and 130 units of tBP C ’ s  secured convertible bonds in M a y and September 

2023, at a par value of $100 per unit, resulting in tBP C to be eliminated in the consolidated financial 

state ments.  
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The holder of each unit of bonds has the right to convert each unit of bonds into shares of co m m o n 

stock of tBP C at a price equal to the net worth per share of tBP C 's most recently unaudited and 

unrevie wed financial statements as of the  date of issuance, adjust ed to the net worth per share of tBP C 

's most  recently unaudited and unrevie wed financial statements as of the dat e of conversion or the net  

worth in the tBP C's unaudit ed and unrevie wed financial state ments, one month before the sh areholders' 

m eet ing for the issuance of convertible bonds using the follo wing for mula: Adjust ed C onversion 

Price=C onversion price before adjust ment x  (  the net worth per share reflected in the tB P C's unaudited 

and unrevie wed financial state ments one mon th before the dat e of conversion, or the net worth in the 

tBP C's unaudit ed and unrevie wed financial statements one month before the shareholders' meeting for 

the issuance of convertible bonds, divided by the net worth per share in the tBP C's unaudited and 

unrevie wed financial statements one month before date of issuance, or the net worth in the tBP C's  

unaudited and unrevie wed financial statemen ts one month before the shareholders' meeting for the 

issuance of convert ible bonds ). The conversion period is fro m t he day following the expiration dat e, 

three months after the issue date to expiry date. If the bonds are not converted at that time, they will 

be repaid in cash at 8 % of the par value of the bonds, plus accrued int erest on the expiry date.  

(p) Op erating lease   

The Group leases  out its invest ment property. The Group has classified these leases  as operat ing leases, 

because it does not transfer substantially all of  the risks and re wards incidental to the o wnership of the 

assets. Please refer to note 6(j) sets out infor m ation about the operating leases of invest ment property.  

A maturit y analysis of lease paym ents, sho wing the undiscounted lease payments to be received after 

the report ing dat e was as follo ws:  

   December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 
 Less than one year  $  5,428    5,143   

 O ne to t wo years   5,543    -  

 Two to three years   5,543    -  

 Total undiscounted lease payments  $ 16,514   5,143  

    

For the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the rental inco me recognized in operat ing revenue 

a mounted to $5,210 and $5,203, respectively; the direct costs incurred in rental, which were recognized 

as operating costs, a mounted to $1,601 and $1 ,605, respect ively  

(q) E mployee benefits   

The C o mpany and tBP C allocat ed no less than 6 % of each e mployee’s  monthly wages to  the labor 

pension personal account at Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provis ions of the Labor  

Pension Act. Under this defined contribution plan, the Co mpany and tBP C allocated a fixed am ount to  

the Bureau of Labor Insurance without addit ional legal or constructive obligat ions.  

O verseas subsidiaries recognized the pension expenses and ma de the periodical payments under the 

defined contribut ion method b y local la ws.  
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The expenses recognized in p rofit or loss for the Group were as follo ws:  

 2023 2022 

 
Op erating cost  

$  33    101   

 
Selling expenses  

 2,181    2,257   

 
Ad ministrative expenses  

 2,122    1,807   

 R esearch and develop ment expenses   1,161    1,023   

 Total $ 5,497   5,188  

    

(r)  Inco me taxes   

(i)  Inco me tax expenses  

1) The a mount of inco me tax for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follo ws:  

 2023 2022 

 C urrent tax expenses for the period  $ 876   484  

    

2) R econciliations of inco me tax and loss before tax for 2023 and 2022 were as follows:  

  2023 2022 

 Loss before tax  $  (55,897)    (30,449)   

 Inco me tax using the Group’s  do mestic tax rate   (17,519)    (8,742)   

 Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction   33    (217)  

 Loss of do mestic invest ment under equity method   6,051    2,538   

 C hange in current year losses for which no deferred tax 

assets recognized  

 

   5,357    

 

   5,386    

 C hange in unrecognized te mp orary differences   1,456    1,989   

 Other   5,498    (470)  

  $ 876   484  
    

(ii)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities  

1) Unrecognized deferred tax assets  

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the follo wing ite ms:  

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Tax effect of deduct ible temporary differences  $  95,314    93,858   

 The carryfor ward of unused tax losses   133,137    140,790   

 Ex change differences on translation of foreign  financial 

state ments  

 

   14,380    

 

   16,608    

  $ 242,831   251,256  
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The Co mpa ny is able to control the timing o f the reversal of the temporary differences 

related to the invest ments in subsidiaries on Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022. The t e mp orar y 

differences arising fro m the invest ments in subsidiaries where there is a probabi lit y that  

such te mp orary differences will not reverse in  the foreseeable future were not recognized 

as deferred tax assets.   

The Group's tax losses  which could be used to offset future taxable inco me as  of Dece mber 

31, 2023, were as follo ws:  

 Year of loss Unused tax losses Expiry year Remark 

 The Co mpa ny:     

 2014   63,048   2024  (assessed)  

 2015   25,105   2025  (assessed)  

 2016   8,868   2026  (assessed)  

 2017   2,593   2027  (assessed)  

 2019   3,555   2029  (assessed)  

 2020   73,763   2030  (assessed)  

 tBP C:     

 2014   12,969   2024  (assessed)  

 2015   30,303   2025  (assessed)  

 2016   55,038   2026  (assessed)  

 2017   54,664   2027  (assessed)  

 2018   50,862   2028  (assessed)  

 2019   26,234   2029  (assessed)  

 2020   17,900   2030  (assessed)  

 2021   19,459   2031  (assessed)  

 2022   33,605   2032  (declared)  

 2023   39,109   2033  (declared)  

   $ 517,075    

The R.O. C. Inco me Tax Act allo ws net losses , as assessed by the tax authorities, to offset  

taxable inco me over a period of ten years for local tax reporting purposes. The tax losses  

m entioned above could be used to offset future taxable inco me. Because of the uncertainty 

of future taxable inco me, the Group did not recognize the deferred tax assets arising fro m 

the tax losses.  

According to the US Tax Act, the assessed loss carryfor ward of AG Neovo US A can be 

used to offset against federal and state taxable inco me over a period of t wenty years. As of 

Dece mb er 31, 2023, AG Neovo US A had  unused net operating loss a mounting to 

US $4,557 thousands and US$ 178 thousands for federal and state inco me tax return 

purposes, respectively, which can be carried for ward thro ugh 2043. 
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2) Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities  

The Co mpa ny is able to control the timing o f the reversal of the temporary differences 

associat ed with invest ments in foreign subsidiaries, and believes that the temporar y 

differences wil l not  reverse in the foreseeable future; therefore, no deferred tax liabilities  

were recognized for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Details  

were as follo ws:  

  December 31, 

2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Aggregate a mount  of te mp orary differences not 

recongnized relat ed to invest ments in subsidia ries  $ 54,084   48,681  

 
Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities  $ 10,817   9,736  
    

3) R ecognized deferred tax assets and liabilities: None.  

(iii)  The C o mpany’ s  inco me tax returns for the years through 2021 have been exa mined by the  tax 

authorities.  

(s)  Capital and other equit ies   

(i)  Ordinary shares  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the C o mp any’ s  authorized co m mon stocks were consis ting 

of 200,000 thousand shares with a par value of $10 N e w Tai wa n dollars per share a mounted 

$2,000,000 of which 55,219 thousand shares  and 54,533 thousand shares, respectively, were 

issued. All issued shares were paid up upon issuance.  

R econciliation of shares outstanding for 2023 and 2022 were as follo ws:  

Unit: in thousand shares  

  Common stocks 
  2023 2022 

 Balance on January 1   54,533    54,625   

 Issuance of ne w restricted e mployee shares   1,300    -  

 Ca ncellation of ne w restrict ed e mployee shares   (614)   (92)  

 Balance on Dece mber 31   55,219   54,533  

    
The Co mpa ny a warded 1,300 thousand shares of e mployee restricted shares  in April 2023. Please 

refer to note 6(t) for the relat ed infor mation.  

614 thousand and 92 thousand shares of e m ployee restrict ed shares were repurchased b y the 

C o mpany in 2023 and 2022, respect ively, as certain e mployees of the Co mpany did not meet  the 

vesting require ments, and the cancellation procedure had been co mplet ed.  
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(ii)  Capital surplus  

The balances of capital surplus were as follo ws:  

    

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Addit ional paid-in capital $  20,106    20,106   

 R estricted e mployee shares   (303)   (905)  

 E mployee stock options -expired   5,343    5,343   

 Donation from shareholders   1,615    1,615   

 C hanges in equity of associates   3,169    3,169   

 C hanges in equity in subsidiaries   372    -  

  $ 30,302   29,328  

    

According to the R.O.C. C o mpany Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit,  and 

only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the co m mon stock or be distributed as  

cash dividends. The afore mentioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting 

fro m pre miu m on issuance of capital stock and  earnings fro m donated assets received. According 

to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Is suance of Securities by Securities Issuers, 

capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not exceed 10% of 

the total co m mon stock outstanding.  

(iii)  R etained earnings  

The C o mpany’ s  Art icles of Incorporat ion stipulate that  Co mpa ny’s  net earnings should first 

be used to offset the prior years ’  deficits, if any, before paying any inco me taxes. Of  the 

re maining balance, 10 % is to be appropriat ed as legal reserve, and the others are supposed to be 

set as ide or reversed as the s pecial reserve in  accordance with la ws and regulations. And then 

any re maining profit together with any und istributed retained earnings shall be distributed 

according to the distribution plan proposed by the Board of Directors and sub mitted to  the 

stockholders’  meet ing for approval.  

The C o mpany adopts the residual dividend policy. In consideration of the expansion of 

operat ions and the need of cash flo ws in the future, when the Co mpany plans to distribute its 

dividends, the distributable a mounts cannot be less than 50 % of the cu mulat ive distributable 

surplus. M oreover, at least 10 % of the dividends should be distributed in cash.  

1) Legal reserve  

W h en a co mpany incurs no loss, it ma y, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders' meeting, 

distribute its legal reserve by issuing ne w shares or by distributing cash, and only the 

portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25 % of  capital ma y be distributed.  
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2) Special reserve  

In accordance with Ruling No. 1010012865 issued b y the FS C on April 6, 2012, a portion 

of current-period earnings and undistributed prior -period earnings shall be reclassified as  

a special earnings reserve during earnings distribut ion. The a mount to be reclassified 

should equal to the current -period total net reduct ion of other sha reholders ’  equity. 

Si milarly, a portion of undistributed prior period earnings shall be reclassified as a special 

earnings reserve (and does not qualified for earnings distribution) to account for cu mulative 

changes to other shareholders’  equity pertaining to prior periods. A m ounts of subsequent  

reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders ’  equity shall qualify for 

additional distribut ions.  The balances of special reserve as  of Dece mber 31, 2023 and 

2022 are both $79,510. 

3) Earnings distribution  

Based on the resolutions made during the annual stockholder's meeting held on June 20, 

2023 and June 22, 2022, respectively, there are no earnings could be distributed in 2022  

and 2021, respect ively.  

(iv)  Treasury shares  

Based on the resolutions ma de during the board meetings on Ma y 8 and August 7, 2019, 

respectively, the Co mpany deter mined to repu rchase 1,500 thousand shares  each, totaling 3,000  

thousand treasury shares, to be converted into e mployee stock opt ions. As of  Dece mber 31, 2023, 

a total of 2,760 treasury shares, which had been repurchased, have yet to be converted or canceled.  

M ove m ent of treasury share was as follo ws:  

  2023 2022 

  Share 

(thousands) 

 

Amount 

Share 

(thousands) 

 

Amount 

 

Balance at period beginning  

(Sa me as balance at period ended)   2,760  $ 24,831   2,760   24,831  
      

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act require ments as stated above, the nu mber of treasury 

shares  purchased should not exceed 10 % of all shares outstanding. Also the value of  the 

repurchased shares should not exceed the sum of the Co mpa ny’ s  retained earnings, paid-in 

capital in excess of par value and realized capital surplus.  

In accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Act , tr easury shares held b y the 

C o mpany should not be pledged. These shares do not hold any shareholder rights before their 

co mpletion of transfer.  



ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to the Co nsolidated Fi na ncial State me nts  

 

(Continued)  

154 

(t) Share-based pa yment   

R estricted e mployee shares  

O n June 22, 2022, the C o mpany’  s  shareholders' meet ing decided to a ward 1,350 thousand  shares of 

e mployee restrict ed shares  to full-time e mployees of the Co mpany and its do mestic and overseas  

subsidiaries who meet certain require ments. The restricted shares have been registered with and 

approved by the Securities and Futures Bureau of FS C. O n March 15, 2023, the Board of Directors  

decided to issue 1,300 thousand shares, and the base date of the capital increase was April 20, 2023.  

The afore mentioned restrict ed shares  were issued without considerat io n. 20 %,20 %,30 % and 30 % of 

the restricted shares were vested when the e m ployees cont inue to provide service for at least 1 year, 2  

years, 3 years, and 4 years from the registration and the effect ive dat e, and at the sa me time,  meet the 

perfor mance requireme nt. After the issuance, the restricted shares are kept by a trust,  which is  

appointed b y the C o mpany, before they are vest ed. These restrict ed shares shall not be sold, pledged, 

transferred, gifted or by any other means of disposal to third parties during the custody period. The 

vot ing rights of these shares are executed by the custodian, and the custodian shall act based on the 

la w and regulations.  

The infor mation of the Co mpa ny’s  restricted  stock was as follo ws:  

  Unit: in thousand shares  

  2023 2022 

 O utstanding units on January 1   1,118    2,154   

 Granted during the year   1,300    -  

 Forfeited during the year   (614)   (92)  

 Ex ercised during the year   -   (944)  

 O utstanding units on Dece mb er 31   1,804   1,118  

    

As of Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, the unearned e mployee co mpensation balances were $6,163 and 

$2,702, respect ively. A total of 614 thousand and 92 thousand e mployee restrict ed shares were 

retrieved and canceled due to failure or loss of qualifications to m eet the vesting require ments for the 

years ended Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The effective date of capital reduction was  

M arch 15, 2023 and March 16, 2022, and the related registration procedures  have been co m plet ed.  

The expenses incurred b y the Group for e mp loyee restricted shares  were $4,001 and $3,354 for the 

year ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  
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(u) Earnings (losses) per share   

Basic earnings (losses) per share for the years  ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 202 2 were comp uted as  

follo ws: 

   
 2023 2022 

 Basic earnings per share   

 B elong to parent co mpany net loss  $ (29,820)   (13,759)  

 Weighted-average nu mber of outstanding shares  (in thousands)   50,655   50,489  

 Basic earnings (losses) per share (dollars)  $ (0.59)   (0.27)  
    

 Diluted earnings per share   

 B elong to parent co mpany net loss  $ (29,820)   (13,759)  

 Weighted-average nu mber of outstanding co m m on shares  

(in thousands)   50,655    50,489   

 E mployee restrict ed shares   -   -  

 Weighted-average nu mber of outstanding co m m on shares  

(After adjusting for dilut ive potential co m mon  share impact)   50,655   50,489  

 Diluted earnings (losses) per share (dollars)  $ (0.59)   (0.27)  
    

In 2023 and 2022, the e mployee restricted shares had an anti-dilutive effect; hence, no diluted losses  

per share were required to be co mputed.  

(v) R evenue fro m contracts with custo mers   

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue  

   

   2023 2022 

 Primary geographical markets:        

 Netherlands  $  63,223    71,771   

 G er many   158,452    185,916   

 S witzerland   37,825    44,215   

 United States   82,285    84,051   

 Others   168,802    208,469   

  $ 510,587   594,422  

 M ajor products / services lines:        

 LE D monitors  $  495,037    569,307   

 M edical equip ment   1,207    2,539   

 Other accessories   9,133    17,373   

 R ental inco me   5,210    5,203   

  $ 510,587   594,422  
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(ii)   Contract balances  

1) For details on notes and accounts receivable and allo wa nce for impair ment, please refer to 

note 6(c).  

2) C ontract liabilities  

   December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

January 1, 

2022 

 C ontract liabilities  

(Receipt in advance)  $ 4,391   3,281   260  

     
The major change in the balance of contract liabilities is the difference bet ween the time fra m e 

in the perfor ma nce obligation to be satisfied and the payment  to be received.  

The a mount of revenue recognized for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, that 

included in the contract liabilit y balance at the beginning of the periods were $1,536 and $260, 

respectively.  

( w)  E mployees' co mp ensat ion and directors' remu neration   

According to the C o mpany’ s  Articles  of Inco rporat ion require that earning shall first be offset against  

any deficit, then, a mini mu m of 10 % will be distributed as employees' re munerat ion and a ma xi m u m 

of 2 % will be allocated as directors ’  re m unerat ion. E mployees who are entitled to receive the 

above- mentioned e mployee remuneration, in share or cash, include the e mployees of the subsidiaries  

of the Co mpany who meet certain spec ific requirement. Related infor mation would be available at the 

M arket Observation Post S yst e m website.  

Due to loss before tax for the years ended Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, no e mployees' co m pensation 

and directors’  re muneration was recognized .  

(x) Financial instruments   

(i)  Credit risk  

1) Exposure to credit risk  

The carrying a mount  of financial assets represents the maximu m a mount  exposed to credit  

risk.  

2) C oncentration to credit risk  

B ecause the Group caters to a wide variety of custo mers, has a diverse market distribution, 

and does not concentrate its transact ion s ignificantly with single custo mer.  Therefore, the 

C oncentrating of credit risk of accounts receivable was not significant. In order to reduc e 

the credit risk, the Group monitors the fi nancial conditions of its custo mers regularly. 

Ho wever, the Group does not require its custom ers  to provide any collat eral.  
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(ii)  Credit risk of receivables and debt s ecurities  

For credit risk exposure of note and accounts receivables, ple ase refer to note 6(c).  

Other financial assets at a mortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, other receivab les, 

and guaranteed deposits, are considered to have lo w risk, and thus, the impair ment provision 

recognized during the period is limited to 12 m onths expected losses.  

(iii)  Liquidity risk  

The follo wing table sho ws the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including  estim ated 

interest payments:  

  Carrying 

amount 

Contractual 

cash flows 

Within a 

year Over 1 year 

 December 31, 2023             

 Non-derivative financial liabilities :              

  S hort -ter m borro wings  $  191,685    (192,360)    (192,360)    -  

  N otes and accounts payable   63,656    (63,656)    (63,656)    -  

  L ease liabilities (including current 

and non-current)   6,670    (6,832)   (4,149)    (2,683)  

  Ot her payables   34,481    (34,481)    (34,481)    -  

  G uaranteed deposits   906    (906)   -   (906)  

  $ 297,398   (298,235)   (294,646)   (3,589)  

 December 31, 2022             

 Non-derivative financial liabilities :              

  B onds pa yable, current portion  $  17,099    (17,908)    (17,908)    -  

  S hort -ter m borro wings   241,358    (243,124)    (243,124)    -  

  N otes and accounts payable   14,856    (14,856)    (14,856)    -  

  L ease liabilities (including current 

and non-current)   16,191    (16,676)    (9,862)    (6,814)  

  Ot her payables   33,941    (33,941)    (33,941)    -  

  G uaranteed deposits   891    (891)   -   (891)  

  C onvertible bonds -conversion right  

  (recognized as financial liabilities  

  at fair value through profit or loss)   2,842    (2,842)   (2,842)    -  

  $ 327,178   (330,238)   (322,533)   (7,705)  
      

The Group does not expect the cash flo ws included in the maturity analysis, to occur significantly 

earlier or at significant ly different a mounts.  
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(iv)  M arket risk  

1) C urrency risk (expressed in thousands for foreign currencies)  

The Group’s  financial assets and liabilities  exposed to s ignificant foreign currency risk 

were as follo ws:  

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

  

Foreign currency 

Exchange 

rate NTD Foreign currency 

Exchange 

rate NTD 

 Financial assets                   

 Monetary items                   

  USD $ 809  USD/NTD 

=30.705 

 24,840   1,768  USD/NTD 

=30.71 

 54,295  

  USD  355  USD/EUR 

=1.1067 

 393   38  USD/EUR 

=1.0655 

 40  

 Financial liabilities                   

 Monetary items                   

  USD  1,860  USD/NTD 

=30.705 

 57,111   718  USD/NTD 

=30.71 

 22,050  

  USD  133  USD/EUR 

=1.1067 

 147   2  USD/EUR 

=1.0655 

 2  

        

2) Sensitivity analysis  

The Group ’ s  exposure to foreign currency  risk arises  fro m the translation of foreign 

currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts  

receivable, other receivables, short -ter m borrowings, notes and accounts payable, and other 

payables that are deno minated in foreign currency.  

A wea kening (strengthening) 5 % of each foreign currency against the functional currency,  

under other conditions re main the sa me, loss before tax for the years ended Dece mber 31, 

2023 and 2022 would have been affect ed as follo ws:  

  December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 US D (against NT D)    

  Ap preciate 5 %  $  (1,614)   1,612   

  D epreciate 5 %   1,614    (1,612)  

 US D (against EU R)    

  Ap preciate 5 %   12    2   

  D epreciate 5 %   (12)   (2)   

    
The analysis is perfor med on the sa me basis for both periods.  
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3) Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary ite ms  

As the Group deals in diverse foreign currencies, gains and losses on foreign exchang e 

were su m marized as a s ingle a mount for disclosure. For the years ended Dece mb er 31, 

2023 and 2022, the foreign exchange gains, including realized and unrealized ones, 

a mounted to $2,738 and $3,692, respectively.  

(v)  Int erest rate analysis  

Please refer to liquidity risk for the  details  of financial assets and liabilities  exposed to int erest 

rate risk.  

  Carrying amount 
  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Variable rate instru ments:    

   Financial assets  $  99,637    75,120   

   Financial liabilities   (191,685)    (241,358)   

    

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure to interest rate on the deriva tive 

and non-derivative financial instru ments on the reporting date.  The rate of change is expressed 

as the int erest rate increases or decreases by 0.25 % when reporting to ma nage ment int ernally, 

which also represents ma nage ment of the Group ’ s  assess ment on the reasonably possible 

interval of int erest rate change.  

If the int erest rate had increased or decreased by 0.25 %, the net loss before tax would have 

increased or decreased by $230 and $416 for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, 

respectively, which would mainly result from the bank savings, time deposits and short -ter m 

borro wings with variable interest rates at the reporting dat e.  

(vi)  Fair value of financial instru ments  

1) Fair value hierarchy  

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities  at fair value through profit or loss, financial 

instru ments used for hedging and of financial assets at fair value through other 

co mprehensive inco m e are m easured on a recurring basis.  

Different levels of the fair value hierarchy to be used in deter mining the fair value of 

financial instru ments are as follo ws:  

a) Level 1: quoted prices  (unadjusted) in active markets for identifiable assets or 

liabilities.  

b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices  included within Level 1 that are observable 

for the assets or liabilities, either direct ly (i.e. prices) or indirect ly (i.e. derived fro m 

prices). 

c)  Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilities tha t are not based  on observable market  

data.  
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The carrying a mount and fair value of the Group ’ s  financial assets and liabilities, 

including the infor mation on fair value hierarchy were as follows; ho wever, except as 

described in the follo wing paragraphs, f or financial instru ments not measured at fair value 

whose carrying a mount is reasonably close to the fair value, and for equity invest ments that  

has no quoted prices in the active markets and lease liabilities,  disclosure of fair value 

infor mation is not required: 

  December 31, 2023 
   Fair value 
  Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 Financial assets measured at 

amortized cost:                

 Cash and cash equivalents  $  112,673    -   -   -    -  

 N otes and accounts receivable   43,204    -   -   -    -  

 Other receivables   442    -   -   -    -  

 Restricted dep osits  

(recognized as other 

non-current assets)   2,334    -   -   -    -  

 G uaranteed dep osits (recognized 

as other non-current assets)   2,950    -   -   -    -  

  $ 161,603      

 Financial liabilities measured at 

amortized cost:                

 S hort-ter m borro wing   191,685    -   -   -    -  

 N otes and accounts payable   63,656    -   -   -    -  

 Lease liabilities (current and 

non-current)   6,670    -   -   -    -  

 Other pa yables   34,481    -   -   -    -  

 G uaranteed dep osits   906    -   -   -    -  

  $ 297,398      
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  December 31, 2022 
   Fair value 
  Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 Financial assets measured at 

amortized cost:                

 Cash and cash equivalents  $  101,579    -   -   -    -  

 N otes and accounts receivable   59,034    -   -   -    -  

 Other receivables   377    -   -   -    -  

 Restricted dep osits (recognized 

as other non-current assets)   2,444    -   -   -    -  

 G uaranteed dep osits (recognized 

as other non-current assets)   3,102    -   -   -    -  

  $ 166,536      

 Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss:                

 D erivative financial liabilities  $  2,842    -   -   2,842    2,842   

   S ubtotal   2,842    -   -   2,842    2,842   

 Financial liabilities measured at 

amortized cost:                

 Convertible bonds - debt 

co mp onent   17,099    -   -   -    -  

 S hort-ter m borro wing   241,358    -   -   -    -  

 N otes and accounts payable   14,856    -   -   -    -  

 Lease liabilities (current and 

non-current)   16,191    -   -   -    -  

 Other pa yables   33,941    -   -   -    -  

 G uaranteed dep osits   891    -   -   -    -  

   324,336       

  $ 327,178      

       

2) Fair value valuation technique for financial instruments not measured at fair value  

The book value of financial assets and liabilities at a mortized cost in the consolidated report 

is approximately its fair value.  

3) Fair value valuation technique for financial instruments measured at fair value  

a) Non-derivative financial instru ments  

A financial instrument  will use the public quoted price fro m act ive market as the fair 

value if it has  the public quoted price fro m act ive market.  



ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to the Co nsolidated Fi na ncial State me nts  

 

(Continued)  

162 

M easure ments of fair value of financial instru ments without an active market are 

based on a valuation technique or quoted price fro m a co mp etitor. Fair value 

m easured b y using a valuation technique can be extrapolated from similar financial 

instru ments, the discounted cash flo w method, or other valuat ion technique inc luding 

a model using observable market data at the reporting date.  

b) Derivative financial instru ments  

M easure ment of fair value of derivative instruments is based on the valuation 

techniques that are generally accepted b y the market participants such as t he 

discounted cash flow or option pricing models .  

4) There was no transfer a mong fair value hierarchies for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023  

and 2022.  

5) R econciliation of Level 3 financial assets  

  Non derivative  

mandatorily 

measured at fair 

value through profit 

or loss 

 Balance on January 1, 2023 (sa me as balance on Dece mber 31, 

2023) 

$ -  

 Balance on January 1, 2022  $  7,113   

 Eliminat ion through consolidat ion   (7,113)  

 Balance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ -  

   

6) Q uantified infor mation on significant unobservable inputs  (Level 3) used in fair value 

m easure ment  

The Group ’ s  financial instru ments that use Level 3 inputs to measure the fair value 

include “ f inancial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss – convert ible 

bonds” .   

Q uant ified infor mation of s ignificant unobservable inputs was as follo ws:  

 

Item 

Valuation 

technique 

Significant 

unobservable inputs 

Inter-relationship 

between significant 

unobservable 

inputs and fair 

value measurement 
 Financial assets 

m easured at fair 

value through profit 

or loss – convertible 

bonds  

Option Pricing 

M odel-For mula  

M ethod  

‧Discounted rate in 

lack of marketabilit y 

as of Dece mb er 31, 

2023 and 2022 were 

37.02 % and 30.68 %  

The higher the lack 

of marketabilit y 

discount rat e is, the 

lo wer the fa ir value 

will be.  
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(y) Financial risk manage ment   

(i)  Briefings  

The Group is exposed to the follo wing risks arising fro m financial instru ments ：  

1) Credit risk  

2) Liquidity risk  

3) M arket risk  

In this note expressed the infor mation on risk exposure and objectives , policies and proces s of 

risk measure ment  and ma nage ment .  For detailed infor mation, please refer to the related notes  

of each risk.  

(ii)  Structure of risk ma nage ment  

The Group’s  finance depart ment  provides business services  for the overall internal depart m ent. 

It sets the objectives, policies and processes  for managing the risk and the methods used to 

m easure the risk arising fro m both do mestic and international financial market operat ions.   

The Group mini mizes the risk exp osure through derivat ive financial instru ments. The Board of 

Directors regulat ed the use of derivative and non -derivative financial instru ments  in accordance 

with the Group’s  policy about risks  arising fro m financial instru ments  such as  currency risk, 

interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of non -der ivat ive financial instru ments, and the invest ments  

of excess liquidity. The int ernal auditors of the Group cont inue with the revie w of the a mount of 

the risk exposure in accordance with the Group ’s  policy and the risk ma nage ment  policies and 

procedures . The Group has no transactions in financial instru ments for the purpose of specula tion.  

(iii)  Credit risk  

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a custo mer or counterparty to a financial 

instru ment fails to meet its contractual obligations, and aris es principally fro m the Group ’s  

receivables fro m custo mers  and cash and cash in banks.  

1) Accounts receivable and other receivables  

The Group has established a credit policy under which each ne w custo mer is analyzed 

individually for credit worthiness before the Group ’s  standard payment  and delivery ter ms  

and condit ions are offered.  Purchase limits are established for each customer, and these 

limits are reviewed periodically. Customers that fail to meet  the Group ’ s  bench mark 

credit worthiness ma y transact with the Group only on a prepayment  basis.  The Group  

constant ly assesses the financial status of the custo mers.  

The Group’s  custo mers are mainly fro m wide range custo mer base. The Group does not  

concentrate on a specific customer, thus, there should be no concern on the significant  

concentrations of accounts receivable credit  risk. And in order to mit igate accounts 

receivable credit risk, the Group constantly assesses the financial status of the c ustomers, 

and does not request the custo mers to provide any guarantee or security.  
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2) Invest ment  

The exposure to credit risk for the bank deposits and other financial instru ments is  

m easured and monitored b y the Group's finance depart ment . The Group deposits the cash 

in different  financial institutions for the purpose of controlling the credit  risk in each 

financial institution. Therefore, there is no s ignificant credit risk of bank deposits.  

3) G uarantees  

Please refer to note 13(a) for t he Co mpany provide financial guarantees to its subsidiaries  

as of Dece mb er 31, 2023.  

(iv)  Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group wil l encounter difficulty in meet ing the obligat ions 

associat ed with its financial liabilities that are settl ed by delivering cash or another financial asset.  

The Group manages sufficient cash and cash equivalents  so as to cope with its operations and 

mit igate the effects of fluctuations in cash flo ws. The Group ’ s  ma nage ment  supervises the 

banking facilities and ensures in co mpliance with the ter ms of the loan agree ments.   

The loans and borro wings fro m the bank forms an important source of liquidity for the G roup.  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022 the unused short -ter m bank facilities were $ 269,462  and 

$236,922, respect ively.  

(v)  M arket risk  

M arket risk is the risk that changes in market  prices, such as  foreign exchange rates  and int erest 

rates that will affect the Group’ s  inco m e or the value of its holdings of financial instru me nts. 

The objective of market risk ma nage ment  is to manage and control market risk exposures within 

acceptable para meters, while optimizing the return.  

1) C urrency risk  

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are deno minated in a 

currency other than the respect ive f unctional currencies  of the Group’ s  entities , primarily, 

the Ne w Tai wan Dollars (T W D), Euro (E U R), US Dollars (US D), and C hinese Yuan 

(C N Y).  

2) Int erest rate risk  

The Group borro ws funds on variable int erest rates, which has a risk exposure in cash flo w.  
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(z) Capital manage ment   

The B oard’s  policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market  

confidence and to sustain future develop ment  of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares and 

retained earnings.  

The Group monitors the capital structure by way of periodical revie w on the liabilit y ratio. The Group ’

s capital is the “ t otal equity”  in the consol idat ed balance sheets, sa me as the total liabilities being 

subtract ed to the total assets .  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the liability ratios were as follows:  

  

December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 Total liabilities  $  311,924    339,772   

 Total assets   720,523    770,953   

 Liability ratio   43  %   43  %  

    
As of Dece mb er 31, 2023, there were no changes in the Group’s  approach of capital mana ge ment .  

(aa) Invest ing and financing activities not affecting current cash flo w   

(i)  The Group’ s  investing and financing activity which did not affect the current cash flo w for the  

years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follo ws: The acquisition of right -of-use assets 

by lease, please refer to note 6(i).  

(ii)  R econciliations of liabilities aris ing fro m financing activities were as follo ws:  

     Non-cash changes  

  

January 1, 

2023 Cash flows 

Changes in 

non-controllin

g interests Other 

Effect of 

movements in  

exchange rates 

December 31, 

2023 
 Short-term borrowings $ 241,358   (49,673)   -   -   -   191,685  

 Bonds payable  17,099   -   (22,092)   4,993   -   -  

 Deposits received  891   15   -   -   -   906  

 Lease liabilities  16,191   (9,746)   -   -   225   6,670  

 

Total liabilities from financing 

activities $ 275,539   (59,404)   (22,092)   4,993   225   199,261  

        

     Non-cash changes  

  

January 1, 

2022 Cash flows 

Acquisition 

through 

business 

combination 

Effect of 

movements in 

exchange rates 

December 31, 

2022 

 Short-term borrowings $ 201,031   34,227   6,100   -   241,358  

 Bonds payable  -   17,099   -   -   17,099  

 Deposits received  891   -   -   -   891  

 Lease liabilities  14,738   (8,471)   9,352   572   16,191  

 

Total liabilities from financing 

activities $ 216,660   42,855   15,452   572   275,539  
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(7) Related-party transactions:   

(a) Na mes and relat ionship with relat ed parties   

The follo wings are entities that have had transactions with the Group during the periods covered in the 

consolidated financial statements.  

 Name of related party Relationship with the Group 

 Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (tBP C)  
An associate (note1)  

 Yu-Teng, Li  Substant ial related party (tBP C's director)(note2)  

   
note1: Listed as the subsidiaries of consolidated financial statements since April, 2022.  

note2: The individual was no longer a relat ed party since April 2023.  

(b) Significant transactions with related parties   

(i)  B orro w fro m relat ed party and interest  

 Account Category of related party 

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Short -ter m borro wings   Substant ial related party  $ -   5,175  

     
   2023 2022 

 Int erest expense  $ 52   112  

    

The int erest rates of the Group ’s  unsecured borro wings fro m relat ed party was negotiated  by 

both parties.The above mentioned borrowings and associat ed int erest expenses had been fully 

paid in June 2023.  

(c)  Ke y manage m ent personnel transactions  

Ke y manage m ent personnel co mpensation comprised:  

 2023 2022 

 Short -ter m e mployee benefits  $  15,625    16,759   

 Post-employment  benefits   596    515   

  $ 16,221   17,274  
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(8) Assets pledged as security:   

The carrying a mounts of pledged assets were as follo ws:  

 

Pledged assets Object 

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 La nd and buildings  G uarantee for short -ter m loans and 

credit line  

 

$   114,434    

 

   115,281    

 Invest ment property 〃    158,918    160,101   

 R estricted deposits (recongnized as 

other non-current assets)  

Warranty guarantee   

   2,334    

 

   2,444    

 Intangible assets  B onds pa yable   1,377    765   

   $ 277,063   278,591  

     
(9) Commitments and contingencies:     

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the unused balances of the Group ’ s  letters of credit a mounted to  

$17,853 and $7,034 respect ively.  

(10) Losses due to major disasters: None.   

(11) Subsequent events:   

In order to fully reflect the current use status and value of invest ment properties, the Group  announced that 

on March 11, 2024, the Board of Directors resolved to change the accounting policy for the subsequent  

m easure ment of invest ment properties  fro m the cost model to th e fair value model starting fro m January 1, 

2024. 

This  accounting change is expected to be retrospectively adjust ed to increase the retained  earnings in the 

consolidated financial statements by $62,707, while increasing invest ment properties by $64,899 and  

deferred tax liabilities by $2,192, respectively. Invest ment properties at Dece mber 31, 2023 increased b y 

$74,082 due to an increase of $8,000 in fair value adjust ment gains and a decrease of $1,183 in lease costs  

– depreciation expense in 2023.  

In sum mary, as of Dece mber 31, 2023, the increase in retained earnings due to the adoption of the fair value 

m odel is expected to be retrospectively adjusted b y a total of $71,890.  
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(12) Other:   

(a) A su m mary of e mployee benefits, depreciation, and a mort ization, by funct ion, is as follo ws:  

 By function 2023 2022 

  
By item 

Cost of 

sales 

Operating 

expenses 

 

Total 

Cost of 

sales 

Operating 

expenses 

 

Total 

 E mployee benefits                    

  S alary   585    118,984    119,569    2,177    115,079    117,256   

  La bor and health insurance   91    14,189    14,280    223    13,563    13,786   

  P ension   33    5,464    5,497    101    5,087    5,188   

  Ot hers   (4)   2,972    2,968    7    2,971    2,978   

 Depreciation   4,117    10,323    14,440    3,498    9,667    13,165   

 A m ortization   903    6,328    7,231    585    4,699    5,284   

        
 Note: The depreciation for the years ended  Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022 included the depreciation of 

invest ment property a mounted to $1,183 in both.  

(13) Other disclosures:   

(a) Infor mation on significant transactions    

The followings are the infor mation on s ignificant transactions required by the “ R e gulations 

G overning the Preparat ion of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers ”  of the Group for the year  

ended Dece mb er 31, 2023:  

(i)  Loans to other parties: None.   

(ii)  G uarantees and endorse ments for other parties :   

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and foreign currencies) 

  

 

 

Counter-party of  

guarantee and  

endorsement Limitation on  Highest    

Ratio of 

accumulated 

amounts of  

guarantees and   

Parent 

company Subsidiary  

Endorsements/ 

guarantees to  

 

No. 

 Name of 

guarantor Name 

Relationship 

with the 

Company 

 amount of 

guarantees and 

endorsements 

for a specific 

enterprise 

 balance of 

guarantees  and 

endorsements 

during  

the period 

Balance of 

guarantees and 

endorsements  

as of  

reporting date 

Actual 

usage   

amount 

during the 

period 

Amount of 

property  

pledged for 

guarantees and 

endorsements 

endorsements 

to net worth of 

the latest 

financial 

statements 

Maximum  

amount of 

guarantees 

and 

endorsements 

endorsements/ 

guarantees to 

third parties on 

behalf of 

subsidiary 

endorsements/  

guarantees 

to third parties 

on behalf of 

parent company 

third parties 

on behalf of 

companies in 

Mainland 

China 

  0  The 
Company

  

AG 
Neovo 

B.V
  

100% owned 
subsidiary 

 401,718   150,000   150,000   -   -   37.34%   401,718  Yes No No 

  0  The 
Company

  

AG 
Neovo 

USA
  

100% owned 
subsidiary 

 401,718   40,000   40,000   3,685   -   9.96%   401,718  Yes No No 

               

Note：According to the Company’s Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee, the total amount of endorsements and guarantees, which the Company or the Group is permitted 

to provide, shall not exceed 100% of the Company’s net worth. 
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(iii)  Infor mation regarding securities held at the reporting date (excluding subsidiaries, associat es and 

joint ventures):  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and shares (units) 

 Company  Relationship  December 31, 2023 Highest balance during  

the year 

 

 
holding 

securities Security type and name 

 with the 

Company Account Shares/Units 

Carrying 

value 

Percentage of 

ownership Fair value 

Shares/Units 

(thousands) 

Percentage of 

ownership 

(%) Remark 

  The 

Company
  

IRONYUN 

INCORPORATED 

 -  Financial assets measured 

at fair value through other 

comprehensive income－

non-current

  

 6,025   -   3.54 %  -   6,025   6.79 % Note 1 

  The 

Company
  

Convertible bonds 

(tBPC) 

 -  Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 
profit or 

loss-non-current
  

 300   30,000   - %  30,000   300   - % Note 2 

            
Note 1: Stocks are comprised of 552 preferred shares and 5,473 common shares at the reporting date.  

Note 2: The left transactions have been eliminated in the preparation of consolidated financial statements.  

(iv)  Individual s ecurities acquired or disposed of with accu m ulat ed a mount exceeding the lo wer of 

NT $300 million or 20 % of the capital stock: None.    

(v)  Acquisition of individual real estate with a mount exceeding the lo wer of NT$300 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock: None.     

(vi)  Disposal of individual real estate with a moun t exceeding the lo wer of NT$300 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock: None.    

(vii)  R elated-party purchases and sales with a moun ts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock:    

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

     

Transaction details 

Transactions with terms 

different from others 

Notes/Accounts  

receivable (payable) 

 

 

 Company 

name 

Related  

party 

Nature of 

relationship 

Purchase 

/(Sale) Amount 

Percentage  

of total 

purchases 

(sales) 

Payment  

terms Unit price 

Payment  

terms 

Ending  

balance 

Percentage of total 

notes/accounts 

receivable  

(payable) Remark 

 The 
Company

  

AG Neovo B.V  100% owned 
subsidiary

  

 (Sale)   (248,431)   (49)%  90 days net 
from date of 

invoice
  

The price  
is not 

comparable 
with that of 

the general 
customers. 

90 days net 
from date of 

invoice; actual 
payments 

would depend 
on the capital 

demand.
  

Note 1 -%  Note 2  

             

Note 1：As of December 31, 2023, the amount of receipt in advance was $100,057. 

Note 2：The left transactions have been eliminated in the preparation of consolidated financial statements. 

(viii)  R eceivables  fro m relat ed parties with a mounts exceeding the lo wer of NT$100 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock: None.     

(ix)  Trading in derivative instru ments: None.  



ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to the Co nsolidated Fi na ncial State me nts  

 

(Continued)  

170 

(x)  Significant transactions and business relationship bet ween the Co mpany and its subsidiaries:   

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

     2023 Intercompany transactions  

 No. 

(Note 

1) Company name Counter party 

Relationship 

(Note 2) Accounts Amount Terms 

Percentage of the 

consolidated net revenue 

or total assets 

 0 The Company AG Neovo B.V 1 Operating 
revenues 

 248,431  The price is marked up 
based on the cost; and 
the payment terms 
depends on the capital 

demand. 

 48.66%  

 0 The Company AG Neovo B.V 1 Receipt in 
advance 

 100,057  The price is marked up 
based on the cost; and 
the payment terms 

depends on the capital 
demand. 

 13.89%  

 0 The Company AG Neovo USA 1 Operating 
revenues 

 34,775  The price is marked up 
based on the cost; and 

the payment terms 
depends on the capital 
demand. 

 6.81%  

 0 The Company AG Neovo USA 1 Receipt in 

advance 

 28,170  The price is marked up 

based on the cost; and 
the payment terms 
depends on the capital 

demand. 

 3.91%  

         
Note 1:  The numbers filled in as follows: 

1.0 represents the Company. 

2. Subsidiaries are sorted in a numerical order starting from 1. 

Note 2: Relationship with the transactions labeled as follows:  

1 represents the transactions from the parent company to its subsidiaries.  

2 represents the transactions between the subsidiaries and the parent company. 

3 represents the transactions between subsidiaries. 

(b) Infor mation on investees:    

The follo wing is  the infor mation on investees  for the year ended Dece mber 31, 2023 (excluding 

infor mation on investees  in Mainland C hina):  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/ foreign currencies and shares in thousand units) 

     Original investment amount Ending Balance as of December 31, 2023 Highest balance during the 

year 

 Investment 

income 

 

 

Name of 

investor 

Name of 

investee Location 

Main 

businesses  

and products 

December 31, 2023  

(Note 1) 
December 31, 2022 

(Note 1) Shares 

Percentage  

of  

ownership 

Carrying 

amount 

(Note 1) 

 

Shares 

 Percentage  

of  

ownership 

Net income 

(loss) of the 

Investee 

(Note2) 

(loss) 

recognized by 

the investor 

(Note2) Remark 

 The Company  AG Neovo 

International 
  

British Virgin Islands  Investment   343,957   343,957   0.8   100%   30,595   0.8   100%   (276)   (276)   Note 3  

 The Company  AG Neovo 

B.V

  

Netherlands  Sales of LCD 

monitors

  

 187,013   187,013   4.8   100%   215,575   4.8   100%   2,284   2,284   〞  

 The Company  AG Neovo 

Investment

  

British Virgin Islands  Investment   14,796   14,796   0.5   100%   1,954   0.5   100%   (2,073)   (2,073)   〞  

 The Company  Taiwan 
Biophotonic 

Corporation

  

Taiwan  Research and 
development, 

manufacture 

and sale of 

medical 
equipment and 

health care 

products

  

 126,455   92,327   198,734   57%   9,028   101,534   67%   (58,583)   (30,255)   Note 4  

 AG Neovo 

International

  

AG Neovo 

USA

  

U.S.A.  Sales of LCD 

monitors 

and medical 

equipment
  

 92,115  

(US$3,000) 

 92,115  

(US$3,000) 

 702   100%   26,050  

(US$848) 

 702   100%   (1,345)  

(US$(43)) 

Recognized by 

AG Neovo 

International 

 Note 3  

               
Note 1: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD30.705 at reporting date.  
Note 2: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD31.1811 based on the average exchange rate at reporting date. 

Note 3: The left transactions have been eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  
Note 4: The total amount included the reversal of bonds valuation loss of $1,462. 
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(c) Infor mation on invest ment in mainland China:   

(i)  The related infor mation on invest ees in Mainland China:  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/foreign currencies and shares in thousand units) 

 

       Investment  

Accumulated 

outflow Net income   

Highest balance  

during the year    

 

Name  

of 

investee 

Main  

businesses 

and 

products 

Total amount 

of paid-in 

capital 

(Note 2) 

Method 

of 

investment 

Accumulated 

outflow of  

investment from 

Taiwan as of  

January 1, 2023 

(Note 2) Outflow Inflow 

of investment 

from 

Taiwan as of  

December 31, 

2023 (Note 2) 

 (loss) 

of the 

investee 

company 

(Note 3) 

Percentage 

of 

ownership Shares 

Percentage of 

wnership 

Investment 

income (loss) 

recognized  

(Notes 3)  

Carrying 

amount  as 

of December 

31, 2023 

(Note 2) 

Accumulated 

remittance of  

earnings as of 

December 31, 

2023 

 AG Neovo  

(Shanghai)

  

Sales of LCD 

monitors

  

 15,353  

(US$500) 

Note 1  15,353  

(US$500) 

 -   -   15,353  

(US$500) 

 (2,073)  

(US$66) 

100% - 100%  (2,073)  

(US$66) 

 1,954  

(US$64) 

 -  

                

(ii)  Upper limit on invest ment in M ainland C hina:   

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and foreign currencies) 

 Accumulated investment in 

Mainland China as of 

December 31, 2023 

(Notes 2 and 4) 

Investment amounts  

authorized by Investment 

Commission, MOEA 

(Notes 2 and 4) 

 

 

Upper limit  

on investment 
 

 123,925  (US$4,036)   123,925  (US$4,036)   241,031   

    
Note 1 : Indirect investment in Mainland China through companies registered in the third region. 

Note 2 : The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD30.705 at reporting date. 

Note 3 : The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD31.1811 based on the average exchange rate at reporting 

date. 

Note 4 : Including the withdrawn amount of investment from the Shanghai CIMC Baowell Industries Co., Ltd. 

(iii)  Significant transactions: None.    

(d) M ajor shareholders:    

 

 

Shareholding 

Shareholder’s Name 
Shares Percentage 

 CTBC in custody for Top Group Holdings, Ltd.   8,011,294    14.50 %   

 David Pi   3,502,541    6.34 %   

    

(14) Segment information:   

(a) G eneral Infor mation   

The major business activities of the Group are (1)research, develop ment and sale of LC D mo nitors and 

related co mp onents, (2)sale of medical equipm ent , (3)real estate  rental business and  (4)research and 

develop ment, ma nufacture and sale of medical equip ment and health care products. Our reportable 

operat ing seg ments based on the sales operation area are Europe, A mericas, Taiwan and others.  
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(b) R eportable seg ments profit or loss, seg ment assets, seg ment liabilities, and their measurem ent and 

reconciliations.   

The accounting policies  of operating seg ments  are the sa me as those described in note 4 “significant  

accounting policies” .  The operating seg me nt infor mation was as follows:  

 2023 
  

Europe America Taiwan Others 

Adjustment & 

elimination Total 

 Revenue       

 Revenue from external customers $ 410,211   79,267   18,848   2,261   -   510,587  

 Revenue from segments  3,468   897   283,206   36   (287,607)   -  

  $ 413,679   80,164   302,054   2,297   (287,607)   510,587  

 Reportable segment profit (loss) $ 2,681   (2,514)   (41,062)   (46,698)   31,696   (55,897)  

 Reportable segment assets      $ 720,523  

 Reportable segment liabilities      $ 311,924  
        

 2022 
  

Europe America Taiwan Others 

Adjustment & 

elimination Total 

 Revenue       

 Revenue from external customers $ 479,638   84,205   20,378   10,201   -   594,422  

 Revenue from segments  14,774   3,189   331,678   68   (349,709)   -  

  $ 494,412   87,394   352,056   10,269   (349,709)   594,422  

 Reportable segment profit (loss) $ 47   (2,515)   (15,980)   (25,257)   13,256   (30,449)  

 Reportable segment assets      $ 770,953  

 Reportable segment liabilities      $ 339,772  
        

(c) Production infor mation   

The Group’s  infor mation about the revenue fro m external customers, please refer note 6(v).  

(d) G eographic infor mation   

The Group’ s  sales  presented b y custo mer location and non -current  assets presented by locat ion, refer 

note 6(v), and the geographic infor mation of non -current assets were as follo ws:  

Non-current assets:  

  Country    2023 2022 

 
 

  

  Tai wan  $  312,644    330,561   

  Ot hers   2,017    11,305   

  $ 314,661   341,866  
    

Non-currents assets included property, plant and equip ment, invest ments property, intangible assets  

and other assets but don’ t  include financial instru ments and deferred tax assets.  
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(e) Infor mation about major customers   

The details of sales revenue from external custo mers exceeded 10 % of the a mount of the 

consolidated statements of co mprehensive inco me were as follo ws:  

  Customer   2023 2022  

 Company A  $ 57,971    72,979   
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V. The Co mp an y's standalone  financial report for the most recent year that has been audited b y a C P A 

without including state ments of i mportant accounting titles  

(Please insert the “Independent auditor’s opinion” paragraph to page 63 of the standalone financial 

state ments)  

Inde pe nde nt A uditors’  Re port  

 

 

To the Board of Directors of Associated Indus tries China, Inc.:  

 

Opinion 

W e have audited the financial statements of Associat ed Industries China, Inc.( “ t he Co mpa ny” ) , which co mprise 

the balance sheets as of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the statements of co mprehensive incom e, changes in equity 

and cash flo ws for the years then ended, and notes to the financial state ments, including a su m mar y of material 

policies.  

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other audito rs (please refer to Other M atter paragraph), the 

acco mpanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Co mpa n y 

as of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial perfor mance and its cash flows for the ye ars then ended in 

accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparat ion of Financial R eports by Securities  Issuers.  

Basis for Opinion 

W e conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial State ment Audit and Attestation 

Engage ments of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Audit ing of the Rep ublic of China. Our  

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors ’  Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial State ments section of our report. W e are independent  of the Co mpany in accordance with The Nor m of  

Professional Ethics for Cert ified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, 

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a  basis of our opinion.  

Other Matter 

W e did not audit the financial state ments of  Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (tBP C), which r epresented the 

invest ment in accounted for using equity method of the C o mpany. Those statements were audited by other auditors, 

whose report has  been furnished to us, and ou r opinion, insofar as it relates  to the a mounts  included for tBP C, is  

based solely on the report of other auditors. The balance of invest ment in tBP C accounted for  using equity method 

constitut ed 1.14 % and 0.59 % of total assets as of Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively,  and the absolut e 

a mount of the relat ed share of profit and los s of associat es accounted for using equity method  constitut ed 101.46 % 

and 102.86 % of the absolut e a mount of total loss before tax for the years then ended, respec tively.  

Key Audit Matters 

Ke y audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judg me nt , were of most significance in our audit of 

the financial state ments of the current period . These matters were addressed in the contex t of our audit of the 

financial state ments as a whole, and in for ming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separ at e opinion on 

these matters. We have deter mined the matters described belo w to be the key and it matters  to be co m m unicated 

in our report.  
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Inventory valuation 

Please refer to Note 4(g) Inventories and Note 5 of the financial state ments fo r inventory valuation and 

uncertainties of inventory valuation, respectively. Detailed infor mation regarding the inventory is presented in 

Note 6(d) of the financial statements.  

Descript ion of key audit matters:  

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The major business activities of the C o mpan y 

are the research, develop ment and sale of LC D monitors, medical equip ment and rela ted co mp onents. The 

inventories  are exposed to the risk of valua te loss  and obsolescence due to mar ket vulnerabilit y. Therefore, 

inventory valuation is one of the important assess ment ite ms to perfor m our audits.  

Audit Procedures:  

O ur principal audit procedures  include: exa mining whether the inventory valuat ion policy and accounting policy 

applied by the C o mpany are reasonable and in co mpliance with the accounting standards; inspecting the inventor y 

aging report; analyzing the changes of inventory aging for each period; and testing the  relevant a mount of 

calculation for the lower of cost or net realizabl e value.  

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

M a na ge ment  is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statemen ts in accordance with 

R egulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such int ernal control as  

ma na ge ment  deter mines is necessary to enable the preparat ion of financial statements that are free fro m material 

misstate ment, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, managem ent  is responsible for assessing the Co mpany’ s  abilit y to cont inue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis  

of accounting unless manage ment  either intends to l iquidat e the Co mpany or to cease operations, or has  no realistic 

alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance (including the  Audit Co m mittee) are responsible for overseeing the Co mpa ny ’ s  

financial report ing process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

O ur objectives  are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free fro m 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor ’s  report that includes our opinion. 

R easonable assurance is  a high level of assurance, but is not  a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of C hina will alwa ys detect a material misstatement  when it exists. 

M isstatements can aris e fro m fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the econo mic decis ions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

state ments.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Audit ing of the Republic of China, we  exercise professional 

judg ment  and professional skept icis m throughout the audit. We also:  

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial state ments, whether due to frau d or error, 

design and perfor m audit procedures responsive to those risks , and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstate m ent resulting fro m 

fraud is higher tha n for one resulting from error, as fraud ma y involve collusion, forger y, int entional o missions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design  audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circu mstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effect iveness of the 

C o mpany’ s  int ernal control.  

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies  used and the reasonableness  of acco un ting estimates  and 

related disclosures  made by ma nage ment .  

4. C onclude on the appropriateness of manage m ent’s  use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a ma terial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that ma y 

cast significant doubt on the Co mpa ny’ s  ability to cont inue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to dra w at tent ion in our auditor ’s  report to the related  disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the dat e of our auditor ’s  report. Ho wever, future events or conditions 

ma y cause the Co mpa ny to cease to cont inue as a going concern.  

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures  

and whether the financial state ments represent the underlying transact ions and events in a ma nner that achieves  

fair presentat ion.  

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infor mation of the entities or business  

activities  within the Co mpa ny to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the 

direction, supervision and perfor ma nce of the group audit. We re main solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

W e co m m unicate with those charged with governance regarding, a mong other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any si gnificant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit.  

W e also provide those charged with governance with a state ment that we have co mplied with relevant ethical 

require ments regarding independence, and to co m m unicate with the m all r elat ionships and other matters that ma y 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards .  

Fro m the matters co m municat ed with those charged with governance, we deter mine those matters that were of 

m ost significance in the audit of the financia l statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit  

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s  report unless la w or regulat ion precludes public disclosur e 

about the matter or when, in extre mely rare circ u mstances, we det er mine that a matter should not be co m municated 

in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to  out weigh the public 

interest benefits of such co m m unicat ion.  

The engage ment partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’  report are Au , Yiu- K wa n and Kuo, 

Kuan- Ying.  

 

KP M G  

Taipei, Taiwa n (Republic of China)  

M arch 11, 2024  

Notes to Readers 

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the  financial position, financial performance and cash flows in 

accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. 

The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China. 

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version 

prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English and 

Chinese language independent auditors’ report and financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail. 



(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese) 

ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. 

Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

  Assets Amount % Amount % 

  Current assets:     

1100   Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(a)) $ 31,435   4   60,733   8  

1170   Notes and accounts receivable, net (note 6(c))  4,086   -   2,081   -  

1200   Other receivables  1,680   -   1,660   -  

1300   Inventories, net (note 6(d))  178,794   23   175,610   22  

1410   Prepayments  12,076   2   9,061   1  

1470   Other current assets  1,011   -   463   -  

     229,082   29   249,608   31  

  Non-current assets:             

1510   Non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (notes 6(b) 

and 7) 

 

   30,000    

 

   4    

 

   31,600    

 

   4    

1551   Investments accounted for using equity method (notes 6(e) and 7)  257,152   32   245,246   30  

1600   Property, plant and equipment (notes 6(g) and 8)  115,757   15   116,902   15  

1760   Investment property, net (notes 6(h) and 8)  158,918   20   160,101   20  

1780   Intangible assets, net (note 6(i))  873   -   195   -  

1900   Other non-current assets (note 8)  2,339   -   2,646   -  

   565,039   71   556,690   69  

  Total assets $ 794,121   100   806,298   100  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

  Liabilities Amount % Amount % 

  Current liabilities:     

2100   Short-term borrowings (note 6(j)) $ 188,000   24   214,000   27  

2130   Current contract liabilities (notes 6(r) and 7)  128,243   16   144,414   18  

2170   Notes and accounts payable  56,296   7   12,699   2  

2200   Other payables  15,242   2   11,514   1  

2250   Current provisions (note 6(k))  3,449   -   3,042   -  

2300   Other current liabilities  282   -   299   -  

     391,512   49   385,968   48  

  Non-current liabilities:              

2600   Other non-current liabilities  891   -   891   -   

    Total liabilities  392,403   49   386,859   48   

  Equity (note 6(o))      

3110   Common stock  552,186   70   545,326   68   

3200   Capital surplus  30,302   4   29,328   4   

   Retained earnings:      

3310   Legal reserve  52,704   7   52,704   6   

3320   Special reserve  79,510   10   79,510   10   

3350   Accumulated deficits  (176,380)   (23)   (146,560)   (18)   

     (44,166)   (6)   (14,346)   (2)   

3400   Other equity  (111,773)   (14)   (116,038)   (15)   

3500   Treasury shares  (24,831)   (3)   (24,831)   (3)   

    Total equity  401,718   51   419,439   52  

  Total liabilities and equity $ 794,121   100   806,298   100  



 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese) 

ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. 

Statements of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share) 

 

 

  2023 2022 

  Amount % Amount % 

4000  Operating revenues, net (notes 6(r) and 7):     

4110  Sales revenue $ 296,512   98   346,252   99  

4310  Rental income (note 6(l))  5,210   2   5,203   1  

    301,722   100   351,455   100  

5000  Cost of sales (notes 6(d) and 12)  226,301   75   284,002   81  

5950  Gross profit  75,421   25   67,453   19  

  Operating expenses (notes 6(m), 6(p), 6(s) and 12):     

6100  Selling expenses  30,002   10   28,754   8  

6200  Administrative expenses  30,702   10   32,316   9  

6300  Research and development expenses  12,913   4   12,228   3  

    73,617   24   73,298   20  

6900  Net operating income (loss)  1,804   1   (5,845)   (1)  

  Non-operating income and expenses:     

7100  Interest income  2,833   1   1,835   1  

7190  Other income  132   -   227   -  

7070  Share of loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method, 

net 

 

   (30,320)    

 

   
(10)    

 

   (18,275)    

 

   (5)    

7230  Foreign exchange gains, net (note 6(t))  560   -   8,032   2  

7510  Interest expense  (4,824)   (2)   (3,420)   (1)  

7590  Miscellaneous expenditures  (5)   -   -   -  

7225  Gains on disposals of investments (note 6(f))  -   -   3,687   1  

    (31,624)   (11)   (7,914)   (2)  

7900  Loss from continuing operations before tax  (29,820)   (10)   (13,759)   (3)  

7950  Less: Income tax expenses (note 6(n))  -   -   -   -  

8200  Net loss  (29,820)   (10)   (13,759)   (3)  

8300  Other comprehensive income:      

8360  Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:     

8361  Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements  7,726   3   9,259   3  

8300  Other comprehensive income, net  7,726   3   9,259   3  

8500  Total comprehensive loss $ (22,094)   (7)   (4,500)     

 Earnings per share: (note 6(q))   

9750  Basic earnings (losses) per share (NT dollars) $ (0.59)   (0.27)  

9850  Diluted earnings (losses) per share (NT dollars) $ (0.59)   (0.27)  



 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese) 

ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. 

Statements of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

 

    Other equity interest   
 

  Retained earnings 

Exchange 

differences on 

translation of  

Unrealized losses 

from financial 

assets measured 

at fair value  

through other  Unearned     
 Common  

stock 

Capital  

surplus 

Legal  

reserve 

Special  

reserve 

Accumulated 

deficits 

foreign financial  

statements 

comprehensive 

income 

employee 

benefits 

Total other 

equity 

Treasury 

shares Total equity 
Balance at January 1, 2022  $ 546,246   29,249   52,704   79,510   (132,801)   (88,885)   (33,710)   (6,897)   (129,492)   (24,831)   420,585  

Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:             

 Loss for the year ended December 31, 2022  -   -   -   -   (13,759)   -   -   -   -   -   (13,759)  

 Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022  -   -   -   -   -   9,259   -   -   9,259   -   9,259  

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2022  -   -   -   -   (13,759)   9,259   -   -   9,259   -   (4,500)  

Other changes in capital surplus:                                   

 Share-based payments transactions  (920)   79   -   -   -   -   -   4,195   4,195   -   3,354  

Balance at December 31, 2022  545,326   29,328   52,704   79,510   (146,560)   (79,626)   (33,710)   (2,702)   (116,038)   (24,831)   419,439  

 Loss for the year ended December 31, 2023  -   -   -   -   (29,820)   -   -   -   -   -   (29,820)  

 Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2023  -   -   -   -   -   7,726   -   -   7,726   -   7,726  

Total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2023  -   -   -   -   (29,820)   7,726   -   -   7,726   -   (22,094)  

Other changes in capital surplus:                                   

Difference between consideration and carrying amount of subsidiaries acquired or disposed  -   372   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   372  

 Share-based payments transactions  6,860   602   -   -   -   -   -   (3,461)   (3,461)   -   4,001  

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 552,186   30,302   52,704   79,510   (176,380)   (71,900)   (33,710)   (6,163)   (111,773)   (24,831)   401,718  



 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese) 

ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

 

 2023 2022 

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:       

Loss before tax $ (29,820)   (13,759)  

Adjustments:       

Adjustments to reconcile loss:       

Depreciation expense  2,544   2,554  

Amortization expense  1,086   1,356  

Expected credit loss  5   1  

Interest expense  4,824   3,420  

Interest income  (2,833)   (1,835)  

Share-based payments transactions cost  4,001   3,354  

Share of loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method  30,320   18,275  

Gain on disposal of investments  -   (3,687)  

Total adjustments to reconcile loss  39,947   23,438  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       

Increase in notes and accounts receivable  (2,010)   (556)  

(Increase) decrease in other receivables  (2,624)   126  

(Increase) decrease in inventories  (3,184)   34,571  

Increase in prepayments  (3,015)   (1,219)  

(Increase) decrease in other current assets  (720)   1,063  

Decrease in contract liabilities  (16,171)   (33,895)  

Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable  43,597   (52,009)  

Increase (decrease) in other payables  3,728   (6,757)  

Increase in provisions  407   422  

Decrease in other operating liabilities  (17)   (26)  

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities  19,991   (58,280)  

Total adjustments  59,938   (34,842)  

Cash inflows (outflows) generated from operations  30,118   (48,601)  

Interest received  2,909   976  

Interest paid  (4,824)   (3,362)  

Income taxes refunded (paid)  172   (12)  

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities  28,375   (50,999)  

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:       

Acquisition of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss  (30,000)   (31,600)  

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss  -   10,800  

Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method  -   (30,435)  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (216)   (1,331)  

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits  307   (2,315)  

Acquisition of intangible assets  (1,764)   (701)  

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (31,673)   (55,582)  

Cash flows (used in) from financial  activities:       

(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings  (26,000)   100,000  

Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities  (26,000)   100,000  

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (29,298)   (6,581)  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  60,733   67,314  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 31,435   60,733  
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(English Tra nslation of Fina ncial State ments Originally Issued in C hinese)  

A S S O CI A T E D I N D U S T RI E S C HI N A, IN C.  

Notes to the  Fi na ncial State me nts  

For the years e nde d Dece m be r 31, 2023 a nd 2022  

(Expressed in T ho usa nds of Ne w Tai wa n Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified) 

 

 

 

(1) Company history 

Associat ed Industries China, Inc. (the “C o mp any” )  was incorporat ed in Ma y 18, 1978 as a co mpan y 

limited b y shares, and registered under the M inistry of Econo mic Affairs, in the Republic of China. The 

major business  activities of the Co mpa ny are the research, develop ment  and sale of LC D monitors, and 

related co mponents, sale of medical equip men t, and real estate rental business.  

(2) Approval date and procedures of the financial statements:   

These financial state ments were authorized for issuance by the board of directors on M arch 11, 2024.  

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:   

(a) The impact of the International Financial Rep orting Standards ( “ IF R Ss” )  endorsed by the  Financial 

Supervisory C o m mission, R.O. C. whic h have already been adopted.  

The Co mpa ny has initially adopted the  following ne w a mend ments, which do not have a significant  

impact on its financial state ments, fro m Janua ry 1, 2023:  

●  A m end ments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising fro m a  Single 

Transact ion”  

The Co mpany has initially adopted the ne w am end ment , which do not have a s ignificant impact o n its 

financial state ments, fro m M a y 23, 2023:  

●  A m end ments to IAS 12 “ Int ernat ional Tax R efor m — Pillar T wo M odel Rules”  

(b) The impact of IF RS issued by the FS C but not  yet effective  

The Co mpany assesses that the adoption of the follo wing ne w a mend ments, effective for annual period 

beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have  a s ignificant impact on its financial statement s:  

●  A m end ments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non -current”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with C ovenants”  

●  A m end ments to IAS 7 and IF R S 7 “S upplier Finance Arrange ments”  

●  A m end ments to IF R S 16 “Lease Liability in  a Sale and Leaseback”  
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Notes to the  Fi na ncial State me nts  
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(c) The impact of IF RS issued by IAS B but not yet endorsed b y the FS C  

The Co mpany does not expect the  follo wing ne w and a mended standards, which have yet to be 

endorsed by the FS C, to have a significant im pact on its financial state ments:  

 ●  A m end ments to IF R S 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribut ion of Assets Bet ween an Investor and 

Its Associat e or Joint Venture”  

 ●  IF RS 17 “  Insurance C ontracts”  and a me nd ments to IFR S 17 “  Insurance Contracts”  

 ●  A m end ments to IAS21 “Lack of Exchangeabilit y”  

  

(4) Summary of material accounting policies   

The material accounting policies presented in  the financial state ments are sum marized as follows. Except 

for those specifically indicated, the follo wing accounting policies  were applied consistently throughout  the 

presented periods in the financial statements.  

(a)  State ment of co mpliance    

These financial state ments have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 

Preparat ion of Financial Reports by Securities  Issuers.  

(b) Basis of preparation    

(i)  Basis of measure ment  

Ex cept for financial instru ments at fair  value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, 

the financial state ments have been prepared on the historical cost basis.  

(ii)  Funct ional and presentation currency  

The functional currency of the Co mpany is det er mined based on the primar y economic  

environ ment. The financial state ments are presented in Ne w Tai wa n Dollar, which is  the 

C o mpany’ s  funct ional currency. All financia l infor mation presented in Ne w Taiwan Dollar has 

been rounded to the nearest thousand.  

(c)  Foreign currencies     

(i)  Foreign currency t ransactions  

Transact ions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of 

C o mpany ent ities at the exchange rat es at the dates of the transact ions. At the end of each 

subsequent reporting period, monetary ite ms de no minated in foreign currencies  are translated 

into the funct ional currencies using the exchange rat e at that date. Non - monetary item s  

deno minated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the funct ional 

currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was deter mined. Non monetary 

items deno minated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost are translated 

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  
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Ex change differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences 

relating to the follo wing, which are recognized in other co mprehensive inco me:  

●  an invest ment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other co mprehensive 

inco me;  

●  a financial liabilit y designated as a hedge of the net invest ment in a foreign operation to the 

ext ent that the hedge is effective; or  

●  qualifying cash flo w hedges to the extent that the hedges are effect ive.  

(ii)  Foreign operat ions  

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including good will and fair value adjust ments 

aris ing on acquisition, are translated into the presentation currency at the exchange rates at  the  

report ing date. The inco me and expenses of foreign operations are translated into the presentat ion 

currency at the average exchange rate. Ex change differences are recognized in other 

co mprehensive inco m e.  

W h en a foreign operat ion is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint con trol 

is lost, the cu mulative a mount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is 

reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Co mpany disposes 

of only part of its int erest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining cont rol, 

the relevant proportion of the cu mulative a mount is reattributed to noncontrolling interests. W hen 

the Co mpany disposes of only part of its inves tment in an associat e  or joint venture that includes 

a foreign operat ion while retaining significant  influence or joint control, the relevant propor tion 

of the cu mulative a mount is reclassified to profit or loss.  

W h en the settle ment of a monetary receivable fro m or payable to a foreign operation is neither  

planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, Exchange differences arising fro m such a 

m onetary ite m that are considered to for m part  of the net invest ment in the foreign operation are 

recognized in other co mprehensi ve inco me.  

(d) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities   

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified 

as non- current.  

(i)  It expects to realize the asset, or intends t o s ell or consu me it, in its nor mal operating cycle;  

(ii)  It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;  

(iii)  It expects to realize the asset within t welve m onths after the reporting period; or  

(iv)  The asset is cash and cash equivalent (as def i ned in IAS 7) unless the asset is restricted fro m 

being exchanged or used to s ettle a liabilit y for at least t welve months after the report ing period.  

A liability is classified as current under one  of the follo wing criteria, and all other liabi lities are 

classified as non-current. 
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An entit y shall classify a liabilit y as current when:  

(i)  It expects to settle the liability in its nor mal operating cycle;  

(ii)  It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;  

(iii)  The liability is due to be settled within t welve m onths after the report ing period; or  

(iv)  It does not have an unconditional right to defer s ettle ment of the liabilit y for at least t welve 

m onths after the report ing period. Ter ms of a liabilit y that could , at the option of the counterparty, 

result in its settle ment by the issue of equity instru ments do not affect its classificat ion.  

(e)  Cash and cash equivalents   

Cash co mprises cash on hand and de ma nd deposits. Cash equivalents are short ter m, highly liqu id 

invest ments that are readily convert ible to kno wn a mounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant  

risk of changes in value. Time deposits which  meet the above definition and are held for the purpose 

of meeting short  ter m cash co m mit ments ra ther than  for invest ment  or other purposes should be 

recognized as  cash equivalents.  

(f)  Financial instruments   

Accounts receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originat ed. All 

other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group beco m es a part y 

to the contractual provis ions of the instrumen t. A financial asset (unless it is an accounts receivable 

without a significant financing co mp onent) or financial liabilit y is initially measured at fair value plus , 

for an ite m not at fair value through profit or loss (F VT P L), transact ion costs that are directly 

attributable to its acquisition or issue. An  accounts receivable without a significant  financing 

co mp onent is initially measured at the transact io n price.  

(i)  Financial assets  

All regular wa y purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade 

dat e basis.  

O n initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as  measured at: a mortized cost; Fair value 

through other co m prehensive inco m e (F V O C I) – debt invest ment; F V O C I – equity invest ment; 

or F VT P L. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless  the 

Group changes its business model for mana ging financial assets, in which case all aff ected 

financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first report ing period follo wing the change 

in the business model.  

1) Financial assets measured at a mortized cost  

A financial asset is measured at a mortized cos t if it meets both of the follo wing condit ions  

and is not designated as at F VT P L:  

‧  it is held within a business model whose objec tive is to hold assets to collect contractual 

cash flows; and  
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‧  its contractual ter ms give rise on specified dates  to cash flo ws that are solely pa yments  

of principal and interest on the principal a mount outstanding.  

These assets are subsequent ly measured at am ortized cost, which is the a mount at which 

the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/ minus, the cu mulative 

a mort ization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allo wa nce. Int erest  

inco me, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impair ment, are recognized in profit  

or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognit ion is recognized in profit or loss.  

2) Fair value through other co mprehensive incom e (F VO CI )  

O n initial recognition of an equity invest men t that is not held for trading, the Co mpa n y 

ma y irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the invest ment ’s  fair value in  

other co mprehensive inco me.  This election is ma de on an instrument -by-instru ment basis.  

Eq uity invest ments at F VO CI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 

recognized as inco me in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recover y of 

part of the cost of the invest ment. Other ne t gains and losses  are recognized in other 

co mprehensive inco m e and are never reclassified to profit or loss.  

Dividend inco me is recognized in profit or loss  on the date on which the Co mpany ’ s  right  

to receive paym ent is established .  

3) Fair value through profit or loss (F VT P L)  

All financial assets  not classified as  a mort ized cost or F V O CI described as  above (e.g. 

financial assets held for trading and those that are ma naged and whose perfor ma nce is  

evaluated on a fair value basis) a re measured at F VT P L, including derivat ive financial 

assets. On initial recognition, the Co mpany ma y irrevocably designate a financial asset, 

which meets the require ments to be measured at a mortized cost or at F VO CI, as at F VT P L 

if doing so eliminates  or s ignificantly reduces an accounting mis match that would 

other wise arise.  

These assets are subsequent ly measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including an y 

interest or dividend inco me, are recognized in profit or loss.  

4) Impair ment of financial assets  

The Co mpany recognizes loss allo wa nces for expected credit losses (EC L) on financial 

assets measured at a mortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, a mortized costs,  

not es and accounts receivables, other receivable, guarantee deposit paid and o ther financial 

assets), debt invest ments measured at F VO CI and contract assets.  

The C o mpany measures  loss allowances at an a mount equal to lifetime EC L, except for the 

follo wing which are measured as 12 - month EC L:  

‧  debt securities that are det er mined to h ave low credit risk at the report ing date; and  
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‧  other debt s ecurities  and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default  

occurring over the expected life of the financial instru ment) has not increased 

significantly since initial recognition.  

Loss allowance for accounts receivables and contract assets are alwa ys measured at an 

a mount equal to lifetime EC L.  

W h en deter mining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significant ly 

since initial recognit ion and when estimating EC L, the Co mpany considers reasonable and 

supportable infor mation that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 

includes both quantitative and qualitative infor mation and analysis based on the Co mpa ny’

s historical experience and infor med credit assess ment  as well as for ward -looking 

infor mation.  

The C o mpany assu mes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly 

if it is more than 30 days past due.  

The C o mpany considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more 

than 180 days past due or the debtor  is unlikely to pa y its credit obligations to the 

C o mpany in full. 

The Co mpa ny considers a time deposit to have a lo w credit risk when trading partner is  

equivalent to globally u nderstood definition of ‘ invest ment grade’ .  

Lifetime EC Ls are the EC Ls that result fro m all possible default events over the expected 

life of a financial instru ment.  

12- month EC Ls are the portion of EC Ls that  result fro m default events that are possible 

within the 12 month after the reporting dat e (or a shorter period if the expected life of the 

instru ment is less than 12 months).  

The maximu m period considered when estimating EC Ls is the maxi mu m contractual 

period over which the Co mpany is exposed to credit  risk.  

EC Ls are a probabilit y- weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as  

the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference bet ween the cash flo ws due to the 

C o mpany in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that t he Co mpany expects to  

receive). EC Ls are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.  

At each reporting date, the Co mpany assesses whether financial assets carried at a mortized 

cost and debt securities at F VO C I are credit -impaired. A f inancial asset is  

‘ credit-impaired ’  when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial 

assets is credit-impaired includes the follo wing observable data:  

‧  significant financial difficulty of the borro wer  or issuer;  

‧  a breach of contract such as a default or being m ore than 180 da ys past due;  
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‧  the lender of the borrower, for econo mic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's  

financial difficulty, having granted to the bor ro wer a concession that the lender would 

not other wise consider;  

‧  it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; 

or  

‧  the disappearance of an act ive market for a s ecurity because of financial difficulties .  

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at a mort ized cost are deducted from the gross  

carrying a mount of the assets. For debt s ecurities at F V O CI, the loss allowance is charge 

to profit or loss and is recog nized in other comprehensive inco me instead of reducing the 

carrying a mount of the asset.  

The gross carrying a mount of a financial asset is written off when the Co mpany has no 

reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a por tion thereof. 

For corporat e custo mers, the Co mpany individually ma kes an assess ment with respect to 

the timing and a mount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of 

recovery. The C o mpany expects no significant recovery fro m the a mou nt written off. 

Ho wever, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforce ment activities  

in order to co mply with the Co mpany’ s  procedures for recover y of a mounts due.  

5) Derecognit ion of financial assets  

The Co mpany derecognizes a f inancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flo ws  

fro m the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flo ws  

in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of o wnership of the 

financial asset are transferred or in which the Co mpa ny neither transfers nor retains  

substant ially all of the risks and re wards of ownership and it does not retain control of the 

financial asset.  

The C o mpany enters into transactions whereb y it transfers assets recognized in its  

state ment of balance sheet, but retains eit her all or substantially all of the risks and rewards  

of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.  

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity instruments  

1) Classification of debt or equity  

Debt and equity instru ments issued by the Comp any are classified as financial liabilities or 

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrange ments and the definitions  

of a financial liabilit y and an equity instru men t. 

2) Eq uity instrument  

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual int erest in the assets of an 

entit y after deduct ing all of its liabilities. Equ ity instru ments issued are recognized as the 

a mount of considerat ion received, les s the direct cost of issuing.  
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3) Treasury shares  

W h en shares  recognized as equity are repurchased, the a mount of the considerat ion paid, 

which includes direct ly attributable costs, is recognized as  a deduct ion fro m equity. 

R epurchased shares are classified as treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or 

reissued subsequently, the a mount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the 

resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recognized in capital surplus or retained 

earnings (if the capital suplus is not sufficient to be written do wn).  

4) Financial liabilities  

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at a mort ized cost or F VT P L. A financial 

liabilit y is classified as at F VTP L if it is classified as held -for-trading, it is a derivative or 

it is designated as such on initial recognit ion. Financial liabilities at F VT P L are measured 

at fair value and net  gains  and losses, including any int erest expense, are recognized in  

profit or loss.  

Other financial liabilities a re subsequently measured at a mortized cost using the effective 

interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in 

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognit ion is also recognized in profit or loss.  

5) Derecognit ion of financial liabilities  

The C o mpany derecognizes  a financial liabilit y when its contractual obligations are 

discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Co m pany also derecognizes  a financial liabilit y 

when its ter ms are modified and the cash flows of the mod ified liabilit y are substant ially 

different, in which case a ne w financial liability based on the modified ter ms is recognized 

at fair value.  

O n derecognition of a financial liabilit y, the difference bet ween the carrying a mount of a 

financial liabilit y ext inguished and the considerat ion paid (including any non -cash assets 

transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.  

6) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net a mount presented in the 

state ment  of balance sheet when, and only when, the C o mpany currently has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the a mounts and it intends either to s ettle the m on a net basis or 

to realize the asset and settle the liability simu lta neously.  

(iii)  Derivative financial instru ments and hedge accounting  

The C o mpany holds derivative financial instru ments to hedge its foreign currency and int erest 

rate exposures . Embedded derivat ives are s eparated fro m the host contract and accounted for 

separately if the host contract is not a financia l asset and certain criteria are met.  

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognit ion, derivat ives  are 

m easured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized  in profit or loss.  
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(g) Inventories    

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories  is  

calculated using the weighted average method, and includes other costs  incurred in bringing the m to 

their present location and condition.  

Net  realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 

costs of co mplet ion and selling expenses.  

(h) Invest ment in associates   

Associat es are those entities in which  the Comp any has significant influence, but not control or joint  

control, over their financial and operating policies.  

Invest ments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at cost. 

The cost of the invest ment includes transaction costs. The carrying a mount of the investment in 

associat es includes good will aris ing from the acquisition less any accu m ulated impair ment losses.  

The financial statements include the Co mpany’ s  share of the profit or loss and other co m preh ensive 

inco me of those associat es, after adjust ments to align their accounting policies  with those of the 

C o mpany, fro m the date on which significant influence co m m ences unt il the date on which significant  

influence ceases. The C o mpany recognizes  any chang es of its proportionate share in the investee within 

capital surplus, when an associat e’ s  equity changes due to reasons other than profit and loss or 

co mprehensive inco m e, which did not result in changes in actual significant influence.  

Gains and losses resulting from transact ions bet ween the C o mpany and an associate are recognized 

only to the ext ent of unrelat ed Co mpany’ s  interests in the associate.  

W h en the Co mpany’ s  share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associat e, it  

dis continues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero, 

additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the ext ent that the C o mpan y 

has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made  pa yments on behalf of the associat e.  

W h en the Co mpany subscribes  to addit ional shares in an associate at a percentage different from its  

existing o wnership percentage, the resulting carrying a mount of the invest ment will differ from the 

a mount of the Co mp a ny’s  proport ionate interest in the net assets  of the associate. The C o mpany 

records such a difference as an adjust ment to invest ments, with the corresponding a mount charged or 

credit ed to capital surplus. The aforesaid adjustment should first be adjusted under capital surplus. If  

the capital surplus resulting from changes in o wnership int erest is not sufficient, the re maining 

difference is debited to retained earnings. If the C o mpany’  s  o wnership interest is reduced due to the 

additional subscription to th e shares of the associat e by other investors, the proportionate am ount of 

the gains or losses previously recognized in other co mprehensive inco me in relation to that  associate 

will be reclassified to profit or loss on the sa m e basis as would be required if  the associate had direct ly 

disposed of the relat ed assets or liabilities.  
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(i)  Invest ment in subsidiaries   

W h en preparing the parent -co mpany-only financial state ments, invest ment  in subsidiaries which ar e 

controlled by the Co mpany is acc ounted for us ing the equity method. Under the equity method, the net  

inco me, other co mprehensive inco me and equity attributable to shareholders of the C o mp any in the 

parent -co mpany-only financial state ment, are equal to those in the consolidated financial statements.  

C hanges in the Co mpany’ s  o wnership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control 

are accounted for as equity transact ions.  

(j)  Invest ment property   

Invest ment property is property held either to earn rental inco me or for ca pital appreciation or for both, 

but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the product ion or supply of goods or services, 

or for ad ministrative purposes. Invest ment p roperty is measured at cost on initial recogn ition, and 

subsequent ly at cost, less accu mulated depreciation and accu m ulated impair ment losses. Depreciation 

expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful life, and residual value which are the 

sa me as those adopted for property, plant and equip ment.  

An y gain or loss on disposal of an invest men t property (calculated as the difference bet ween the net  

proceeds fro m disposal and the carrying a mount) is recognized in profit or loss.  

R ental inco me fro m invest ment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight -line basis over 

the ter m of the lease. Lease incent ives  granted are recognized as  an int egral part of the total rental 

inco me, over the ter m of the lease.  

(k) Property, plant and equip ment   

(i)  R ecognition and measure ment  

Ite ms of property, plant and equip ment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized 

borro wing costs, less accu m ulated depreciation and any accu m ulated impair ment  losses.  

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equip ment have different useful lives , they 

are accounted for as s eparate ite ms ( major comp onents) of property, plant and equip ment.  

An y gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equip ment is recognized in profit 

or loss.  

(ii)  Subsequent expenditure  

Subsequent  expenditure is capitalized only i f  it is probable that the future econo mic benefits 

associat ed with the expenditure will f lo w to the Co mpa ny.  

(iii)  Depreciation  

Depreciation is calculat ed on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit 

or loss on a straight line basis over the estima ted useful lives  of each co mp onent of an item of 

property, plant and equip ment.  

La nd is not depreciated.  



ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. 

Notes to the  Fi na ncial State me nts  

 

(Continued)  

191  

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equip ment for current and co mparat ive periods 

are as follo ws :  

1) B uildings  50 years  

2) B uilding improve ment  10 years  

3) M a chinery and R & D equip ment  3~6 years  

4) M olding equip ment  2 years  

5) Other equip ment  3~5 years  

Depreciation methods, useful lives  and residual values are revie wed at each report ing date and 

adjusted if appropriate.  

(iv)  R eclassification to invest ment property  

The property is reclassified to invest ment property at its carrying a mount when the use of the 

property changes fro m o wneroccupied to investment property.  

(l)  Lease   

At  incept ion of a contract, the Co mpany asses ses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 

is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys  the right to control the use of an ident ified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration.  

(i)  As a leasee  

The Co mpa ny has elected not to recognize right -of-use assets and lease liabilities for short -ter m 

leases and leases of lo w-value assets. The C omp any recognizes the lease pa yments associa ted 

with these leases as an expense on a straight -line basis over the lease ter m.  

(ii)  As a leasor  

W h en the Co mpany acts as a lessor, it deter mines at lease co m m ence ment  whether each lease is 

a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Co mpany ma kes an overall 

assess ment of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substant ially all of the risks and rewards 

of o wnership incidental to o wnership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is  

a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operat ing lease. As part of this  assess ment, the 

C o mpany considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the 

econo mic life of the asset.  

( m)  Intangible assets   

(i)  R ecognition and measure ment  

G ood will arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less accu m ulated 

impair ment losses.  

Expenditure on research act ivities  is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.  
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Develop ment expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the 

product or process is technically and c o m m ercially feasible, future econo mic benefits  are 

probable and the Co mpany intends to, and has sufficient resources to, co mplete develop ment and 

to use or s ell the asset. Other wise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequen t to 

initial recognition, develop ment expenditure is measured at cost, less accu m ulated a mort ization 

and any accu mulat ed impair ment losses.  

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Co mpany and have finite useful lives are 

m easured at cost less accu m ulated a mort iza tion and any accu m ulated impair ment  losses.  

(ii)  Subsequent expenditure  

Subsequent  expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future econo mic benefits 

e mbodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditu re 

on internally generat ed good will and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.  

(iii)  A m ortization  

A m ortization is calculat ed over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized in 

profit or loss on a straight -line basis over the  estimated useful lives  of intangible assets, other 

than good will, from the dat e that they are avai lable for use.  

The estimated useful lives  for current and comp arative periods are as follows:  

1) C o mp uter soft ware      1~5 years  

2) Product develop m ent expenses  1 year  

A m ortization methods, useful lives and residual values are revie wed at each reporting date and 

adjusted if appropriate.  

(n) Impair ment –  non-derivative financial assets   

At  each reporting date, the Co mpany revie ws  the carrying a mounts of its non-financial assets (other 

than inventories and deferred tax assets) to de ter mine whether there is any indicat ion of impair ment. 

If any such indication exists, then the asset’s  recoverable a mount is estimated.  

For impair ment testing, assets are gro uped together into the s mallest group of assets  that generates cas h 

inflo ws fro m continuing use that are largely independent  of the cash inflows of other assets  or C G Us. 

G ood will arising fro m a business  co mbinat ion is allocated to C G Us or groups of C G U s th at are 

expected to benefit fro m the synergies of the co mbinat ion.  

The recoverable a mount of an asset or C G U is the great er of its value in use and its fair value less costs  

to s ell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flo ws, discounted to th eir present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assess ments of the time value of money and the risks  

specific to the asset or C G U.  

An impair ment  loss is recognized if the carrying a mount of an asset or C G U exceeds its recoverab le 

a mount.  
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Impair ment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying 

a mount of any good will allocated to the C G U, and then to reduce the carrying a mounts of the other 

assets in the C G U on a pro rata basis. 

(o) Provis ions   

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the C o mpany has a present obligat ion that ca n 

be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of econo mic benefits will be required to s ettle 

the obligation. Pr ovisions are det er mined b y discounting the expected future cash flows at  a pre -tax 

rate that reflects the current market assess me nts of the time value of money and the risks specific to  

the liabilit y. The un winding of the discount is recognized as  finance cost. 

A provis ion for warrant ies is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold, based on 

historical warranty data and a weight ing of all possible outco mes against their associated probabilities.  

(p) R evenue  

(i)  R evenue fro m contracts with custo mers  

R evenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Co mpany expects to be entitled in 

exchange for transferring goods or s ervices  to a custo mer. The C o mpany recognizes  revenue 

when it satisfies a perfor ma nce obligation by transferrin g control of a good or a s ervice to a 

custo mer. The accounting policies for the C o mpany’ s  main types of revenue are expla ined 

below.  

1) Sale of goods  

The Co mpany recognizes  revenue when control of the products has been transferred, whe n 

the products are delivered to the custo mer, the custo mer has full dis cretion over the channel 

and price to sell the products, and there is no  unfulfilled obligation that could affect the 

custo mer’ s  acceptance of the products. Del ivery occurs when the products have been 

shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to  

the custo mer, and either the custo mer has accepted the products  in accordance with the 

sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the C o mpany has objec t ive 

evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.  

The Co mpany’ s  obligat ion to provide a refund for faulty electronic co mponents under the 

standard warranty ter ms is recognized as a provision for warranty; please refer to note 6(k).  

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the 

C o mpany has a right to an a mount of consideration that is unconditional.  

2) Financing co mponents  

The C o mpany does not expect to have any contracts where the period bet w een the transfer 

of the pro mised goods or s ervices to the custo mer and pa yment  by the custo mer exceeds  

one year. As a consequence, the Co mpany does not adjust any of the transaction prices  for 

the time value of money.  
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(q) E mployee benefits   

(i)  Defined contribut ion plans  

Ob ligations for contributions to defined contribut ion plans are expensed as the related service is 

provided. 

(ii)  Short -ter m e mployee benefits  

Short -ter m e mployee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided.  A liability is  

recognized for the a mount expected to be paid if the Co mpa ny has a present legal or construct ive 

obligation to pay this a mount as a result of past service provided b y the e mployee and the 

obligation can be estimated reliably.  

(r)  Share-based pa yment   

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based pa yment  arrange ments granted to e m ployees is  

generally recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period 

of the a wards. The a mount recognized as an  expense is adjusted to reflect the nu mber of awards for 

which the relat ed service and non- market perfor ma nce condit ions are expected to be met , such that the 

a mount ultimately recognized is based on the nu mber of a wards that meet  the relat ed service and 

non- market perfor mance condit ions at the vesting date.  

For share-based pa yment  a wards with non -vesting condit ions, the grant -dat e fair value of the 

share-based pa yment  is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true -up for differences  

bet ween expected and actual outco mes.  

The fair value of the a mount pa yable to e mployees in respect of share appreciat ion rights, which are 

settled in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period 

during which the e mp loyees beco me uncondit ionally entitled to pa yment. The liability is rem easured 

at each reporting dat e and at s ettle ment date based on the fair value of the share appreciation rights. 

An y changes in the liabilit y are recognized in profit or loss.  

Grant date of a short-based pa yment a ward is the date which the Board of Directors approves the capital 

increase base date.  

(s)  Inco me taxes   

Inco me taxes co mprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to  business 

co mbinations or recognized  directly in equity or other co mprehensive inco me, all current and deferred 

taxes are recognized in profit or loss.  

The Co mpany has det er mined that the global mini mu m top -up tax – which it is required to pay under  

Pillar T wo legislation – is an inco me tax in the scope of IAS 12. The C o mpany has applied a te mporary 

ma ndatory relief from deferred tax accounting for the impacts of the top -up tax and accounts for it as  

a current tax when it is incurred.  
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C urrent taxes co mprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for the 

year and any adjust ment to the tax pa yable or receivable in respect of previous years. The am ount of 

current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax a mount expected to be paid or 

received that reflects uncertainty related to inco me taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted 

or substantively enacted at the reporting dat e.  

Deferred taxes arise due to te mp orary differences bet ween the carrying a mounts of assets and  liabilities  

for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are recognized except 

for the following:  

(i)  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities  in a transaction that is  not 

a business co mbination and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable 

profits (losses) and does not give ris e to equal taxable and deduct ible temporary differences;  

(ii)  temporary differences relat ed to invest ments in subsidiaries, associates  and joint arrange m ents 

to the extent that the C o mpany is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 

differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and  

(iii)  taxable temporary differences arising on the  initial recognition of good will.  

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry for ward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and 

deduct ible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 

available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are revie wed at each reporting date  

and are reduced to the ext ent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized;  

such reductions are reversed when the probability of future t axable profits improves.  

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences whe n 

they reserve, using tax rates enact ed or substantively enacted at the reporting dat e.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the follo wing criteria are met:  

(i)  the Co mpany has a legally enforceable right  to s et off current tax assets against current  tax 

liabilities; and  

(ii)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to inco me taxes levied by the sa m e 

taxation authority on either:  

1) the sa me taxable ent it y; or  

2) different taxable entities which int end to sett le current tax assets and liabilities  on a net 

basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities sim ultaneously, in each future period in whic h 

significant a mounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or 

recovered.  
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(t) Earnings (losses) per share   

The Co mpany discloses the Co mpany’  s basic and dilut ed earnings (losses) per share attributable to  

ordinary shareholders of the C o mpany. Basic earnings (losses) per share is  calculated as the  earnings  

(losses) attributable to ordinary shareholders  of the Co mpany divided b y the weighted average nu mber 

of ordinary shares outstanding. Dilut ed earnings (losses ) per share is calculat ed as the losses  

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the C o mpany divided b y the weighted average nu mb er of 

ordinary shares  outstanding after adjust ment  for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, 

such as employee co mpensation and ne w restricted stocks for e mployees.  

(u) Op erating seg ments   

The Co mpa ny discloses the operating seg men ts infor mation in the consolidated financial state ments. 

Therefore, the Co mpany does not disclose the operating seg ments infor mation in the parent co mpa n y 

only financial statements.  

(5) Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the financial state ments in confor mity with the IF R Ss endorsed by the FS C requires  

ma na ge ment  to ma ke judg ments, estimates, and assu mptions that affect the application of the accounting 

policies and the report ed a mount of assets, liabilities, inco me, and expenses. Actual results  ma y differ fro m 

these estimates.  

The ma nage ment  cont inues t o monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The ma nage ment  

recognizes  any changes in accounting estim ates during the period and the impact of those changes in 

accounting estimates in the next period.  

The accounting policies  involved s ignificant jud g ments and the infor mation that have significant effect on 

the a mounts recognized in the financial statem ents are as follows:  

Judg ment  of whether the Co mpany has substantive control over its investees  

In April 2022, the Co mpany increased its invest ment in  the secured convertible bonds of tBP C. Aft er 

considering the co mprehensive shareholding ratio of potentially ordinary shares and the intention to 

do minate tBP C’s  operating and financial act ivities, the C o mpany assessed to have substant ial control over 

tBP C and therefore tBP C was included in the consolidated financial state ments s ince the date of acquisition 

of substantial control.  

Infor mation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a s ignificant risk of resulting in a 

material adjust ment within the next financial year is as follo ws:  

Valuation of inventories  

As inventories are measured at the lo wer of cost or net realizable value, the net realizab le value of the 

inventory is mainly deter mined based on assumptions as to future sales price. Du e to the industry and market  

transfor mation, there ma y be changes in the net realizable value of inventories. Please refer to note 6(d) for 

further description of the valuat ion of inventories.  
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(6) Explanation of significant accounts    

(a) Cash and cash equivalents   

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 
 Petty cash, checking accounts and de mand deposits  $  28,535    57,833   

 Ti me deposits   2,900    2,900   

 Cash and cash equivalents in the state ments of cash flo ws  $ 31,435   60,733  
    

Please refer to note 6(t) for the exchange rate risk, the interest rate risk and the fair value sensitivit y 

analysis of the financial assets of the Co mpa ny.  

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -non-current   

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss:       

 C onvertible bond-tBP C  $ 30,000   31,600  

    
The C o mpany acquired 170, 130 and 80, 116, 60, 60 units of secured convert ible bonds issued b y tBP C  

in M a y, Septe mb er, 2023 and April, June, July, October 2022, at a par value of $100 per unit and the 

book values of $17,000, $13,000 and $8,000, $11,600, $6,000, $6,000, respectively, with a duration of 

one year and are expected to be convert ed into co m m on stock of tBP C. The  host contracts of the hybrid 

financial instru ment, which were classified as ma ndatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss, 

are recognized as financial assets within the scope of IF RS 9.  

tBP C had redee med 108 units of its matured secured conver tible bonds in June 2022, with the book 

value of $10,800.  

The Co mpany exercised its rights to convert matured convertible bonds issued b y tBP C in April, June, 

July, and October of 2023, respectively, for related infor mation, please refer to note 6(e).  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the C o mp any did not provide any of the afore mentioned  financial 

assets as collaterals for its loans.  

(c)  Notes and accounts receivable   

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Notes receivable fro m operating activities  $  1,021    -  

 Accounts receivable- measured at a mortized cost   3,072    2,083   

   4,093    2,083   

 Less: Loss allo wa nce   (7)    (2)   

  $ 4,086   2,081  
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The Co mpany applies the simp lified approach  to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of 

lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, accounts   

receivable have been grouped based on shared credi t risk charact eristics and the days past due, as wel l 

as incorporat ed for ward looking infor mation. The loss allo wance provision was deter mined as follo ws :  

  December 31, 2023 

  Gross carrying 

amount 

Weighted-avera

ge loss rate Loss allowance 

 C urrent  $  3,344   0 %   -  

 Less  than 30 days past due   749   1 %   7   

  $ 4,093    7  

     
  December 31, 2022 

  Gross carrying 

amount 

Weighted-avera

ge loss rate Loss allowance 

 C urrent  $  1,887   0 %   -  

 Less  than 30 days past due   196   1 %   2   

  $ 2,083    2  
     
The move m ent in the allo wa nce for notes and accounts receivable was as follows:  

  2023 2022 

 Balance at January 1  $  2    1   

 Impair ment losses recognized   5    1   

 Balance at Dece mb er 31  $ 7    2   

    

As of Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, the Comp any did not provide any of the afore mentioned notes  

and accounts receivable as collaterals for its loans.  

(d) Inventories   

 
  

December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 M erchandise inventories  $ 178,794   175,610  

    

The details of cost of sales for the years ended  Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follo ws:  

 2023 2022 

 C ost of goods sold and expenses  $  221,949    278,911   

 Inventory valuation loss and obsolescence   2,751    3,486   

  $ 224,700   282,397  
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For the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the write-do wn of inventories to net realizable value 

a mounted to $2,751 and $3,486, respectively.    

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the Co mp any did not provide any inventories  as collaterals for its 

loans.  

(e)  Invest ments accounted for using equity method   

The co mp onents of invest ments accounted for using the equity method at the report ing date were as  

follo ws: 

 

 

December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 

 Subsidiaries  $ 257,152   245,246  

    

(i)  Subsidiaries  

For infor mation on subsidiaries, please refer to 2023 annual consolidat ed financial state men ts.  

The C o mpany exercised its rights to convert the 2nd of three, 1st of four, 2nd of four and 3rd of 

four batches of matured convertible bonds issued by tBP C in April,  June, July and October of 

2023, with the convertible prices of $0.3 New Taiwan dollars, $0.2 Ne w Taiwan dollars, $0.2 

Ne w Tai wa n dollars and $0.1 Ne w Taiwa n dollars per share, at the book values of $8,640 

(including int erest receivable of $640), $12,528 ( including int erest receivable of $928), $6,480 

(including int erest receivable of $480) and  $6,480 (including int erest receivable of $480), 

resulting in the acquisition of 28,800 thousand, 62,640 thousand, 32,400 thousand and 64,800 

thousand shares, respect ively, totaling 188,640 thousand shares. As of Dece mb er 31, 2023, the 

C o mpany‘ s  shareholding ratio is 56.98 %.  

The difference in book value due to the conversion of tBP C convertible bonds into co m m on  

stock (including other bondholders) resulted in the Co mp a ny’s  capital surplus  to increase by 

$372 in 2023.  

The C o mpany's shares of its subsidiary's profit or loss a mounted to a loss of $30,320 and  

$13,256 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.  

(ii)  Associat e  

The details of the material associat e were as follows:  

 

  

M ain operating 

location/  

Prop ortion 

of 

shareh olding 

an d voting 

rights  

 

N a me  of Associate  
N ature of the relationship  

with the C o m p any  

R egistered 

C ou ntry of the 

C o m p any  

D ece mb er 

31, 2022  

  tBP C   S hareholder with significant influence   Taiwan    N ote   

     

Note: Listed as the subsidiary of the Company since April, 2022. 



ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC. 

Notes to the  Fi na ncial State me nts  

 

(Continued)  

200  

The follo wing aggregated financial infor mation of the significant affiliates has been adjusted  

according to individually prepared IF R S financial state ment to reflect the fair value adjust m ents 

ma de at the time of acquisition.  

1) Su m marized financial infor mation of tBP C  

 
  For the three 

months ended 

March 31,2022 

 Op erating revenue   743  

 Loss fro m continuing operations (equal to comprehensive loss)  $ (10,245)  

 Total co mprehensive loss attributable to o wners of the associate  $ (10,245)  
   

 
  December 31, 

2022 

 Share of net assets of the associat e o wned b y the C o mpany at period 

began $  18,936   

 C o mprehensive loss attributable to the Co mpa ny   (3,557)  

 Share of net  assets of the associat e as of Decemb er 31  $ 15,379  
   

(iii)  The C o mpany has acquired substantial control over tBP C since April 2022, tBP C becam e a 

subsidiary and is included in the consolidated financial statements. The equity invest men t by 

using the equity method should be regarded as disposal at fair value with IF RS, and a disposal 

gain of $3,687 was recognized, please refer to  note 6(f).  

(iv)  Pledges  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the C o mp any did not provide any invest ment  accounted  for 

using equity method as collateral for its loans.  

(f)  Acquisition of subsidiary   

(i)  Acquisition of subsidiary  

In April 2022, the Co mpany increased invest m ent in the s ecured convertible bonds of tBP C, after 

considering the co mprehensive shareholding ratio of potentially ordinary shares and the inten tion 

to do minate tBP C’s  operating and financial activities. The C o mpany's int erest in tBP C re m ains 

at 34.72 %. The main business of tBP C is the research and develop ment, ma nufacture and sale of 

m edical equip ment and health care products.  
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1) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assum ed  

The follo wing table su m marizes the recognized a mounts of assets acquired and liabilities  

assu med at the aquisition dat e.  

 Cash and cash equivalents  $  4,000   

 Inventories   10,210   

 Accounts receivable and other receivables   5   

 Prepa yments   5,055   

 Other current assets   4,788   

 Property, plant and equip ment   11,893   

 Right -of-use assets   8,903   

 Intangible assets   30,849   

 Other non-current assets   1,766   

 Other short-ter m borro wings   (6,100)  

 Other payables   (5,142)  

 Other current liabilities   (14,366)   

 Non-current liabilities   (7,567)  

 Others   278   

 The fair value of net ident ifable assets acquired  $ 44,572  
   
There was no s ignificant difference bet ween  the carrying a mount of the equity method 

invest ments of the Co mpany and the fair value of the net ident ifiable assets on April 1, 

2022. 

The Co mpany will cont inue to revie w the above items during the measure ment period. If 

ne w infor mation beco mes available within one year of the dat e of acquisition of control 

relating to facts and circu mstances existing at the dat e of acquisition of control that would 

identify an adjust ment to the provisional am ount  described above or any additional 

provis ion for liabilities existing at the dat e of acquisition, the accounting for the acquisition 

of control will be modified.  

The fair value of tBP C's net ident ifiable assets on April 1, 2022, was based on the appraisal 

report that issued b y Professional Actuar y Ma nage ment  Consulting C o., Ltd.  
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(g) Property, plant and equip ment   

The move m ents of cost and depreciation of the property, plant and equip ment of the Co mpa ny for the 

years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:  

  

Land 

Buildings and 

building 

improvement 

Machinery 

and R&D 

equipment 

Molding 

equipment 

and other 

equipment Total 
 Cost:                

   Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 95,104   29,484   4,042   9,894   138,524  

  Additions for the period  -   -   -   216   216  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (79)   (79)  

  Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 95,104   29,484   4,042   10,031   138,661  

  Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 95,104   29,484   2,992   9,638   137,218  

  Additions for the period  -   -   1,050   281   1,331  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (25)   (25)  

  Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 95,104   29,484   4,042   9,894   138,524  

 Depreciation:                

  Balance on January 1, 2023 $ -   9,307   2,977   9,338   21,622  

  Depreciation for the period  -   847   241   273   1,361  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (79)   (79)  

  Balance on December 31, 2023 $ -   10,154   3,218   9,532   22,904  

  Balance on January 1, 2022 $ -   8,292   2,840   9,144   20,276  

  Depreciation for the period  -   1,015   137   219   1,371  

  Disposals  -   -   -   (25)   (25)  

  Balance on December 31, 2022 $ -   9,307   2,977   9,338   21,622  

 Book value:                

  Balance on December 31, 2023 $ 95,104   19,330   824   499   115,757  

  Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 95,104   21,192   152   494   116,942  

  Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 95,104   20,177   1,065   556   116,902  

       

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the property, plant and equip ment has been pledged as collat eral 

for short-ter m borro wings and credit lines . Please refer to note 8.  
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(h) Invest ment property   

Details of invest ment property were as follo ws:  

  

Land 

Buildings and 

construction Total 

 Cost          

  B alance on January 1, 2023  

 ( Sa m e balance on Dece mber 31, 2023)  

$ 111,400   59,151   170,551  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  

 ( Sa m e balance on Dece mber 31, 2022)  

$ 111,400   59,151   170,551  

 Depreciation:          

  B alance on January 1, 2023  $  -   10,450    10,450   

  D epreciation for the period   -   1,183    1,183   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ -   11,633   11,633  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $  -   9,267    9,267   

  D epreciation for the period   -   1,183    1,183   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ -   10,450   10,450  

 Book value:          

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 111,400   47,518   158,918  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $ 111,400   49,884   161,284  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 111,400   48,701   160,101  

 Fair value:    

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023    $ 233,000  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022    $ 225,000  

     

Invest ment property co mprises of co m m ercial property that is leased to third parties . Each of the leases  

contains an initial non-cancellable lease period. Subsequent rene wals  are negot iated with the lessee. 

No cont ingent rents are charged. Please refer to note 6(l) for relevant infor mation (including rental 

inco me and direct operating expenses incurred). The fair value of invest ment propert ies wa s based on 

a valuat ion by a qualified independent appraiser who has recent valuation experience i n the location 

and categor y of the invest ment property being valued. The inputs  of levels of fair value hierarchy in 

det er mining the fair value is classified to Leve l 3.  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the invest ment  property has  been pledged as  collater al for 

short-ter m borro wings and credit lines . Please refer to note 8.  
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(i)  Intangible assets   

  

Computer 

software 

and others 

 Cost:    

  B alance on January 1, 2023  $  13,488   

  A ddit ion for the period   1,764   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 15,252  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $  12,801   

  A ddit ion for the period   701   

  Disposals   (14)  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 13,488  

 Amortization:    

  B alance on January 1, 2023  $  13,293   

  A m ortization for the period   1,086   

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 14,379  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $  11,951   

  A m ortization for the period   1,356   

  Disposals   (14)  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 13,293  

 Book value:    

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 873  

  B alance on January 1, 2022  $ 850  

  B alance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 195  
   

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the Co m pany did not provide any intangible assets as collat erals 

for its loans.  

(j)  Short -ter m borro wings   

  December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 
 Unsecured bank loans  $  58,000    58,000   

 Secured bank loans   130,000    156,000   

 Total $ 188,000   214,000  

 Unused credit lines for short -ter m borro wings  $ 269,462   236,922  

 Ra nge of interest rates   2.06%~2.81%   1.53%~2.36%  

    

Please refer to note 6(t) for the int erest risk, foreign currency exchange rat e risk, and liquidity risk 

infor mation of the Co mpany.  
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The Co mpa ny provided property, plant and equip ment and invest ments property as collaterals for its  

bank loans.  Please refer to note 8.  

(k) Provis ions- warranties   

  2023 2022 

 Balance on January 1  $  3,042    2,620   

 Provisions ma de during the period   2,708    3,378   

 Provisions used during the period   (2,301)   (2,956)  

 Balance on Dece mber 31  $ 3,449   3,042  

    
Provisions related to sales  of products are assessed based on historical infor mation.  

(l)  Op erating lease   

The Co mpany leases out its invest ment property and so me ma chineries . The Co mpany has classified 

these leases as operating leases, because it does no t transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards 

incidental to the o wnership of the assets. Please refer to note 6(h) sets out infor mation about the 

operat ing leases  of invest ment property.  

A maturit y analysis of lease paym ents, sho wing the undiscoun ted lease payments to be received after 

the report ing dat e was as follo ws:  

   December 

31, 2023 

December 

31, 2022 
 Less than one year  $  5,428    5,143   

 O ne to t wo years   5,543    -  

 Two to three years   5,543    -  

 Total undiscounted lease payments  $ 16,514   5,143  

    

For the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the rental inco me recognized in operat ing revenue 

a mounted to $5,210 and $5,203, respectively; the direct costs incurred in rental, which were recognized 

as operating costs, a mounted to $1,601 and $1 ,605, respect ively.  

( m)  E mployee benefits   

The C o mpany allocat es no less than 6 % of each e mployee ’ s  monthly wages to the labor pension 

personal account at Bureau of Labor Insurance  in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension 

Act . Under this defined contribution plan, the Co mpany allocat es a fixed a mount to the B ureau of 

Labor Insurance without addit ional legal or constructive obligat ions.  

The Co mpany recognized pension costs under the defined contribution method a mounting to $2,668  

and $2,666 for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Paym ent was m ade to the 

B ureau of Labor Insurance.  
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(n) Inco me taxes   

(i)  Inco me tax expenses  

1) The a mount of inco m e tax for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2 022 was as follo ws:  

 2023 2022 

 C urrent tax expenses for the period  $ -   -  

    

2) R econciliation of inco me tax and loss before tax for 2023 and 2022 were as follo ws:  

  2023 2022 

 Loss before tax  $  (29,820)    (13,759)   

 Inco me tax using the Group’s  do mestic tax rate   (5,964)    (2,752)   

 Loss of do mestic invest ment under equity method   6,051    2,538   

 C hange in current year losses for which no deferred tax 

assets recognized  

 (745)   (919)  

 C hange in unrecognized te mp orary differences   658    1,133   

  $ -   -  
    

(ii)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities  

1) Unrecognized deferred tax assets  

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the follo wing ite ms:  

  December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 
 

Deductible te mp orary differences  $  93,134    92,476   

 Unused tax losses   35,386    36,131   

 Ex change differences on translation of foreign  

financial state ments   14,380    16,608   

  $ 142,900   145,215  
    
The Co mpa ny is able to control the timing o f the reversal of the temporary differences 

related to the invest ments in subsidiaries on Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022. The t e mp orar y 

differences arising fro m the invest ments in subsidiaries where there is a probabilit y that  

such te mp orary differences will not reverse in  the foreseeable fu ture were not recognized 

as deferred tax assets.  

The R.O. C Inco me Tax Act allows net losses, as assessed by the tax authorities, to offset  

against taxable inco me over a period of ten years for local tax reporting purposes. Because 

of the uncertainty of fut ure taxable inco me, the Co mpa ny did not recognize the deferred 

tax assets aris ing from the tax losses.  
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The Co mpa ny's tax losses which could be used to offset future taxable inco me as of 

Dece mb er 31, 2023, were as follows:  

 Year of loss Unused tax losses Expiry year 

 The Co mpa ny:    

 2014 (assessed)  $  63,048   2024  

 2015 (assessed)   25,105   2025  

 2016 (assessed)   8,868   2026  

 2017 (assessed)   2,593   2027  

 2019 (assessed)   3,555   2029  

 2020 (assessed)   73,763   2030  

   $ 176,932   

2) R ecognized deferred tax assets and liabilities: None.  

(iii)  The Co mpa ny’s  inco me tax returns for the year through 2021 have been exa mined b y the tax 

authorities.  

(o) Capital and other equit ies   

(i)  Ordinary shares  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the C o mp any’ s  authorized co m mon stocks were consis ting 

of 200,000 thousand shares  with a par value of 10 Ne w Tai wa n dollars per share a mounted to  

$2,000,000 of which 55,219 thousand and 54,533 thousand shares, respectively, were issued.   

All issued shares were p aid up upon issuance.  

R econciliations of shares  outstanding for 2023 and 2022 were as follo ws:  

Unit: in thousand shares  

  Common stocks 

  2023 2022 

 Balance on January 1   54,533    54,625   

 Issuance of ne w restricted e mployee shares   1,300    -  

 Ca ncellation of ne w restrict ed e mployee shares   (614)   (92)  

 Balance on Dece mber 31   55,219   54,533  

    
The Co mpa ny a warded 1,300 thousand shares  of e mployee restricted shares in 2023. Please refer 

to note 6(p). 

614 thousand and 92 thousand shares of e mp loyee restricted shares  were repurchased in 2023 

and 2022, respectively, as certain e mployees of the Co mpa ny did not meet the vest ing 

require ments, and the cancellation procedure had been co mpleted.  
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(ii)  Capital surplus  

The balances of capital surplus were as follo ws:  

    

December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 Addit ional paid-in capital $  20,106    20,106   

 R estricted e mployee shares   (303)   (905)  

 E mployee stock options -expired   5,343    5,343   

 Donation from shareholders   1,615    1,615   

 C hanges in equity of associates   3,169    3,169   

 C hanges in equity in subsidiaries   372    -  

  $ 30,302   29,328  

    

According to the R.O.C. C o mpany Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit,  and 

only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the co m mon stock or be distributed as  

cash dividends. The afore mentioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting 

fro m pre miu m on issuance of capital stock and  earnings fro m donated assets received. Accord ing 

to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, 

capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not exceed 10% of 

the total co m mon stock outstanding.  

(iii)  R etained earnings  

The C o mpany’ s  article of incorporation stipulat e that Co mpa ny’s  net earnings should first be 

used to offset the prior years’  deficits, if any, before paying any inco me taxes. Of the re maining 

balance, 10 % is to be appropriated as legal reserve, and the other s are supposed to be set aside 

or reversed as the special reserve in accordance with la ws and regulat ions. And then  an y 

re maining profit together with any undistributed retained earnings shall be distributed according 

to the distribut ion plan proposed b y t he Board of Directors and sub mitted to the stockholders ’  

m eet ing for approval.  

The C o mpany adopts the residual dividend policy. In consideration of the expansion of 

operat ions and the need of cash flo ws in the future, when the Co mpany plans to distribute its 

dividends, the distributable a mounts cannot be less than 50 % of the cu mulat ive distributable 

surplus. M oreover, at least 10 % of the dividends should be distributed in cash.  

1) Legal reserve  

W h en a co mpany incurs no loss, it ma y, pursuant to a resolutio n by a shareholders ’  

m eet ing, distribute its legal reserve b y issuing ne w shares or by distribut ing cash, and only 

the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital ma y be distributed.  
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2) Special reserve  

In accordance with Ruling No. 1010012865 issued b y the FS C on April 6, 2012, a portion 

of current-period earnings and undistributed prior -period earnings shall be reclassified as  

a special earnings reserve during earnings distribut ion. The a mount to be reclassified 

should equal to the current-period total net reduct ion of other shareholders ’  equity. 

Si milarly, a portion of undistributed prior period earnings shall be reclassified as a special 

earnings reserve (and does not qualified for earnings distribution) to account for cu mulati ve 

changes to other shareholders’  equity pertaining to prior periods. A m ounts of subsequent  

reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders ’  equity shall qualify for 

additional distribut ions.  The balances of special reserve as  of Dece mber 31, 2023 and 

2022 were both $79,510.  

3) Earnings distribution  

Based on the resolut ions ma de during the annual stockholders ’  meetings held on June 

20, 2023 and June 22, 2022, there will be no distribut ion of dividends in 2022 and 2021, 

respectively, due to the losses incurred by the C o mpany.  

(iv)  Treasury shares  

Based on the resolutions ma de during the board meetings on Ma y 8 a nd August 7, 2019, 

respectively, the Co mpany deter mined to repu rchase 1,500 thousand shares  each, totaling 3,000 

thousand treasury shares, to be converted into e mployee stock opt ions. As of Dece mber 31, 2023, 

a total of 2 ,760 thousand treasury shares, whic h had been repurchased, have yet to be converted 

or canceled.  

M ove m ent of treasury share was as follo ws:  

  2023 2022 
  Share 

(thousands) 

 

Amount 

Share 

(thousands) 

 

Amount 

 Balance at period beginning 

(Sa me as balance at period 

ended)   2,760  $ 24,831   2,760  $ 24,831  
      

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act require ments as stated above, the nu mber of 

treasury shares purchased should not exceed 10 % of all shares outstanding. Also, the value of 

the repurchased shares should not exceed the sum of the Co mpany retained earnings, paid -in 

capital in excess of par value and realized capital surplus.  

In accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Act , treasury shares held b y the 

C o mpany should not be pledged. These shares do n ot hold any shareholder rights before their 

co mpletion of transfer.  
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(p) Share-based pa yment   

(i)  R estricted e mployee shares  

O n June 22, 2022, the Co mpany’  s  shareholders' meet ing decided to a ward 1,350 thousand 

shares of e mployee restricted shares to full -time employees of the C o mpany and its do mestic and 

overseas  subsidiaries  who meet  certain require ments. The restrict ed shares  have been registered 

with and approved b y the Securities  and Futures  Bureau of FS C. On March 15, 2023, the Board 

of Directors decided to issue 1,300 thousand shares, and the base date of the capital increase was  

April 20, 2023.  

The afore mentioned restrict ed shares were issued without  consideration. 20 %, 20 %, 30 %,  and 

30 % of the restricted shares were vest ed when the e mployees cont inue to provide service for at 

least 1 year, 2 years, 3 years, and 4 years from the registration and the effective dat e, and at the 

sa me time, meet the perfor mance require ment . Aft er the issuance, the restricted shares are kept 

by a trust, which is appointed by the Co mpany, before they are vested. These restrict ed shares  

shall not be sold, pledged, transferred, gifted or by any other means of disposal to third  parties  

during the custody period. The voting rights of these shares are executed by the custodian, and 

the custodian shall act based on the la w and regulations.  

The infor mation of the Co mpa ny’s  restricted  stock was as follo ws:  

Unit: in thousand shares  

  2023 2022 

 O utstanding units at January 1   1,118    2,154   

 Granted during the year   1,300    -  

 Forfeited during the year   (614)   (92)  

 Ex ercised during the year   -   (944)  

 O utstanding units at Dece mber 31   1,804   1,118  

    

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the unearned e mployee co mpensation balances were $6 ,163  

and $2,702, respectively. A total of 614 thousand and 92 thousand e mployee restricted shares 

were retrieved and canceled due to failure or loss of qualificat ions to m eet the vest ing 

require ments for the years ended Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The effective dat e 

of capital reduct ion were March 15, 2023 and March 16, 2022, and the related registration 

procedures  have been co mplet ed.  

The expenses incurred b y the C o mpany for employee restrict ed shares  were $4,001 and $3 ,354  

for the years ended Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  
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(q) Earnings (losses) per share   

Basic earnings (losses) per share and diluted earnings (losses) per share f or the years  ended Dece mb er  

31, 2023 and 2022, was co mp uted as follo ws:  

 2023 2022 

 Basic earnings per share   

 B elong to parent co mpany net loss  $ (29,820)   (13,759)  

 Weighted-average nu mber of outstanding shares  (in thousands)   50,655   50,489  

 Basic earnings (losses) per share (dollars)  $ (0.59)   (0.27)  
    

 2023 2022 

 Diluted earnings per share   

 B elong to parent co mpany net loss  $ (29,820)   (13,759)  

 Weighted-average nu mber of outstanding co m m on shares  

(in thousands)   50,655    50,489   

 E mployee restrict ed shares   -   -  

 Weighted-average nu mber of outstanding co m m on shares 

(After adjusting for dilut ive potential co m mon  share 

impact)   50,655   50,489  

 Diluted earnings (losses) per share (dollars)  $ (0.59)   (0.27)  

    

In 2023 and 2022, the e mployee restricted shares had an anti -dilutive effect; hence, no diluted losses  

per share was required to be co mp uted.  

(r)  R evenue fro m contracts with custo mers   

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue  

   2023 2022 

 Primary geographical markets:        

 Netherland  $  248,431    303,999   

 Taiwan   14,773    16,569   

 United States   34,775    27,679   

 Others   3,743    3,208   

  $ 301,722   351,455  

 M ajor products / servises lines:        

 LC D monitors  $  287,955    335,307   

 M edical equip ment   796    1,760   

 Others accessories   7,761    9,185   

 R ental inco me   5,210    5,203   

  $ 301,722   351,455  
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(ii)  C ontract balances  

1) Please refer to note 6(c) for the infor mation of notes and accounts receivable and its 

impair ment.  

2) C ontract liabilities  

   

December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 January 1, 2022 

  Contract liabilit y (receipt in 

advance)  $ 128,243   144,414   178,309  
     
The a mount of revenue recognized for the years ended Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, that  

included in the contract liabilit y balance at the beginning of the periods were $144,414 and 

$178,309 , respect ively.  

The major change in the balance of contract liabiliti es is the difference bet ween the tim e 

fra me in the perfor ma nce obligation to be satisfied and the payment  to be received.  

(s)  E mployee co mpensation and directors' re munerat ion   

According to the C o mpany’ s  Articles  of Inco rporat ion require that earning shall first be offset against  

any deficit, then, a mini mu m of 10 % will be distributed as employees' re munerat ion and a ma xi m u m 

of 2 % will be allocat ed as directors ’  re mu neration.  E mployees who are ent itled to receive the 

above- mentioned e mployee remunerat ion, in share or cash, include the e mployees of the subsidiaries  

of the Co mpany who meet certain specific requirement.  

Due to loss before tax for the year ended Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022, no e mployees' co m pensation 

and directors’  re muneration was recogniz ed. The related infor mation can be accessed through the 

M arket Observation Post S yst e m website.  

(t) Financial instruments   

(i)  Credit risk  

1) Exposure to credit risk  

The carrying a mount  of financial assets represents the maximu m a mount  exposed to credit  

risk.  

2) C oncentration to credit risk  

The proport ion of the C o mpany’ s  sales  revenue for m subsidiaries were both 94 % in 2023  

and 2022.  
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3) R eceivables and debt s ecurities  

For credit risk exposure of note and accounts receivables, please ref er to note 6(c).  

Other financial assets at a mortized cost include  cash and cash equivalents, other receivables , 

and guaranteed deposits, are considered to  have lo w risk, and thus, the impair ment  

provis ion recognized during the period is limited to 12 month s expected losses. Regarding 

ho w the financial instru ments are considered to have lo w credit risk, please refer to note 

4(f).  

(ii)  Liquidity risk  

The follo wing table sho ws the contractual ma turities of financial liabilities, including estim ated 

interest payments: 

  Carrying 

amount 

Contractual 

cash flows 

Within a 

year Over 1 year 

 December 31, 2023             

 Non-derivative financial liabilities :              

  S hort -ter m borro wings  $  188,000    (188,551)    (188,551)    -  

  N otes and accounts payable   56,296    (56,296)    (56,296)    -  

  Ot her payables   15,242    (15,242)    (15,242)    -  

  G uaranteed deposits   891    (891)   -   (891)  

  $ 260,429   (260,980)   (260,089)   (891)  

 December 31, 2022             

 Non-derivative financial liabilities :              

  S hort -ter m borro wings  $  214,000    (215,766)    (215,766)    -  

  N otes and accounts payable   12,699    (12,699)    (12,699)    -  

  Ot her payables   11,514    (11,514)   (11,514)    -  

  G uaranteed deposits   891    (891)   -   (891)  

  $ 239,104   (240,870)   (239,979)   (891)  

      

The C o mpany does not expect the cash flo ws included in the maturit y analysis, to occur 

significantly earlier or at s ignificantly differen t a mounts.  
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(iii)  C urrency risk  

1) Exposure to foreign currency risk (expressed in thousands for foreign currencies)  

The Co mpany’ s  financial assets and liabilities exposed to significant foreign currenc y 

risk were as follo ws:  

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

  Foreign 

currency 

Exchange 

rate NTD 

Foreign 

currency 

Exchange 

rate NTD 

 Financial assets                   

 Monetary items                   

  USD $ 809  USD/NTD 

=30.705 

 24,840   1,395  USD/NTD 

=30.71 

 42,840  

 Financial liabilities                   

 Monetary items                   

  USD  1,836  USD/NTD 

=30.705 

 56,374   572  USD/NTD 

=30.71 

 17,566  

        

2) Sensitivity analysis  

The Co mpany ’ s  exposure to foreign currency risk arises fro m the translation of the 

foreign currency exchange gains and losses  on cash and cash equivalents, notes and 

accounts  receivable, other receivables, short -ter m borro wings, notes and accounts pa yable, 

and other payables that are deno minated in foreign currency.   

A weakening (strengthening) 5 % of each foreign currency against the funct ional currenc y 

on 2023 and 2022 would have affect ed the net  loss before tax as follows:  

  December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 US D (against the T W D)    

  Ap preciate 5 %  $  (1,577)   1,264   

  D epreciate 5 %   1,577    (1,264)   

    
The analysis is perfor med on the sa me basis for both periods.  

3) Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary items  

As the Co mpany deals in diverse foreign currencies, gains or losses on foreign exchang e 

were su m marized as a s ingle a mount for disclosure. For the years ended Dece mb er 31, 

2023 and 2022, the foreign exchange gain (loss) including realized and unrealized, 

a mounted to $560 and $8,032, respectively.  
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(iv)  Int erest rate analysis  

Please refer to liquidity risk for the details  of financial assets and liabilities  exposed to int erest 

rate risk. 

  December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 Variable rate instru ments (carrying a mount):    

   Financial assets  $  25,143    43,574   

   Financial liabilities   (188,000)   (214,000)   

    

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure to interest rate on the deriva tive 

and non-derivative financial instru ments on the reporting date.  The rate of change is expressed 

as the int erest rate increases or decreases by 0.25 % when reporting to ma nage ment int ernally, 

which also represents ma nage me nt  of the Comp any’ s  assess ment on the reasonably possible 

interval of int erest rate change.  

If the int erest rate had increased or decreased by 0.25 %, the net loss before tax would have 

increased or decreased by $407 and $426 for the years ended Dece mb er 31 , 2023 and 2022, 

respectively, which would mainly result from the bank savings, time deposits and short -ter m 

borro wings with variable interest rates at the reporting dat e.  

(v)  Fair value of financial instru ments  

1) Fair value hierarchy  

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities  at fair value through profit or loss, financial 

instru ments used for hedging and of financial assets at fair value through other 

co mprehensive inco m e are measured on a recurring basis.  

Different levels of the fair value hiera rchy to be used in deter mining the fair value of 

financial instru ments are as follo ws:  

a) Level 1: quoted prices  (unadjusted) in active markets for identifiable assets or 

liabilities.  

b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices  included within Level 1 that  are observable 

for the asset  or liabilit y, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived fro m 

prices). 

c)  Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilit y that are not based on observable market data.  
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The carrying a mount and fair value of the C o mpany’ s  financial assets and liabilities, 

including the infor mation on fair value hierarchy were as follows; ho wever, except as 

described in the follo wing paragraphs, for financial instru ments not measured at fair value 

whose carrying a mo unt is reasonably close to the fair value, and for equity invest ments that  

has no quoted prices in the act ive markets and whose fair value cannot  be reliably measured,  

dis closure of fair value infor mation is not required:  

  December 31, 2023 
   Fair value 
  Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss:                

 M a ndatorily designated at fair 

value through profit or loss  $  30,000    -   -   30,000    30,000   

 Financial assets measured at 

amortized cost:                

 Cash and cash equivalents   31,435    -   -   -   -  

 N otes and accounts receivable   4,086    -   -   -   -  

 Other receivables   1,680    -   -   -   -  

 Restricted dep osits  

(recognized as other 

non-current assets)   2,334    -   -   -   -  

     Guaranteed dep osits 

(recognized as other 

non-current assets)   5    -   -   -   -  

  $ 69,540      

 Financial liabilities measured at 

amortized cost:                

 S hort-ter m borro wing  $  188,000    -   -   -   -  

 N otes and accounts payable  56,296    -   -   -   -  

 Other pa yables   15,242    -   -   -   -  

 G uaranteed dep osits   891    -   -   -   -  

  $ 260,429      
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  December 31, 2022 
   Fair value 
  Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss:                

 M a ndatorily designated at fair 

value through profit or loss  $  31,600    -   -   31,600    31,600   

 Financial assets measured at 

amortized cost:                

 Cash and cash equivalents   60,733    -   -   -   -  

 N otes and accounts receivable   2,081    -   -   -   -  

 Other receivables   1,660    -   -   -   -  

 Restricted dep osits  

(recognized as other 

non-current assets)   2,444    -   -   -   -  

 G uaranteed dep osits 

(recognized as other 

non-current assets)   202    -   -   -   -  

  $ 98,720      

 Financial liabilities measured at 

amortized cost:                

 S hort-ter m borro wing   214,000    -   -   -   -  

 N otes and accounts payable   12,699    -   -   -   -  

 Other pa yables   11,514    -   -   -   -  

 G uaranteed dep osits   891    -   -   -   -  

  $ 239,104      

       

2) Fair value valuation technique for financial instruments not measured at fair value  

The book value of financial assets and liabilities  at a mortized cost in the report is  

approximately its fair value.  

3) Fair value valuation technique for financial instruments measured at fair value  

a) Non-derivative financial instru ments  

A financial instru ment will use the public quoted price of the act ive market as the fair 

value if it has  the public quoted price of the active market.  

M easure ments of fair value of financial instru ments without an active market are 

based on a valuation technique or quoted price fro m a co mp etitor. Fair value 

m easured b y using a valuation technique can be e xtrapolated from similar financial 

instru ments, the discounted cash flo w method, or other valuat ion technique including 

a model using observable market data at the reporting date.  
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b) Derivative financial instru ments  

M easure ment of fair va lue of derivative instruments is based on the valuation 

techniques that are generally accepted by the market participants. Fair value of 

for ward currency exchange is usually deter mined b y using the for ward currency rate.  

4) There were no transfer a mong fair value hierarchies  for the years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 

and 2022.  

5) R econciliation of Level 3 fair values  

  Non derivative  

mandatorily 

measured at fair 

value through profit 

or loss 

 Balance on January 1, 2023  $  31,600   

 Addit ion   30,000   

 Ex ercise of the right of conversion in the current period   (31,600)   

 Balance on Dece mber 31, 2023  $ 30,000  

 Balance on January 1, 2022  $  7,113   

 Addit ion   31,600   

 Eliminat ion through consolidat ion   (7,113)   

 Balance on Dece mber 31, 2022  $ 31,600  

   

6) Q uantified infor mation on significant unobservable inputs  (Level 3) used in fair value 

m easure ment  

The Co mpa ny ’ s  financial instruments that  use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value 

include “ f inancial assets measured at “ fair  value through other co mprehensi ve 

inco me- convertible bonds” .   
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Q uantified infor mation of s ignificant unobservable inputs was as follo ws:  

 

Item Valuation technique 

Significant 

unobservable inputs 

Inter-relationship 

between significant 

unobservable inputs 

and  

fair value 

measurement 
 Financial assets at 

fair value through 

profit or loss－

convertible bonds  

R evenue method  

(Discounted Cash 

Flo w M ethod)  

‧Discounted rate in 

lack of market 

liquidity as of 

Dece mb er 31, 

2023 and 2022 

was 37.02 % and 

30.68 %.  

‧T he higher the 

discounted rate is, 

the lower the fair 

value will be.  

     
(u) Financial risk manage ment   

(i)  Briefings  

The Co mpa ny is exposed to the following risks arising fro m financial instruments ：  

1) Credit risk  

2) Liquidity risk  

3) M arket risk  

In this note expressed the infor mation on risk exposure and objectives , policies and proces s of 

risk measure ment  and ma nage ment .  For detailed infor mation, please refer to the related notes  

of each risk.  

(ii)  Structure of risk ma nage ment  

The C o mpany ’ s  finance depart ment provides business services for the overall internal 

depart ment. It sets the objectives, policies and  processes for managing the risk and the methods  

used to measure the risk arising from both do m estic and international financial market operatio ns.   

The Co mpany mini mizes the risk exposure through derivat ive financial instru ments. The B oard 

of Directors regulated the use of derivative and non -derivative financial instru ments in 

accordance with the Co mpany’ s  policy about risks  arising fro m financial instruments such as  

currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of non -derivat ive financial instruments, and 

the invest ments of excess liquidity. The internal auditors of the C o mpany cont inue with the 

revie w of the a mount  of the risk exposur e in accordance with the Co mpany’ s  policy and the 

risk ma nage ment  policies  and procedures . The Co mpa ny has no transact ions in financial 

instru ments for the purpose of speculation.  
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(iii)  Credit risk  

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the C omp any if a custo mer or counterparty to a financial 

instru ment fails to meet  its contractual obligat ions, and aris es principally from the C o mpany ’ s  

receivables fro m custo mers  and cash and cash in banks.  

1) Accounts receivable and other receiva bles  

The Co mpa ny has established a credit policy under which each ne w custo mer is analyzed 

individually for credit worthiness before the C o mpany’ s  standard pa yment and delivery 

ter ms and condit ions are offered.  Purchase limits are established for each cust o mer, and 

these limits  are revie wed periodically. Custo mers  that fail to meet  the Co mpany ’ s  

bench mark credit worthiness ma y transact with the C o mpany only on a prepa yment basis.  

The Co mpa ny constantly assesses the financia l status of the customers.  

Also, the C o mpany through subsidiaries to s ell products at Europe and A merica area, and 

controls the credit and evaluat es the financial condit ion of these clients to reduce the credit  

risk of accounts receivable.  

2) Invest ment  

The exposure to credit risk for the bank deposits and other financial instru ments is  

m easured and monitored by the Co mpany’ s  finance depart ment. The C o mpany deposits  

the cash in different financial institut ions for the purpose of controlling the credit risk in  

each financial institut ion. Therefore, there is no significant credit risk of bank deposits.  

3) G uarantees  

Please refer to note 13(a) for the Co mpa ny provided financial guarantees to its subsidiaries  

as of Dece mb er 31, 2023.  

(iv)  Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Co mpa ny will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations 

associat ed with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.  

The Co mpany ma nages sufficient cash and cash equivalents so as to cope with its operat ions and  

mit igate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The C o mpany’ s  ma nage ment  supervises  the 

banking facilities and ensures in co mpliance with the ter ms of the loan agree ments.   

The loans and borro wings from the bank for ms  an important source of liquidity  for the C o mpa ny. 

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the unused short -ter m bank facilities were $269,462 and 

$236,922, respect ively.  

(v)  M arket risk  

M arket risk is the risk that changes in market  prices, such as  foreign exchange rates  and int erest 

rates that will affect the C o mpany’ s  inco m e or the value of its holdings of financial instrume nts. 

The objective of market risk ma nage ment  is to manage and control market risk exposures within 

acceptable para meters, while optimizing the return.  
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1) C urrency risk  

The Co mpany is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are deno minated in  

a currency other than the respective functional currencies  of the Co mpany ’ s  entities , 

primarily, the Ne w Taiwa n Dollars (T W D), Euro (EU R), US Dollars ( US D), and Chines e 

Yuan (C N Y).  

2) Int erest rate risk  

The Co mpany borro ws funds on variable int erest rates, which has a risk exposure in cash 

flo w.  

(v) Capital manage ment   

The B oard’s  policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market  

confidence and to sustain future develop ment  of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares and 

retained earnings.  

The Co mpa ny monitors the capital structure by wa y of periodical revie w on the liability ratio. The 

C o mpany’ s  capita l is the “ t otal equity”  in the balance sheets, sa me with the total liabilities being 

subtract ed to the total assets.  

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the liability ratios were as follows:  

  December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 Total liabilities  $  392,403    386,859   

 Total assets   794,121    806,298   

 Liability ratio   49  %   48  %  

    
As of Dece mb er 31, 2023, there were no changes in the Co mpany’ s  approach of capital manage ment.  

( w)  Invest ing and financing activities not affecting current cash flo w   

The Co mpa ny’ s  investing and financing act ivities which did not affect the current cash flow for the 

years ended Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022:  

R econciliation of liabilities arising fro m fina ncing activities were as follo ws:  

      

  

January 1, 

2023 Cash flows 

December 31, 

2023 
 Short -ter m borro wings  $  214,000    (26,000)    188,000   

 Deposits received   891    -   891   

 Total liabilities from financing activities  $ 214,891   (26,000)   188,891  
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January 1, 

2022 Cash flows 

December 31, 

2022 
 Short -ter m borro wings  $  114,000    100,000    214,000   

 Deposits received   891    -   891   

 Total liabilities from financing activities  $ 114,891   100,000   214,891  
     

(7) Related-party transactions:   

(a) Na mes and relat ionship with relat ed parties   

The follo wings are subsidiaries and entities that have had transactions with related parties during the 

periods covered in the financial state ments：  

  

Names and relationship with related parties 

Relationship with the 

Company 

 A G Neovo International Ltd.  Subsidiary 

 A G Neovo Technology B. V. ( AG Neovo B. V.)  Subsidiary 

 A G Neovo Invest ment Co., Ltd. ( AG Neovo Invest ment)  Subsidiary 

 A G Neovo Technology Corp. ( AG Neovo US A)  A G Neovo International’s  

subsidiary 

 A G Neovo Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (A G Neovo Shanghai)  A G Neovo Invest ment’s  

subsidiary 

 Taiwan Biophotonic Corporation (tP B C) ( Note 1)  Subsidiary 

   
Note 1: The Company obtained substantial control over tBPC in April 2022. 

(b) Significant transactions with related parties  

(i)  Op erating revenues  

The a mounts of s ignificant sales  by the Co mp any to relat ed parties were as follo ws:  

  Sales 
   2023 2022 

 Subsidiary－A G Neovo B. V.  $  248,431    303,999   

 Sub-Subsidiary－A G Neovo US A   34,775    27,679   

  $ 283,206   331,678  

    

The C o mpany sells monitors to the subsidiaries  and grandson co mpanies , the price is based on 

the cost mark-up by a certain percentage, and ma kes necessary adjust ments as appropriate.  The 

ending inventory of the subsidiaries and grandson co mpanies are recorded as the C o mpany ’ s  

inventory, and the C o mpany shall not be recognized as  sales  until they are delivered. The credit  

ter ms of unrelat ed parties are 30~90 days after delivery.  
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(ii)  R eceipts in advance  

  December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 Subsidiary－A G Neovo B. V.  $  100,057    107,785   

 Sub-subsidiary－A G Neovo US A   28,170    36,577   

  $ 128,227   144,362  

    

(iii)  Acquisitions of financial assets  

The 300 and 316 units of convertible bonds issued by tBP C were acquired by the Co mp any,   

each a mounting to $30,000 and $31,600 in 2023 and 2022, respectively, which were classified 

as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. Please refer to note 6(b).  

(iv)  Disposal and conversion of convertible corporate bonds  

The Co mpany exercised its rights to convert matured convertible bonds issued b y tBP C in April, 

June, July and October of 2023, respectively, for related infor mation, please refer to not e 6(e).  

tBP C redee med 108 units of secured convert ible bonds in June 2022, with a total of $11,664  

plus int erest, and the Co mpany has fully received.  

(v)  G uarantees  

   December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 Subsidiary－A G Neovo B. V.  $  150,000    150,000   

 Sub-subsidiary－A G Neovo US A   40,000    40,000   

  $ 190,000   190,000  

    
(c) Ke y manage m ent personnel transaction   

Ke y manage m ent personnel co mpensation comprised:  

 2023 2022 

 Short -ter m e mployee benefits  $  8,378    9,813   

 Post-employment  benefits   144    144   

  $ 8,522   9,957  
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(8) Pledged assets:   

The carrying a mounts of pledged assets were as follo ws:  

 

Pledged assets Object 

December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

 La nd and buildings  G uarantee for short-ter m loans and 

the credit lines  

$  114,434    115,281   

 Invest ment property 〃   158,918    160,101   

 R estricted deposits (recognized as  

other non-current assets)  

Warranty guarantee   

   2,334    

 

   2,444    

   $ 275,686   277,826  

     

(9) Commitments and contingencies:     

As of Dece mb er 31, 2023 and 2022, the unused balances of the Co mpany's letters of credit a mounted to 

$17,853 and $7,034, respectively.  

(10) Losses due to major disasters: None.   

(11) Subsequent events:   

In order to fully reflect the current use status and value of invest ment  propert ies, the C o mp any announced 

that on March 11, 2024, the Board of Directors resolved to change the accounting policy for the subsequent 

m easure ment of invest ment properties  fro m the cost model to the fair value model starting f ro m January 1, 

2024. 

This  accounting change is expected to be retrospectively adjust ed to increase the retained  earnings in the 

individual financial statements by $62,707, while increasing invest ment properties by $64,899 and deferred 

tax liabilities by $2 ,192, respect ively. Invest m ent properties at 31 Dece mber 2023 increased by $74,082 due 

to an increase of $8,000 in fair value adjust ment gains  and a decrease of $1,183 in lease costs – depreciation 

expense in 2023.  

In sum mary, as of Dece mber 31, 2023, the increase in retained earnings due to the adoption of the fair value 

m odel is expected to be retrospectively adjusted b y a total of $71,890 thousand.  
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(12) Other:   

(a) A su m mar y of current -period employee benefits, depreciation and a mort ization, by func tion, is as 

follo ws: 

 By function 2023 2022 

  
By item 

Cost of 

sales 

Operating 

expenses 

 

Total 

Cost of 

sales 

Operating 

expenses 

 

Total 

 E mployee benefits                    

  S alary   -   44,627    44,627    -   44,114    44,114   

  La bor and health insurance   -   3,585    3,585    -   3,524    3,524   

  P ension   -   2,668    2,668    -   2,666    2,666   

  R e munerat ion of directors   -   1,640    1,640    -   1,440    1,440   

  Ot hers   -   2,232    2,232    -   2,431    2,431   

 Depreciation   1,232    1,312    2,544    1,232    1,322    2,554   

 A m ortization   903    183    1,086    584    772    1,356   

        
 Note: The depreciation for the years ended  Dece mber 31, 2023 and 2022 included the depreciation of 

invest ment property a mounted to $1,183 in both.  

Addit ional infor mation on the nu mb ers of e m ployee and e mployee benefits were as follo ws :  

  2023 2022 

 Nu mb er of e mployees   43   43  

 Non-e mployee directors   4   4  

 Average labor cost  $ 1,362   1,352  

 Average salary and bonus  $ 1,144   1,131  

 Percentage change in average salary and bonus   1%   

 Supervisor's re munerat ion  $ -   -  

    

The infor mation on the Co mpany's re munerat ion policy (including Directors, managers and e mployees) is  

as follo ws:  

The Co mpa ny has a policy on directors' rem uneration and e mployees' re munerat ion in  its Articles of 

Incorporation and sets up the Re munerat ion C o m mittee to evaluate and supervise the re m unerat ion syste m 

for directors and ma nagers  of the Co mpany. The re munerat ion of directors and managers shall b e handled 

in accordance with the Art icles of Incorporation and personnel manage m ent regulations, after revie wing b y 

the Re muneration Co m mittee, and resolved by the Board of Directors, then the resolution sha ll be sub mitted 

to the shareholders' meet ing for approval, and shall be paid reasonably in addit ion to taking into account  the 

C o mpany's operat ing perfor mance, future risks, develop ment strategies and industrial trends .  

In accordance with the la ws and the needs of various regions, the Co mpany has develop ed a co mplete 

e mployee welfare syst em to provide emp loyees with good re munerat ion and benef its. E mployee 

co mp ensation includes monthly pa y, dividend bonuses based on operat ing perfor mance , and e mployee 

co mp ensation in accordance with annual profitabilit y a nd Articles  of Incorporation.  
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The C o mpany conducts regular co mpany wide e mployee perfor ma nce appraisals each year to understand 

the perfor ma nce of employees as a basis for p ro motion, training, and co mpensation adjust ment.  

As set out in Articles  19-1, 20 and 21 of the Articles of Associat ion of the Co mpany, the Comp any shall, in 

accordance with the current year's profit status, allocat e not less than 10 percent of the profit as  the e mployees ’  

re muneration in accordance with the remuneratio n policies of e mployees and directors, and the C o mpan y 

shall also allocat e not  more than 2 percent of the profit as the directors' remuneration. Ho wever, if the 

C o mpany still has accu mulated losses, it shou ld reserve the a mount of accu mulated losses  in adv ance. The 

profit status for the year refers to the pre -tax p rofit of the current year less the e mployees' rem uneration and 

the directors' re munerat ion. The remuneration of the for mer e mployee ma y be ma de in stock or cash, and 

shall be paid to an e mployee of the C o mpany who meets certain conditions, which shall be det er mined b y 

the Board of Directors. E mployees' remuneration and directors' re muneration shall be allocated by a 

resolution adopted by a majorit y vote at a meeting of Board of Directors attended b y t wo-thirds of the total 

nu mb er of directors, a report of such distribution shall be sub mitted to the shareholders ’  m eeting. 

According to the Co mpany Act, the object of the transfer of the treasury shares acquired by the Co mpany, 

the object of the issuance of the e mployee stock option, the employee who purchased the shares  when issuing 

the ne w shares and the object of issuing the ne w restrict ed e mployee shares, including employees of the 

holding co mpany or the subordinate co mpany who meet certain condition s, which shall be deter mined b y 

the Board of Directors.  

W h en a director of the Co mpa ny perfor ms his dut ies with the Co mpany, regardless of the Co mpany's  

operat ing profits and losses, the Co mpany shall pay the re muneration, which shall be authorized b y the Board 

of Directors in accordance with the degree of participation and value of the Co mpany's perations, at the sa me 

level with the sa me industry.  

If the Co mpany suffered a pre-tax net loss, then there is no need to estimate the remuneration of e mployees 

and directors. 

(13) Other disclosures:   

(a) Infor mation on significant transactions    

The followings are the infor mation on s ignificant transactions required by the “ R e gulations 

G overning the Preparat ion of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers ”  of the Group for the year  

ended Dece mb er 31, 2023:  

(i)  Loans to other parties: None.   
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(ii)  G uarantees and endorse ments for other parties :   

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and foreign currencies) 

  

 

 

Counter-party of  

guarantee and  

endorsement Limitation on  Highest Balance of  Amount of 

Ratio of 

accumulated 

amounts of  

guarantees and   

Parent 

company 

Subsidiary 

endorsements/ 

Endorsements/ 

guarantees to  

 

No. 

 Name of 

guarantor Name 

Relationship 

with the 

Company 

 amount of 

guarantees and 

endorsements 

for a specific 

enterprise 

 balance of 

guarantees  and 

endorsements 

during  

the period 

 guarantees 

and 

endorsements  

as of reporting 

date 

Actual 

usage   

amount 

during the 

period 

 property  

pledged for 

guarantees 

and 

endorsements 

endorsements 

to net worth of 

the latest 

financial 

statements 

Maximum  

amount of 

guarantees 

and 

endorsements 

endorsements/ 

guarantees to 

third parties on 

behalf of 

subsidiary 

  guarantees 

to third parties 

on behalf of 

parent 

company 

third parties 

on behalf of 

companies in 

Mainland 

China 

 
 0  The 

Company
  

AG 

Neovo 
B.V
  

100% owned 

subsidiary 

 401,718   150,000   150,000   -   -   37.34%   401,718  Yes No No 

 
 0  The 

Company

  

AG 
Neovo 

USA
  

100% owned 
subsidiary 

 401,718   40,000   40,000   3,685   -   9.96%   401,718  Yes No No 

               

Note：According to the Company’s Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee, the total amount of endorsements and guarantees, which the Company or the Group is permitted 

to provide, shall not exceed 100% of the Company’s net worth. 

(iii)  Infor mation regarding securities held at the reporting date (excluding subsidiaries, associat es and 

joint ventures):  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and shares (units) 

 Company  Relationship  December 31, 2023  

 holding 

securities Security type and name 

 with the 

Company Account Shares/Units 

Carrying 

value 

Percentage of 

ownership Fair value Remark 

  The Company  IRONYUN 

INCORPORATED 

 -  Financial assets measured at 

fair value through other 

comprehensive income－

non-current

  

 6,025   -   3.54 %  -  Note 1 

  The Company  Convertible bonds (tBPC)  -  Financial assets measured at 

fair value through profit or 
loss-non-current

  

 300   30,000   - %  30,000   

          
Note 1: Stocks are comprised of 552 preferred shares and 5,473 common shares at the reporting date.  

(iv)  Individual s ecurities acquired or disposed of with accu m ulat ed a mount exceeding the lo wer of 

NT $300 million or 20 % of the capital stock: None.    

(v)  Acquisition of individual real estate with a mount exceeding the lo wer of NT$300 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock: None.     

(vi)  Disposal of individual real estate with a moun t exceeding the lo wer of NT$300 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock: None.    

(vii)  R elated-party purchases and sales with a moun ts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock:    

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

     

Transaction details 

Transactions with terms 

different from others 

Notes/Accounts  

receivable (payable) 

 

 

 Company 

name 

Related  

party 

Nature of 

relationship 

Purchase 

/(Sale) Amount 

Percentage  

of total 

purchases 

(sales) 

Payment  

terms Unit price 

Payment  

terms 

Ending  

balance 

Percentage of total 

notes/accounts 

receivable  

(payable) Remark 

 The 
Company

  

AG Neovo B.V  100% owned 
subsidiary

  

 (Sale)   (248,431)   (82)%  90 days net 
from date of 

invoice
  

The price  
is not 

comparable 
with that of 

the general 

customers. 

90 days net 
from date of 

invoice; actual 
payments 

would depend 

on the capital 

demand.
  

Note 1 -%  Note 1  

             
Note 1：As of December 31, 2023, the amount of receipt in advance was $100,057. 
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(viii)  R eceivables  fro m relat ed parties with a mounts exceeding the lo wer of NT$100 million or 20 % 

of the capital stock: None.     

(ix)  Trading in derivative instru ments: None.  

(b) Infor mation on investees:    

The follo wing is the infor mation on investees  for the year ended Dece mber 31, 2023 (excluding 

infor mation on investees  in Mainland C hina):  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/ foreign currencies and share in thousand units) 

 

    Original investment amount Ending Balance as of December 31, 2023  

Investment 

income  

 

Name of 

investor Name of investee Location 

Main businesses  

and products 

December 31, 2023 

(Note 1) 
December 31, 2022 

(Note 1) Shares 

Percentage  

of  

ownership 

Carrying value   

(Note 1) 

Net income 

(loss) of the 

Investee 

(Note2) 

(loss) 

recognized by 

the investor 

(Note2) Remark 

 The Company  AG Neovo International   British Virgin Islands  Investment   343,957   343,957   0.8   100%   30,595   (276)   (276)     

 The Company  AG Neovo B.V  Netherlands  Sales of LCD monitors   187,013   187,013   4.8   100%   215,575   2,284   2,284     

 The Company  AG Neovo Investment  British Virgin Islands  Investment   14,796   14,796   0.5   100%   1,954   (2,073)   (2,073)     

 The Company  Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation

  

Taiwan  Research and 

development, manufacture 

and sale of medical 
equipment and health care 

products

  

 126,455   92,327   198,734   57%   9,028   (58,583)   (30,255)   Note 3  

 AG Neovo 
International

  

AG Neovo USA  U.S.A.  Sales of LCD monitors 
and medical 

equipment

  

 92,115  
(US$3,000) 

 92,115  
(US$3,000) 

 702   100%   26,050  
(US$848) 

 (1,345)  
(US$(43)) 

Recognized by 
AG Neovo 

International 

   

             
Note 1: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD30.705 at reporting date.  

Note 2: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD31.1548 based on the average exchange rate at reporting date. 
Note 3: The total amount included the reversal of bonds valuation loss of $1,462. 

(c) Infor mation on invest ment in mainland China:   

(i)  The related infor mation on invest ees in Mainland China:  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/foreign currencies and shares in thousand units) 

 

       Investment  

Accumulated 

outflow Net income      

 

Name  

of 

investee 

Main  

businesses 

and 

products 

Total amount 

of paid-in 

capital 

(Note 2) 

Method 

of 

investment 

Accumulated outflow 

of  investment from 

Taiwan as of  

January 1, 2023 

(Note 2) Outflow Inflow 

of investment 

from 

Taiwan as of  

December 31, 

2023 (Note 2) 

 (loss) 

of the investee 

company 

(Note 3) 

Percentage 

of 

ownership 

Investment 

income (loss) 

recognized  

(Notes 3) 

Carrying value 

as of December 

31, 2023 

(Note 2) 

Accumulated 

remittance of  

earnings as of 

December 31, 2023 

 AG Neovo  

(Shanghai)

  

Sales of LCD 

monitors

  

 15,353  

(US$500) 

Note 1  15,353  

(US$500) 

 -   -   15,353  

(US$500) 

 (2,073)  

(US$(66)) 

100%  (2,073)  

(US$(66)) 

 1,954  

(US$64) 

 -  

              

(ii)  Upper limit on invest ment in M ainland C hina:   

(In Thousands of Ne w Taiwan D ollars and foreign  currencies)  

 Accumulated investment in 

Mainland China as of 

December 31, 2023 

(Notes 2 and 4) 

Investment amounts  

authorized by Investment 

Commission, MOEA 

(Notes 2 and 4) 

 

 

Upper limit  

on investment 
 

 123,925  (US$4,036)   123,925  (US$4,036)   241,031   

    
Note 1 : Indirect investment in Mainland China through companies registered in the third region. 

Note 2 : The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD30.705 at reporting date. 

Note 3 : The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD31.1548 based on the average exchange rate at reporting 

date. 

Note 4 : Including the withdrawn amount of investment from the Shanghai CIMC Baowell Industries Co., Ltd. 

(iii)  Significant transactions: None.    
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(d) M ajor shareholders:    

 

 

Shareholding 

Shareholder’s Name 
Shares Percentage 

 CTBC in custody for Top Group Holdings, Ltd.   8,011,294    14.50 %   

 David Pi   3,502,541    6.34 %   

    

(14) Segment information:   

Please refer to the annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended Dece mber 31, 2023.  
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 ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC.   

 Statement of Cash and Cash Equivalents  

 
December 31, 2023  

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

   

   

Item Description Amount 

Cash Petty cash and cash on hand  $  504   

C hecking accounts    2,889   

De ma nd deposits  NT D   702   

〃  Foreign currency ( US D 796 thousands)   24,440   

Ti me deposits  NT D   2,900   

  $ 31,435  

Note: The exchange rate: US D1 = NT D30.705  
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 ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC.   

 Statement of Notes and Accounts Receivable-Non-related Party  

 
December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Clie nt na me  Description A m o unt  

Notes Receivable     

Company A Non-related party  $ 344  

Company B 〃  677  

Accounts Receivable   

Company AK Non-related party   1,430  

Company AQ 〃  365  

Company AE 〃  344  

Company AH 〃  340  

Company AD 〃  248  

Other (Note)   345  

   4,093  

Less: Loss allowance   (7)  

Total  $ 4,086   

Note: The a mount of individual custo mer included in others  does not exceed 5 % of the account balance.  
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 Statement of Inventories   

 
December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

 A m o unt   

Ite m  Co st  

Net realizable 

value 

Merchandise inventories $ 198,727   214,685   

Less: Allowance for inventory valuation loss and obsolescence  (19,933)   

Total $  178,794    
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 ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC.   

 Statement of Changes In Investments Accounted For Using The Equity Method   

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

          Exchange          

  Beginning balance   Increase (Decrease)   Share of profit      differences on    Ending Balance        

 Invested company  

 Shares  

 (in thousands)   Amount  

 Shares 

 (in thousands)   Amount  

 (loss) of   
 subsidiaries   

 and associates  

 Impairment  

 loss  

 translation of   
 foreign financial  

  statements  

 Shares  

(in thousands) 

 Percentage  

 of ownership   Amount  

 Net assets  

 value  

 Collaterals  
 or pledged  

 assets  

AG Neove 

International Ltd.   0.8  $ 31,027   -   -   (276)   -   (156)   0.8   100 %  30,595   30,595  None 

AG Neovo B.V.  4.8   205,366   -   -   2,284   -   7,925   4.8   100 %  215,575   215,575  〃 

AG Neovo Investment  0.5   4,070   -   -   (2,073)   -   (43)   0.5   100 %  1,954   1,954  〃 

Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation  10,094   4,783  188,640 (Note)  34,500   (30,255)   -   -   198,734   56.98 %  9,028   9,028  〃 

Total    $ 245,246      34,500   (30,320)   -   7,726         257,152      

Note: tBPC issued no par value shares.  
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 ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC.   

 Statement of Changes in Property, Plant and Equipment  

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Please refer to note (6)(g). 

   

   

   

 Statement of Changes in Investment Property  

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Please refer to note (6)(h). 

   

   

   

 
 Statement of Changes in Intangible Assets   

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Please refer to note (6)(i). 
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 ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC.   

 
 Statement of Short-Term Borrowings   

 
December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Creditor Description Contract period 

Interest 

rate Credit lines 

Collateral or 

pledged assets 

Ending 

balance 

Hua Nan Bank Unsecured loans  2023.07~2024.01  Note  30,000  None $ 25,000  

Taiwan Cooperative 

Bank 

Unsecured loans  2023.08~2024.08  〃  24,000  None  20,000  

Chang Hwa Bank Secured loans  2023.07~2024.06  〃  370,000  Land and building  110,000  

Mega International 

Commercial Bank 

Unsecured loans  2023.07~2024.07  〃  25,000  None  13,000  

First Bank Secured loans  2023.06~2024.06  〃  30,000  Land and building  20,000  

      $ 188,000  

Note: Between 2.06%~2.81%. 

   

   

   

 Statement of Notes and Accounts Payable  

 
December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Suppliers  Description Amount 

Accounts payables:   

Company AQ Non-related party  $ 22,482  

Company AP  〃  17,296  

Company AT  〃  14,998  

Other (Note) 〃  1,520  

  $ 56,296  

Note: The amount of individual vendor included in others does not exceed 5% of the account balance. 
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 ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC.   

 
 Statement of Other Payables   

 
December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Item Description Amount 

Payroll payable and bonuses 
Estimated year-end bonuses and unpaid leave $ 5,939  

Estimated expense 
Labor and health insurance and pension  4,191  

Payables expenses 
Shipping expenses   3,042  

Professional service fees payable Professional service fee 
 1,870  

Other (Note) Taxes and other estimated expenses 
 200  

  $ 15,242  

Note: The amount of each item included in others does not exceed 5% of the account balance. 

   

   

   

 
 Statement of Operating Revenues   

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Item Quantity (thousand units) Amount 

Sales revenue 
  

 LCD monitors 
 44  $ 287,955  

 Medical equipment 
 1   796  

 Others accessories and others 
 15   7,761  

 Net sales 
  296,512  

Rental income 
  5,210  

Operating revenues, net 
 $ 301,722  
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 ASSOCIATED INDUSTRIES CHINA, INC.   

 
 Statement of Operating Costs   

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023  

 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

   

   

Item Amount 

The inventory, beginning of year $ 192,792  

Add: Purchases  217,737  

Less: Transferred to expense and others  (238)  

         The inventory, end of year  (198,727)  

Cost of goods sold  211,564  

Add: The depreciation of molding equipment, amortization and others  10,385  

      Lease cost  1,601  

      Inventory valuation loss and obsolescence  2,751  

Operating costs $ 226,301  
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VI. Influence of any difficulty with financial solvency of the Company and its affiliate on the 

Company’s financial position in the most recent year and up to the publication date of this 

annual report: None. 
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Seven. Financial Position and Financial Performance Review 

Analysis and Risk Management 

I. Financial position analysis 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Year 

Item 
2023 2022 

Difference 

Amount %  

Current assets  400,578  426,643 (26,065) (6.11) 

Property, plant and equipment   123,023    131,950  (8,927) (6.77) 

Right-of-use assets     6,206     15,328  (9,122) (59.51) 

Investment property   158,918    160,101  (1,183) (0.74) 

Intangible assets    25,185     29,338  (4,153) (14.16) 

Other assets     6,613      7,593  (980) (12.91) 

Total assets   720,523    770,953  (50,430) (6.54) 

Current liabilities   308,373    332,239  (23,866) (7.18) 

Non-current liabilities     3,551      7,533  (3,982) (52.86) 

Total liabilities   311,924    339,772  (27,848) (8.20) 

Share capital   552,186    545,326  6,860 1.26 

Capital surplus    30,302     29,328  974 3.32 

Retained earnings (44,166) (14,346) (29,820) 207.86 

Other equity (111,773) (116,038) 4,265 (3.68) 

Treasury shares  (24,831)  (24,831) 0 0.00 

Equity attributable to owners of 

parent company 
401,718 419,439 (17,721) (4.22) 

Total equity  408,599  431,181 (22,582) (5.24) 

The main reason for and impact of the increase or decrease in assets, liabilities, or equity by 

20% or more during the most recent two years with the increase or decrease amounting to 

NT$10 million; if the impact is significant, please specify a future response plan: 

(I) The increase or decrease by 20% compared with the prior period with the increase or 

decrease amounting to NT$10 million: 

The decrease in retained earnings: Mainly due to the subsidiary's operating loss in 

2023. 

(II) Impact: No significant impact was posed. 

(III) Future response plan: N/A. 
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II. Financial performance analysis 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Year 

Item 2023 2022 
Increase/Dec

rease 
Percentage 

Operating revenue 510,587 594,422 (83,835) (14.10) 

Operating cost 312,110 405,439 (93,329) (23.02) 

Gross profit 198,477 188,983 9,494 5.02 

Operating expense 239,769 225,353 14,416 6.40 

Net operating income (loss) (41,292) (36,370) (4,922) 13.53 

Non-operating income and 

expenses 
(14,605) 5,921 (20,526) (346.66) 

Net income (loss) before tax (55,897) (30,449) (25,448) 83.58 

Income tax expense 876 484 392 80.99 

Net income (loss) for this period (56,773) (30,933) (25,840) 83.54 

Other comprehensive income for 

this period (net of tax) 
7,726 9,259 (1,533) (16.56) 

Total comprehensive income for 

this period 
(49,047) (21,674) (27,373) 126.29 

Net profit (loss) attributable to 

owners of parent company in 

current period 

(29,820) (13,759) (16,061) 116.73 

Total comprehensive income 

attributable to owners of parent 

company 

(22,094) (4,500) (17,594) 390.98 

The main reasons for the material changes in operating revenue, net operating income, and net 

income before tax by 20% or more in the most recent two years, with the increase or decrease 

amounting to NT$10 million: 

(I) The increase or decrease by 20% with the increase or decrease amounting to NT$10 million 

is described below: 

1. The decrease in operating cost, net loss before tax, net loss in current period, total 

comprehensive income, net loss attributable to owners of parent, and total 

comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent: Mainly due to decrease in 

revenue and increase in loss. 

2. The decrease in non-operating revenue and expense: Mainly due to the recognition 

of asset impairment loss by the subsidiary. 

 (II) Estimated sales volume and the basis for estimation 

We have enhanced our development in professional niche markets of security 

surveillance, industry, medical care, digital signage, and solutions and estimated to ship 

50,000 to 70,000 high-end displays per year. We put the improvement to quality and 

profit before the growth of sales volume. With the increase in the brand values of AG 

Neovo and the establishment of distribution channels, we estimate that the sales volume 

in the future will also increase with higher market penetration rates and the expansion 

into professional application fields. 

(III) Potential impact on the Company's future financial business: No material impact is posed. 
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(IV) Future response plan: N/A. 
III. Cash flow analysis 

(I) Analysis of changes in cash flows for the year 

1. Operating activities: The net cash outflow from operating activities was NT$68,206 

thousand, mainly due to a decrease in inventories and an increase of 

accounts payable. 

2. Investing activities: The net cash outflow from investing activities was NT$5,401 

thousand, mainly due to an increase in the acquisition of intangible assets. 

3. Financing activities: The net cash inflow from financing activities was NT$59,404 

thousand, mainly due to a decrease in bank borrowings. 

 (II) Improvement plan for the estimated cash flow deficit: N/A. 

(III) Analysis of cash flows in the coming yearUnit: NTD thousand 

Opening 

balance 

of cash 

Estimated annual 

net cash flow from 

operating activities 

Estimated annual net 

cash flow from 

investing and 

financing activities 

Cash flow 

surplus 

(deficit) 

amount 

Remedial measures for 

cash flow deficit 

Investment 

plan 

Financial 

manageme

nt plan 

112,673 38,304 (24,000) 126,977 - - 

 
IV. Influence of major capital expenditures on financial business in the most recent year: None. 

V. Investment policy for the most recent year, the main reasons for profit or loss, improvement plan, 

and investment plan for the following year 

(I) Investment policy: Based on the Company's long-term development plan, the Company will 

focus on strategic investment and long-term holding. Considering the changes in the 

overall industrial environment, carefully evaluate the benefits of each investment project 

according to the established rules and regulations of the Company. 

(II) The main reason for investment income or loss: Subsidiary Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation is currently in the phase of developing and implementing operational models 

and product technologies. In the face of the impact of the relationship between China and 

the United States, inflation caused by the Russia-Ukraine war, interest rate hikes, and 

fluctuations in market demand, the company remains focused on providing differentiated 

and optimal solutions in various professional fields. This focus aims to further enhance 

operational performance. 

(III) Improvement plan: Actively explore new customers and expand the medical service 

business; proactively penetrate into more professional application fields and professional 

channels, and increase the product portfolio applied in different usage environments, and 

strengthen the relationship with channel partners through quality improvement, software 

and hardware integration, and in-depth service. cooperation, strengthen channel efficiency 

to enhance channel effectiveness and deepen AG Neovo's brand value. 

(IV) The investment plan for the following year: Continue to invest in the fields of biomedicine 

and cloud services, and strengthen external strategic cooperation to bring substantial 

development benefits to the Company. 

VI. Assessment of risk events in the most recent year and up to the publication date of this annual 
report: 

(I) Risk factors: 

1. The impact of interest rate, exchange rate changes, and inflation on the Company's profit 

or loss and future countermeasures: 
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Item 2023 (NT$ thousand; %) 

Net consolidated interest income or 

expenses 
(6,518) 

Ratio of net consolidated interest income 

or expenses to net revenue 
(1.28)% 

Ratio of net consolidated interest income 

or expenses to net income before tax 
11.66% 

Net consolidated exchange gain or loss 2,738 

Ratio of net consolidated exchange gain 

or loss to net revenue 
0.54% 

Ratio of net consolidated exchange gain 

or loss to net income before tax 
(4.90)% 

(1) In respect of interest rates, as the Company borrows funds at floating rates, changes 

in market interest rates will cause fluctuations in the Company's cash flows. If the 

interest rate increased or decreased by 0.25% at the balance sheet date, with all other 

variables held constant, the 2023 and 2022 net income before tax would have 

decreased or increased by NT$230 thousand and NT$416 thousand, respectively, 

mainly due to the Group’s demand deposits, time deposits at floating rates, and 

borrowings at floating rates. The Company adjusts the amounts of loans flexibly in 

alignment with sales and investment strategies, regularly evaluates bank loan 

interest rates, and interacts closely with banks. We estimate that changes in interest 

rates will not pose a significant impact on the Company's future operations and 

profits. 

(2) Regarding exchange rates, the main currency of the Company's revenue is EUR, 

and we mainly pay in USD. The management team collects information on 

exchange rate changes in real time and refers to the financial data provided by banks 

and investment institutions to keep abreast of the exchange rate trends; adjust the 

foreign currency positions held depending on the capital needs and engage in 

forward exchange transactions where appropriate hedge exchange risks. 

(3) In terms of inflation, as the Company focuses on the sales in the niche market of 

professional displays with high profit margins, the decrease or recovery of prices of 

raw materials may have relatively little impact on the Company's profits with our 

response mechanism. 

 

2. The policy on engagement in high-risk and highly leveraged investment, loans to others, 

endorsements/guarantees provided, and derivatives trading,  

the main reason for profit or loss, and countermeasures:  

The Company does not engage in high-risk and highly leveraged investments, nor do 

we provide loans to others. We handle loans to others, endorsements/guarantees to 

others, and derivatives trading in accordance with the Company's “Operating 

Procedures for Loaning of Funds to Others,” “Procedures for Asset Acquisition and 

Disposal,” and “Operating Procedures for Endorsements and Guarantees”. 

3. Future R&D plan and estimated R&D expenses: 

(1) AG Neovo will continue to design new products from the perspective of the users’ 

perspective. The products planned to be developed in 2024 include: 

Outdoor display with high brightness 

The 55”/65”/75” displays with circular polarizers to ensure the best visibility at 

different brightness levels either semi-outdoor or outdoor. 

 

Professional displays for business or creators 

24”/27”/34” (21: 9) USB Type C monitors 

 Portable display with 15.6" OLED 
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PIDS/TIDS/FIDS professional displays for passenger information systems 

49.5”/31.5”/43”/49”/55” 

 

PSD platform door display 

31.5” 

 

AFC automatic ticket display 

23” 

 

Digital pathology analysis display 

27”/31.5” 

 

Marine monitors 

24” 

 

LCD color calibration software 

It improves the performance difference between the brightness and color of an LCD 

panel, ensures brightness-color consistency in the display, and reproduces a high-

precision color environment. 

 

Intelligence's OSD integration software for professional displays 

Provide professional OSD control software for specific monitors 

Create a complete user experience for users, and quickly set the value of the 

monitor according to the usage scenario 

 

Meetboard 4G interactive display 

Provide Google EDLA  certified operating systems to meet user’s software 

requirements of daily applications. 

Optimize the whiteboard software user experience and add functions to meet the 

needs of more meeting scenarios 

 

Android-based digital signages 

Provide 4K electronic billboards with narrow borders of equal width around the 

edges 

Use the Android system to create an optimized user interface 

 

MeetCloud, a cloud-based online collaboration platform developed for remote 

conference/teaching applications. 

It expands the scenarios of existing video conference devices 

It supports for remote collaboration on different platforms and breaks through 

space constraints. 

 

NeovoXcare device management and control and device health monitoring solutions 

Complete Command to control all AG Neovo displays 

Provides accurate device health status monitoring and product life cycle prediction 

through AI algorithms 

 It provides a more complete and comprehensive solution to cater the needs for 

different users’ environments. 

Create AG Neovo’s membership system, which forecasts market and user needs 

through big data analysis. 
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(2) The R&D expenses spent on displays in 2024 is expected to reach NT$22.80 million. 

4. The influence of the changes in important policies and regulatory environment at home 

or abroad on the Company’s financial business, and countermeasures: 

We pay close attention to important domestic and overseas policies and changes in laws 

at any time and timely consult relevant experts, such as legal affairs and accounting 

experts for evaluation, suggestions, and planning of countermeasures, to stay informed 

and respond to changes in the market environment. In the most recent year and up to 

the publication date of this annual report, the above incidents did not pose a material 

impact on the Company. 

5. The influence of changes in technology (including cyber security risks) and the industry 

on the Company's financial business and countermeasures: 

(1) As the TFT-LCD industry to which the Company belongs is characterized by rapid 

changes, the costs and selling prices should be adjusted with market changes in real 

time. The Company's sales and product service units assess the impact of such 

changes on our financial business at all times, and we, in alignment with the growth 

of the market and technology, develop new ventures and products to maintain market 

competitiveness in response to new industrial development trends. In the most recent 

year and up to the publication date of this annual report, it did not pose a material 

impact on the Company. 

(2) Cyber security risk management: 

Modern enterprises adopt a number of information systems. To safeguard corporate 

governance and reduce operational risks, enterprises should develop complete 

information security measures to protect their important information assets so as to 

achieve sustainable development. Faced with the challenges of emerging 

technologies and changes in business models, which leads to new types of crimes, 

AIC insists on protecting important intellectual property rights, reinforcing the 

reliability and quality of our professional services, and complying with laws and 

regulations, such as the Personal Data Protection Act and the Cyber Security 

Management Act. 

a. Analysis of various potential information security threats, with the main items 

including: 

 Fraud rings use fake emails to trick employees into making remittances or 

transactions. 

Corporate spies or competitors use hacking technology to continuously 

penetrate into internal servers and steal internal business information. 

Criminal groups work with hackers to distribute contents with malicious links 

through emails, text messages, social media, or communication software, to 

encrypt and kidnap victims’ computer data and demand a high ransom. 

Hackers launch a large number of connection requests through the internet to 

disrupt a company’s normal network operation. 

Internal employees use illegal software or copy the Company's confidential 

data to their portable storage devices, resulting in data leakage due to loss, theft, 

or sale of such data. 

b. AIC is committed to reducing the probability and impact of such information 

security threats risks and improving the Company's ability to continue as a going 

concern. Meanwhile, we adopt various information security protection measures to 

cope with the above information security threats and carry out risk management 

and control, including: 

Regularly offer information security education and training to employees to 

enhance their awareness of email protection. 

 Install anti-virus and monitoring software on the user end to block the access 
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right to install software by themselves. 

 Install a firewall to control network traffic and applications and develop a 

security surveillance management mechanism for intranet protection and 

database access. 

Centralized management of servers, enhance the control of the data center, 

regularly carry out data backup, and conduct disaster redundancy exercises 

every year. 

Conduct regular vulnerability scanning and penetration testing. 

Install e-mail filtering devices to intercept malicious and spam emails. 

Store data offsite to improve data security. 

6. The influence of a change in corporate image on corporate crisis management and 

countermeasures: None. 

7. Estimated benefits and potential risks of M&A and countermeasures: We did not have 

such a plan in the most recent year and up to the publication date of this annual report. 

8. Estimated benefits and potential risks of plant expansion: We did not have such a plan 

in the most recent year and up to the publication date of this annual report. 

9. Risks of supplier or client concentration: 

The Company sells products mainly through our subsidiaries in the U.S. and the 

Netherlands, and we do not concentrate sales to specific clients. The products we 

purchase are mainly produced by several professional OEMs, and the production 

capacity is allocated as per our production and sales plan, so there is no risk of supplier 

or client concentration. 

10. The influence of massive transfer or replacement of shares by the directors or 

shareholders each holding more than 10 % of the shares issued by the Company, the 

risk thereof, and countermeasures: 

There is no such circumstance in the Company. 

11. The influence of change in the Company’s management right and the risk thereof: N/A. 

12. In the case of a court case or a non-contentious case, specify the names of the directors, 

the General Manager, the de facto responsible person, shareholders each holding more 

than 10% of company shares, and subsidiaries with final ruling made or still in major 

legal proceedings, non-contentious matters, or administrative disputes, and where the 

result thereof may significantly affect shareholders’ equity or stock price, disclose the 

fact of the contentions, the amount involved, the commencement date of the proceedings, 

the major litigants in the proceedings, and the status as of the publication date of this 

report: None. 

13. Other important risks and countermeasures: None. 
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(II) The risk management organizational structure and the unit responsible for implementation: 
With the aforesaid policy, the top-level manager of each department is responsible for 
supervising and controlling various risks and keeping abreast of each risk at all times. The 
Audit Department formulates an annual audit plan each year, to check and evaluate the 
implementation of various control measures and provide improvement suggestions in a 
timely manner, thereby ensuring the continuous effective implementation of the risk 
management policy. 
The main execution units for the risks below are as follows: 

Risk 

management 

Responsible 

department 

Risk management 

Strategic risk 

President’s Office 

Responsible for formulating the Company's business 

policy, evaluating operational efficiency, and analyzing 

operations. 

Responsible for handling court cases and non-

contentious cases, product liability insurance, and 

implementing risk management business. 

Legal risk 

Market risk 
Product Strategy 

Center 

Responsible for planning new products and conducting 

market research and evaluation. 

Business 

operation risk 

Marketing/Sales 

Service Center 

Responsible for the Company's marketing strategy, 

product promotion, and keeping abreast of market 

trends. 

Information 

security risk 

Management Service 

Center 

Responsible for the Company's network information 

security control and protection measures. 

Responsible for preparing and calculating the Company's 

product costs, controlling capital movement, assessing 

clients’ financial position and their credit risks, and 

taking hedging measures for foreign exchange and 

interest rates. 

Financial risk 

Liquidity risk 

Credit risk 

 

VII. Other important matters: None. 
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Eight. Special Matters 

I. Relevant information on affiliates: 

(I) Overview of affiliates 

1. Organizational chart of affiliates (2023.12.31) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Basic information on each affiliate 

Company 
Date of 
incorporation 

Address Paid-in capital 
Main business 

or  
item produced 

AG Neovo International 
LTD.(Formerly known as 
GMF) 

2001.09.24 
Tropic Isle Building, P.O.Box 438 Road 
Town, Tortola British Virgin Islands USD 11,161,780 

Investment in 
businesses 

AG Neovo Technology 
B.V. 

2000.11.06 
Molenbaan 9, 2908 LL Capelle aan den I 
Jssel, Rotterdam Netherlands 

EUR  4,800,000 Sales of LCDs 

AG Neovo Technology 
Corp.  

1999.12.28 
48501 Warm Springs Blvd. Suite 114 
Fremont, CA 94539 USD  3,000,000 

Sales of LCD 
and medical 
devices 

AG Neovo Investment Co., 
Ltd. 

2012.01.03 
OMC Chambers, Wickhams Cay 1, Road 
Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands 

USD   500,000 
Investment in 
businesses 

AG Neovo Technology 
(Shanghai) Corporation 

2012.06.28 
Room 135, No. 66, Miaojing Road, 
Minhang District, Shanghai, China 

USD   500,000 Sales of LCDs 

DiTaiwan Biophotonic 
Corporation (Note 1) 

103.04.22 
Hsinchu Science Park 4F.-1, No. 6-1, 
Shengyi 2nd Rd., Zhubei City, Hsinchu 
County  

TWD 129,265,940 

The R&D, 
manufacturing, 
and medical 
equipment and 
health care 
products. 

Note 1: The Company increased the investment in tBPC’s convertible corporate bonds in April 2022. In consideration 

of the comprehensive shareholding ratio based on the potential common stocks and the Company's expected 
domination over its operating and financial activities, the Company has the substantive control power and thus 

incorporates it as a subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date of control. 

Note 2: As of December 31, 2023, the exchange rates were 1 USD to 30.705 NTD; 1 EUR to 33.98 NTD. 

     The average exchange rates for 2023 were 1 USD to 31.1811 NTD; 1 EUR to 33.7286 NTD. 
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3. Information on the shareholders shared by those presumed to be controlling and 

controlled companies: N/A. 

 

 

 

4. Industries to which the affiliates belong: 

The Company’s and its affiliates’ business includes sales of LCDs and components 

thereof and after-sales services, sales of medical devices, real property leasing, and 

investment in other businesses. 

 

5. Information on directors, supervisors, and general managers of affiliates: 
December 31, 2023 

Company Title Name or representative 

Shareholding 

Number of 
Shares 

Shareholding 

AG Neovo International LTD. 

(Formerly known as GMF) 

Director Pi Hua-Chung; Chao Hsin-Yuan 
    800 100% 

President Hua-Chung Pi 

AG Neovo Technology B.V. 
Director 

Pi Hua-Chung; Chao Hsin-Yuan; Yu Hung-Chun; 

Law, Wai-Men    4,800 100% 

President Hung-Chun Yu 

AG Neovo Technology Corp. 
Director 

Hua-Chung Pi; Hsin-Yuan Chao; Hung-Chun Yu; 

Wan-Wei Lu; Wei-Te Meng   702,000 100% 

President Hsin-Yuan Chao 

AG Neovo Investment Co., Ltd. 
Director Pi Hua-Chung; Chao Hsin-Yuan 

  500 100% 
President Hua-Chung Pi 

AG Neovo Technology 
(Shanghai) Corporation 

Director Pi Hua-Chung; Chao Hsin-Yuan; Chen Chia-Hsin 

      - 100% Supervisor Wan-Wei Lu 

President Hua-Chung Pi 

Taiwan Biophotonic 

Corporation 

Director 

Hua-Chung Pi, representative of Associated 

Industries China, Inc.; Yun Yu, representative of 
Associated Industries China, Inc.; Hsin-Yuan Chao, 

representative of Associated Industries China, Inc.; 

Sen-Kuei Chang and Chang-Sheng Chu, 

representatives of Industrial Technology Investment 
Corporation 

198,734,180 57% 

Supervisor Wan-Wei Lu 

President 
Representative of Associated Industries China, Inc., 

Hsin-Yuan Chao 

 

6. Overview of the operations of affiliates: 
Unit: NT$ thousand 

Company Capital Total assets 
Total 

liabilities 
Net worth 

Operating 

revenue 

Operating 

income 

Current 

profit or 

loss (after 
tax) 

Earnings 

per share 

(NT$) 
(after tax) 

AG Neovo 
International LTD. 

343,957 30,595 - 30,595 - - (276) N/A 

AG Neovo 
Technology B.V. 

187,013 265,458 49,883 215,575 413,661 1,659 2,284 N/A 

AG Neovo 
Technology Corp.  

92,115 55,746 29,696 26,050 80,071 (262) (1,345) N/A 

AG Neovo 
Investment Co., Ltd. 

14,796 1,954 - 1,954 - - (2,073) N/A 

AG Neovo 
Technology 
(Shanghai) 
Corporation 

15,353 1,993 39 1,954 463 (2,076) (2,073) N/A 

Taiwan Biophotonic 
Corporation 

126,455 59,850 43,855 15,995 2,269 (43,329) (58,583) N/A 

Note: As of December 31, 2023, the exchange rates were 1 USD to 30.705 NTD; 1 EUR to 33.98 NTD. 
    The average exchange rates for 2023 were 1 USD to 31.1811 NTD; 1 EUR to 33.7286 NTD. 

(II) Consolidated financial statements of affiliates: 



 

- 249 -  

The affiliates that are required to be included in the “Company’s consolidated financial 

statements” as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, under the “Criteria Governing 

the Preparation of Affiliation Reports”, “Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated 

Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” are the same as those included in the 

consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with the International 

Accounting Standards No. 10. In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the 

combined financial statements of affiliates is included in said consolidated financial 

statements. Consequently, a separate set of combined financial statements of affiliates will 

not be prepared. 

(III) Affiliation report: There is no need to prepare an affiliation report. 

II. Private placement of securities in the most recent year up to the publication date of this annual 

report: None. 

III. Subsidiaries holding or disposing of the Company's shares in the most recent year and up to the 

publication date of this annual report: None. 

IV. Other necessary supplementary information: None. 
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Nine. Any event specified with a material impact on 

shareholders’ rights and interest or securities prices 

 

No such an event as specified in Article 36, paragraph 3, subparagraph 2 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act with a material impact on shareholders’ rights and interest or securities prices 

occurred to the Company during 2023 and up to the publication date of this annual report. 
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Associated Industries China, Inc. 

 

 

 

 

Chairman: Pi Hua-Chung 
 


